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28 March 2024  

Margaret Brown
Mayor 

Byron L. Jaffe
Commissioner 

Mary Molina-Macfie
Commissioner 

Chris Eddy
Commissioner 

Henry Mead
Commissioner 

Donald P. Decker 
City Manager/CEO 

To  the  Honorable  Mayor  and  Commissioners,  and  the  residents  of  the  City  of  
Weston, Florida:  

The Annual Comprehensive Financial  Report of the City of  Weston, Florida (the  
“City”)  for  the  fiscal  year  ended  September  30,  2023,  is  hereby  submitted  as  
mandated by Florida Statutes. These statutes require that the City annually issue  
a report on its financial position and activitywithin ninemonths of the close of each  
fiscal year,  and  that  this  report  be  audited  by  an  independent  firm  of  certified  
public  accountants.  Financial  statements  in  this  Report  are  presented  in  
conformity  with  the  generally  accepted  accounting  principles  (“GAAP”)  and  
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement Number 34 and  
audited in accordance with the generally accepted auditing standards.  

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness  
of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with management. To provide  
a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City has  
established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to  
protect  the  government’s  assets  from  loss,  theft,  or  misuse  and  to  compile  
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City’s financial statements  
in conformity with GAAP. Since the cost of internal controls should not outweigh  
their benefits, the City’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been  
designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurances that the financial  
statements will be free from material misstatements. As management, we assert  
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this Report is complete and reliable  
in all material respects and that it is reported in a manner that presents fairly the  
financial position and results of operations of the City. All disclosures necessary to  
enable  the  reader  to  gain  an  understanding  of  the  City’s  activities  have  been  
included.  

The City’s financial statements have been audited by Keefe, McCullough & Co LLP,  
a licensed certified public accountant firm. The goal of the independent audit was  
to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City ofWeston  
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, are free of material misstatements.  
The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the  
amounts  and  disclosures  in  the  financial  statements;  assessing  the  accounting  
principles used and significant estimatesmade bymanagement; and evaluating the  
overall financial statement presentation.  

The  independent  auditor  concluded,  based  upon  the  audit,  that  there  was  a  
reasonable  basis  for  rendering  an  unmodified  opinion  that  the  City’s  financial  
statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, are fairly presented in  
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first  
component section of this report.  
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GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and 
analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”).  The letter of transmittal is designed to 
complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City MD&A can 
be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

City Profile and Governmental Structure 

The City of Weston is in the southeastern part of the state of Florida and is 
considered to be one of the largest master planned communities in the United 
States. The City has a land area of approximately 25 square miles, a population 
estimated at 68,227 and is empowered to levy a property tax on real property 
located within its boundaries. 

The City has operated under the Commission Manager form of government since 
incorporation in 1996. Policymaking and legislative authority are vested in the City 
Commission, which consists of a Mayor and four Commissioners and is the 
legislative branch of the City’s government. The City Commission is responsible for, 
among other things, enacting ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing boards, 
and hiring the City Manager and the City Attorney. The Commission is elected on a 
non partisan basis.  The four Commissioners are elected to four year staggered 
terms and must reside within their respective residential seat area; they are, 
however, elected at large. The Mayor is elected to a four year term and is elected 
at large. The City Manager is the Chief Executive Officer of the City and leads the 
executive branch of the City’s government. The City Manager is responsible for 
carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City Commission, preparing the City 
budget, overseeing the day to day operations of the City, and appointing the heads 
of the City’s departments. The City provides a full range of services to its residents 
and businesses through contracts with the public and private sectors.  

The City is financially accountable for component units consisting of two legally 
separate dependent community development districts, the Indian Trace 
Development District and the Bonaventure Development District, both of which are 
reported separately within the City’s financial statements. Additional information 
on these two districts can be found in Note 2 of the notes to the financial 
statements. 

The annual budget serves as the foundation of the City’s financial planning and 
control. All departments responsible for City and component unit operations are 
required to submit their requests for appropriations to the Budget Director for 
inclusion in the draft budget by the end of April. The City Manager, assisted by the 
Assistant City Manager/CFO and the Budget Director, uses these requests as the 
starting point for developing a proposed budget. The City Manager then presents 
the proposed budget to the City Commission and the public at two public hearings.  
The City’s annual budget is adopted through the passage of a resolution at the 
second public hearing which occurs not later than September 30th of each year. The 
level of budgetary control at which expenditures may not exceed the budget is the 
fund level. The General Fund is the lone exception because its budgetary controls 
are set at the department level. Any transfers within the funds of the City and the 
funds of its component units are permissible if the total level of expenditures does 
not exceed the total budgeted amount.  Budget to actual comparisons are 
provided in this report for each individual government fund for which an 
appropriated annual budget has been adopted.  For the General Fund, this 
comparison is presented on page 62 as part of the required supplementary 
information. 
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Factors Affecting Financial Condition 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood 
when considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within 
which the City of Weston operates. 

Employment. According to the Florida Department of Commerce, Florida’s January 
2024 seasonally adjusted unemployment rate was 3.1%, an increase of 0.3% from a 
year ago.  The state of Florida gained 259,600 jobs over the previous twelve 
months, an increase of 2.7%. The education and health services industry gained the 
most with 67,100 jobs. Other industries that gained jobs are trade, transportation, 
and utilities; leisure and hospitality; total government; construction; professional 
and business services; other services; financial activities; and manufacturing. 

Moreover, the State had the same not seasonally adjusted unemployment rate as 
Broward County. In January 2024, Florida’s not seasonally adjusted unemployment 
rate was 3.1%, a decrease of 0.3% compared to January 2023. Broward County’s not 
seasonally adjusted unemployment rate in January 2024 was also 3.1%; however, it 
was an increase of 0.3% from January 2023.  According to the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics, Weston’s preliminary not seasonally adjusted unemployment rate in 
January 2024 was 2.9%, an increase of 0.6% from January 2023. This shows that 
Weston’s labor market remains strong relative to the rest of Broward County and 
the State of Florida.  

Housing. Broward County’s recent home sales prices grew faster than the State. 
According to Redfin.com, the statewide median sales price in February 2024 was 
$407,500, an increase of 4.4% from the previous February.  According to the 
Broward County Property Appraiser, Broward County’s median sales price in June 
2023 was $454,850, an increase of 22.2% from June 2022. Broward County’s February 
2024 year over year median sales price remains higher than the State of Florida’s 
median sales price. According to Realtor.com, Weston’s average market value in 
February 2024 was $660,000, a decrease of 5.0% from the previous year. This data 
highlights Weston’s housing price appreciation was not as strong as the County and 
State, but the home values in Weston continue to be among the highest values 
countywide. 

Inflation. The February 2024 year over year change in the Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) for the Miami Fort Lauderdale West Palm Beach Metropolitan Statistical Area 
(MSA) was 4.89%, down from 9.16% in the previous year. The August 2022 year over  
year change of 10.75% was the highest level observed for the Miami Fort 
Lauderdale West Palm Beach MSA by the Federal Bureau of Labor Statistics since a 
change of 10.7% for the twelve months ending in March 1982. Most of the City’s 
contractual obligations contain provisions which tie annual increases in costs or 
pricing to annual changes in the February Miami Fort Lauderdale West Palm Beach 
MSA CPI. All of those contracts contain provisions which limit annual cost or pricing 
increases to no more than 5%. Therefore, the City’s Budget Director is preparing to 
include increases of 4.89% in many parts of the Fiscal Year 2025 Proposed Budget 
after two consecutive years of 5% increases. 
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Legislative. In Fiscal Year 2023, the State Legislature passed several bills negatively 
impacting local government home rule authority. However, none of those bills are 
expected to cause a signi cant impact on the City’s nances. For example, the HB 7063 
Tax Package which passed freezes local communications services tax rates at their 
current level until January 1, 2026. The City’s current local communications services tax 
rate is set at the statutory cap, leaving no room to increase the current rate. Another 
bill that passed, CS/CS/CB 346 deals with the payment of public construction projects.  
The bill amends the required timing of payments and the amounts which may  be  held  
in retainage; however, this does not negatively impact the City’s nances. 

Some bills that failed which would have had a signi cant impact on the City’s nances: 

CB 682 and CS/HN 671 Residential Building Permits would have required local 
governments to reduce permit fees by 75% if an owner uses at private provider for plan 
review or inspection services. 

HB 765 Building Permit Applications to Local Government would have imposed a permit 
fee reduction of 25% for each business day that a local government fails to notify a 
property owner of their permit expiration at least 60 days prior to the set expiration 
date. 

SJR 122 and HJR 469 Constitutional Amendment: Revised Limitation on Increases of 
Homestead Property Tax Assessments would have provided for an amendment to the 
Florida Constitution by approval of the Florida voters. The bill, if approved by at least 
60% of the voters, would have reduced the cap on the annual increases in assessed value 
of homestead properties from 3% to 2%. 

CS/HB 401 and SB 604 Sovereign Immunity would have increased the statutory limits on 
liability for tort claims against local government from $200,000 per person and 
$300,000 per incident.  CS/HB 401 would have increased the statutory caps to 
$2,500,000 per person and $5,000,000 per incident. SB 604 would have increased the 
statutory caps to $400,000 per person and $600,000 per incident. 

Long term Financial Planning. In Fiscal Year 2018, the City completed its Fiscal Year 2028 
Strategic Value and Business Plan to provide a long term strategic policy document, an 
operating and financial guide, and a financial modeling mechanism for the City of 
Weston.  The plan included updated financial revenue, expense, and fund balance 
projections for all the City’s funds, affirmed existing financial policies and added new 
financial policies to support the City in the future. The major result from this document 
was the City established an ad valorem tax rate of 3.3464 that was intended to sustain 
the City for three fiscal years. During the Fiscal Year 2024 Budget process, the City 
Commission adopted a millage rate of 3.3464 for the sixth consecutive year. The City 
continues monitoring the economy, the real estate market, and the state legislative 
sessions for possible impacts. 

During Fiscal Year 2023, the City began working on its next 10 year Strategic Value and 
Business Plan to update the previous Plan with recent historical activity and expected 
short term events of significant impact. The updated Plan is completed and expected 
to be adopted in Fiscal Year 2024. 
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Significant Financial Policies. The 2028 Strategic Value and Business Plan affirmed the 
existing financial policies and some new financial policies were added. Of these financial 
policies, several were of note in the City’s financial operations during the fiscal year. 

Strategic Policy #3 maintains a Disaster Management Reserve adjusted annually for the 
change in CPI and  a Credit Reserve to maintain a AAA and Aaa credit rating with 
Standard and Poor’s and Moody’s respectively. This policy helps the City segregate 
which funds would be available for response to a disaster, which funds would be 
available to preserve the City’s credit ratings by creating a shock absorber against 
unforeseen financial events, and which funds would be available for stabilization of the 
ad valorem tax rate. 

Strategic Policy #8 develops an Infrastructure Reserve for annual contributions to be 
set aside each year for ongoing capital maintenance and equipment. This policy helps 
the City accrue small pro rata amounts to fund future maintenance and equipment 
expenses instead of funding the entire amount in that fiscal year. By spreading the 
financial responsibility equally across multiple fiscal years, no one fiscal year or set of 
taxpayers will be overburdened. 

Strategic Policy #9 establishes guidelines and specific rules necessary in carrying out the 
City’s use of debt. Whenever practical and possible the City will attempt to match the 
length of financing with the useful life of the asset being financed. The City also will 
utilize borrowing to finance capital improvements or projects instead of the City’s 
Excess Revenue Capture Balances and whenever possible, use special assessment debt 
instead of general obligation debt. 

Strategic Policy #10 provides framework for the investment activities of the City of 
Weston and establishes an operational guideline for its investment staff to follow. This 
applies to the City’s short term and long term funds but does not include bond  
proceeds which may be subject to restrictive covenants. 

In Fiscal Year 2024, the City focused on executing its “Weston Forward” theme. The 
theme is related to the vision for tomorrow's Weston that takes shape as the City 
formalizes the 2034 Strategic Value and Business Plan. The theme was utilized in the 
City’s budgets and  in  the  City’s continuous communications outreach. Furthermore, the 
City strove to meet the expectations of our residents, businesses, and stakeholders that 
our elected officials and staff would maintain the foundations upon which the City was 
built: the maintenance of infrastructure; funding adequate public safety levels; 
maintaining quality parks and recreation programs; and exercising fiscal responsibility. 

Awards and Acknowledgement 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada 
(“GFOA”) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to 
the City of Weston, Florida for its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal 
year ended September 30, 2022. This was the twenty fifth consecutive year that the 
City of Weston received this award. To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the 
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report, which satisfies both generally accepted accounting 
principles and applicable legal requirements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

To the Honorable Mayor,  
City Commissioners and City Manager  
City of Weston, Florida  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Opinions  

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business  
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Weston,  
Florida  (the  “City”)  as  of  and  for  the  year  ended  September  30,  2023,  and  the  related  notes  to  the  
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the  
table of contents.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the  
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business type activities, eachmajor fund,  
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of September 30, 2023, and the respective  
changes  in  financial  position,  and,  where  applicable,  cash  flows  thereof,  for  the  year  then  ended  in  
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  

Basis for Opinions  

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States  
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained inGovernment Auditing Standards,  
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are  
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of  
our report. We are required to be independent of the City, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities,  
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit  
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.  

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements  

Management  is  responsible  for  the  preparation  and  fair  presentation  of  the  financial  statements  in  
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the  
design,  implementation,  and  maintenance  of  internal  control  relevant  to  the  preparation  and  fair  
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or  
error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions  
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue  

KMCcpa.com  | 6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308  Phone: 954.771.0896 Fax: 954.938.9353 
Top 25 Accounting Firms | South Florida Business Journal Top 400 Accounting Firms in the U.S. | INSIDE Public Accounting 
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as  a  going  concern  for  twelve  months  beyond  the  financial  statement  date,  including  any  currently  
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.  



 

 

 

 

 

 

City of Weston, Florida  
 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole  
are free frommaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that  
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance  
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing  
standards andGovernment Auditing Standardswill always detect amaterial misstatement when it exists.  
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting  
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the  
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood  
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user  
based on the financial statements.  
 
In  performing  an  audit  in  accordance  with  generally  accepted  auditing  standards  and  Government  
Auditing Standards, we:  
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether  
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  
Such  procedures  include  examining,  on  a  test  basis,  evidence  regarding  the  amounts  and  
disclosures in the financial statements.  
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit  
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing  
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is  
expressed.  
 

 Evaluate  the  appropriateness  of  accounting  policies  used  and  the  reasonableness  of  
significant  accounting  estimates  made  by  management,  as  well  as  evaluate  the  overall  
presentation of the financial statements.  
 

 Conclude  whether,  in  our  judgment,  there  are  conditions  or  events,  considered  in  the  
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern  
for a reasonable period of time.  
 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,  
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related  
matters that we identified during the audit.  
 
Required Supplementary Information  
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s  
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 18 and; the budgetary comparison schedules, schedule of  
the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, and schedule of contributions on pages 62 68,  
be  presented  to supplement  the  basic  financial statements. Such  information is the  responsibility of  
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental  
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing  
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have  
applied  certain  limited  procedures  to  the  required  supplementary  information  in  accordance  with  
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of  
management  about  the  methods  of  preparing  the  information  and  comparing  the  information  for  
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other  
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion  
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with  
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
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City of Weston, Florida  
 
 
Supplementary Information  

 
Our  audit  was  conducted  for  the  purpose  of  forming  opinions  on  the  financial  statements  that  
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying combining and individual  
nonmajor  fund  financial  statements  and  budgetary  comparison  schedules  as  listed  in  the  table  of  
contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic  
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and  
relates  directly  to  the  underlying  accounting  and  other  records  used  to  prepare  the  basic  financial  
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the  
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such  
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial  
statements  or  to  the  basic  financial  statements  themselves,  and  other  additional  procedures  in  
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion  
the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and budgetary comparison schedules  
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  
 
Other Information  
 
Management  is  responsible  for  the  other  information  included  in  the  annual  report.  The  other  
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial  
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not  
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other  
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and  
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other  
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.  
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 28,  
2024, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its  
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other  
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over  
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the  
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an  
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering  
the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 
 
 
 
KEEFE McCULLOUGH  
 
 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida  
March 28, 2024  
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City of Weston, Florida  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
September 30, 2023  
 
 
As management of the City of Weston, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this narrative  
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2023.  
We  encourage  the  readers  to  consider  the  information  presented  here  in  conjunction  with  additional  
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i vii of this  
report.  

 
This  report  consists  of  government wide  statements,  fund  financial  statements,  notes  to  the  financial  
statements,  combining  schedules  of  nonmajor  funds  and  supplementary  information.  The  first  several  
statements are highly condensed and present a government wide view of the City’s finances. Within this  
view, all City operations are categorized and reported as either governmental or business type activities.  
Governmental activities include basic services such as management and administration, legal, police, fire  
and  emergency  medical  services,  community  development,  recreation  and  public  works.  Business type  
activities for the City are comprised of the water and sewer operations. These government wide statements  
are designed to be more corporate like in that all activities are consolidated into a total for the City.  

 
Fiscal Year 2023 Financial Highlights  
 

 The City of Weston’s net position at the close of the Fiscal Year is $376.59 million. Of  
this  amount,  $135.30  million  is  unrestricted  net  position  to  be  used  to  meet  the  
government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.  
 

 During the Fiscal Year, revenues exceeded expenses by $14.61 million which is the  
amount of increase in the City’s net position.  
 

 As of the close of the Fiscal Year, the City of Weston’s governmental funds reported a  
combined  ending  fund  balance  of  $162.45  million.  Approximately  24.3%  of  that  
amount,  or  $39.46  million,  is  unassigned  and  available  for  spending  at  the  City’s  
discretion.  
 

 At the end of the Fiscal Year, the fund balance in the General Fundwas $102.37million  
or 203.4% of total General Fund expenditures. This amount includes $45.89 million  
committed to Disaster Response.  
 

 The City of Weston’s total outstanding long term liabilities decreased by $4.17 million  
or 16.1% from prior year due to principal redemptions and the early redemption of  
certain liabilities paid with available fund balance.  
 

Overview of the Financial Statements  
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Weston’s basic financial  
statements. The financial section is one component of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. This  
report  also  includes  the  introductory  section  containing  the  letter  of  transmittal,  GFOA  certificate  of  
achievement,  City  organizational  chart,  listing  of  City  elected  and  appointed  officials;  and  the  statistical  
section which includes financial and non financial information useful in assessing the City.  
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City of Weston, Florida  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
September 30, 2023  
 
 
The financial section consists of: management’s discussion and analysis, basic financial statements, required  
supplementary information and an additional section that presents combining statements for non major  
governmental  funds  and  budgetary  comparison  schedules.  The  basic  financial  statements  include  
components that present different views on the City:  
 

 The first two statements are government wide financial statements that provide both  
long term and short term information about the City’s overall financial status.  
 

 The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts  
of the City government by reporting the City’s operations in more detail.  
 

The  governmental  funds  statements  illustrate  how  general  governmental  
functions and services are financed in the short term and what remains for future  
spending.  
 
The  proprietary  funds  statements  offer  short term  and  long term  financial  
information about activities that the government operates like a business, such as  
the water and sewer system.  

 
 In  addition  to  the  government wide  and  fund  financial  statements,  basic  financial  

statements also include notes to the financial statements that explain the numerical  
information in more detail.  

 
The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that further explains and  
supports the information in the financial statements. Lastly, this report also provides a section of other  
financial information including combining statements that detail the City’s non major governmental funds.  
 
Government wide  financial  statements.   The  government wide  financial  statements  are  designed  to  
provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances in amanner similar to that of a private business.  
The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets, deferred outflows of resources,  
liabilities,  and  deferred  inflows  of  resources  with  the  difference  reported  as  net  position.  Over  time,  
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of  
the City is improving or deteriorating.  
 
The  statement  of  activities  presents  information  showing  how  the  government’s  net  position  changed  
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event  
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses  
are reported in this statement for some items that may result in cash flows during future fiscal periods (e.g.,  
uncollected taxes, capital projects).  
 
Both  of  the  government wide  financial  statements  distinguish  functions  of  the  City  of  Weston  that  are  
principally  supported  by  taxes  and  intergovernmental  revenues  (governmental  activities)  from  other  
functions that merely provide cost recovery through usage fees and charges (business type activities). The  
governmental activities of the City of Weston include general government, public safety, public works, parks  
and recreation and community development. The business type activities of the City of Weston include the  
water and sewer operations.  
 
The government wide financial statements include not only the City of Weston itself, known as the primary  
government, but also two legally separate development districts for which the City of Weston is financially  
responsible. These units function as sub units of the City of Weston, and therefore have been included as  
an integral part of the primary government.  
 
The government wide financial statements are reported on pages 19 and 20 of this report.  
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City of Weston, Florida  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
September 30, 2023  
 
 
Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over  
resources that have been segregated for specific activities. The City of Weston, like other state and local  
governments, uses fund accounting to provide compliance with the laws of the State of Florida. All of the  
funds of the City of Weston can be divided into two categories: governmental or proprietary.  
 
Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for functions similar to those reported as  
governmental activities in the government wide financial statements. However, unlike the government  
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the near term inflows and  
outflows of expendable resources and on the balances of expendable resources available at the end of the  
fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near term financial requirements.  
 
Because  the  focus  of  the  governmental  funds  is  narrower  than  that  of  the  government wide  financial  
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for the governmental funds with similar  
information presented for governmental activities in the government wide financial statements. By doing  
so, readers may better understand the long term impact of the government’s financial decisions. Both the  
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and  
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds  
and governmental activities.  
 
The City of Weston maintains seven major governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the  
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and  
changes in fund balances for the following major funds: General Fund, Indian Trace Development District  
Special  Revenue  Fund,  Bonaventure  Development  District  Special  Revenue  Fund,  Fire  Services  Special  
Revenue Fund, Indian Trace Development District Debt Service Fund, Debt Service Fund, and Community  
Facilities Construction Capital Projects Fund. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a  
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non major governmental funds is  
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.  
 
The City of Weston adopts an annual appropriated budget for all governmental and proprietary funds. A  
budgetary comparison schedule has been provided for the General Fund, Indian Trace Development District  
Special  Revenue  Fund,  Bonaventure  Development  District  Special  Revenue  Fund,  Fire  Services  Special  
Revenue Fund, Indian Trace Development District Debt Service Fund, and Debt Service Fund to demonstrate  
compliance  with  the  budget  in  addition  to  the  non major  special  revenue  and  capital  project  funds  
presented in the combining section.  
 
The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 21 through 26 of this report.  
 
Proprietary fund. The City ofWestonmaintains one proprietary fund, the Indian Trace Development District  
Water and Sewer Proprietary Fund. Proprietary funds are used to report business type activities in the  
government wide financial statements. The City uses its proprietary fund to account for water and sewer  
activities and services within the Indian Trace Development District. The City has no internal service funds,  
which are funds used to accumulate and internally allocate costs between various government departments.  

 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government wide financial statements, but  
in more detail. The City of Weston’s Indian Trace Development District Water and Sewer Proprietary Fund  
is considered a major fund and the basic financial statements for the fund are provided on pages 27 through  
30 of this report.  
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City of Weston, Florida  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
September 30, 2023  
 
 
Notes  to  the  financial  statements.  The  notes  provide  additional  information  that  is  essential  for  a  full  
understanding of the data provided in the government wide and fund financial statements. The notes to  
the financial statements can be found on pages 31 through 61 of this report.  
 
Other  information.  In  addition  to  the  basic  financial  statements  and  accompanying  notes,  this  report  
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Weston’s adopted, amended  
and actual budgetary data for the General Fund and major special revenue funds. Required supplementary  
information can be found starting on page 62 of this report.  
 
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with the non major governmental funds are  
presented  immediately  following  the  required  supplementary  information  and  budgetary  comparisons.  
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found starting on page 69 of this report.  
 
Government wide Financial Analysis  
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  
There are six basic transactions that affect the comparability of the Statement of Net Position summary  
presentation as reflected below:  

 
1. Net results of activities will increase or decrease current assets and total net position.  

 
2. Borrowing for capital will increase current assets and long term debt.  

 
3. Spending borrowed proceeds on new capital will reduce current assets and increase capital  

assets. Concurrently, an increase in investment in capital assets and an increase in net related  
debt will not change the net investment in capital assets of the City.  
 

4. Spending  of  non borrowed  current  assets  on  new  capital  will  reduce  current  assets  and  
increase  capital  assets.  This  will  also  reduce  unrestricted  net  position  and  increase  net  
investment in capital assets.  

 
5. Principal payment on debt will reduce current assets and reduce long term debt and also  

reduce unrestricted net position and increase net investment in capital assets.  
 

6. Reduction  of  capital  assets  through  depreciation  will  reduce  capital  assets  and  net  
investment in capital assets.  
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TABLE 1  
CITY OF WESTON NET POSITION  

(in thousands of dollars)  

As illustrated in Table 1, at the close of the Fiscal Year, assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City  

Governmental 
Activities 

FY 23 FY 22 

Business Type 
Activities 

FY 23 FY 22 FY 23 

Total  

FY 22 

Assets:  
Current and other assets 
Capital assets 

$ 190,369 
158,041 

$ 183,793 
152,093 

$ 15,215 
44,072 

$ 15,812 
45,888 

$ 205,584  
202,113 

$ 199,605 
197,981 

Total assets 348,410 335,886 59,287 61,700 407,697 397,586 

Total deferred outflows  
of resources 71 63   71 63 

Liabilities: 
Other liabilities 
Long term liabilities  

outstanding 

6,989 

21,604 

6,808 

25,830 

2,486 

58 

2,980 

 

9,475 

21,662 

9,788 

25,830 

Total liabilities 28,593 32,638 2,544 2,980 31,137 35,618 

Total deferred inflows  
of resources 39 54   39 54 

Net position: 
Net investment in  

capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

136,210 
66,100 

117,539 

126,581 
76,297 
100,379 

44,013 
 

12,730 

45,888 
 

12,832 

180,223 
66,100 

130,269 

172,469 
76,297 
113,211 

  
Total net position $ 319,849 $ 303,257 $ 56,743 $ 58,720 $ 376,592  $ 361,977 

 

of Weston exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $376.59 million. The largest portion  
of the City of Weston’s net position, $175.19 million or 46.5%, is invested in capital assets (land, buildings,  
etc.);  less  any  related  debt  used  to  acquire  those  assets  that  is  still  outstanding.  Although  the  City  of  
Weston’s  investment  in  its  capital  assets  is  reported  net  of  related  debt,  it  should  be  noted  that  the  
resources  needed  to  repay  this  debt  must  be  provided  from  other  sources,  since  the  capital  assets  
themselves cannot be used to repay the liabilities.  

 
The unrestricted net position in an amount of $135.30 million or 35.93% of total net position represents the  
resources that are available to provide services and/or additional capital assets for the City and also to meet  
the City’s obligations to its creditors. The City also has approximately $66.1 million or 17.6% of total net  
position in restricted net position; resources that have externally enforced limitations on use.  
 
At the end of the Fiscal Year, the City of Weston is able to report positive balances in all three categories of  
net position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental activities.  
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City of Weston, Florida  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
September 30, 2023  
 
 
Business type  activities  have  positive  balances  in  net  investment  in  capital  assets  and  unrestricted  net  
position, with zero balance in restricted net position.  
 
The government’s net position increased by approximately $14.61 million during the Fiscal Year.  
 
Generally,  the  following  impacts  can  significantly  affect  annual  revenues  and  by  extension  change  net  
position:  
 

1. Economic conditions can reflect a growing, stable or declining overall economic environment  
and those conditions can have a significant impact on the underlying drivers of ad valorem  
taxes, non ad valorem assessments, sales and use taxes, fees and other revenues derived  
from the community, as well as those received from other governments.  
 

2. Changes in tax, assessment and fee rates by the elected officials directly affect the most  
fundamental revenue streams and have the most immediate impact of all changes.  

 
3. Changing  patterns  in  grant  and  state  revenue  sharing  calculations  may  cause  significant  

deviations  to  City  intergovernmental  revenues  and  put  added  pressure  on  City generated  
revenues.  
 

4. Market impact on investment incomemight cause investment revenues to fluctuate widely  
from year to year.  

 
Some other basic impacts are responsible for potential changes in annual expenses:  

 
1. Introduction  of  new  programs  can  have  substantial  impact  on  department/program  

expenses by requiring new personnel, capital and operating funds.  
 

2. Changes in service levels impacts expenses by changing the levels of already appropriated  
expenses.  

 
3. Salary/contract  pricing  increases  can  contribute  to  increased  expenses.  Most  contracts  

entered  into  by  the  City  of  Weston  have  provisions  for  increases,  either  automatic  or  
negotiated each year.  

 
4. Inflation  impacts  the  prices  the  City  pays  for  commodities,  supplies,  fuels,  parts  and  

miscellaneous services it requires through the year.  
 

Governmental activities. As illustrated by Table 2, the City’s revenues from governmental activities during  
Fiscal Year 2023 were $119.44 million and exceeded expenses by $16.59 million.  
 
Revenues from governmental activities totaled $119.44 million, an increase of $20.23 million from prior  
year. This increase is primarily due to the change in unrealized investment gain as treasury yields stabilized  
after multiple years of rising yields which negatively impacted the City’s investment portfolio.  
 
Expenses from governmental activities totaled $102.848million, an increase of $6.62million fromprior year.  
The increase is mainly due to the public safety expenses and public works. The increase in the public safety  
expenses are due to contractual obligated increases and the additional public works expenses were due  
primarily to goods and services inflation. 
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TABLE 2  

CITY OF WESTON NET POSITION  
(in thousands of dollars)  

Governmental Business Type 
Activities Activities Total  

FY 23 FY 22 FY 23 FY 22 FY 23 FY 22 

Revenues: 
Program Revenues: 
Charges for services $ 50,822 $ 49,326 $ 36,249 $ 34,621 $ 87,071  $ 83,947 
Capital grants and 
contributions  86    86 
Operating grants 
and contributions 607 10,147   607 10,147 
General Revenues: 
Property taxes 33,806 30,577   33,806 30,577 
Franchise taxes and utility  
taxes 16,817 15,096   16,817 15,096 
Intergovernmental 12,369 7,921   12,369 7,921 
Investment income (loss) 
Other revenues 

3,819 
1,200 

(15,538) 
1,594 

247 
 

(1,002) 
 

4,066 
1,200 

(16,540) 
1,594 

Total revenues 119,440 99,209 36,496 33,619 155,936 132,828 

Expenses: 
General government 8,216 8,085   8,216 8,085 
Public safety 52,094 50,365   52,094 50,365 
Public works 24,575 22,015   24,575 22,015 
Parks and recreation 11,712 10,481   11,712 10,481 
Community development 5,759 4,630   5,759 4,630 
Interest on long term debt 492 655   492 655 
Water and sewer operations   38,473 38,160 38,473 38,160 

Total expenses 102,848 96,231 38,473 38,160 141,321 134,391 

Change in net position 16,592 2,978 (1,977) (4,541) 14,615 (1,563) 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 303,257 300,279 58,720 63,261 361,977 363,540 

Net Position, End of Year $ 319,849 $ 303,257 $ 56,743 $ 58,720 $ 376,592 $ 361,977 
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FIGURE A  
REVENUES BY SOURCE GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES  

 
Capital grants &  
contributions 

Other  0.5% 
revenues 
1.0%  

 
*The table above does not include investment income (loss)  

 
FIGURE B  

EXPENSES BY FUNCTION GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES  
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Business type activities. Business type activities decreased the City’s net position by $1.98 million from the  
prior period. At the end of Fiscal Year 2023, net position from business type activities composed 15.1% of  
total  government wide  net  position.  For  the  Fiscal  Year,  revenues  totaled  $36.49  million  and  included  
operating  revenues  and  non operating  revenues  in  the  form  of  water  and  sewer  fees,  meter  use  fees,  
connection fees, investment income, and miscellaneous revenue. The City operates the water and sewer  
utility system in a “charge for services” manner which should generate minimal annual surpluses or deficits;  
however, the Proprietary Fund shows an operating loss of $1.98 million. The business type capital assets  
created a depreciation and amortization expense of $2.65 million in the current fiscal year, therefore the  
water and sewer utility system had an operating income of approximately $.43 million if depreciation is  
excluded. When the total operating and nonoperating activities are adjusted for the depreciation expense  
a total income of $.68 million was realized.  

 
FIGURE C  

BUSINESS BY SOURCE BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES  
 

Charges for services  
100.0% 

*The table above does not include investment income (loss)  
 

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds  
 
Governmental  funds.  The  focus  of  the  City  of  Weston’s  governmental  funds  statements  is  to  provide  
information on near term inflows, outflows and balances of expendable resources.  Such information is  
useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a  
useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of a fiscal year.  
 
As of the end of the Fiscal Year, the City of Weston’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund  
balance of $162.45 million, an increase of $11.25 million over the prior fiscal year. Approximately $1.48  
million, or 0.9% of the total ending fund balance, is nonspendable fund balance for prepaid expenses. The  
restricted fund balance totaled $45.69 million or 28.1% of total governmental fund balances to indicate that  
it has externally enforceable limitations restricted to: 1) pay for District operations andmaintenance ($28.98  
million); 2) pay for street maintenance ($8.69 million); 3) provide for mass transit ($440,321); 4) provide for  
law enforcement non recurring activities ($678,853); 5) pay for tree preservation ($52,202); 6) provide for  
solid waste services ($352,243); pay for building code enforcement ($498,533); 7) provide for building code  
services contract ($1.89 million); 9) provide for telecommunications maintenance ($25,000); 10) provide for  
gas line maintenance ($25,000); provide for Florida Plan – Opioid funding ($25,150); and 11) pay for debt  
service ($4.03 million). The committed fund balance totaled $75.36 million or 46.4% of total governmental  
fund balances to indicate that it has self imposed limitations set in place prior to the end of the period  
committed to: 1) pay for disaster response ($45.89 million); 2) provide for credit reserve ($10.95 million);  
and 3) provide for infrastructure ($18.51 million). The assigned fund balance totaled $449,040 to indicate  
that it has limitation resulting from intended use assigned to pay for compensated absences. The remainder  
of the fund balance of $39.46 million is unassigned and available for general use.  
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The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Weston. At the end of Fiscal Year 2023, total fund  
balance  was  $102.37  million,  with  $857,712  of  that  nonspendable,  $75,150  restricted  for  
telecommunications maintenance, gas line maintenance and Opioid funding, $61.39 million committed for  
specific purposes such as disaster response and infrastructure, and $449,040 assigned for other purposes.  
 
The fund balance of the City of Weston’s General Fund increased by $9.73 million during the Fiscal Year  
while total revenues increased by $8.92 million from prior year to $65.99 million and total expenditures  
increased  by  $2.83  million  from  prior  year  to  $50.34  million.  Table  3  shows  the  comparison  of  actual  
revenues and expenditures for the General Fund for Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023.  

 
The major changes in the General Fund revenue and expenditure levels between Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023  
were:  
 
Revenues:  
 

 

 

Investment income revenues have increased by $11.25 million or 121.3% from prior year.  
This increase is primary due to the unrealized investment gain as treasury yields stabilized  
after multiple years of rising yields which negatively impacted the City’s investment portfolio.  

 

 

Intergovernmental revenues have decreased by $7.62 million or 46.9% from prior year due  
to the one time American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) revenues recognized in FY2022.  
The City did not receive any large federal funds in FY2023.  

 Taxes and assessments revenues have increased by $5.00 million or 11.0% from prior year to  
$50.59 million due to the increase in property values along with the electric utility taxes and  
franchise fees from electricity usage. The demand for people to work from home continued.  
This resulted in an increase in electricity usage from suburban residential communities such  
as Weston.  

 
Expenditures:  
 

 Capital outlay expenditures have increased by $1.49 million or 408.2% from prior year to  
$1.85  million  primarily  due  to  the  implementation  and  reporting  of  GASB  96  for  
subscription based assets.  

 
 Community Development expenditures have increased by $560,360 or 52.7% from prior  

year  to  $1.62  million  due  to  residents  and  business  owners  applying  for  development  
permits  to  improve  existing  homes  and  business  facilities.  This  demand  increased  the  
City’s expenditures for civil environmental engineer, code enforcement services, planning  
services, traffic engineering, and zoning services.  
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TABLE 3  
COMPARISON OF GENERAL FUND REVENUES & EXPENDITURES  

(in thousands of dollars)  
Table 3 

Comparison of General Fund Revenues & Expenditures 

Year Ended September 30, Increase (Decrease) 
2023 2022 Dollars Percentage 

Revenues: 
Taxes and assessments $ 50,593 $ 45,597 $ 4,996 11.0% 
Business tax receipts  940 967 (27) 2.8% 
Permits and fees 227 424 (197) 46.5% 
Intergovernmental 8,629 16,245 (7,616) 46.9% 
Charges for services  2,331 1,938 393 20.3% 
Fines and forfeitures 405 464 (59) 12.7% 
Investment income 1,977 (9,269) 11,246 121.3% 
Other revenues 889 702 187 26.6% 

Total revenues 65,991 57,068 8,923 15.6% 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General government 6,425 6,834 (409) 6.0% 
Public safety 30,347 29,737 610 2.1% 
Parks and recreation 9,805 8,934 871 9.7% 
Community development 1,622 1,062 560 52.7% 
Capital outlay 1,850 364 1,486 408.2% 
Debt service 286  286 100.0% 

Total expenditures 50,335 46,931 $ 3,404 7.3% 

Excess of revenues 
over expenditures 15,656 10,137 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Subscription based proceeds 517  
Transfers out (6,440) (15,178) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (5,923) (15,178) 

Net change in fund balance $ 9,733 $ (5,041) 
 

The Indian Trace Development District Special Revenue Fund decreased its fund balance by $2.35 million, or  
approximately 9.0% of fund balance at beginning of the year, to a total of $23.73 million with all of the fund  
balance restricted. The fund accounts for restricted resources used to provide stormwater management  
and right of way services other than roads to the District. This decrease in fund balance is due to funds  
transferred out to pay for capital outlay projects related to the FDEP’s Resilient Florida Program such as the  
stormwater enhancement project.  
 
The Bonaventure Development District Special Revenue Fund decreased its fund balance by $227,304, or  
approximately 3.8% of fund balance at beginning of the year, to a total of $5.73 million with all of the fund  
balance restricted. The fund accounts for restricted resources used to provide stormwater management  
and right of way services other than roads to the District. This decrease in fund balance is due to funds  
transferred out to pay for capital outlay projects related to the FDEP’s Resilient Florida Program such as the  
stormwater enhancement project.  
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September 30, 2023  
 
 
The Fire District Special Revenue Fund decreased its fund balance by $1.68 million, or approximately 102.3%  
of fund balance at beginning of the year, to a total of $37,189. A portion of the fund balance, $87,107 is in  
non spendable  form  and $124,296  is  unassigned  at  the  end  of  the  fiscal  year.  The  fund  accounts  for  
restricted resources used to provide fire protection and prevention services. This decrease in fund balance  
is due to funds transferred out to pay for the fire engines in the Community Facilities Construction Capital  
Projects Fund.  
 
The Indian Trace Development District Debt Service Funds increased their fund balances by $172,415, or  
4.5% of fund balances at beginning of the year, to a total of $4.03 million with the cumulative fund balances  
restricted. The funds account for financial resources that are restricted for principal and interest. The fund  
balance decreased due to scheduled quarterly debt payments made during the year.  
 
The Debt Service Fund decreased its fund balance by $363,155 or 100.0% of fund balance at beginning of  
the year, to a total of $0. The fund accounts for financial resources that are restricted for principal and  
interest payments. The 2013 Notes, 2014 Notes, 2016 Notes, and 2018 Notes were paid off in Fiscal Year  
2022.  
 
The Community Facilities Construction Capital Projects Fund accounts for City wide capital project needs,  
such as for public safety or parks and recreation. The Fund experienced an increase in fund balance of $6.97  
million,  or  99.6%  of  fund  balance  at  beginning  of  the  year,  to  a  total  of  $13.97  million.  Fund  balance  
increased because of transfers in from other funds to finance certain capital outlay projects that had yet to  
start in Fiscal Year 2023.  
 
The City also maintains several non major funds which are special revenue funds that are used to account  
for street and right of way maintenance, transportation, building permitting, law enforcement, and tree  
preservation. The non major funds of the City decreased their cumulative fund balances during Fiscal Year  
2023 by $1.01 million or approximately 7.4% of the cumulative fund balances at beginning of the year, to a  
total of $12.66 million.  
 
Proprietary funds. The City of Weston maintains only a single proprietary fund that is used to account for  
the  operations  of  the  Indian  Trace  Development  District  water  and  sewer  system.  The  statements  of  
proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government wide financial statements,  
but in more detail.  
 
Net position of the Indian Trace Development DistrictWater and Sewer Proprietary Fund decreased by $1.98  
million, or 3.4%, to a total of $56.74 million. Other factors concerning the finances of this fund have already  
been addressed in the discussion of the City’s business type activities.  
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights  
 
As required by Section 4.04 of the City Charter and Florida Statutes Section 166.241, the City Commission  
adopts the annual budget and any amendments.  
 
The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report states funds committed for disaster response in the General  
Fund; however, the adopted, amended and final budgets report funds committed for disaster response in a  
separate fund. Therefore, when comparing the General Fund results to the budget, it is best to use the  
combined budget comparison schedule located on page 63 in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.  
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City of Weston, Florida  
Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
September 30, 2023  

 
 

The original and final adopted General Fund budget anticipated a use of fund balance of $377,600 and  
$98,500 respectively.  
 
Actual  revenues  exceeded  final  budget  revenues  by  $6.82  million  and  the  main  differences  can  be  
summarized as follows:  

 
 Intergovernmental  revenue  exceeded  the  original  and  final  budget  by  $1.82  million  as  a  

primary result of increased sales taxes revenue due to inflationary prices for goods in 2023.  
 

 Franchise fee and utility taxes exceeded the original and final budget by $2.76million because  
of electric utility taxes and franchise fees from electricity usage. The demand for people to  
work  from  home  continued.  This  resulted  in  an  increase  in  utility  usage  from  suburban  
residential communities such as Weston.  

 
Actual expenditures were lower than the final budget projections by $3.47 million. The budget to actual  
variations were due to several factors.  

 

 

 Public safety expenditures were lower than the final budget by $1.75 million due to vacancy  
credits for police and fire and reimbursements for School Resource Officers from the School  
Board of Broward County.  

 

 Finance and administration expenditures were lower than the final budget by $1.23 million  
as a result of reduced spending for administrative services.  

Capital Asset and Debt Administration  
 
Capital assets. The City of Weston’s net investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type  
activities totals $175.19 million or 46.5% of total net position. This investment in capital assets includes  
land, infrastructure, buildings, land improvements, machinery and equipment, subscription based assets  
and construction in progress. Table 4 presents the governmental and business type capital assets, net of  
accumulated depreciation, by category for Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023.  
 
During Fiscal Year 2023, the City constructed or acquired several capital assets. Major capital asset events  
during the Fiscal Year 2023 included the following:  

 
 Completion  of  the  Wi Fi  Upgrade,  Racquet  Club  Construction,  Pump  Station  SCADA  

Replacement, Lakeside Sidewalk Improvement, Batting Cage Replacement, Traffic Signage  
Rehabilitation, Steet Light Pole Upgrades, and Lift Station Rehabilitation.  
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TABLE 4  
CAPITAL ASSETS  

(in thousands of dollars)  
Governmental Business Type 

Activities Activities Total 
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 

Land $ 73,588 $  73,588  $   $  $ 73,588  $ 73,588 
Construction in progress 6,568 3,013 5  6,573 3,013 
Infrastructure, net 24,804 26,574 43,205 45,573 68,009 72,147 
Buildings and 
improvements, net 34,224 35,446 268 177 34,492 35,623 
Land improvements, net 10,773 10,031   10,773 10,031 
Machinery and  
equipment, net 8,084 3,441 594 138 8,678 3,579 

Total capital assets $ 158,041 $ 152,093 $ 44,072 $ 45,888 $ 202,113 $ 197,981 
 

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 of this report.  
 
Long term debt. At the end of the Fiscal Year, the City ofWeston’s total outstanding debt was $20.89  
million in notes payable and subscription based agreements payable and secured by non ad valorem  
revenues. The City acts as an agent in the collection of assessments and remittance of debt service  
payments for no obligation special assessment notes held by the Indian Trace Development District.  
As of the fiscal year end, notes payable totaled $20.49 million and payables from subscription based  
agreements totaled $405,406. The City has no general obligation debt or debt that is backed by the  
full faith and credit of the City of Weston. The City of Weston’s total long term debt decreased by  
$4.21 million, or 16.4%, from the prior fiscal year.  
 

TABLE 5  
NOTES PAYABLE & REVENUE BONDS  

(in thousands of dollars)  

Governmental 
Activities 

2023 2022 

Business Type 
Activities 

2023 2022 2023 
Total  

2022 

Notes payable 
Loans payable 

$ 20,485 
 

$ 25,300 
 

$  
 

$  
 

$ 20,485 $ 
 

25,300 
 

Totals $ 20,485 $ 25,300 $  $  $ 20,485 $ 25,300 

 
More detailed information about the City’s long term liabilities is presented in Note 7 of this report.  
 
Impact of economic factors on this year’s and next year’s budgets  
 
During Fiscal Year 2023, property values continued to rise which provided the confidence to again propose  
no millage rate increase for the fifth consecutive year while continuing to bring in more ad valorem tax  
dollars. State shared revenues and half cent sales taxes were again stronger than projected for the third  
consecutive year. These sources helped to support General Fund expenses, predominantly related to public  
safety  and  parks.  The  City  has  begun  revising  its  long term  plans  to  ensure  the  maintenance  and  
enhancement of the City’s infrastructure is prioritized over the next ten years. The City hopes to complete  
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its Parks and Recreation Master Plan and its Strategic Value and Business Plan in Fiscal Year 2024 and the  
City is in the early stages of developing a Stormwater Master Plan and a Water and Wastewater Master  
Plan. These plans will help the City navigate the current and future economic environments while providing  
infrastructure maintenance and enhancements in an efficient and effective method.  

Inflation has subsided significantly since last year, which has helped relieve pressure on the cost of goods  
and services; however, the City continues to operate under the pressure of meeting the expectations of its  
stakeholders in an environment of higher prices for goods and services. Elevated levels of interest rates will  
also place pressure on the City’s finances as infrastructure maintenance and enhancements become more  
necessary over the coming years. Weston will continue to rely heavily on its financial discipline and lean  
operating structure to navigate the current economic challenges and take measures necessary to maintain  
the Weston Lifestyle. But there is no doubt that lower inflation and lower interest rates will significantly aid  
the City in the upcoming fiscal years.  

In Fiscal Year 2023, the City’s Adopted Budget theme was "Plan – Prepare Proceed" which was meant to  
provide an opportunity to lay the groundwork for the next quarter century. The budget also continues the  
commitment to sustaining a stable and sound financial environment that will enable the City to maintain  
and enhance the physical and operating infrastructures.  

The  City’s  Fiscal  Year  2024  budget  theme  is  "Weston  Forward."  This  theme  is  meant  to  provide  an  
opportunity for tomorrow's Weston to take shape as the City prepares to formalize the 2034 Strategic Value  
and  Business  Plan.  The  Fiscal  Year  2024  budget  maintains  services  at  their  current  levels  or  increases  
services, provides for continuing improvements in the City’s infrastructures, and maintains the City’s Aaa  
credit rating fromMoody’s and AAA rating from Standard and Poor’s that are valuable in obtaining the most  
favorable borrowing rates and terms for proposed borrowings.  

The Fiscal Year 2024 budget maintained the ad valoremmillage rate at 3.3464 mils. The City’s gross taxable  
value increased by 8.03% above the Fiscal Year 2023 gross taxable value to $11,386,666,958 inclusive of any  
new construction and improvements to existing properties appearing on the tax roll for the first time.  

The Fiscal Year 2024 budget revenues are $177,600,500 and budget expenditures are $177,587,000 with a  
projected net increase in fund balance at $292,600. The General Fund budget revenues are $64,369,500  
and  budget  expenditures  are  $56,253,500  with  a  projected  increase  in  revenue  of  $1,120,100  and  an  
additional $279,100 transferred in from the Fire Fund and $7,275,000 transferred out to Capital Projects  
Fund to finance certain projects.  

Requests for Information  

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Weston’s finances for all those  
with an interest in this government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this  
report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the City of Weston, 17200 Royal Palm  
Boulevard, Weston, Florida 33326.  
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City of Weston, Florida 
Statement of Net Position 
September 30, 2023 

Governmental 
Activities 

Primary Government 
Business type 
Activities Total 

Assets: 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Restricted assets: 

$ 7,826,697 
155,608,454 

$ 589,824 
7,716,144 

$ 8,416,521 
163,324,598 

Restricted investments 
Assessments receivable, current 

Receivables: 

 
4,885,252 

2,204,585 
 

2,204,585 
4,885,252 

Accounts receivable, net 
Interest receivable 

Prepaid costs 
Inventories  

4,009,416 
957,722 

1,481,124 
 

4,331,492 
84,230 

241,220 
47,365 

8,340,908 
1,041,952 
1,722,344 

47,365 

Total current assets 174,768,665 15,214,860 189,983,525 

Noncurrent assets: 
Assessments receivable, restricted 
Nondepreciable capital assets 
Depreciable capital assets, net 

15,599,681 
80,156,287 
77,885,048 

 
5,424 

44,066,347 

15,599,681 
80,161,711 
121,951,395 

Total noncurrent assets 173,641,016 44,071,771 217,712,787 

Total assets 348,409,681 59,286,631 407,696,312 

Deferred Outflows of Resources: 
FRS Pension 70,947  70,947 

Total deferred outflows of resources 70,947  70,947 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Unearned revenues 
Contracts and retainage payable 
Deposits 
Customer deposits, payable from restricted assets 
Accrued interest payable, payable from restricted assets 
Noncurrent liabilities due within one year 

5,009,335 
204,873 
940,834 
758,760 

 
74,497 

5,375,307 

280,629 
 
 
 

2,204,585 
 

59,153 

5,289,964 
204,873 
940,834 
758,760 

2,204,585 
74,497 

5,434,460 

Total current liabilities 12,363,606 2,544,367 14,907,973 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Net pension liability 
Due in more than one year 

264,514 
15,964,072 

 
 

264,514 
15,964,072 

Total noncurrent liabilities 16,228,586  16,228,586 

Total liabilities 28,592,192 2,544,367 31,136,559 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
FRS pension 39,146  39,146 

Total deferred inflows of resources 39,146  39,146 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

136,210,162 44,012,618 
 

180,222,780 

Operations and maintenance 
Public transportation and road improvements 
Law enforcement 
Building code enforcement and services contract 
Telecommunications maintenance 
Gas line maintenance 
Florida Plan Opioid settlement funds 
Debt service 

Unrestricted  

29,385,898 
9,127,169 
678,853 

2,391,723 
25,000 
25,000 
25,150 

24,440,899 
117,539,436 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12,729,646 

29,385,898 
9,127,169 
678,853 

2,391,723 
25,000 
25,000 
25,150 

24,440,899 
130,269,082 

Total net position $ 319,849,290 $ 56,742,264 $ 376,591,554 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.  
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City of Weston, Florida 
Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Net Revenue and (Expense) 
Program Revenues Changes in Net Position 

Primary Government 
Operating  Capital Business  

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental type 
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 
Primary government: 

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 8,216,022 $ 1,888,144 $  $  $ (6,327,878) $  $ (6,327,878) 
Public safety 52,093,991 17,729,405 396,164  (33,968,422)  (33,968,422) 
Public works 24,574,931 25,246,586   671,655  671,655 
Parks and recreation 11,712,386 730,863 210,919  (10,770,604)  (10,770,604) 
Community development 5,757,810 4,661,951   (1,095,859)  (1,095,859) 
Interest on long term debt and 
fiscal charges 491,964 565,109   73,145  73,145 

Total governmental 
activities 102,847,104 50,822,058 607,083  (51,417,963)  (51,417,963) 

Business type activities: 
Water and sewer 38,473,493 36,248,651    (2,224,842) (2,224,842) 

Total business type 
activities 38,473,493 36,248,651    (2,224,842) (2,224,842) 

Total primary 
government $ 141,320,597 $ 87,070,709 $ 607,083 $  (51,417,963) (2,224,842) (53,642,805) 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 
Property taxes 33,805,455  33,805,455 
Franchise fees and utility taxes 16,817,158  16,817,158 
Intergovernmental 12,368,709  12,368,709 
Investment income (loss) 3,818,583 246,890 4,065,473 

 Other revenues 1,199,629  1,199,629 

Total general revenues 68,009,534 246,890 68,256,424 

Change in net position 16,591,571 (1,977,952) 14,613,619 

Net position, beginning of year 303,257,719  58,720,216 361,977,935 

Net position, end of year $ 319,849,290 $ 56,742,264 $ 376,591,554 

 
 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.  
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City of Weston, Florida 
Balance Sheet Governmental Funds 
September 30, 2023 

Major Funds 

Special Revenue Funds 

General 
Fund 

Indian Trace 
Development 
District Fund 

Bonaventure 
Development 
District Fund 

Fire Services 
Fund 

Assets:  
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables: 

$ 5,625,322 
95,150,883 

$ 822,182 
23,704,839 

$ 259,283 
5,580,552 

$  
 

Assessments receivable     
Accounts receivable, net 
Interest receivable 
Prepaid costs 
Due from other funds 

3,651,793 
539,298 
857,712 
121,583 

116,869 
188,546 
410,822 

 

24,505 
38,456 
68,993 

 

4,793 
65,226 
87,107 

 

Total assets $ 105,946,591 $ 25,243,258 $ 5,971,789 $ 157,126 

Liabilities:  
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Unearned revenues 
Contracts and retainage payable 
Due to other funds 
Deposits 

$ 2,035,003 
204,873 
57,676 

 
758,760 

$ 1,513,610 
 
 
 
 

$ 240,169 
 
 
 
 

$ 15,056 
 

57,676 
121,583 

 

Total liabilities 3,056,312 1,513,610 240,169 194,315 

Deferred Inflows of Resources:  
Unavailable revenues 524,030    

Total deferred inflows of resources 524,030    

Fund Balances:  
Non spendable for prepaid costs 
Restricted for: 
District operations and maintenance 
Street maintenance 
Mass transit 
Law enforcement 
Tree preservation 
Solid waste services 
Building code enforcement 
Building code services contract 
Telecommunications maintenance 
Gas line maintenance 
Florida Plan Opioid settlement funds 
Debt service 
Committed to: 
Disaster management 
Credit reserve 
Infrastructure 
Assigned to: 
Compensated absences 
Unassigned  

857,712 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25,000 
25,000 
25,150 

 

45,895,688 
10,951,100 
4,548,682 

449,040 
39,588,877 

410,822 

23,318,826 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

68,993 

5,662,627 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

87,107 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
(124,296) 

Total fund balances 102,366,249 23,729,648 5,731,620 (37,189) 

Total liabilities, deferred 
inflows of resources 

 

and fund balances $ 105,946,591 $ 25,243,258 $ 5,971,789 $ 157,126 
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Debt Service Funds 
Indian Trace 
Development 
District Debt Debt 
Service Fund Service Fund 

Capital  
Projects 
Fund 

Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 221,672 
3,787,126 

$  
576 

$ 201,193 
14,475,438 

$ 697,045 
12,909,040 

$ 7,826,697 
155,608,454 

20,484,933 
 

21,665 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
83,760 
31,201 

 
 

 
127,696 
73,330 
56,490 

 

20,484,933 
4,009,416 
957,722 

1,481,124 
121,583 

$ 24,515,396 $ 576 $ 14,791,592 $ 13,863,601 $ 190,489,929 

$  
 
 
 
 

$ 576 
 
 
 
 

$  
 

825,482 
 
 

$ 1,204,921 
 
 
 
 

$ 5,009,335 
204,873 
940,834 
121,583 
758,760 

 576 825,482 1,204,921 7,035,385 

20,484,933    21,008,963 

20,484,933    21,008,963 

   56,490 1,481,124 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4,030,463 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
8,686,848 
440,321 
678,853 
52,202 

352,243 
498,533 

1,893,190 
 
 
 
 

28,981,453 
8,686,848 
440,321 
678,853 
52,202 
352,243 
498,533 

1,893,190 
25,000 
25,000 
25,150 

4,030,463 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

13,966,110 

 
 
 

45,895,688 
10,951,100 
18,514,792 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

449,040 
39,464,581 

4,030,463  13,966,110 12,658,680 162,445,581 

$ 24,515,396 $ 576 $ 14,791,592 $ 13,863,601 $ 190,489,929 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.  
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City of Weston, Florida 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet Governmental Funds  
to the Statement of Net Position 
September 30, 2023 

Fund Balance Total Governmental Funds $ 162,445,581 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of net position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. The  
statement of net position includes those capital assets, net of  
any accumulated depreciation, in the net position of the  
government as a whole. 

Cost of capital assets 
Accumulated depreciation 

$ 295,569,966 
(137,528,631) 158,041,335 

Assets that are not available to pay for current period 
expenditures are unavailable in the governmental fund 
financial statements. 20,484,933 

Certain revenues are considered deferred inflows of resources 
in the fund financial statements due to availability of funds;  
under full accrual accounting they are considered revenues.  524,030 

The net pension liability is not reported as a liability in the 
fund financial statements, but is reported as a liability in the 
government wide financial statements. 

(264,514) 

Deferred outflows of resources related to the net pension 
liability are recorded in the statement of net position. 

70,947 

Deferred inflows of resources related to the net pension  
liability are recorded in the statement of net position.  

(39,146) 

Liabilities not due and payable from current available 
resources are not reported as liabilities in the governmental  
fund statements. All liabilities, both current and long term 
are reported in the government wide financial statements. 

Notes and loans payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Compensated absences 

(20,890,339) 
(74,497) 

(449,040) 

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 319,849,290 

 
 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.  
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City of Weston, Florida 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Major Funds 

Special Revenue Funds 

Indian Trace Bonaventure  
General 
Fund 

Development 
District Fund 

Development 
District Fund 

Fire Services 
Fund 

Revenues: 
Property taxes 
Franchise fees and utility taxes 
Business tax receipts  
Permits and fees 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services  
Fines and forfeitures 
Investment income (loss) 
Special assessments 
Other revenues 

$ 33,805,455 
16,787,739 

940,476 
227,214 

8,628,915 
2,331,038 
405,386 

1,977,292 
 

889,437 

$  
 
 
 

365,700 
 
 

693,589 
17,293,097 

214,663 

$  
 
 
 
 
 
 

146,723 
3,035,389 

34,776 

$  
 
 
 
 
 
 

230,064 
17,729,405 

19,110 

Total revenues 65,992,952 18,567,049 3,216,888 17,978,579 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Parks and recreation 
Community development 
Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

6,424,550 
30,347,436 

 
9,805,326 
1,622,116 
1,849,891 

 
2,777,647 

14,431,858 
 
 

856,534 

 
818,544 

2,119,445 
 
 

78,314 

 
17,385,339 

 
 
 

289,044 

 

Principal 
Interest 

276,318 
9,977 

129,097 
4,411 

20,636 
704 

14,024 
479 

Total expenditures 50,335,614 18,199,547 3,037,643 17,688,886 

Excess (deficiency) of  
revenues over 
expenditures 15,657,338 367,502 179,245 289,693 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Subscription based proceeds 
Transfers in 

516,618 
 

240,544 
 

38,451 
 

26,131 
 

Transfers out (6,440,000) (2,955,000) (445,000) (2,000,000) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses)  (5,923,382) (2,714,456) (406,549) (1,973,869) 

Net changes in  
fund balances 9,733,956 (2,346,954) (227,304) (1,684,176) 

Fund Balances, (Deficit) 
Beginning of Year 92,632,293 26,076,602 5,958,924 1,646,987 

Fund Balances, End of Year $ 102,366,249 $ 23,729,648 $ 5,731,620 $ (37,189) 
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Debt Service Funds 
Indian Trace 
Development 
District Debt Debt 
Service Fund Service Fund 

Capital  
Projects 
Fund 

Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$  
 
 
 
 
 
 

93,406 
5,352,901 

 

5,446,307 

$  
 
 
 
 
 
 

13,112 
 
 

13,112 

$  
 
 
 

1,941,857 
 
 

389,472 
 
 

2,331,329 

$  
 
 

3,375,820 
2,142,871 

 
1,024 

274,924 
4,918,100 

40,385 

10,753,124 

$ 33,805,455 
16,787,739 

940,476 
3,603,034 
13,079,343 
2,331,038 
406,410 

3,818,582 
48,328,892 
1,198,371 

124,299,340 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

9,538,174 

 
27,181 

5,488,072 
 

4,135,694 
175,431 

6,424,550 
51,356,147 
22,039,375 
9,805,326 
5,757,810 
12,787,388 

4,787,792 
486,100 

 
 

 
 

28,955 
988 

5,256,822 
502,659 

5,273,892  9,538,174 9,856,321 113,930,077 

172,415 13,112 (7,206,845) 896,803 10,369,263 

 
 
 

 
279,100 
(655,367) 

 
14,176,267 

 

53,951 
 

(1,960,000) 

875,695 
14,455,367 
(14,455,367) 

 (376,267) 14,176,267 (1,906,049) 875,695 

172,415 (363,155) 6,969,422 (1,009,246) 11,244,958 

3,858,048 363,155 6,996,688 13,667,926 151,200,623 

$ 4,030,463 $  $ 13,966,110 $ 12,658,680 $ 162,445,581 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.  
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City of Weston, Florida 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances Governmental Funds  
to the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Net Changes in Fund Balances Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of activities are different because: 

$ 11,244,958 

Capital assets are reported in the governmental funds as expenditures. 
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of these assets are 
eliminated and capitalized as capital assets. 

Revenues previously recorded in the statement of activities that were 
unavailable in the prior fiscal year became available in the current fiscal  
year and were recorded as revenues in the fund financial statements. 

Revenues that are earned but not received within the availability 
period are recognized in the statement of activities when earned 
and subsequently recognized in the governmental fund financial  
statements as they become available. The net difference is  
recorded as a reconciling item. 

Bond and other debt proceeds provide current financial resources to 
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long term liabilities in 
the statement of net position. Repayments of long term liabilities are 
reported as expenditures in the governmental funds, but such repayments 
reduce liabilities in the statement of net position and are eliminated from 
the statement of activities. 

12,337,173 

(4,787,792) 

(74,132) 

Issuance of subscription based information 
technology arrangements 
Principal paid on notes and loans 

The change in accrued interest on long term liabilities between the current  
and prior fiscal year is recorded in the statement of activities but not in the  
governmental fund financial statements. 

Certain changes related to pension assets and liabilities are not reported  
in the net change in the governmental funds: 

Change in deferred outflows relating to FRS pension 
Change in deferred inflows relating to FRS pension 

Expenses reported in the statement of activities that do not require the use  
of current financial resources are not reported as expenditures in the fund  
financial statements. The details of the differences are as follows: 

(875,695) 
5,256,822 

10,695 

8,311 
14,812 

Depreciation of capital assets 
Change in compensated absences 
Change in net pension liability  

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 

(6,387,795) 
(114,937) 
(40,849) 

16,591,571 
 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.  
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City of Weston, Florida 
Statement of Net Position 
Proprietary Fund 
September 30, 2023 

Assets: 
Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments 
Restricted investments 
Receivables: 
Accounts receivable, net 
Interest receivable 
Prepaid costs 
Inventories  

$ 

Water and 
Sewer Fund 

589,824 
7,716,144 
2,204,585 

4,331,492 
84,230 

241,220 
47,365 

Total current assets 15,214,860 

Noncurrent assets: 
Nondepreciable capital assets 
Depreciable capital assets, net 

5,424 
44,066,347 

Total noncurrent assets 44,071,771 

Total assets 59,286,631 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Customer deposits, payable from restricted assets 
Noncurrent liabilities due within one year 

280,629 
2,204,585 

59,153 

Total liabilities 2,544,367 

Net Position: 
Investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted 

44,012,618 
12,729,646 

Total net position $ 56,742,264 

 
 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.  
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City of Weston, Florida 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Water and 
Sewer Fund 

Operating Revenues: 
Water and sewer fees 
Miscellaneous revenue 
Other operating revenues 

$ 35,624,211 
621,028 

3,412 

Total operating revenues 36,248,651 

Operating Expenses: 
Personnel  
Other operating expenses 
General and administrative 
Depreciation and amortization 

286,469 
32,509,193 
3,020,968 
2,654,523 

Total operating expenses 38,471,153 

Operating income (loss) (2,222,502) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 
Investment income (loss) 
Interest expense 

246,890 
(2,340) 

Total nonoperating revenue 244,550 

Change in net position (1,977,952) 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 58,720,216 

Net Position, End of Year 

 

$ 56,742,264 

 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.  
 

28  



 

City of Weston, Florida 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Water and 
Sewer Fund 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Receipts from customers and users 
Cash paid to other funds 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 

$ 35,702,967 
(777,265) 

(36,091,794) 
(286,469) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (1,452,561) 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Purchases of capital assets 
Proceeds from issuance of long term debt 
Principal paid on long term debt 

(838,534) 
128,933 
(69,780) 

Net cash provided by (used in) capital 
and related financing activities (779,381) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Sales of investments, net 
Interest received 

1,439,363 
231,241 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 1,670,604 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (561,338) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,151,162 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 589,824 

 
 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.  
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City of Weston, Florida 
Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund 
(continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Water and 
Sewer Fund 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities: 
Operating income (loss) $ (2,222,502) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net 
Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivables 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid costs 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits, payable from restricted assets 

2,654,523 

(568,210) 
(193,466) 
148,696 
(516,863) 
(777,265) 
22,526 

Total adjustments 769,941 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (1,452,561) 

 
 

 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.  
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City of Weston, Florida  
Notes to Financial Statements  
September 30, 2023  

 
 

Note 1 Organization and Operations  
 

The City of Weston, Florida (the “City”) is a municipal corporation governed by an electedMayor and  
a  four member  commission  providing  the  following  services:  general  government;  public  safety;  
community development; public works; and parks and recreation. Additional services provided by  
the  City  are  subcontracted  such  as:  water  and  sewer  services;  emergency  medical  services;  fire  
protection  and  prevention  services;  police  services;  engineering  services;  building  code  services;  
code enforcement; and plan review and inspection services. The City was incorporated pursuant to  
the constitution and laws of the State of Florida in September 1996when the qualified electors voted  
in favor of incorporation of the City and approved the Charter.  
 
 

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 

A. Reporting Entity  
 
The financial statements were prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted  
in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and in accordance with Government Accounting Standards,  
which  establishes  standards  for  defining  and  reporting  on  the  financial  reporting  entity.  The  
definition  of  the  financial  reporting  entity  is  based  upon  the  concept  that  elected  officials  are  
accountable to their constituents for their actions. One of the objectives of financial reporting is to  
provide  users  of  financial  statements  with  a  basis  for  assessing  the  accountability  of  the  elected  
officials.  The  financial  reporting  entity  consists  of  the  City,  organizations  for  which  the  City  is  
financially accountable, for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are  
such  that  exclusion  would  cause  the  reporting  entity’s  financial  statements  to  be  misleading  or  
incomplete. The City is financially accountable for a component unit if it appoints a voting majority  
of an organization’s governing body and it is able to impose its will on that organization, or there is  
a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial  
burdens on the City.  
 
Blended Component Units  
 
Blended component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria described  
above and whose governing body is the same as, substantially the same as, or appointed by the City  
Commission. These units are in substance part of the City’s operations, and so, data from these units  
is combined with data of the primary government.  
 
Indian Trace Development District (“ITDD”) is a blended component unit. ITDD was formed in 1975  
by a Broward County Ordinance and in 1981was reestablished pursuant to Chapter 190 of the Florida  
Statutes as an independent, special taxing district in Broward County, Florida, to provide facilities for  
water  and  sewer,  stormwater  management  and  control,  roads  and  other  public  improvements.  
ITDD’s boundaries exclude the community of Bonaventure. ITDD is governed by a board comprised  
of the City Commission and therefore the City has the ability to impose its will on ITDD. In addition,  
the City has operational responsibility for the District. ITDD has its own budget and taxing power.  
The operations and assets of ITDD are reflected in Indian Trace Development District Special Revenue  
Funds and Debt Service Fund. The component unit has a September 30 year end. There were no  
separately issued financial statements for this component unit.  
 
Bonaventure  Development  District  (“BDD”)  is  a  blended  component  unit.  BDD  was  created  on  
December  21,  1998;  however,  it  was  inactive  until  June  30,  2001  when  the  Florida  Legislature  
dissolved West Lauderdale Water Control District and transferred all of the assets of the former to  
BDD. BDD provides stormwater management and control, roads and other public improvements.  
BDD is governed by a board comprised of the City Commission and therefore the City has the ability  
to impose its will on BDD. In addition, the City has operational responsibility for the District. BDD has  
its own budget and taxing power. The operations and assets of BDD are reflected in the Bonaventure  
Development District Special Revenue Funds. The component unit has a September 30 year end.  
There were no separately issued financial statements for this component unit.  
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City of Weston, Florida  
Notes to Financial Statements  
September 30, 2023  

 
 

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 
B. Government Wide and Fund Financial Statements  
 
The basic financial statements include both government wide (based on the City as a whole) and  
fund financial statements.  
 
The government wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of  
activities) report information on all non fiduciary activities of the City. As a general rule, the effect of  
interfund services provided and used has been eliminated from these statements. Governmental  
activities,  which  normally  are  supported  by  taxes  and  intergovernmental revenues, are reported  
separately from business type activities, which rely to a significant extent  on  fees  and  charges  for  
services.  

 
The government wide statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses  
of  a  given  function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are  
clearly identifiable  with  a  specific  function  or  segment.  Program  revenues  include:  1)  charges  to  
customers  or  applicants  who  purchase, use  or  directly benefit  from  goods, services  or  privileges  
provided by a given function or segment and2) grants and contributions that are restricted tomeeting  
the operation or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not  
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.  

 
The net cost (by function) is normally covered by general revenues (i.e., property taxes, franchise  
taxes, unrestricted intergovernmental revenues, investment income, etc.).  
 
Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. The  
focus of fund financial statements is on major funds. Major individual governmental funds and the  
major individual enterprise fund are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.  
GASB  Statement  No.  34  sets  forth  minimum  criteria  (percentage  of  assets/deferred  outflows,  
liabilities/deferred  inflows,  revenues  or  expenditures/expenses  of  either  fund  category  for  the  
governmental and enterprise, combined, or funds that management deems of public importance)  
for the determination of major funds. The nonmajor funds are combined and presented in a single  
column in the fund financial statements.  
 
The government wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in  
aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. The focus of the fund  
financial  statements  is  on  the  major  individual  funds  of  the  governmental  and  business type  
categories listed by category. Each presentation provides valuable information that can be analyzed  
and compared to enhance the usefulness of the information.  

 
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation  

 
The government wide financial statements are reported using the economic resourcesmeasurement  
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues  
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the  
timing  of  related  cash  flows.  Property  taxes  are  recognized  as  revenues  in  the  year  when  an  
enforceable lien exists and when levied for. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as  
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.  
 
Governmental  fund  financial  statements  are  reported  using  the  current  financial  resources  
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon  
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are  
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  
For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty  
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is  
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures  
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is  
due.  
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City of Weston, Florida  
Notes to Financial Statements  
September 30, 2023  

 
 

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 
Property taxes, franchise fees, utility taxes, permits and fees, other intergovernmental revenues, and  
investment income associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be measurable and  
have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period, if available. Only the portion of special  
assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as  
revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available  
when cash is received by the City.  
 
As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government wide  
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes and other charges  
between the government’s water and sewer function and various other functions of the government,  
if  applicable.  Elimination  of  these  charges  would  distort  the  direct  costs  and  program  revenues  
reported for the various functions concerned.  
 
Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues) and decreases (e.g.,  
expenses) in total net position. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from  
non operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and  
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.  
The  principal  operating  revenues  of  the  proprietary fund are charges to customers for sales and  
services.  Operating  expenses  for  proprietary  funds  include  the  costs  of  sales  and  services,  
administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses that do not  
meet this definition are reported as non operating revenues or expenses.  
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds:  

 
General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources  
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.  

 
The  Special  Revenue  Funds  (Indian  Trace  Development  District,  Bonaventure  Development  
District,  and  Fire  Services)  account  for  special  assessments  that  are  legally  restricted  to  
expenditure  for  operations  and  maintenance.  Indian  Trace  Development  District  and  
Bonaventure Development District account for themaintenance of the stormwatermanagement  
infrastructure and the non roadway portions of the public right of way within the boundaries of  
the Districts. The Fire Services accounts for revenues generated by special assessments legally  
restricted to fund fire protection and prevention services in the City.  
 
The Indian Trace Development District Debt Service Fund accounts for special assessments that  
are legally restricted to pay principal and interest expenditures (District borrowings).  
 
The  Debt  Service  Fund  accounts  for  the  receipt  of  proceeds  from  borrowings,  transfers  from  
other funds or debt financing, with expenditures restricted to funding related to debt payments  
(City borrowings).  
 
The  Capital  Projects  Fund  (Community  Facilities  Construction)  accounts  for  the  acquisition  of  
equipment  and  construction/rehabilitation  of  major  capital  projects  not  being  financed  by  
proprietary funds and to pay the debt service on previously financed capital projects.  

 
The City reports the following major proprietary fund:  
 

The Enterprise Fund is used to account for the water and sewer operations that are financed and  
operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise. The costs of providing services are  
generally recovered through user charges. 
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City of Weston, Florida  
Notes to Financial Statements  
September 30, 2023  

 
 

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 
D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance  

 
1. Deposits and Investments  

 
Cash, cash equivalents, and equity in pooled cash are defined as demand deposits, moneymarket  
accounts, and short term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the  
date of acquisition.  
 
In general, the City maintains pooled cash and investment accounts for all funds. This enables the  
City  to  invest  large  amounts  of  idle  cash  for  short  periods  of  time  and  to  optimize  earnings  
potential. Cash and cash equivalents and investments represent the amount owned by each City  
fund. Earnings on pooled cash and investments are allocated based on balances of the respective  
funds.  

 
The  City’s  investments  are  measured  at  amortized  cost  or  recorded  at  estimated  fair  value.  
Unrealized gains and losses in fair value are recognized.  

 
2. Receivables  
 
Receivables include amounts due from other governments and others for services provided by  
the  City.  In  addition,  amounts  owed  from  residents  for  the  payment  of  District  Bonds  are  
reported  as  receivables  special  assessments.  Receivables  are  recorded  and  revenues  are  
recognized as earned or as specific program expenditures/expenses are incurred based on the  
accounting basis required for that fund. Allowances for uncollectible receivables are based upon  
historical trends and the periodic aging of receivables.  
 
Property taxes are levied and are recognized as receivables onOctober 1 of each year. Ad valorem  
property taxes are based on property value. Non ad valorem property taxes are based on per  
square  footage/acre  or  per  unit  type.  The  tax  bill  may  be  paid  at  declining  discounts  from  
November through February. All unpaid taxes become delinquent on April 1 of the year following  
the year in which taxes were levied and are subject to the issuance of tax sale certificates as of  
June 1. Broward County bills and collects all property taxes for the City.  
 
3. Interfund Receivables and Payables  

 
Activities  between  funds  that  are  representative  of  lending/borrowing  arrangements  
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (the  
current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (the noncurrent portions  
of interfund loans). Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and  
business  activities  are  reported  in  the  government wide  financial  statements  as  “internal  
balances.”  

 
4. Prepaid Costs  
 
Certain  payments  to  vendors  reflect  costs  applicable  to  future  accounting  periods  and  are  
recorded as prepaid items in both the government wide and fund financial statements. The cost  
of  prepaid  items  is  recorded  as  expenditures/expenses  when  consumed  rather  than  when  
purchased.  
 
5. Inventories  

 
Inventories of supplies are reported at cost using the weighted average method. Inventories are  
maintained on a consumption basis of accounting where items are purchased for inventory and  
charged as an expenditure/expense as items are consumed rather than when purchased.  
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Notes to Financial Statements  
September 30, 2023  

 
 

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 
6. Restricted Assets  
 
Certain proceeds of the City’s bonds and other long term liabilities, as well as certain resources  
set  aside  for  their  repayment,  are  classified  as  restricted  assets  only  when  the  funds  are  
segregated  and  their  use  is  limited  by  applicable  debt  covenants.  In  addition,  assessments  
receivable  related  to  future  payment  of  debt  service  are  considered  restricted.  Customer  
deposits are classified as restricted assets because they are held on behalf of the customer.  
 
7. Capital Assets  
 
Capital  assets  which  include  land,  construction  in  progress,  infrastructure,  buildings,  land  
improvements and machinery and equipment are reported in the applicable governmental or  
business  type  activities  columns  in  the  government wide  financial  statements.  Capital  assets  
purchased or acquired with an original individual cost of $5,000 or more, and an estimated useful  
life in excess of one year, are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Donated  
capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets received in a service  
concession arrangement are reported at acquisition value. Additions, improvements and other  
capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Major outlays  
for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred  
during  the  construction  phase  of  capital  assets  of  business  type  activities  is  reflected  in  the  
capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over  
the same period. Other costs incurred for normal repairs and maintenance that do not add to  
the value of the asset or materially extend its useful life are expensed as incurred.  
 
Depreciation  on  all  assets  is  provided  on  the  straight line  basis  over  the  following  estimated  
useful lives:  
 

 Infrastructure  10 50 years  
 Buildings and improvements  10 50 years  
 Land improvements  15 30 years  
 Machinery and equipment  5 15 years  

 
In the governmental fund financial statements, amounts incurred for the acquisition of capital  
assets  are  reported  as  fund  expenditures.  Depreciation  expense  is  not  reported  in  the  
governmental fund financial statements.  

 
Previously, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. Management has evaluated  
the City’s current leases and as concluded that they do not meet the criteria to be capitalized in  
the City’s financial statement.  
 
8. Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITA)  

 
The City has noncancellable subscription based information technology arrangements. The City  
recognizes  a  subscription  liability  and  an  intangible  right to use  subscription  asset  in  the  
government wide  and  proprietary  fund  financial  statements. The City recognizes  subscription  
liabilities with an initial, individual value of $5,000 or more.  

 
At the commencement of a subscription, the City initially measures the subscription liability at  
the present value of payments expected to be made during the SBITA term. Subsequently, the  
subscription  liability  is  reduced  by  the  principal  portion  of  subscription  payments  made.  The  
subscription asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the subscription liability, adjusted  
for subscription payments made at or before the subscription commencement date, plus certain  
initial direct costs. Subsequently, the subscription asset is amortized on a straight line basis over  
its useful life.  
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Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 

 

 

 

Key estimates and judgments related to subscriptions include how the City determines (1) the  
discount rate it uses to discount the expected SBITA payments to present value, (2) subscription  
term, and (3) subscription payments. The City uses the interest rate charged by the SBITA vendor  
as the discount rate. When the interest rate charged by the SBITA vendor is not provided, the  
City generally uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for SBITAs. The  
subscription term includes the noncancellable period of the subscription. Subscription payments  
included in the measurement of the subscription liability are composed of fixed payments and  
purchase option price (if applicable) that the City is reasonably certain to exercise.  
 
The  City  monitors  changes  in  circumstances  that  would  require  a  remeasurement  of  its  
subscription andwill remeasure the subscription asset and subscription liability if certain changes  
occur that are expected to significantly affect the amount of the subscription liability.  
 
9. Compensated Absences  

 
It  is  the  City’s  policy  to  permit  its  employees  to  accumulate  amounts  of  earned  but  unused  
vacation  and  sick  pay  benefits.  Accumulated  compensated  absences  are  recorded  in  the  
government wide financial statements when earned. Expenditures for compensated absences  
have been recorded in the governmental funds only if they have matured, (e.g., resulting from  
employee resignations and retirements). Payments are generally made from the General Fund.  
 
As  of  September  30,  2023,  the  City  reports  accrued  compensated  absences  amounting  to  
$449,040 in the statement of net position, which is expected to be liquidated from reserves set  
aside for this purpose.  

10. Unearned Revenues  

Governmental  funds  report  unearned  revenues  in  connection  with  resources  that  have  been  
received, but not yet earned.  
 
11. Long Term Obligations  
 
In  the  government wide  financial  statements  and  proprietary  fund  statements  in  the  fund  
financial statements, long term debt and other long term obligations are reported as liabilities in  
the  applicable  governmental  activities,  business  type  activities,  or  proprietary  fund  type  
statement of net position. Premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of  
the bonds  using the straight line method,  which approximates  the  effective  interest  method.  
Issue  costs  are  expensed  at  issuance.  Debt  is  reported  net  of  the  applicable  premiums  and  
discounts, if applicable.  
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize premiums and discounts, as  
well as debt issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported  
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing  
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,  
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, and principal payments, are  
reported as debt service expenditures.  

12. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources  
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section  
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows  
of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will  
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  
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Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 
In  addition  to  liabilities,  the  statement  of  financial  position  will  sometimes  report  a  separate  
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred  
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and  
so  will  not  be  recognized  as  an  inflow  of  resources  (revenue)  until  that  time.  Furthermore,  
unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet; these amounts  
are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amount become  
available.  
 
13. Net Position  

 
Net position in the government wide and proprietary funds is categorized as net investment in  
capital  assets;  restricted  or  unrestricted.  Net  investment  in  capital  assets  is  the  difference  
between the cost of capital assets, net accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding  
balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets  
plus unspent debt proceeds. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources  
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related  
debt are included in this component of net position, if applicable.  
 
Restricted net position is that portion of net position that has constraints from general use by  
external parties (creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments)  
or  imposed  by  law  through  constitutional  provisions  or  enabling  legislation.  Net  position  
restricted  for  operations  and  maintenance  and  fire  protection  services  represent  limitations  
placed  on  net  position  use  by  enabling  legislation.  Net  position  restricted  for  public  
transportation and road improvements represent limitations placed on net position use by state  
enabling legislation from proceeds distributed to the City from state revenue sharing and local  
option  gas  tax  collections.  Net  position  restricted  for  law  enforcement  is  to  be  used  only  for  
certain  non recurring  law  enforcement  related  expenses.  Net  position  restricted  for  building  
code enforcement and services contract is to assure compliance with the City’s zoning code, the  
Florida  Building  Code,  and  the  fire  code.  Certain  other  net  position  has  been  restricted  for  
telecommunications  maintenance,  gas  line  maintenance  and  debt  service  in  accordance  with  
applicable arrangements. Unrestricted net position consists of all net position that does notmeet  
the definition of either of the other two components.  
 
Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g.,  
restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts  
to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the government wide and  
proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which  
the resources are considered to be applied. It is the government’s policy to consider restricted  
net position to have been depleted before unrestricted net position is applied.  
 
14. Fund Balance  

 
The City follows GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type  
Definitions which requires that governmental fund financial statements present fund balances  
based on classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which  
the  City  is  bound  to  honor  constraints  on  the  specific  purposes  for  which  amounts  in  the  
respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in the governmental fund  
financial statements are as follows:  

 
Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are  
either (a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained  
intact. “Not in spendable form” includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash  
(such as inventories and prepaid amounts) and items such as long term amount of loans and  
notes  receivable,  as  well  as  property  acquired  for  resale.  The  principal  or  capital  of  a  
permanent fund is an example of an amount that is legally or contractually required to be  
maintained intact. 
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Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 
Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the  
use  of  the  resources  either  (a)  externally  imposed  by  creditors  (such  as  through  a  debt  
covenant),  grantors,  contributors,  or  laws  or  regulations  of  other  governments,  or  (b)  
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  

 
Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes  
pursuant to constraints imposed by resolution of the City Commission. These amounts cannot  
be used for any other purpose unless the Commission removes or changes the specified use  
by taking the same type of action (resolution or ordinance) that was employed when the  
funds  were  initially  committed.  Resources  accumulated  pursuant  to  stabilization  
arrangements sometimes are reported in this category.  
 
Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be  
used  for  a  specific  purpose  but  are  neither  restricted  nor  committed.  This  intent  can  be  
expressed by the City Commission or through resolution by the City Commission authorizing  
the responsibility to the City Manager. The City Commission may also assign fund balance as  
it  does  when  appropriating  fund  balance  to  cover  a  gap  between  estimated  revenue  and  
appropriations in the subsequent year’s budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally  
can only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be  
taken for the removal of an assignment.  
 
Unassigned:  This  classification  includes  the  residual  fund  balance  for  the  General  Fund.  
Unassigned fund balance may also include negative balances for any governmental fund if  
expenditures exceed amounts restricted, committed or assigned for those specific purposes.  
 

Sometimes  the  government  will  fund  outlays  for  a  particular  purpose  from  both  restricted  and  
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to  
calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in  
the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in  
which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the government’s policy to consider restricted  
fund  balance  to  have  been  depleted  before  using  any  of  the  components  of  unrestricted  fund  
balance  unless  there  are  legal  documents/contracts  that  prohibit  doing  this,  such  as  in  grant  
agreements requiring dollar for dollar spending. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund  
balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by  
assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.  

 
15. Encumbrances  

 
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for  
the  expenditure  of  funds  are  recorded  in  order  to  reserve  that  portion  of  the  applicable  
appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration.  

 
Encumbrances are recorded at the time a purchase order or other commitment is entered into.  
Encumbrances outstanding at year end represent the estimated amount of expenditures which  
would  result  if  unperformed  purchase  orders  and  other  commitments  at  year end  are  
completed.  Encumbrances  lapse  at  year end;  however,  the  City  generally  intends  to  honor  
purchase orders and other commitments in process. As a result, encumbrances outstanding at  
year end are re appropriated in the next fiscal year.  
 
16. Use of Estimates  

 
The  preparation  of  financial  statements  in  conformity  with  accounting  principles  generally  
accepted  in  the  United  States  of  America  requires  management  to  make  estimates  and  
assumptions that  affect certain reported amounts  and  disclosures. Accordingly,  actual results  
could differ from those estimates. 
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Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 
17. Subsequent Events  

 
Subsequent events are evaluated bymanagement throughMarch 28, 2024, the date the financial  
statements were available for issuance.  

 
 
Note 3 Deposits and Investments  
 

A. Deposits  
 
The City’s cash balances, except for the balances in the debt service funds, were entirely covered by  
federal depository insurance or by a collateral pool pledged to the State Treasurer. Florida Statutes  
Chapter 280, "Florida Security for Public Deposits Act", requires all qualified depositories to deposit  
with the Treasurer or another banking institution eligible collateral equal to various percentages of  
the average daily balance for each month of all public deposits in excess of any applicable deposit  
insurance  held.  The  percentage  of  eligible  collateral  (generally,  U.S.  Governmental  and  agency  
securities, state or local government debt, or corporate bonds) to public deposits is dependent upon  
the depository's financial history and its compliance with Chapter 280. In the event of a failure of a  
qualified public depository, the remaining public depositories would be responsible for covering any  
resulting  losses.  Accordingly,  all  amounts  reported  as  deposits  are  insured  or  collateralized  with  
securities held by the entity or its agent in the entity’s name.  
 
B. Investments  
 
Chapter 33 of the City's Code of Ordinances governs the City's suitable and authorized investment of  
public funds. The City is highly risk averse in its investment strategy and as such will not purchase  
any individual security rated lower than the third highest tier (e.g., A rated) by at least one nationally  
recognized rating agency in the United States (e.g., Moody's, S&P, Fitch's). U.S Treasury obligations  
which  carry  the  full  faith  and  credit  of  the  United  States  Government,  U.S.  Government  agency  
obligations, U.S. Government instrumentality obligations, or any other debt instrument which carries  
the  full  faith  and  credit  of  the  United  States  Government  or  the  Federal  Deposit  Insurance  
Corporation are exempt from the previously stated rating requirement.  
 
Section  33.01(B)  of  the  City's  Code  of  Ordinances  permits  investment  of  the  City's  funds  in:  
33.01(B)(1),  U.S.  Treasury  obligations  which  carry  the  full  faith  and  credit  of  the  United  States  
Government  and  are  considered  to  be  the  most  secure  instruments  available;  33.01(B)(2),  U.S.  
Government  agency  and  instrumentality  obligations  that  have  a  liquid  market  with  a  readily  
determinable  fair  value;  33.01(B)(3),  Obligations  of  state  and  local  governments,  including  their  
agencies and authorities, either directly or indirectly; 33.01(B)(4), Commercial paper, rated in the  
highest  tier  (e.g.,  A 1,  P 1,  F 1,  or  D 1)  by  a  nationally  recognized  rating  agency;  33.01(B)(5),  
Repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury or Government agency and instrumentality  
securities;  33.01(B)(6),  Money  market  mutual  funds  regulated  by  the  Securities  and  Exchange  
Commission rated in the highest tier by a nationally recognized rating agency and whose portfolios  
consist  of  only  dollar  denominated  securities;  33.01(B)(7),  Demand  deposit  accounts,  interest  
bearing time deposits, money market accounts or savings accounts in qualified public depositories,  
including negotiable certificates of deposit, as defined in F.S. § 280.02; 33.01(B)(8), Obligations of  
any corporate institution (excluding life and casualty insurance companies); 33.01(B)(9), Mortgage  
backed  Securities  (MBS),  Collateralized  Mortgage  Obligations  (CMO's)  or  Asset backed  Securities  
(ABS) containing fixed or adjustable rate mortgages or assets issued by any U.S. Government agency  
or instrumentality or any corporate institution (excluding life and casualty insurance companies);  
33.01(B)(10), Obligations of any sovereign government issued via the U.S. Agency for International  
Development and guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government.  
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Note 3 Deposits and Investments (continued)  
 
Section 33.01(C) of the City's Code of Ordinances prohibits investment of the City's funds in derivative  
contracts as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which defers to the  
Federal  Accounting  Standards  Board  (FASB)  on  its  definition  of  a  derivative  security.  The  FASB  
definition of a derivative security, as provided in Statement 133, Paragraph 6 7, is provided in the  
Appendix preceding the Investment Policy glossary. This section also does not provide authorization  
for the purchase of private placement or 144A securities as defined by the Securities and Exchange  
Commission (SEC).  
 
Investments as of September 30, 2023 were as follows:  

Investment Type Fair Value 
U.S. Agency securities 
Municipal bonds 
Corporate bonds 

$ 92,112,698 
43,286,498 
22,689,536 

Total investments, measured  
at fair value 158,088,732 

Money market funds, measured at 
amortized cost * 7,313,706 

Total  $ 165,402,438 

   
* Amounts are included in cash and cash equivalents. 

 
1. Credit Risk  

 
The City’s investment policy was established to limit credit risk, the risk of loss due to default by the  
issuer, securities broker/dealer or financial institution, by:  

 
 Limiting  investments  to  investment  grade  securities  as  rated  by  any  nationally  

recognized agency in the United States.  
 
 Pre qualifying the financial institutions, brokers/dealers, intermediaries, and advisors  

with which the City will do business.  
 
 Diversifying the investment portfolio to reduce the impact of potential losses from  

any one type of security, or any individual issuer or backer.  
 

The City’s investments have been rated by Standard and Poor’s or Moody’s as follows:  

RATINGS 
AAA AA+ AA AA  

Government and government 
sponsored bonds 
Government mortgage backed 
securities 
Corporate bonds 
Municipal bonds 

Total investments  

$ 

$ 

 

 
8,929,107 
29,783,865 

38,712,972 

$ 

$ 

87,558,290 

4,554,408 
4,267,526 
12,308,913 

108,689,137 

$ 

$ 

 

 
6,652,578 
1,193,720 

7,846,298 

$ 

$ 

 

 
2,840,325 

 

2,840,325 
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Note 3 Deposits and Investments (continued)  
 

2. Interest Rate Risk  
 

The City’s investment policy was established to minimize the risk that the value of securities in the  
investment portfolio will fall due to changes in interest rates, by:  

 
 Structuring  the  investment  portfolio  so  that  securities  mature  to  meet  cash  

requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities to  
the open market prior to maturity.  

 
 Investing operating funds primarily in short term securities, money market mutual  

funds, or similar investment pools and limiting the weighted average maturity of the  
portfolio.  

 
 Limiting the price sensitivity (modified or effective duration) of the investments in the  

portfolio.  
 

The City has an investment policy that, unless matched to a specific cash flow, limits the purchase of  
securities to maturities of no more than ten years from the date of purchase and additionally limits  
the purchase of any securities not rated in the highest tier to maturities of less than five years from  
the date of purchase.  
 
At fiscal year end, the weighted average life of the maturities is as follows:  

Average
Maturity
(Years) 

Government and government sponsored
bonds 4.61 
Government mortgage backed securities 5.84 
Corporate bonds 2.99 
Municipal bonds 4.45 

  
3. Concentration Credit Risk  

 
The City’s investment policy limits its investments to no more than 5% of total assets valued at cost  
in any one security issue and no more than 60% of its total assets valued at cost in any one security  
type, with certain exceptions. Federal government and agency debt obligations are exempt from  
both  restrictions  and  cash  equivalent  investments  are  exempt  from  the  issuer  restriction.  GASB  
Statement No. 40,Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, requires disclosure when the percentage  
is 5% or more in any one issuer. Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government  
and  investments  in  mutual  funds,  external  investment  pools,  or  other  pooled  investments  are  
excluded from this requirement. At September 30, 2023, the City is in compliance with its policy.  
 
4. Custodial Credit Risk  

 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City would not  
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside  
party. The investment policy of the City minimizes this risk by establishing minimum standards for  
institutions  and  dealers  used  by  the  City.  Consistent  with  the  City’s  investment  policy,  the  
investments are held by custodial banks/institutions in the City’s name, or in street name. 
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Note 3 Deposits and Investments (continued)  
 

5. Fair Value Measurements  
 

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy as established in  
accordance with applicable GASB Statements. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to  
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical  
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable (direct and indirect) inputs; and Level 3 inputs  
are significant unobservable inputs.  

 
The following is a general description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at  
fair value.  
 
Investments classified as Level 2, in the table below, are valued based on significant other observable  
inputs, which may include, but are not limited to, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in  
markets that are active, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are  
not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets or liabilities (such as  
interest rates, yield curves, cash flows, maturity, and credit ratings), or other market corroborated  
inputs specific to the investment type.  
 
The  inputs  or  methodology  used  for  valuing  securities  are  not  necessarily  an  indication  of  risk  
associated with investing in those securities.  
 
Fair values of investments held by the City are classified at September 30, 2023 as follows:  

Investment Type Fair Value Level 

U.S. Agency securities 
Municipal bonds 
Corporate bonds 

$ 92,112,698 
43,286,498 
22,689,536 

2 
2 
2 

$ 158,088,732 
   

Valuation techniques used in the fair value measurements listed above are as follows:  
 
U.S. Agency securities: Include Mortgage Backed Securities, Collateralized Mortgage Obligations,  
U.S. Treasury Securities and other Agency Securities. Techniques and evaluations on these securities  
are based on market driven observations and securities characteristics including ratings, coupons  
and redemptions. The primary pricing methods for these investments are FTID MBS Pricing and FTID  
Institutional Bond Quotes.  

 
Bonds: Including Municipal and Corporate are valued by a pricing service that uses matrix pricing.  
This level 2 input would be a price or yield of a similar bond.  

 
Sovereign Securities: Techniques and evaluations on these securities are based on market driven  
observations and securities characteristics including ratings, coupons and redemptions. The primary  
pricing method for these investments is EXTEL International Bond Evaluation.  
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Note 4 Receivables and Unavailable Revenues  
 
Receivable balances as of September 30, 2023 were as follows:  

Enterprise 
Governmental Funds Fund 

Indian Trace 
Indian Trace Bonaventure Development  Capital Nonmajor 

General Development Development Fire Services District Debt Projects Governmental Water and 
Receivables Fund District Fund District Fund Fund Service Fund Fund Funds Sewer Fund 

Accounts receivable  
Interest receivable  
Franchise fees and  

$ 694,467 
539,298 

$ 116,869 
188,546 

$ 24,505 
38,456 

$ 4,793 
65,226 

$  
21,665 

$ 83,760 
31,201 

$ 29,139 
73,330 

$ 4,098,488 
84,230 

utility taxes 
Intergovernmental 

1,824,123 
1,133,203 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
98,557 

 
233,004 

Gross receivables 4,191,091 305,415 62,961 70,019 21,665 114,961 201,026 4,415,722 

Less allowance for 
uncollectibles         

Net receivables $ 4,191,091 $ 305,415 $ 62,961 $ 70,019 $ 21,665 $ 114,961 $ 201,026 $ 4,415,722 

As  of  September  30,  2023,  unavailable  revenues  (governmental  funds)  are  comprised  of  the  
following items:  

Unavailable revenues:  
Franchise fees and utility taxes $ 524,030 
Special assessments * 20,484,933 

$ 21,008,963 
 

*Indian Trace Development District Debt Service Fund reports special assessments receivables for  
amounts owed from property owners for making debt service payments on the outstanding debt.  
 
 

Note 5 Interfund Transactions  
 
The outstanding balances between funds result primarily from the time lag between the dates that  
transactions are recorded in the accounting system and payments between funds are made.  
 
Receivable and payable balances at year end are as follows:  

Due To Due From 

General Fund $  $ 121,583 
Fire Services Fund 121,583  

$ 121,583 $ 121,583 
 

 Interfund transfers for the year ended September 30, 2023 are as follows:  
Transfers Transfers 

In Out 
General Fund $  $ 6,440,000 
Indian Trace Development District Fund  2,955,000 
Bonaventure Development District Fund  445,000 
Fire Services Fund  2,000,000 
Debt Service Fund 279,100 655,367 
Capital Projects Fund 14,176,267  
Nonmajor governmental funds: 
Street Maintenance Fund  1,960,000 

$ 14,455,367 $ 14,455,367
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Note 5 Interfund Transactions (continued)  
 

Transfers  are  generally  used  to  move  revenues  from  the  fund  that  statute  or  budget  requires  
collecting  them  to  the  fund  that  statute  or  budget  requires  to  expend  them.  Transfers  from  the  
general fund, Indian Trace Development District special revenue fund, Bonaventure Development  
District  special  revenue  fund,  debt  service  fund  and  the  street  maintenance  fund  to  the  capital  
projects fund are to provide for resources to fund capital expenditures. Transfers from the general  
fund,  street  maintenance  fund,  and  fire  services  fund  to  the  debt  service  fund  are  for  moving  
resources to provide for the debt service payments related to previously financed projects.  
 
 

Note 6 Capital Assets  
 
A  summary  of  changes  in  the  governmental  activities  capital  assets  for  the  fiscal  year  ended  
September 30, 2023 is presented as follows:  

Balance at 
October 1, 

2022 Additions 

Transfers 
and Other  
Adjustments Retirements  

Balance at 
September 30, 

2023 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital assets, not being  
depreciated/amortized: 
Land 
Construction in progress 

$ 73,587,610 
3,013,452 

$  
6,285,865 

$  
(2,730,640) 

$  
 

$ 73,587,610 
6,568,677 

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated/amortized 76,601,062 6,285,865 (2,730,640)  80,156,287 

Capital assets, being depreciated/ 
amortized: 
Infrastructure 
Buildings and improvements 
Land improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Intangible assets 
RTU, SBITA 

116,645,503 
51,330,687 
18,042,469 
20,614,331 

 

590,059 
195,658 

1,653,293 
4,887,516 

1,507,679 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

(53,516) 

 

117,235,562 
51,526,345 
19,695,762 
25,448,331 

1,507,679 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated/amortized 206,632,990 8,834,205  (53,516) 215,413,679 

Less accumulated depreciation/ 
amortization for: 
Infrastructure 
Buildings and improvements 
Land improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Intangible assets 
RTU, SBITA 

(90,071,243) 
(15,884,288) 
(8,011,760) 

(17,173,545) 

 

(2,360,375) 
(1,418,148) 
(911,394) 

(1,094,773) 

(603,105) 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

(92,431,618) 
(17,302,436) 
(8,923,154) 

(18,268,318) 

(603,105) 

Total accumulated depreciation/ 
amortization (131,140,836) (6,387,795)   (137,528,631) 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated/amortized, net 75,492,154 2,446,410  (53,516) 77,885,048 

Governmental activities 
capital assets, net $ 152,093,216 $ 8,732,275 $ (2,730,640) $ (53,516) $ 158,041,335 
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Note 6 Capital Assets (continued)  

 
A  summary  of  changes  in  the  business type  activities  capital  assets  for  the  fiscal  year  ended  
September 30, 2023 is presented as follows:  

Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions/programs as follows:  

Balance 
October 1, 

2022 Additions 

Transfers 
and Other  
Adjustments Retirements  

Balance 
September 30, 

2023 

Business Type Activities: 
Capital assets, not being  
depreciated/amortized: 
Construction in progress $  $ 5,424 $  $  $ 5,424 

Total capital assets, not 
being depreciated/amortized  5,424   5,424 

Capital assets, being depreciated/ 
amortized: 
Infrastructure 
Buildings and improvements 
Machinery and equipment  
Intangible assets 
RTU, SBITA 

114,851,601 
301,964 
892,068 

 

30,823 
122,702 
458,542 

221,043 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

114,882,424 
424,666 

1,350,610 

221,043 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated/amortized 116,045,633 833,110   116,878,743 

Less accumulated depreciation/ 
amortization for: 
Infrastructure 
Buildings and improvements 
Machinery and equipment  
Intangible assets 
RTU, SBITA 

(69,278,576) 
(124,861) 
(754,436) 

 

(2,398,896) 
(32,515) 

(134,767) 

(88,345) 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

(71,677,472) 
(157,376) 
(889,203) 

(88,345) 

Total accumulated depreciation/ 
amortization (70,157,873) (2,654,523)   (72,812,396) 

Total capital assets, being 
depreciated/amortized, net 45,887,760 (1,821,413)   44,066,347 

Business type activities 
capital assets, net $ 45,887,760 $ (1,815,989) $  $  $ 44,071,771 

  

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 1,576,733 
Public safety 737,844 
Public works 2,458,913 
Parks and recreation 1,614,305 

Total depreciation/amortization  
expense governmental activities $ 6,387,795 

Business type activities: 
Water and sewer $ 2,654,523 
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Note 6 Capital Assets (continued)  
 

Construction Commitments  
 
The City has several active construction projects as of September 30, 2023. The remaining amounts  
committed for these projects are as follows:  

Remaining 

In  addition  to  the  commitments  above,  the  City  has  additional  construction  commitments  of  

Project Spent To Date Commitment 

Fire Station Vehicle $  $ 2,902,495 
Fire Stations, Improvements 
Indian Trace Roadway Improvements 
Intersection Improvements 
IT Improvements
Lakeside Sidewalk Improvement 
Park Improvements 
Park Lighting Improvements 
Police Service Center Improvements
Pump Station Replacements 
Racquet Club Renovations 
Regional Park Pavilion Rehabilitation 
Road Improvements for Bikes and Pedestrians 
Roadway Improvements 
Tequesta Trace Park Improvements
Vista Park Improvements
Weston Community Center 

443,884 
216,675 

1,459,298 
517,441 
298,204 
166,791 

1,198,042 
265,330 
612,202 

1,164,234 
569,909 
705,126 
492,202 

 
72,199 

579,549 

135,225 
141,606 
823,411 
66,451 

 
661,915 
168,293 
764,995 
445,933 
264,433 
38,751 

564,530 
491,942 
296,000 
27,250 

105,648 

Total $ 8,761,086 $ 4,996,383 

   

approximately $1,200,000 for various future projects that are expected to begin during the next fiscal  
year.  

 
 
Note 7 Long Term Liabilities  

 
Notes Payable  
 
At September 30, 2023, the City had notes payable as follows:  
 
Previously,  the  City  issued  Series  1997  ITDD  Bond  of  $41,635,000  and  Series  2005  ITDD  Bond  of  
$46,380,000, with interest rates ranging from 2.50% to 5.00%. These bonds were issued to finance  
the acquisition and construction of certain infrastructure facilities and improvements for the benefit  
of the Indian Trace Development District. The 2005 Bonds were issued by Indian Trace Development  
District for the purpose of currently refunding the then Series 1995A 1 Bonds and advance refunding  
and defeasing a portion of the then Series 1997 Bonds. During the year ended September 30, 2021,  
the City issued a $26,815,000 Series 2021 promissory note for the purpose of full redemption of the  
then outstanding Series 1997 ITDD Bonds and Series 2005 ITDD Bonds and paying costs of issuance  
of this note. The Series 2021 ITDD promissory note bears fixed interest at a rate of 1.99%, which is  
paid quarterly, along with the principal payment. Principal on the note is paid quarterly commencing  
on May 2021 through February 2027. In any case of default, the note, at the sole discretion of the  
holder, may be declared immediately due and payable. During the period of default, the note will  
bear a rate of 3.00% in excess of its current rate. A late charge of 5.00% may also be imposed by the  
holder.  
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Note 7 Long Term Liabilities (continued)  
 
Previously, the City issued Series 2003 Isles at Weston Bond of $9,330,000, with a interest rate of  
5.50%. This bond was issued to finance the acquisition and construction of certain infrastructure  
facilities and improvements for the benefit of the Indian Trace Development District. During the year  
ended September 30, 2021, the City issued a $5,510,000 Series 2021 promissory note for the purpose  
of full redemption of the then outstanding Series 2003 Isles of Weston Bonds and paying costs of  
issuance of this note. The Series 2021 Isles at Weston promissory note bears fixed interest at a rate  
of 2.39%, which is paid quarterly, along with the principal payment. Principal on the note is paid  
quarterly commencing on May 2021 through February 2033. In any case of default, the note, at the  
sole discretion of the holder, may be declared immediately due and payable. During the period of  
default, the note will bear a rate of 3.00% in excess of its current rate. A late charge of 5.00% may  
also be imposed by the holder.  
 
The Series 2021 ITDD and Isles at Weston debt are collateralized by a pledge of all applicable special  
assessments and amounts on deposit in the applicable funds. Both arrangements may be prepaid on  
or after February 26, 2026 at par without penalty. If prepaid prior to 2026, a prepayment fee ranging  
1.00% to 1.50% is applicable.  
 
The City agrees to levy special assessments in annual amounts adequate to provide payment of debt  
service,  for each of  the  2021 notes.  For  the year ended  September 30, 2023,  the  City levied the  
sufficient amount of funds to cover the required annual debt service payments.  
 
Loans of each series are subject to optional prepayment on or after February 1, 2021without penalty.  
In the case of an event of default, the loans, at the sole discretion of the holder, may be declared  
immediately due and payable. During the period of default, the loans will bear a rate of 2.00% in  
excess of the current rate.  
 
Long Term Liabilities Activity  
 
The following is a summary of changes in long term liabilities for the year ended September 30, 2023:  

Balance at 
October 1, 

2022 Additions Reductions 

Balance at 
September 30, 

2023 

Due 
Within One 

Year 

Governmental activities: 

2021 ITDD, Basin I 
2021 Isles at Weston 
Weston 
SBITA agreements 

$ 20,377,209 

4,895,516 
 

$  

 
874,436 

$ (4,372,506) 

(415,286) 
(469,030) 

$ 16,004,703 

4,480,230 
405,406 

$ 4,459,966 

425,286 
405,406 

Other: 
Compensated 
absences 334,103 285,590 (170,653) 449,040 84,649 

$ 25,606,828 $ 1,160,026 $ (5,427,475) $ 21,339,379 $ 5,375,307 

Business type activities: 

SBITA agreements  128,310 (69,157) 59,153 59,153 

$  $ 128,310 $ (69,157) $ 59,153 $ 59,153 
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Note 7 Long Term Liabilities (continued)  
 

The aggregate annual debt service requirements estimated to maturity is as follows:  

Year Ending
September 30,  Principal Interest Total 

2024 $ 4,885,252 $ 388,641 $ 5,273,893 
2025 4,984,926 288,967 5,273,893 
2026 5,086,640 187,253 5,273,893 
2027 2,811,873 89,360 2,901,233 
2028 467,817 60,755 528,572 

2029 2033 2,248,425 129,800 2,378,225 

$ 20,484,933 $ 1,144,776 $ 21,629,709 

  
 
Note 8 – Subscriptions Payable  
 

For  the  year  ended  September  30,  2023,  the  financial  statements  include  the  adoption  of  GASB  
Statement No. 96, Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITAs). The primary  
objective  of  this  statement  is  to  enhance  the  relevance  and  consistency  of  information  about  
governments'  subscription  activities.  This  statement  establishes  a  single  model  for  subscription  
accounting based on the principle that subscriptions are financings of the right to use an underlying  
asset. Under this Statement, an organization is required to recognize a subscription liability and an  
intangible right to use subscription asset. For additional information, refer to the disclosures below.  
 
The City is committed under various service based IT arrangements (SBITAs). At September 30, 2023,  
three qualifying SBITAs under GASB 96. The interest rates range from 3.1067% to 3.1213%.  
 
See notes 6 and 7 for the Amount of Subscription Assets and liabilities respectively.  
  
  

Note 9 Risk Management  
 

The City is exposed to risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;  
errors and omissions; illness of and injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  
 
The City purchased an insurance policy that provided coverage of up to $1,000,000 maximum for  
each  general  liability  occurrence  for  the  fiscal  year  ended  September  30,  2023.  Other  insurance  
policies carried by City during the fiscal year included: automobile, crime, environmental liability,  
inland  marine,  property  (building  and  contents),  public  officials  liability/employment  practices  
liability, crime coverage, cyber liability, terrorism, and workers’ compensation. Deductible amounts  
ranged from  $0 to 5% of total  insured  value.  Settlement amounts have  not exceeded  insurance  
coverage during the last three fiscal years.  
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Note 10 Commitments and Contingencies  
 

City of Sunrise Water and Sewer Services Agreement  
 
An agreement between the City of Sunrise and ITDD was executed on June 30, 1993, for a term of 30  
years with an option to renew for an additional 30 years. The City of Sunrise agrees to supply water  
and sewer service to ITDD and provide the related billing and collection services to ITDD’s customers  
based on the City of Sunrise’s rate structure. The customers remainwith ITDD, but ITDD is performing  
only certain services under the agreement. During the year ended September 30, 2023, the City  
exercised the option to renew the agreement for another 30 years.  
 
Grants  
 
Amounts  received  or  receivable  from  grantor  agencies  are  subject  to  audit  and  adjustment  by  
grantor agencies, principally the federal government and the State of Florida. Any disallowed claims,  
including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds to the City.  
The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at  
this time, although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.  
 
Broward Sheriff’s Office Emergency Medical, Fire Protection and Prevention Services Agreement  
 
On  July  1,  2019,  the  City  Commission  approved  an  agreement  with  the  Broward  Sheriff’s  Office  
(“BSO”) for emergency medical, fire protection and prevention services. The agreement term is from  
October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2024 and is renewable for one five year term upon the City  
and BSO agreeing to a renewal and the terms and conditions related thereto. The agreement may  
be terminated by either party by giving no fewer than 90 days written notice to the other party in  
accordance  with  certain  provisions  contained  within  the  contract.  In  general,  the  City  provides  
certain  facilities  and  vehicles  for  use  by  BSO.  The  City  is  responsible  for  the  major  repairs  and  
maintenance to the facilities while BSO is responsible for repairs and maintenance to the vehicles.  
Under the terms of the agreement, the City will pay $2,025,676 per month from October 1, 2019  
through September 30, 2024. The consideration for all services shall be subject to an annual increase  
based  on  BSO’s  budgeted  costs  for  the  following  year.  For  costs  other  than  health  insurance  
premiums,  workers’  compensation  premiums  and  pension  contributions,  the  maximum  increase  
calculated  based  on  the  consideration  paid  in  the  previous  year,  shall  not  exceed  5.00%.  BSO’s  
budgeted  costs  for  health  insurance  premiums  will  be  based  on  projected  costs.  The  maximum  
increase  for  these  costs  shall  be  9.00%  of  the  budgeted  costs  in  the  preceding  year.  There  is  no  
limitation  for  the  increase  in  the  amount  attributable  to  workers’  compensation  premiums  and  
pension  contributions.  BSO’s  budgeted  costs  for  these  costs  will  be  based  on  projected  costs  
supported with third party documentation. The City is entitled to a credit for any vacancies that occur  
during the fiscal year subject to certain limitations as provided for in the agreement.  
 
On June 21, 2021, the City Commission approved an amended and restated agreement with the BSO  
for emergency medical, fire protection and prevention services under substantially the same terms;  
amending  staffing  structure  and  consideration.  Under  the  terms  of  the  amended  and  restated  
agreement, the City will pay $2,185,820 per month, subject to annual increases as discussed above,  
through September 30, 2024.  
 
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, the City had expenditures for emergency medical, fire  
protection and prevention services totaling $30,921,456 (which includes a vacancy credit of $8,629).  
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Note 10 Commitments and Contingencies (continued)  
 
Broward Sheriff’s Office Police Services Agreement  
 
On  July  1,  2019,  the  City  Commission  approved  an  agreement  with  the  Broward  Sheriff’s  Office  
(“BSO”) for police services. The agreement term is fromOctober 1, 2019 through September 30, 2024  
and is renewable for one five year term upon the City and BSO agreeing to a renewal and the terms  
and conditions related thereto. The agreementmay be terminated by either party by giving no fewer  
than 90 days written notice to the other party in accordance with certain provisions contained within  
the  contract.  Under  this  agreement,  BSO  provides  all  necessary  labor,  supervision,  equipment,  
vehicles, communication facilities and supplies necessary for the purpose of performing the services.  
Per the agreement, the City provides a police district’s office, for which the City is responsible for  
major  improvements  and  repairs.  BSO  pays  for  all  utility  costs  including,  but  not  limited  to,  
telephone,  electric,  and  water  services.  Under  the  terms  of  the  agreement,  the  City  will  pay  
$1,579,719 per month for October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2024. The consideration for all  
services shall be subject to an annual increase based on BSO’s budgeted costs for the following year.  
For  costs  other  than  health  insurance  premiums,  workers’  compensation  premiums  and  pension  
contributions,  the  maximum increase calculated  based  on the  consideration paid in the previous  
year, shall not exceed 5.00%. BSO’s budgeted costs for health insurance premiums will be based on  
projected costs. The maximum increase for these costs shall be 9.00% of the budgeted costs in the  
preceding  year.  There  is  no  limitation  for  the  increase  in  the  amount  attributable  to  workers’  
compensation premiums and pension contributions. BSO’s budgeted costs for these costs will be  
based on projected costs supported with third party documentation. The City is entitled to a credit  
for any vacancies that occur during the fiscal year subject to certain limitations as provided for in the  
agreement.  
 
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, the City had expenditures for police services totaling  
$19,674,764 (which includes a vacancy credit of $(621,959) and School Resource Officer (SRO) credit  
of $(1,100,460).  
 
Calvin Giordano and Associates Professional Services Agreement  
 
On October 15, 2001, the City Commission approved an agreement with a contractor to provide for  
planning, zoning and engineering services. This agreement had no expiration date; however, it could  
be terminated without cause by the City within 120 days upon written notice prior to termination,  
and, with cause by either party within 5 days uponwritten notice prior to termination. The contractor  
was compensated under this contract based on a monthly standard fee and an hourly fee schedule  
structure, based on several service categories, for which both were subject to a maximum 3% annual  
increase. The costs for fixed monthly services ranged from $8,333 per month to $20,000 per month  
and hourly rates ranged from $45 per hour to $200 per hour.  
 
On August 20, 2007, the City Commission approved an amendment to the agreement in order for  
the consulting firm to include provisions for supplemental services, transition and leased employees  
and to revise the provisions for indemnification, cost and attorney’s fees, notice and governing law  
and consent to jurisdiction. Designated employees for certain supplemental services, such as: parks  
and recreation, rights of way and public works were included. The fee to be paid by the City for the  
supplemental services was 145% (120% for overtime compensation) of the actual salary paid to the  
employees of the consultant performing the services.  
 
On April 7, 2008, the City Commission approved an amendment to the agreement to update the  
scope  of  services;  to  add  services  and  further  clarify  the  scope  of  services  and  to  adjust  the  fee  
schedule  accordingly.  The  contractor  was  compensated  under  this  contract  based  on  a  monthly  
standard fee and an hourly fee schedule structure, based on several service categories, for which  
both were subject to a maximum 5% annual increase. The costs for fixed monthly services ranged  
from $208 per month to $50,717 per month and hourly rates ranged from $70 per hour to $350 per  
hour.  
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Note 10 Commitments and Contingencies (continued)  
 
On September 21, 2009, the City Commission approved an amendment to the agreement to include  
the provision the code enforcement services at a fixed monthly cost of $13,917.  
 
On August 17, 2015, the City Commission approved an amendment to the agreement to update the  
scope of services, fees and to include provisions relating to the lease of City vehicles. The contractor  
was compensated under this contract based on a monthly standard fee and an hourly fee schedule  
structure, based on several service categories, for which both were subject to a maximum annual  
increase  based  on  the  twelve month  change  in  the  consumer  price  index.  The  maximum  annual  
increase was set not to exceed five percent nor be less than zero percent. The costs for fixed monthly  
services ranged from $300 per month to $36,628 per month and hourly rates ranged from $90 per  
hour to $451 per hour.  

 
On August 15, 2016, the City Commission approved an amendment to the agreement to remove  
sections dealing with engineering, survey and wetlands management services as the City procured  
those services from other engineering firms via a request for qualifications.  
 
On  March 20, 2017,  the  City Commission approved an  amendment to  the agreement to  remove  
sections  dealing  with  fixed  fees  and  modify  other  sections  of  the  agreement  including  and  
establishing  a  new  and  annually  adjusted  multiplier  for  designated  employees  performing  
supplemental services. The fee to be paid by the City for the supplemental services is 152.77% and  
179.78% of the actual salary paid to the employees of the contractor performing the services for Tier  
One and Tier Two designated employees, respectively. The total base compensation will increase by  
3%  each  year,  subject  to  adjustment  based  on  employee  turnover.  Additionally,  multipliers  will  
increase each year for the remainder of the agreement, which is in effect through September 30,  
2023. Hourly rates for professional services ranged from $98 per hour to $490 per hour.  
 
On  November  29,  2022,  the  City  Commission  approved  an  agreement  to  extend  the  services  to  
September 30, 2032, with one (1) optional ten (10) year renewal by mutual consent.  
 
CAP Government Building Code Services Agreement  
 
The City entered into an agreement with a contractor on June 2, 2015 to provide for plan review and  
inspection services. The agreement was effective through March 31, 2020. On February 18, 2020,  
the City Commission approved an agreement with this contactor for the same services noted above.  
This new agreement is effective through March 31, 2025 and may be terminated by either party  
providing 60 days written notice. The consideration for all services is based on a standard schedule  
of fees and is subject to an annual increase by an amount equal to the Consumer Price Index increase,  
with a maximum annual increase not to exceed 5%. Payments to the contractor are made based on  
the following schedule: (1) for residential permits; 30% of the costs of service upon the issuance of a  
permit  and  70%  of  the  total  costs  of  service  upon  issuance  of  a  building  permit,  issuance  of  a  
certificate of occupancy or completion of final inspection; (2) for all other permits; 50% of the costs  
of service upon the issuance of a permit and 50% of the total costs of service upon issuance of a  
certificate of occupancy, or issuance of a certificate of completion, or completion of final inspection,  
or expiration. The City processes payments to the contractor on a monthly basis, paying all amounts  
that become due for the prior month in arrears.  
 
For the year ended September 30, 2023, costs related to the services provided by the contractor  
amounted to approximately $3,315,800.  
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Note 10 Commitments and Contingencies (continued)  
 
Municipal Technologies Administrative and Technology Services Agreement  
 
The City previously entered into an agreement with a contractor to provide for technology services  
as  follows:  desktop,  server,  application,  telecom,  infrastructure,  document  and  records  
management, business process, procurement and additional City projects. This agreement had no  
expiration date; however, the City could terminate this contract with or without cause immediately  
upon written notice while the contractor could terminate this contract within 180 days upon written  
notice prior to termination.  
 
On August 20, 2007, the City Commission approved an amendment to the agreement to provide for  
administrative services. The monthly base compensation to be paid by the City was approximately  
$53,000 and $75,000 for technology and administrative services, respectively, for which both were  
subject  to  the  annual  review  and  approval  by  City’s  management.  The  fees  for  technology  and  
administrative services was established at 145% (120% for overtime compensation) of the actual  
salaries paid to certain designated employees of the consultant performing the services.  
 
On  March  6,  2017,  the  City  Commission  approved  an  amendment  to  the  agreement  to:  change  
compensation from a fixed fee to an hourly fee, to adjust the multiplier based on the actual salaries  
paid, to include an overhead cost component and to add the expiration date of September 30, 2023.  
The total fee paid by the City for technology and administrative services is established at 140.06% of  
the actual salary paid to the employees of the contractor performing the services. The total base  
compensation will increase by 3% each year, subject to adjustment based on employee turnover. In  
addition, multipliers will increase each year by 0.7951%, for the remainder of the agreement. The  
initial monthly base compensation to be paid by the City was estimated at approximately $214,000  
for  technology  and  administrative  services.  Additionally,  an  overhead  cost  of  $160,000  was  
established and is annually adjusted by the consumer price index not to exceed a 5% annual increase.  
 
On  November  3,  2022,  the  City  Commission  approved  an  agreement  to  extend  the  services  to  
September 30, 2032, with one (1) optional ten (10) year renewal by mutual consent.  
 
For  the  fiscal  year  ended  September  30,  2023,  costs  related  to  the  services  provided  by  the  
consultant amounted to approximately $3,409,000.  
 
Republic Services of Florida Solid Waste Services Agreement  
 
The City entered into an agreement with a contractor on January 10, 2019 to provide solid waste,  
bulk waste and recycling collection services. The agreement is effective through March 31, 2024 and  
provides for a one optional five year renewal term. The agreement may be terminated by the City  
within 30 days  after written  notice or by the  contractor within 60 days after written notice. The  
contractor agrees to provide residential and commercial services to the City’s customers based on  
the negotiated contractor’s rate structure. The City is responsible for the billing and collection of  
payments for all residential service unit accounts, whereas the City shall remit these payments to the  
contractor for such services. Additionally, in consideration of the privilege granted to the contactor  
to use and occupy the streets, bridges, easements and other public places of the City, the contractor  
is obligated to pay the City a franchise fee for all services provided under the agreement.  
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Note 10 Commitments and Contingencies (continued)  

 
OnMarch 5, 2024, the City Commission approved an agreement to extend the services to March 31,  
2029, with one (1) optional five (5) year renewal by mutual consent.  
 
Legal  
 
Various claims and lawsuits, which arise in the normal course of operations, are pending against the  
City. It is management's opinion, based on the advice of the City Attorney, that the outcome of these  
actions,  if  any,  will  not  have  a  material  adverse  effect  on  the  financial  statements  of  the  City.  
Management  also  believes that any  possible adverse  effect  of  litigation  against  the  City  will  be  
covered by insurance.  
 
Encumbrances  
 
At September 30, 2023, encumbrances outstanding are as follows:  

General Fund $ 993,190 
Indian Trace Development District Fund 
Bonaventure Development District Fund  
Fire Services Fund  

337,296 
22,556 

298,250 
Capital Projects Fund 
Water and Sewer Fund 

7,136,776 
171,642 

Street Maintenance Fund nonmajor fund  
Building Fee Fund nonmajor fund  

39,293 
3,884 

$ 9,002,887 

    
 
Note 11 Employee Retirement Plans  
 

Florida Retirement System  
 
General Information: As provided by Chapters 121 and 112, Florida Statutes, the Florida Retirement  
System (“FRS”) provides two cost sharing, multiple employer defined benefit plans administered by  
the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, including the FRS Pension  
Plan (“Pension Plan”) and the Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy (“HIS Plan”). Membership in the FRS  
for the City includes only certain elected members of the City Commission as of September 30, 2023.  
The FRS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death  
benefits  to  plan  members  and  beneficiaries.  Benefits  are  established  by  Chapter  121,  Florida  
Statutes, and Chapter 60S, Florida Administrative Code. Amendments to the law can be made only  
by an act of the Florida State Legislature.  
 
The  State  of  Florida  annually  issues  a  publicly  available  financial  report  that  includes  financial  
statements and required supplementary information for the FRS. The latest available report may be  
obtained  by  writing  to  the  State  of  Florida  Division  of  Retirement,  Department  of  Management  
Services, P.O. Box 9000, Tallahassee, Florida 32315 9000, or by calling (877) 377 1737 or by visiting  
the Web site: www.dms.myflorida.com/workforce_operations/retirement/publications.  
 
Pension Plan  
 
Plan Description: The Pension Plan is a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan,  
with a Deferred Retirement Option Program (“DROP”) for eligible employees.  
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Note 11 – Employee Retirement Plans (continued)  

 
Benefits Provided: Benefits under the Pension Plan are computed on the basis of age, average final  
compensation, and service credit. Elected Officers’ class members who retire at or after age 62 with  
at  least  six  years  of  creditable  service  or  30  years  of  service  regardless  of  age  are  entitled  to  a  
retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 3.0% times the years of service times their final  
average compensation based on the five highest years of salary for each year of creditable service.  
 
For Plan members enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, the vesting requirement is extended to eight  
years of creditable service for all these members and increasing normal retirement to age 65 or 33  
years  of  service  regardless  of  age  for  Elected  Officers’  class  members.  Also,  the  final  average  
compensation for all these members will be based on the eight highest years of salary.  
 
As provided in Section 121.101, Florida Statutes, if the member is initially enrolled in the Pension  
Plan before August 1, 2011, the annual cost of living adjustment (“COLA”) is three percent per year.  
The COLA formula for retirees with an effective retirement date or DROP begin date on or after  
August 1, 2011, will be the sum of the pre July 2011 service credit divided by the total service credit  
at retirement multiplied by 3 percent. Plan members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, will  
not have a cost of living adjustment after retirement.  
 
In addition to the above benefits, the DROP program allows eligible members to defer receipt of  
monthly  retirement  benefit  payments  while  continuing  employment  with  a  FRS  employer  for  a  
period not to exceed 96 months after electing to participate. Deferred monthly benefits are held in  
the FRS Trust Fund and accrue interest. There are no required contributions by DROP participants.  
 
Contributions: Effective July 1, 2011, all enrolled members of the FRS, other than DROP participants,  
are  required  to  contribute  three  percent  of  their  salary  to  the  FRS.  In  addition  to  member  
contributions,  governmental  employers  are  required  to  make  contributions  to  the  FRS  based  on  
state wide contribution rates established by the Florida Legislature. These rates are updated as of  
July 1 of each year. The employer contribution rates for the periods from October 1, 2021 through  
June 30, 2022 and from July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023, respectively, were 57.00% and  
58.68% for the Elected Officers’ class. These employer contribution rates include 1.66% to the HIS  
Plan subsidy for the periods October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023.  
 
HIS Plan  

 
Plan  Description:  The HIS  Plan  is  a  cost sharing  multiple employer  defined  benefit  pension  plan  
established under Section 112.363, Florida Statutes, and may be amended by the Florida Legislature  
at any time. The benefit is a monthly payment to assist retirees of State administered retirement  
systems in paying their health insurance costs and is administered by the Florida Department of  
Management Services, Division of Retirement.  
 
Benefits Provided: For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, eligible retirees and beneficiaries  
received a monthly HIS payment of $5 for each year of creditable service completed at the time of  
retirement, with a minimum HIS payment of $30 and a maximum HIS payment of $150 per month.  
To be eligible to receive these benefits, a retiree under a State administered retirement systemmust  
provide proof of health insurance coverage, which may include Medicare.  
 
Contributions: The HIS Plan is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers as  
set by the Florida Legislature. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation for all  
active FRS members. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, the HIS contribution was 1.66%.  
The City contributed 100% of its statutorily required contributions for the current and preceding  
three years. HIS Plan contributions are deposited in a separate trust fund from which payments are  
authorized. HIS Plan benefits are not guaranteed and are subject to annual legislative appropriation.  
In the event legislative appropriation or available funds fail to provide full subsidy benefits to all  
participants, benefits may be reduced or cancelled.  
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Note 11 – Employee Retirement Plans (continued)  

 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of  
Resources Related to Pensions: At September 30, 2023, the City reported a liability of $241,177 for  
its proportionate share of the Pension Plan’s net pension liability and $23,337 for the HIS Plan’s net  
pension liability for a total pension liability of $264,514. The net pension liability was measured as of  
June  30,  2023,  and  the  total  pension  liability  used  to  calculate  the  net  pension  liability  was  
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2023. At June 30, 2023, the City’s proportionate  
share was .000605259 percent for the Pension Plan and .000146947 percent for the HIS Plan, which  
was a decrease of .000046904 percent and an increase of .000003286 percent respectively, from the  
proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2022.  
 
For the year ended September 30, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of $40,246 for the  
Pension  Plan  and  pension  expense of $8,372 for the HIS  Plan for  a  total  net  pension expense of  
$48,618.  

 
At September 30, 2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of  
resources related to pensions from the following sources:  

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Pension HIS 

Description Plan Plan Total 
Differences between expected  
and actual experience $ 22,644 $ 342 $ 22,986 

Changes of assumptions 15,722 614 16,336 

Net difference between projected  
and actual earnings on pension  
plan investments 10,072 12 10,084 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between City contributions  
and proportionate share of  
contributions 13,011 605 13,616 

City contributions subsequent  
to the measurement date 7,623 302 7,925 

Total $ 69,072 $ 1,875 $ 70,947 
 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Pension HIS 

Description Plan Plan Total 

Differences between expected and 
actual experience $  $ (55) $ (55) 

Changes of assumptions  (2,022) (2,022) 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between City contributions and  
proportionate share of contributions (35,238) (1,831) (37,069) 

Total $ (35,238) $ (3,908) $ (39,146) 
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Note 11 – Employee Retirement Plans (continued)  

 
Deferred  outflows  of  resources  related  to  employer  contributions  paid  subsequent  to  the  
measurement date and prior to the employer’s fiscal year end will be recognized as a reduction of  
the net pension liability in the subsequent reporting period ending September 30, 2024. The amounts  
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the FRS Plan  

Actuarial  Assumptions:  The  Florida  Retirement  System  Actuarial  Assumption  Conference  is  

will be recognized in pension expense as follows:  

Year Ending
September 30, Pension Plan HIS Plan Total 

2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 

Thereafter 

$ (2,610) 
$ (12,413) 
$ 34,925 
$ 4,478 
$ 1,831 
$  

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

(459)
(367)
(538)
(613)
(325)
(33) 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

(3,069) 
(12,780)
34,387 
3,865 
1,506 
(33) 

   

responsible  for  setting  the  assumptions  used  in  the  funding  valuations  of  both  pension  plans  
pursuant  to  section  216.136  (10),  Florida  Statutes.  The  Pension  Plan’s  valuation  is  performed  
annually. The HIS Plan has a valuation performed biennially that is updated for GASB reporting in the  
year  a  valuation  is  not  performed.  The  most  recent  experience  study  for  the  Pension  Plan  was  
completed in 2019 for the period July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2018. Because the HIS Plan is funded  
on a pay as you go basis, no experience study has been completed for that program. The actuarial  
assumptions that determined the total pension liability for the HIS Plan were based on certain results  
of the most recent experience study for the Pension Plan. The total pension liability in the June 30,  
2023 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all  
periods included in the measurement:  

Pension Plan  HIS Plan 

Inflation 2.40% 2.40% 
Salary increases 
Investment rate  
of return 
Actuarial cost method  
Mortality table 

3.25%, average, including inflation 
6.70%, net of pension plan investment 
expense, including inflation 
Individual entry age 
PUB 2010 with Projection Scale  
MP 2018 

3.25%, average, including inflation 
N/A 

Individual entry age 
PUB 2010 with Projection Scale  
MP 2018 
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Note 11 – Employee Retirement Plans (continued)  

 
Long term  Expected  Rate  of  Return:  The  long term  expected  rate  of  return  on  Pension  Plan  
investments was not based on historical returns, but instead is based on a forward looking capital  
market economic model. The allocation policy’s description of each asset class was used to map the  
target  allocation  to  the  asset  classes  shown  below.  Each  asset  class  assumption  is  based  on  a  
consistent set of underlying assumptions and includes an adjustment for the inflation assumption.  
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic and geometric real rates of return for each  
major asset class are summarized in the following table:  

Compound 
Target Annual Annual 

Allocation Arithmetic (Geometric) Standard 
Asset Class (1) Return Return Deviation 

Cash 1.0% 2.9% 2.9% 1.1% 
Fixed income 19.8% 4.5% 4.4% 3.4% 
Global equity 54.0% 8.7% 7.1% 18.1% 
Real estate  10.3% 7.6% 6.6% 14.8% 
Private equity 11.1% 11.9% 8.8% 26.3% 
Strategic investments 3.8% 6.3% 6.1% 7.7% 

Total 100.0% 

Assumed inflation mean 2.4% 1.4% 

(1) As outlined in the Plan's investment policy 
 
Discount  Rate:  The  discount  rate  used  to  measure  the  total  pension  liability  was  6.70%  for  the  
Pension Plan. The Pension Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all  
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount  
rate for calculating of the total pension liability is equal to the long term expected rate of return.  
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.65% for the HIS Plan. In general,  
the  discount  rate  for  calculating  the  HIS  Plan’s  total  pension  liability  is  equal  to  the  single  rate  
equivalent to discounting at the long term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the  
projected depletion date. Because the HIS Plan benefit is essentially funded on a pay as you go basis,  
the depletion date is considered to be immediate, and the municipal bond rate of 3.65% was used  
to determine the total pension liability. The Bond Buyer General Obligation 20 Bond Municipal Bond  
Index was adopted as the applicable municipal bond index.  
 
Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the Discount  
Rate: The following table presents the sensitivity of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension  
liability to changes in the discount rate. The sensitivity analysis, below, shows the impact to the City’s  
proportionate share of the net pension liability if the discount rate was 1.00% lower or 1.00% higher  
than the current discount rate:  

Current 
1% Discount Rate 1% 

Decrease Assumption Increase 
(5.70%) (6.70%) (7.70%) 

City's proportionate share of  
the net pension liability for  
Pension Plan  $ 411,979 $ 241,177 $ 98,280 
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Note 11 – Employee Retirement Plans (continued)  

Current 
1% Discount Rate 1% 

Decrease 
(2.65%) 

Assumption
(3.65%) 

Increase 
(4.65%) 

City's proportionate share of  
the net pension liability for 
HIS Plan  $ 26,624 $ 23,337 $ 20,613 

Investment Plan:  
 

 
The SBA (State Board of Administration) administered the defined contribution plan officially titled  
the FRS Investment Plan. The Investment Plan is reported in the SBA’s annual financial statements  
and in the State of Florida Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.  
 
As provided in Section 121.4501, Florida Statutes, eligible FRS members may elect to participate in  
the Investment Plan in lieu of the FRS Defined Benefit Plan. City employees participating in DROP  
are  not  eligible  to  participate  in  the  Investment  Plan.  Employer  and  employee  contributions,  
including  amounts  contributed  to  individual  members’  accounts,  are  defined  by  law,  but  the  
ultimate benefit depends, in part, on the performance of investment funds. Benefit terms, including  
contribution requirements, for the Investment Plan are established and may be amended by the  
Florida  Legislature.  The  Investment  Plan  is  funded  with  the  same  employer  and  employee  
contribution  rates  that  are  based  on  salary  and  membership  class,  as  the  Pension  Plan.  
Contributions are directed to individual member accounts, and the individual members allocate  
contributions  and  account  balances  among  various  approved  investment  choices.  Costs  of  
administering  the  Investment  Plan,  including  the  FRS  Financial  Guidance  Program,  are  funded  
through  an  employer  contribution  of  0.06  percent  of  payroll  and  by  forfeited  benefits  of  plan  
members. Allocations to the investment members’ accounts during the 2022 2023 fiscal year, as  
established by Section 121.72, Florida Statutes, are based on percentage of gross compensation, by  
class, as follows:  

Class Allocation Rate 

Elected Officials 16.34% 
 

For the elected officials class, members are immediately vested in their own contributions and are  
vested  after  required  service  years  for  employer  contributions  and  investment  earnings.  If  an  
accumulated benefit obligation for service credit originally earned under the Pension Plan vesting  
is transferred to  the Investment Plan, the  member must  have the years of  service required  for  
Pension Plan vesting (including the service credit represented by the transferred funds) to be vested  
for these funds and the earnings on these funds. Non vested employer contributions are placed in  
a suspense account for up to five years. If the member returns to FRS Defined Benefit Plan within  
the five year period, the member will regain control over his or her account. If the member does  
not return within the five year period, the member will forfeit the accumulated account balance.  
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, the information for the amount of forfeitures was  
unavailable from the SBA; however, management believes that these amounts, if any, would be  
immaterial to the City.  
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After  termination  and  applying  to  receive  benefits,  the  member  may  rollover  vested  funds  to  
another qualified plan, structure a periodic payment under the Investment Plan, receive a lump  
sum  distribution,  leave  the  funds  invested  for  future  distribution,  or  any  combination  of  these  
options. Disability coverage is provided; the member may either transfer the account balance to  
the Pension Plan when approved for disability retirement to receive guaranteed lifetime monthly  
benefits  under  the  Pension  Plan,  or  remain  in  the  Investment  Plan  and  rely  upon  that  account  
balance for retirement income.  

The  City’s  contributions  to  for  the  Investment  Plan  totaled  $14,691  for  the  fiscal  year  ended  
September 30, 2023.  

Deferred Compensation Plans  

A  defined  contribution  pension  plan  provides  pension  benefits  in  return  for  services  rendered,  
provides  an  individual  account  for  each  participant,  and  specifies  how  contributions  to  the  
individual’s account are to be determined instead of specifying the amount of benefits the individual  
is  to  receive.  Under  a  defined  contribution  pension  plan,  the  benefits  a  participant  will  receive  
depend  solely  on  the  amount  contributed  to  the  participant’s  account,  the  returns  earned  on  
investments  of  those  contributions,  and  forfeitures  of  other  participants’  benefits  that  may  be  
reallocated to such participant’s account.  

Pursuant to resolution number 97 20, the City adopted a pension plan and trust for the sole benefit  
of the employees of the City. The City contributes to a Money Purchase Plan (“MPP”), which is a  
defined contribution pension plan. The City’s contributions and related earnings are 100% vested  
immediately after acceptance of employment. MPP participants are not required to contribute as a  
condition of participation in MPP.  

The employer contribution rates from October 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 and from July 1, 2023  
through September 30, 2023, respectively were 31.57% and 34.52%. The contribution requirement  
and actual contributions made for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023 was approximately  
$675,700. Under MPP, all assets and income of MPP are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the  
participants. The City does not exercise any control or fiduciary responsibility over the MPP assets.  
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of MPP are not included in the City’s financial statements.  

In addition, and pursuant to resolution 97 21, the City offers its employees an optional deferred  
compensation  plan.  The  City  has  adopted  the  provisions  of  IRS  Code  Section  457(g)  and  GASB  
Statement  No.  32,  “Accounting  and  Financial  Reporting  for  IRS  Code  Section  457  Deferred  
Compensation  Plans”  and  GASB  Statement  84,  “Fiduciary  Activities.”  Under  these  provisions,  all  
assets and income of the plan are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants. The City does  
not exercise any control or fiduciary responsibility over the 457(g) assets. Accordingly, the assets  
and liabilities of the plan are not included in the City’s financial statements.  

Both deferred compensation plans are administered by the ICMA Retirement Corporation.  

Note 12 Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)  

The City does not provide any post retirement benefits to employees. In addition, the City assigns  
both  eligible  active  employees  and  eligible  retirees  equal,  age  adjusted  premiums  and  makes  
available  to  both  groups  the  same  plan  options.  Since  both  groups  are  assigned  the  same  age  
adjusted  premiums,  there  is  no  implicit  City  subsidy,  and  there  is  no  remaining  City  liability  to  
recognize under GASB Statement No. 75, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post  
Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions.”  
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Note 13 Pronouncements Issued, But Not Yet Adopted  

The GASB has issued several Statements not yet implemented by the City. The Statements which  
might impact the City are as follows:  

Statement  No.  99,  Omnibus  2022,  was  issued  in  April  2022.  This  Statement  will  enhance  
comparability  in  accounting  and financial reporting  and  improve  the  consistency  of  authoritative  
literature  by  addressing  (1)  practice  issues  that  have  been  identified  during  implementation  and  
application  of  certain  GASB  Statements  and  (2)  accounting  and  financial  reporting  for  financial  
guarantees. Some provisions of this Statement are effective immediately, and others will take effect  
for fiscal years ending September 30, 2023, and 2024.  

Statement No. 100 Accounting Changes and Error Corrections an amendment of GASB Statement  
No.  62,  was issued in  June 2022.  This  Statement will  enhance  accounting  and  financial  reporting  
requirements  for  accounting  changes  and  error  corrections  to  provide  more  understandable,  
reliable,  relevant,  consistent,  and  comparable  information  for  making  decisions  or  assessing  
accountability. The provisions of this Statement are effective for fiscal year ending September 30,  
2024.  

Statement No.  101  Compensated Absences,  was  issued  in June 2022. This Statement will aim to  
better meet the  information needs of financial  statement users  by updating  the recognition  and  
measurement  guidance  for  compensated  absences.  That  objective  is  achieved  by  aligning  the  
recognition and measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously  
required disclosures. The provisions of this Statement are effective for fiscal year ending September  
30, 2025.  

The City’s management has not yet determined the effect these Statements will have on the City’s  
financial statements.  
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City of Weston, Florida 
Required Supplementary Information 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual General Fund 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Variance 
With Final 
Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Property taxes $ 33,508,500 $ 33,508,500 $ 33,805,455 $ 296,955 
Franchise fees and utility taxes 14,031,800 14,031,800 16,787,739 2,755,939 
Business tax receipts  1,000,000 1,000,000 940,476 (59,524) 
Permits and fees 385,000 385,000 227,214 (157,786) 
Intergovernmental 6,798,400 6,798,400 8,615,569 1,817,169 
Charges for services 1,680,000 1,680,000 2,331,038 651,038 
Fine and forfeitures 250,000 250,000 405,386 155,386 
Investment income (loss) 284,600 645,500 1,050,295 404,795 
Other revenues 450,000 450,000 518,791 68,791 

Total revenues 58,388,300 58,749,200 64,681,963 5,932,763 

Expenditures: 
General government: 
City commission 297,600 297,600 276,979 20,621 
Executive  2,138,100 2,138,100 1,195,388 942,712 
Finance and administration 5,441,400 5,441,400 4,210,644 1,230,756 
Legal counsel 746,500 746,500 741,539 4,961 

Total general government 8,623,600 8,623,600 6,424,550 2,199,050 

Public safety: 
Law enforcement  17,803,000 17,803,000 16,137,628 1,665,372 
Ambulance and rescue service  13,611,800 13,611,800 13,551,330 60,470 
Other  681,300 681,300 658,478 22,822 

Total public safety 32,096,100 32,096,100 30,347,436 1,748,664 

Parks and recreation: 
Personal services 449,400 449,400 494,480 (45,080) 
Operating expenditures 8,916,200 9,277,100 9,310,846 (33,746) 

Total parks and recreation 9,365,600 9,726,500 9,805,326 (78,826) 

Community Development: 
Operating expenditures 2,063,000 2,063,000 1,622,116 440,884 

Total community development 2,063,000 2,063,000 1,622,116 440,884 

Capital outlay 127,600 127,600 1,849,891 (1,722,291) 

Total capital outlay 127,600 127,600 1,849,891 (1,722,291) 

Debt service 
Principal   276,318 (276,318) 
Interest   9,977 (9,977) 

Total debt service   286,295 (286,295) 

Total expenditures 52,275,900 52,636,800 50,335,614 2,301,186 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 6,112,400 6,112,400 14,346,349 8,233,949 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

 

Subscription based proceeds 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Use of fund balance 

 
 

(6,490,000) 
377,600 

 
279,100 

(6,490,000) 
98,500 

887,264 
329,100 

(6,769,100) 
 

887,264 
50,000 

(279,100) 
(98,500) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (6,112,400) (6,112,400) (5,552,736) 559,664 

Net change in fund balance $  $  $ 8,793,613 $ 8,793,613 

 
* The net changes in fund balance of the City’s General Fund is reported in the General Fund for budgetary purposes but is combined with the City’s Disaster  
Management Fund for the purpose of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds.  

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedules.  
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Required Supplementary Information 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual Indian Trace Development District Fund 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental 
Investment income (loss) 
Special assessments 
Other revenues 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

1,527,500 $ 1,527,500 
165,100 165,100 

17,038,200 17,038,200 
  

$ 

Actual 
Amounts 

365,700 
693,589 

17,293,097 
214,663 

$ 

Variance 
With Final 
Budget 
Positive 
(Negative) 

(1,161,800) 
528,489 
254,897 
214,663 

Total revenues 18,730,800 18,730,800 18,567,049 (163,751) 

Expenditures:
Current: 
Public safety 
Public works 
Capital outlay 
Debt service 
Principal 
Interest 

2,861,600 
14,953,200 

356,300 

 
 

2,861,600 
14,953,200 

356,300 

 
 

2,777,647 
14,447,123 

841,269 

129,097 
4,411 

83,953 
506,077 
(484,969) 

(129,097) 
(4,411) 

Total expenditures 18,171,100 18,171,100 18,199,547 (28,447) 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures 559,700 559,700 367,502 (192,198) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Subscription based proceeds 
Transfers out 
Use of fund balance 

 
(2,955,000) 

23,900 

 
(2,955,000) 

23,900 

240,544 
(2,955,000) 

 

240,544 
 

(23,900) 

Total other financing  
sources (uses) (2,931,100) (2,931,100) (2,714,456) 216,644 

Net change in  
fund balance $ (2,371,400) $ (2,371,400) $ (2,346,954) $ 24,446 

 
 

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedules.  
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Required Supplementary Information 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual Bonaventure Development District Fund 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental $ 222,500 $ 222,500 
Investment income (loss) 36,300 36,300 
Special assessments 3,028,200 3,028,200 
Other revenues   

Total revenues 3,287,000 3,287,000 

Expenditures:
Current 
Public safety 842,400 842,400 
Public works 2,209,600 2,313,200 
Capital outlay 26,100 26,100 
Debt service 
Principal   
Interest   

Total expenditures 3,078,100 3,181,700 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures 208,900 105,300 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Subscription based proceeds   
Transfers out (445,000) (445,000) 
Use of fund balance (236,100) (339,700) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (681,100) (784,700) 

Net change in  
fund balance $ (472,200) $ (679,400) 

$ 

$ 

Actual 
Amounts 

 
146,723 

3,035,389 
34,776 

3,216,888 

818,544 
2,119,445 

78,314 

20,636 
704 

3,037,643 

179,245 

38,451 
(445,000) 

 

(406,549) 

(227,304) 

$ 

$ 

Variance 
With Final 
Budget
Positive 
(Negative) 

(222,500) 
110,423 

7,189 
34,776 

(70,112) 

23,856 
193,755 
(52,214) 

(20,636) 
(704) 

144,057 

73,945 

38,451 
 

339,700 

378,151 

452,096 

 

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedules.  
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City of Weston, Florida 
Required Supplementary Information 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual Fire Services Fund 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Budgeted  
Original  Final 

Revenues: 
Investment income (loss) $ 14,500 $ 14,500 
Special assessments 17,476,200 17,476,200 
Other revenues   

Total revenues 17,490,700 17,490,700 

Expenditures:
Current 
Public safety 17,490,000 17,490,000 
Capital outlay 700 700 
Debt service 
Principal   
Interest   

Total expenditures 17,490,700 17,490,700 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over  
expenditures   

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Subscription based proceeds   
Transfers out   

Total other financing 
sources (uses)   

Net change in  
fund balance $  $  

 

Variance 
With Final 
Budget

Actual Positive 
Amounts (Negative) 

$ 230,066 $ 215,566 
17,729,405 253,205 

19,108 19,108 

17,978,579 487,879 

17,385,339 104,661 
289,044 (288,344) 

14,024 (14,024) 
479 (479) 

17,688,886 (198,186) 

289,693 289,693 

26,131 26,131 
(2,000,000) (2,000,000) 

(1,973,869) (1,973,869) 

$ (1,684,176) $ (1,684,176) 

 

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedules.  
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Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules  
September 30, 2023  

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting:  

The  following  procedures  are  used  to  establish  the  budgetary  data  reflected  in  the  financial  
statements:  

Florida Statutes require that all City governments prepare, approve, adopt and execute an annual  
budget  for  such  funds  as  may  be  required  by  law  or  by  sound  financial  practices  and  generally  
accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, the City has established budgeting procedures.  

Prior to August 15, management submits to the City Commission proposed operating budgets for the  
fiscal  year  commencing  the  following  October  1.  The  operating  budgets  include  proposed  
expenditures and the means of financing them. During September, public hearings are conducted to  
obtain  citizen  comments  on  the  tentative  budgets  and  proposed  millage.  The  final  budgets  are  
prepared and legally adopted through passage of a resolution prior to September 30.  

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all funds. Budgets are prepared on a basis consistent  
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). All annual  
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.  

Transfers of appropriations within a fund or a department can be performed by management. Only  
supplemental appropriations require the approval of the City Commission. The legal level of control  
is the fund level, except for the General Fund whose legal level of control is the department level.  
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND  
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES  



 

 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS  
 

 
Special Revenue Funds  

 
Special  Revenue  Funds  are  used  to  account  for  specific  revenues  that  are  legally  
restricted for expenditures of particular purposes, activities or projects.  
 

 

StreetMaintenance Fund This fund accounts for resources (state revenue sharing and  
certain local option gas taxes) whose expenditures are limited by law to transportation  
related operating, maintenance or capital costs.  

Transportation Fund This fund is used to account for resources (certain local option  
gas  taxes),  whose  expenditures  are  limited  by  law  to  public  transportation  mass  
transit.  

 

 

Building Fee Fund This fund accounts for revenues generated from fees charged for  
the  review  of  building  plans,  issuance  of  permits  and  inspections,  and  expenditures  
associated  with  those  services  to  administer  the  City’s  zoning  code  and  the  Florida  
Building Code.  

 

Law Enforcement Trust Fund This fund accounts for revenues generated from assets  
seized in the course of criminal activities occurring in the City. Expenditures from this  
fund are restricted to non recurring law enforcement related goods or services.  

Solid Waste Fund – This fund accounts for revenues generated by special assessments  
legally restricted  to  fund  single  family  residential  solid  waste  and  recycling  curbside  
collection, hauling, and disposal.  
 
Tree Trust Fund This fund accounts for revenues generated from tree removal fees,  
replacement payments, contributions and penalty monies from violations of the City’s  
Tree Preservation Code.  
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City of Weston, Florida 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual Street Maintenance Fund  
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Actual 
Amounts 

Variance 
With Final 
Budget 
Positive 
(Negative) 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental 
Investment income (loss) 
Other revenues 

$ 1,576,400 
48,800 

 

$ 1,576,400 
48,800 

 

$ 1,667,387 
127,214 

5 

$ 90,987 
78,414 

5 

Total revenues 1,625,200 1,625,200 1,794,606 169,406 

Expenditures:
Current: 
Public works 
Capital outlay 

859,900 
 

859,900 
 

637,778 
80,996 

222,122 
(80,996) 

Total expenditures 859,900 859,900 718,774 141,126 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over  
expenditures 765,300 765,300 1,075,832 310,532 

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers out 
Use of fund balance 

(1,960,000) 
1,194,700 

(1,960,000) 
1,194,700 

(1,960,000) 
 

 
(1,194,700) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (765,300) (765,300) (1,960,000) (1,194,700) 

Net change in  
fund balance $  $  $ (884,168) $ (884,168) 
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City of Weston, Florida 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual Transportation Fund  
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Actual 
Amounts 

Variance 
With Final 
Budget 
Positive 
(Negative) 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental 
Investment income (loss) 

$ 77,800 
2,400 

$ 77,800 
2,400 

$ 79,320 
7,399 

$ 1,520 
4,999 

Total revenues 80,200 80,200 86,719 6,519 

Expenditures:
Current: 
Public works 133,000 133,000 36,989 96,011 

Total expenditures 133,000 133,000 36,989 96,011 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures (52,800) (52,800) 49,730 102,530 

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Use of fund balance 52,800 52,800  (52,800) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 52,800 52,800  (52,800) 

Net change in  
fund balance $  $  $ 49,730 $ 49,730 
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City of Weston, Florida 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance  
Budget and Actual Building Fee Fund  
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Revenues: 
Permits and fees $ 3,784,100 $ 4,284,100 
Investment income (loss) 22,400 22,400 
Other revenues   

Total revenues 3,806,500 4,306,500 

Expenditures:
Current: 
Community development 3,703,500 4,203,500 
Capital outlay 1,400 1,400 
Debt service 
Principal   
Interest   

Total expenditures 3,704,900 4,204,900 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures 101,600 101,600 

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Subscription based proceeds   
Use of fund balance   

Total other financing 
sources (uses)   

Net change in  
fund balance $ 101,600 $ 101,600 

$ 

$ 

Actual 
Amounts 

3,375,820 
75,148 
40,380 

3,491,348 

4,135,694 
94,435 

28,955 
988 

4,260,072 

(768,724) 

53,951 
 

53,951 

(714,773) 

$ 

$ 

Variance 
With Final 
Budget 
Positive 
(Negative) 

(908,280) 
52,748 
40,380 

(815,152) 

67,806 
(93,035) 

(28,955) 
(988) 

(55,172) 

(870,324) 

53,951 
 

53,951 

(816,373) 
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City of Weston, Florida 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual Law Enforcement Trust Fund  
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Actual 
Amounts 

Variance 
With Final 
Budget 
Positive 
(Negative) 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Investment income (loss) 

$ 20,000 
1,600 

20,000 
1,600 

$ 396,164 
5,347 $ 

376,164 
3,747 

Total revenues 21,600 21,600 401,511 379,911 

Expenditures:
Current: 
Public safety 20,100 691,842 27,181 664,661 

Total expenditures 20,100 691,842 27,181 664,661 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures 1,500 (670,242) 374,330 1,044,572 

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Use of fund balance    

Total other financing 
sources (uses)     

 

Net change in  
fund balance $ 1,500 $ (670,242) $ 374,330 $ 1,044,572 
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City of Weston, Florida 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual Solid Waste Fund  
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Actual 
Amounts 

Variance 
With Final 
Budget 
Positive 
(Negative) 

Revenues: 
Investment income (loss) 
Special assessments 

$ 5,100 
4,772,000 

$ 54,900 
4,772,000 

$ 58,113 
4,918,100 

$ 3,213 
146,100 

Total revenues 4,777,100 4,826,900 4,976,213 149,313 

Expenditures:
Current:  
Public works 4,772,000 4,821,800 4,813,305 8,495 

Total expenditures 4,772,000 4,821,800 4,813,305 8,495 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over  
expenditures 5,100 5,100 162,908 157,808 

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Use of fund balance     

Total other financing 
sources (uses)     

Net change in  
fund balance $ 5,100 $ 5,100 $ 162,908 $ 157,808 
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City of Weston, Florida 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual Tree Trust Fund 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Actual 
Amounts 

Variance 
With Final 
Budget 
Positive 
(Negative) 

Revenues: 
Fines and forfeitures 
Investment income (loss) 

$ 1,000 
200 

$ 1,000 
200 

$ 1,024 
1,703 

$ 24 
1,503 

Total revenues 1,200 1,200 2,727 1,527 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
Public works 1,000 1,000  1,000 

Total expenditures 1,000 1,000  1,000 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures 200 200 2,727 2,527 

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Use of fund balance     

Total other financing 
sources (uses)     

Net change in  
fund balance $ 200 $ 200 $ 2,727 $ 2,527 

75 



 

City of Weston, Florida 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual Indian Trace Development District Debt Service Fund 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Budgeted Amounts Actual 
Original Final Amounts 

Revenues: 
Investment income (loss) $  $  $ 93,406 
Special assessments 5,274,000 5,274,000 5,352,901 

Total revenues 5,274,000 5,274,000 5,446,307 

Expenditures: 
Debt service: 
Principal 4,691,900 4,691,900 4,787,792 
Interest 582,100 582,100 486,100 

Total expenditures 5,274,000 5,274,000 5,273,892 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures   172,415 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Use of fund balance    

Net change in  
fund balance $  $  $ 172,415 

 

Variance 
With Final 
Budget
Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 93,406 
78,901 

172,307 

(95,892) 
96,000 

108 

172,415 

 

$ 172,415 
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City of Weston, Florida 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual Debt Service Fund  
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Actual 
Amounts 

Variance 
With Final 
Budget 
Positive 
(Negative) 

Revenues: 
Investment income (loss) $  $  $ 13,112 $ 13,112 

Total revenues   13,112 13,112 

Expenditures:
Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Total expenditures     

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures   13,112 13,112 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers in 
Use of fund balance 

 
 

(279,100) 
279,100 

(376,267) 
 

(97,167) 
(279,100) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses)   (376,267) (376,267) 

 

Net change in  
fund balance $  $  $ (363,155) $ (363,155) 
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City of Weston, Florida 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual Capital Projects Fund  
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

Actual 
Amounts 

Variance 
With Final 
Budget 
Positive 
(Negative) 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental  
Investment income (loss) 

$ 400,000 
28,100 

$ 400,000 
28,100 

$ 1,941,857 
389,472 

$ 1,541,857 
361,372 

Total revenues 428,100 428,100 2,331,329 1,903,229 

Expenditures:
Capital outlay 12,250,000 12,250,000 9,538,174 2,711,826 

Total expenditures 12,250,000 12,250,000 9,538,174 2,711,826 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over  
expenditures (11,821,900) (11,821,900) (7,206,845) 4,615,055 

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 
Use of fund balance 

11,850,000 
 

11,800,000 
 

14,176,267 
 

2,376,267 
 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) 11,850,000 11,800,000 14,176,267 2,376,267 

 

Net change in  
fund balance $ 28,100 $ (21,900) $ 6,969,422 $ 6,991,322 
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City of Weston, Florida 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual Disaster Management Fund 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2023 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental 
Investment income (loss) 

$ 

Budgeted Amounts 
Original Final 

 $  
260,400 260,400 

$ 

Actual 
Amounts 

13,346 
926,997 

$ 

Variance 
With Final 
Budget 
Positive 
(Negative) 

13,346 
666,597 

Total revenues 260,400 260,400 940,343 679,943 

Expenditures:
Current: 
General government 1,000,000 1,000,000  1,000,000 

Total expenditures 1,000,000 1,000,000  1,000,000 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over 
expenditures (739,600) (739,600) 940,343 1,679,943 

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Use of fund balance 739,600 739,600  (739,600) 

Total other financing  
sources (uses) 739,600 739,600  (739,600) 

Net changes in  
fund balance $  $  $ 940,343 $ 940,343 

* The net changes in fund balance of the City’s DisasterManagement Fund is reported in the DisasterManagement Fund for budgetary 
purposes but is combined with the City’s General Fund for the purpose of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balances – Governmental Funds. 
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STATISTICAL SECTION  



 

 

STATISTICAL SECTION  
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023  
 
This part of the City of Weston’s annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a  
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required  
supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health.  
 
 
Contents Page 

Financial Trends 80 84 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s  
financial performance and well being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 85 88 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most significant  
local revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 89 93 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s  
current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 94 95 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand  
the environment within which the City’s financial activities take place. 

Operating and Other Information 96 98 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand  
how the information in the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides 
and the activities it performs. 

 
Sources:  Unless  otherwise  noted,  the  information  in  these  schedules  is  derived  from  the  annual  
comprehensive financial reports for the relevant fiscal year.  
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City of Weston, Florida Table 7 
Principal Property Taxpayers 
Current Year and Ten Years Ago 

2023 2014 

Name of Taxpayer 

Weston 592 LLC $ 
Madison OFC Weston Pointe FL, LLC 
Trea Weston Business Center LLC  
Helen Homes of Weston Development LLC 
Weston Apartments Corp. 
Fairlake at Weston, LP 
Meridian Business Campus 
Teachers Insurance and Annuity 
Weston TC, LLC 
Trea Weston LLC  
Cocowalk Development Inc. 
Berkley Vacation Resorts, Inc. 
Cabot III FL2M02 LLC 
Little Briain Holdings LLc 

Totals $ 

Taxable 
Assessed 
Value 

181,610,950 
110,479,570 
97,981,780 
88,539,780 
68,318,250 
68,151,390 
60,806,230 
54,298,230 
53,646,760 
53,111,300 

 
 
 
 

836,944,240 

Rank 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 

 
 
 
 

Percentage 
 of Total City 

Taxable 
 Assessed 

Value 

1.76% 
1.07% 
0.95% 
0.86% 
0.66% 
0.66% 
0.59% 
0.53% 
0.52% 
0.51% 
 
 
 
 

8.11% 

$ 

$ 

Taxable 
Assessed 
Value 

 
 
 
 

43,445,060 
30,784,220 
45,454,060 
48,570,700 
33,761,990 
34,063,760 
39,417,440 
28,484,420 
21,684,840 
20,324,790 

345,991,280 

Rank 

 
 
 
 
3 
7 
2 
1 
6 
5 
1 
7 
8 
10 

Percentage 
 of Total City 

Taxable 
 Assessed 

Value 

 
 
 
 
0.66% 
0.47% 
0.69% 
0.74% 
0.51% 
0.52% 
0.60% 
0.43% 
0.33% 
0.31% 

5.26% 

Source: Broward County Property Appraiser 
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City of Weston, Florida Table 8 
Property Tax Levies and Collections 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Collected Within the  
Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date 

     Collections     
Fiscal 
Year 

Tax 
Levied Amount 

Percentage 
of Levy 

in Subsequent 
Years Amount 

Percentage 
of Levy 

2014 $ 51,530,436 $ 49,367,106 95.80% $  $ 49,367,106 95.80% 
2015 53,014,999 52,864,584 99.72%  52,864,584 99.72% 
2016 57,388,512 54,364,816 94.73%  54,364,816 94.73% 
2017 58,941,657 56,043,593 95.08%  56,043,593 95.08% 
2018 61,756,974 59,285,311 96.00%  59,285,311 96.00% 
2019 68,035,917 67,225,544 98.81%  67,225,544 98.81% 
2020 74,438,948 69,826,810 93.80%  69,826,810 93.80% 
2021 78,640,549 74,262,997 94.43%  74,262,997 94.43% 
2022 82,280,676 77,330,255 93.98%  77,330,255 93.98% 
2023 84,241,873 82,134,347 97.50%  82,134,347 97.50% 

Source: City of Weston budget documents and Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports 

Note: Taxes levied column is exclusive of discounts. Amount column is inclusive of discounts. 
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City of Weston, Florida 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Table 9 

 

Fiscal 
Year 

Community 
Facilities 

Construction 
Notes 

Series 1997 ITDD, 
Series 2003 Isles at Weston, 

Series 2005 ITDD, & 
2021 ITDD Basin 1, and 
2021 Isles at Weston Series 2002 BDD 

Total  
Primary 

Government 

Percentage  
of Personal 
Income 

Debt 
per 

Capita 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

$ 9,467,597 
13,804,215 
17,913,589 
15,132,902 
12,505,112 
19,178,651 
13,525,405 
10,262,793 

 
 

$ 50,670,000 
47,945,000 
45,115,000 
42,155,000 
39,050,000 
35,780,000 
32,345,000 
29,964,720 
25,272,725 
20,890,339 

$ 6,615,000 
5,950,000 
5,265,000 
4,570,000 
3,845,000 
3,130,000 
2,380,000 

 
 
 

$ 66,752,597 
67,699,215 
68,293,589 
61,857,902 
55,400,112 
58,088,651 
48,250,405 
40,227,513 
25,272,725 
20,890,339 

2.50% 
2.55% 
2.54% 
2.33% 
1.96% 
2.01% 
1.54% 
1.11% 
0.71% 
0.56% 

$ 1,016 
1,030 
1,027 
929 
827 
863 
715 
589 
370 
306 

Source:  Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
 See Table 14 for personal income and population data. 

Note:  The City began to report bond payable information in the financials in 2015. 
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City of Weston, Florida Table 10 
Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

The City currently has no general obligation debt. 
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City of Weston, Florida Table 11 
Direct and Overlapping
Governmental Activity Debt 
As of September 30, 2023 

 Net Percentage Amount 
 Debt Applicable Applicable 
Government Unit Outstanding to Weston (1)  to Weston 

Broward County $ 68,790,000 4.29% $ 2,948,590 
Broward County School Board 743,850,000 3.94% 29,325,114 

 Subtotal, overlapping debt 32,273,704 

The City of Weston, direct debt 20,890,339 

Total direct and overlapping debt (2) $ 53,164,043 

Source:  Broward County 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, Broward County School Board  
2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, and Broward County Property Appraiser. 

Note: (1) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property value 
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of Broward County's taxable 
assessed value that is within City of Weston's boundaries and dividing it by the Broward County's 
total taxable assessed value. 

(2) Includes all governmental activities debt. 
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City of Weston, Florida Table 12 
Debt Margin Information 
Last Ten Fiscal Years (in thousands of dollars) 

2023 2022 2021 2020(1) 

Debt limit (based on per capita income)(2) $ 187,430 $ 179,171 $ 181,924 $ 156,766 

Total net debt applicable to limit 20,890 25,273 40,228 48,250 

Debt margin $ 166,540 $ 153,898 $ 141,696 $ 108,516 

Total net debt applicable to the limit 
as a percentage of debt limit 11.15% 14.11% 22.11% 30.78% 

Note: (1) The City's debt management policy was adopted during fiscal year 2020. 
(2) The above is a component of the debt limit which is set by the City's debt management policy.

The City Charter does not set a legal debt margin. 

Note: This schedule is intended to present information for ten years. However, until a ten year trend is  
compiled, the table will present information for those years for which information is available. 
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City of Weston, Florida Table 15 
Principal Employers 
Current Year and Ten Years Ago 

The information was not available from the City's Chamber of Commerce and the City does not have a  
Department of Economic Development.  
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City of Weston, Florida Table 17 
Operating Indicators by Function/Program 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Function/Program 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

General Government: 
Building permits issued 2,378 2,506 2,509 3,138 5,076 4,929 4,136 4,655 5,190 5,094 
Building inspections 
conducted 11,943 13,495 12,139 12,897 14,957 16,309 15,343 14,818 16,920 16,505 
Business tax receipts 3,153 3,264 3,124 3,262 3,209 3,210 1,142 1,201 1,744 748 

Fire: 
Emergency responses 4,300 4,343 3,882 4,292 4,247 4,081 4,200 4,984 5,211 5,178 
Inspections 3,182 2,247 2,246 3,011 2,122 6,832 1,663 1,715 1,712 1,950 

Police: 
Physical arrests 479 410 380 501 604 618 357 325 383 340 
Parking violations 331 432 487 493 475 155 24 88 56 135 
Traffic violations 6,963 6,148 7,994 10,570 13,071 14,006 5,769 15,569 19,896 19,318 

Refuse Collection: 
Refuse collected  
(tons per year) 36,451 35,427 19,976 20,449 20,143 19,644 21,960 23,548 22,331 20,716 
Recyclables collected 
(tons per year) 4,335 4,641 4,470 4,545 4,560 4,155 4,395 4,275 4,005 3,023 

Parks and Recreation: 
Athletic programs 12 11 14 15 17 22 16 16 16 16 
Sports alliance registrants 6,428 6,869 7,961 8,817 8,224 8,100 5,192 11,252 8,050 8,347 
Community center 
admissions 
(program participants) 1,063 1,152 1,032 892 785 726 393 300 78 861 

Water: 
New connections  8 6 3 5 3 8 6 9  6  2  
Water main breaks     2 2 7 9  14  9  
Average daily consumption 
(thousands of gallons) 7,436 7,091 7,412 7,579 7,151 7,593 7,267 10,774 10,980 10,889 
Peak monthly consumption 
(thousands of gallons)(1) 248,579 271,705 257,112 284,167 252,274 281,731 301,671 273,209 206,299 208,858 

Wastewater: 
Average daily sewage  
treatment (thousands 
of gallons)(2) 6,277 6,476 6,220 6,308 6,044 6,290 6,055 6,234 6,119 6,167 

Source: City of Weston Public Works, Recreational Department, Information Technologies Department, and the City of Sunrise 

Note: (1) Based on billed consumption generated through the City's utility billing system. 
(2) Based on metered water service along with the residential consumption caps that are in place. 
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City of Weston, Florida Table 18 
Capital Assets by Function 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Function/Program 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Fire: 
Stations 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 
Rescues units 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 7 4 4 
Rescue/suppression units 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 6 5 5 
Fire rescue personnel (full  
time equivalent) 121 121 121 121 121 121 121 140 140 140 

Police: 
Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Patrol units 74 74 76 76 85 85 75 80 80 80 
Sworn personnel 78 78 80 81 93 93 93 93 93 93 

Refuse Collection: 
Collection trucks 7 7 10 10 15 10 18 18 18 18 

Other Public Works: 
Streets (miles) 53 53 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 51 
Bike lanes (miles) 45 45 46 46 46 46 51 51 51 51 
Highways (miles) 
Streetlights 1 

34 
1,390 

34 
1,390 

32 
1,379 

32 
1,384 

32 
1,389 

32 
1,395 

32 
1,408 

32 
1,638 

32 
1,641 

32 
1,648 

Traffic signals 156 156 156 156 156 169 164 167 167 167 

Parks and Recreation: 
Acreage 245 245 245 245 245 245 245 246 239 239 
Playgrounds 11 11 11 11 11 12 12 12 12 12 
Baseball/softball diamonds 21 21 21 21 20 21 21 19 21 21 
Soccer/football fields 18 18 18 18 19 18 18 14 11 11 
Basketball courts 9 9 9 9 9 10 11 12 13 13 
Roller hockey rinks 8 4 4 4 4 4 3 2 2 2 
Turf soccer rinks  4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
Tennis courts 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 16 17 17 
Skate parks 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Amphitheatre 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Outdoor concert stage 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Community centers 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Water: 
Water mains (miles) (1) 212 212 214 214 214 214 214 214 214 214 
Fire hydrants (2) 1,789 1,789 1,791 1,791 1,791 1,722 1,738 1,738 1,737 1,725 
Storage capacity (mgd) 23.8 23.8 23.8 23.8 23.8 23.8 23.8 23.8 23.8 23.8 
Lakes and canals (acres) 2,140 2,140 2,152 2,152 2,177 2,181 2,214 2,214 2,214 2,214 

Wastewater: 
Sanitary sewers (miles)  196 196 198 198 198 198 198 198 198 198 
Storm sewers (miles) 30 30 31 31 31 31 35 35 35 35 
Treatment capacity (million 
gallons per day) 30.45 30.99 30.99 30.99 30.99 30.99 30.99 30.99 30.99 30.99 

Source: City of Weston Public Works, Recreational Department, Information Technologies Department, and the City of Sunrise. 

Note: (1) Owned and maintained by Indian Trace Development District. 
Note: (2) Fire hydrants and water mains only account for ITDD infrastructure. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER  
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS  

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED  
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS  

To the Honorable Mayor,  
City Commissioners and City Manager  
City of Weston, Florida  

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of  
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,  
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental  
activities, the business type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information  
of the City of Weston, Florida (the “City”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the  
related notes to the financial statementswhich collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements  
and have issued our report thereon dated March 28, 2024.  

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

In  planning  and  performing  our  audit  of  the  financial  statements,  we  considered  the  City’s  internal  
control  over  financial  reporting  (internal  control)  as  a  basis  for  designing  audit  procedures  that  are  
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,  
but  not  for  the  purpose  of  expressing  an  opinion  on  the  effectiveness  of  the  City’s  internal  control.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  

A  deficiency  in  internal  control  exists  when  the  design  or  operation  of  a  control  does  not  allow  
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or  
detect  and  correct,  misstatements  on  a  timely  basis.  A  material  weakness  is  a  deficiency,  or  a  
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material  
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a  
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control  
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged  
with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this  
section  and  was  not  designed  to  identify  all  deficiencies  in  internal  control  that  might  be  material  
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any  
deficiencies  in  internal  control  that  we  consider  to  be  material  weaknesses.  However,  material  
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  
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City of Weston, Florida  
 
 
Report on Compliance and Other Matters  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from  
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,  
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on  
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not  
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests  
disclosed  no  instances  of  noncompliance  or  other  matters  that  are  required  to  be  reported  under  
Government Auditing Standards.  
 
Purpose of this Report  
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance  
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal  
control  or  on  compliance.  This  report  is  an  integral  part  of  an  audit  performed  in  accordance  with  
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,  
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.  
 
 
 
 
KEEFE McCULLOUGH  
 
 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida  
March 28, 2024  
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MANAGEMENT LETTER IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE  
RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA  

To the Honorable Mayor,  
City Commissioners and City Manager  
City of Weston, Florida  

Report on the Financial Statements  

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Weston, Florida (the “City) as of and for the fiscal  
year ended September 30, 2023, and have issued our report thereon dated March 28, 2024.  

Auditor’s Responsibility  

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of  
America;  the  standards  applicable  to  financial  audits  contained  in  Government  Auditing  Standards,  
issued  by  the  Comptroller  General  of  the  United  States;  and  Chapter  10.550,  Rules  of  the  Auditor  
General.  

Other Reporting Requirements  

We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on  
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance  
with  Government  Auditing  Standards;  and  Independent  Accountant’s  Report  on  an  examination  
conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, AT C Section 315, regarding compliance  
requirements in accordance with Chapter  10.550, Rules  of the  Auditor  General.  Disclosures  in  those  
reports and schedule, which are dated March 28, 2024, should be considered in conjunction with this  
management letter.  

Prior Audit Findings  

Section  10.554(1)(i)1.,  Rules  of  the  Auditor  General,  requires  that  we  determine  whether  or  not  
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding  
financial audit report. There were no findings and recommendations made in the preceding financial  
audit report.  

Official Title and Legal Authority  

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal  
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in  
this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. City ofWeston, Florida  
was established pursuant to Chapter 96 472, Laws of Florida. Indian Trace Community Development  
District, a blended component unit of City of Weston, Florida, was established by Chapter 80 407, Laws  
of Florida. Bonaventure Development District, a blended component unit of City ofWeston, Florida, was  
established by City of Weston Ordinance No. 98 61, Chapter 2001 303, Laws of Florida.  
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City of Weston, Florida  
 
 
Financial Condition and Management  
 
Sections  10.554(1)(i)5.a.  and  10.556(7),  Rules  of  the  Auditor  General,  require  us  to  apply  appropriate  
procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the City met one or  
more  of  the  conditions  described  in  Section  218.503(1),  Florida  Statutes,  and  to  identify  the  specific  
condition(s)  met.  In  connection  with  our  audit,  we  determined  that  the  City  did  not  meet  any  of  the  
conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.  
 
Pursuant  to  Sections  10.554(1)(i)5.b.  and  10.556(8),  Rules  of  the  Auditor  General,  we  applied  financial  
condition  assessment  procedures  for  the  City.  It  is  management’s  responsibility  to  monitor  the  City’s  
financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by  
management and the review of financial information provided by same.  
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations  
to  improve  financial  management.  In  connection  with  our  audit,  we  did  not  have  any  such  
recommendations.  
 
Special District Component Units  
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)5.c., Rules of the Auditor General, requires, if appropriate, that we communicate the  
failure of a special district that is a component unit of a county, municipality, or special district to provide  
the financial information necessary for proper reporting of the component unit within the audited financial  
statements of the county, municipality, or special district in accordance with Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida  
Statutes. In connection with our audit, we did not note any special district component units that failed to  
provide  the  necessary  information for  proper  reporting  in accordance with Section 218.39(3)(b), Florida  
Statutes.  
 
As required by Section 218.39(3)(c), Florida Statutes and Section 10.554(1)(i)6, Rules of the Auditor General,  
the  City  reported  the  specific  information  in  Exhibit  1  accompanying  this  report.  The  information  for  
compliance  with  Section  218.39(3)(c),  Florida  Statutes  and  Section  10.554(1)(i)6,  Rules  of  the  Auditor  
General,  has  not  been  subjected  to  the  auditing  procedures  applied  in  the  audit  of  the  basic  financial  
statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.  
 
Additional Matters  
 
Section  10.554(1)(i)3.,  Rules  of  the  Auditor  General,  requires  us  to  communicate  noncompliance  with  
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred,  
that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the attention of those  
charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings.  
 
Purpose of this Letter  
 
Ourmanagement letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee,  
members  of  the  Florida  Senate  and  the  Florida  House  of  Representatives,  the  Florida  Auditor  General,  
Federal and other granting agencies, the Members of the City Commission, and applicable management,  
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.  
 
 
 
 
KEEFE McCULLOUGH  
 
 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida  
March 28, 2024  
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City of Weston, Florida 
Exhibit 1 
Data Elements Required By Section 218.39(3)(c), Florida Statutes and  
Section 10.554(1)(i)6, Rules of the Auditor General 
(Unaudited) 

Indian Trace  Bonaventure Development 
Data Element Development District Development District 

Number of district employees compensated at 9/30/2023 None None 
Number of independent contractors compensated in September 2023 127 95 
Employee compensation for FYE 9/30/2023 (paid/accrued) None None 
Independent contractor compensation for FYE 9/30/2023 (paid/accrued) $ 17,774,801 $ 2,864,069 
Each construction project to begin on or after October 1 2022; (>$65K): None None 
Budget variance report Page 63 Page 64 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH  
SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES  

To the Honorable Mayor,  
City Commissioners and City Manager  
City of Weston, Florida  

We have examined the City of Weston, Florida’s (the “City”) compliance with the requirements of Section  
218.415 Florida Statutes, Local Government Investment Policies, during the year ended September 30, 2023.  
Management is responsible for the City's compliance with the specified requirements. Our responsibility is  
to express an opinion on the City's compliance with the specified requirements based on our examination.  

Our  examination  was  conducted  in  accordance  with  attestation  standards  established  by  the  American  
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the examination  
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the City complied, in all material respects, with the specified  
requirements referenced above. An examination involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about  
whether the City compliedwith the specified requirements. The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures  
selected depend on our judgment, including an assessment of the risks of material noncompliance, whether  
due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a  
reasonable basis for our opinion.  

Our  examination  does  not  provide  a  legal  determination  on  the  City's  compliance  with  specified  
requirements.  

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the  
year ended September 30, 2023.  

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Members of the City Commission,  
management, and the State of Florida Auditor General and is not intended to be and should not be used by  
anyone other than these specified parties.  

KEEFE McCULLOUGH  

Fort Lauderdale, Florida  

KMCcpa.com  | 6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308  Phone: 954.771.0896 Fax: 954.938.9353 
Top 25 Accounting Firms | South Florida Business Journal Top 400 Accounting Firms in the U.S. | INSIDE Public Accounting 

104  

March 28, 2024  






	Structure Bookmarks
	City of Weston Bonaventure Development District Indian Trace Development District PLAN PREPARE PROCEED Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2023 2023 ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT 
	Figure
	 
	 
	ANNUALCOMPREHENSIVEFINANCIALREPORT 
	 
	OFTHE 
	 
	CITYOFWESTON,FLORIDA 
	 
	FORTHEFISCALYEARENDED 
	 
	SEPTEMBER30,2023 
	 
	PREPAREDBY 
	 
	THEFINANCEDEPARTMENT 
	 
	THECITYOFWESTON

	 
	MargaretBrown 
	Mayor 
	 
	ByronJaffe 
	Commissioner 
	 
	MaryMolinaMacfie 
	Commissioner 
	 
	ChrisEddy 
	Commissioner 
	 
	HenryMead 
	Commissioner 
	  
	DonaldP.Decker 
	CityManager/CEO 
	 
	WeissSerotaHelfmanCole&Bierman 
	CityAttorney 
	  
	DarrelL.Thomas 
	AssistantCityManager/CFO 
	 
	KarlC.Thompson,P.E. 
	AssistantCityManager/COO 
	 
	PatriciaA.Bates,MMC 
	CityClerk 
	 
	CindyM.Tao 
	DirectorofAccounting 
	CityofWeston,Florida TableofContents 
	IntroductorySection: 
	LetterofTransmittal ivii OrganizationalChart viii CertificateofAchievementforExcellenceinFinancialReporting ix 
	FinancialSection: 
	IndependentAuditor'sReport 13 Management’sDiscussionandAnalysis 418 
	BasicFinancialStatements: 
	GovernmentWideFinancialStatements: StatementofNetPosition 19 StatementofActivities 20 FundFinancialStatements: BalanceSheetGovernmentalFunds 2122 ReconciliationoftheBalanceSheetGovernmentalFunds 
	totheStatementofNetPosition 23 
	StatementofRevenues,ExpendituresandChanges inFundBalancesGovernmentalFunds 2425 ReconciliationoftheStatementofRevenues,Expenditures 
	andChangesinFundBalancesGovernmentalFundstothe StatementofActivities 26 StatementofNetPositionProprietaryFund 27 StatementofRevenues,ExpensesandChangesinNetPositionProprietaryFund 28 StatementofCashFlowsProprietaryFund 2930 NotestotheFinancialStatements 3160 
	RequiredSupplementaryInformation: 
	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualGeneralFund 61 
	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualIndianTraceDevelopmentDistrictFund 62 
	CityofWeston,Florida 
	CityofWeston,Florida 
	CityofWeston,Florida 

	TableofContents 
	TableofContents 

	(continued) 
	(continued) 

	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualBonaventureDevelopmentDistrictFund 
	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualBonaventureDevelopmentDistrictFund 
	63 

	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualFireServicesFund 
	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualFireServicesFund 
	64 

	NotestoBudgetaryComparisonSchedules 
	NotestoBudgetaryComparisonSchedules 
	65 

	ScheduleofProportionateShareofNetPensionLiability 
	ScheduleofProportionateShareofNetPensionLiability 
	66 

	ScheduleofCityContributions 
	ScheduleofCityContributions 
	67 

	CombiningandIndividualFundFinancialStatementsandSchedules: 
	CombiningandIndividualFundFinancialStatementsandSchedules: 

	CombiningBalanceSheetNonmajorGovernmentalFunds 
	CombiningBalanceSheetNonmajorGovernmentalFunds 
	68 

	CombiningStatementofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalances NonmajorGovernmentalFunds 
	CombiningStatementofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalances NonmajorGovernmentalFunds 
	69 

	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualStreetMaintenanceFund 
	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualStreetMaintenanceFund 
	70 

	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualTransportationFund 
	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualTransportationFund 
	71 

	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualBuildingFeeFund 
	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualBuildingFeeFund 
	72 

	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualLawEnforcementTrustFund 
	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualLawEnforcementTrustFund 
	73 

	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActual–SolidWasteFund 
	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActual–SolidWasteFund 
	74 

	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualTreeTrustFund 
	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualTreeTrustFund 
	75 

	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualIndianTraceDevelopmentDistrictDebtServiceFund 
	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualIndianTraceDevelopmentDistrictDebtServiceFund 
	76 

	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualDebtServiceFund 
	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualDebtServiceFund 
	77 

	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualCapitalProjectsFund 
	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualCapitalProjectsFund 
	78 

	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActual–DisasterManagementFund 
	ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActual–DisasterManagementFund 
	79 

	StatisticalSection: 
	StatisticalSection: 

	Table1NetPositionbyComponent 
	Table1NetPositionbyComponent 
	80 


	CityofWeston,Florida 
	TableofContents (continued) 
	Table2ChangesinNetPosition 8182 Table3FundBalancesofGovernmentalFunds 83 Table4ChangesinFundBalancesofGovernmentalFunds 84 Table5AssessedValueandEstimatedActualValueofTaxableProperty 85 Table6PropertyTaxRatesDirectandOverlappingGovernments 86 Table7PrincipalPropertyTaxpayers 87 Table8PropertyTaxLeviesandCollections 88 Table9RatiosofOutstandingDebtbyType 89 Table10RatioofGeneralBondedDebtOutstanding 90 Table11DirectandOverlappingGovernmentalActivityDebt 91 Table12DebtMarginInformation 92 Table13–PledgedReven
	ComplianceSection: 
	IndependentAuditor’sReportonInternalControlOverFinancialReportingand onComplianceandOtherMattersBasedonanAuditofFinancialStatements PerformedinAccordancewithGovernmentAuditingStandards 99100 
	ManagementLetterinAccordancewiththeRulesoftheAuditorGeneral oftheStateofFlorida 101102 
	Exhibit1DataElementsRequiredbySection218.39(3)(c),FloridaStatutesand Sections10.554(1)(i)6and10.554(1(i)7,RulesoftheAuditorGeneral(unaudited) 103 
	IndependentAccountant’s’ReportonCompliancewithSection218.415,FloridaStatutes 104 
	 

	INTRODUCTORYSECTION 
	INTRODUCTORYSECTION 
	INTRODUCTORYSECTION 
	28March2024 
	Margaret Brown
	Mayor 
	Byron L. Jaffe
	Commissioner 
	Mary Molina-Macfie
	Commissioner 
	Chris Eddy
	Commissioner 
	Henry Mead
	Commissioner 
	Donald P. Decker 
	City Manager/CEO 
	To the Honorable Mayor and Commissioners, and the residents of the City of Weston,Florida: 
	TheAnnualComprehensiveFinancial ReportoftheCityof Weston,Florida(the “City”) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, is hereby submitted as mandatedbyFloridaStatutes.ThesestatutesrequirethattheCityannuallyissue areportonitsfinancialpositionandactivitywithinninemonthsofthecloseofeach fiscalyear, and that this report be audited by an independent firm of certified public accountants. Financial statements in this Report are presented in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”)
	Responsibilityforboththeaccuracyofthedata,andthecompletenessandfairness ofthepresentation,includingalldisclosures,restswithmanagement.Toprovide areasonablebasisformakingtheserepresentations,managementoftheCityhas establishedacomprehensiveinternalcontrolframeworkthatisdesignedbothto protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficientreliableinformationforthepreparationoftheCity’sfinancialstatements inconformitywithGAAP.Sincethecostofinternalcontrolsshouldnotoutweigh theirben
	TheCity’sfinancialstatementshavebeenauditedbyKeefe,McCullough&CoLLP, alicensedcertifiedpublicaccountantfirm.Thegoaloftheindependentauditwas toprovidereasonableassurancethatthefinancialstatementsoftheCityofWeston forthefiscalyearendedSeptember30,2023,arefreeofmaterialmisstatements. Theindependentauditinvolvedexamining,onatestbasis,evidencesupportingthe amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principlesusedandsignificantestimatesmadebymanagement;andevaluatingthe overallfi
	The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the City’s financial statementsforthefiscalyearendedSeptember30,2023,arefairlypresentedin conformitywithGAAP.Theindependentauditor’sreportispresentedasthefirst componentsectionofthisreport. 
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	SM 


	17200 Royal Palm Boulevard . Weston, Florida 33326 . Phone: 954-385-2000 . Fax: 954-385-2010 . 
	www.westonfl.org 

	i 
	i 

	Figure
	GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”). The letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.The City MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 
	GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”). The letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.The City MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

	City Profile and Governmental Structure 
	City Profile and Governmental Structure 
	City Profile and Governmental Structure 
	The City of Weston is in the southeastern part of the state of Florida and is considered to be one of the largest master planned communities in the United States.The City has a land area of approximately 25 square miles, a population estimated at 68,227 and is empowered to levy a property tax on real property located within its boundaries. 
	The City has operated under the CommissionManager form of government since incorporation in 1996.Policymaking and legislative authority are vested in the City Commission, which consists of a Mayor and four Commissioners and is the legislative branch of the City’s government.The City Commission is responsible for, among other things, enacting ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing boards, and hiring the City Manager and the City Attorney.The Commission is elected on a nonpartisan basis. The four Commiss
	The City is financially accountable for component units consisting of two legally separate dependent community development districts, the Indian Trace Development District and the Bonaventure Development District, both of which are reported separately within the City’s financial statements.Additional information on these two districts can be found in Note 2 of the notes to the financial statements. 
	The annual budget serves as the foundation of the City’s financial planning and control.All departments responsible for City and component unit operations are required to submit their requests for appropriations to the Budget Director for inclusion in the draft budget by the end of April.The City Manager, assisted by the Assistant City Manager/CFO and the Budget Director, uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed budget.The City Manager then presents the proposed budget to the City
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	Factors Affecting Financial Condition 
	Factors Affecting Financial Condition 
	Factors Affecting Financial Condition 
	The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of Weston operates. 
	Employment.According to the Florida Department of Commerce, Florida’s January 2024 seasonally adjusted unemployment rate was 3.1%, an increase of 0.3% from a year ago. The state of Florida gained 259,600 jobs over the previous twelve months, an increase of 2.7%.The education and health services industry gained the most with 67,100 jobs.Other industries that gained jobs are trade, transportation, and utilities; leisure and hospitality; total government; construction; professional and business services; other
	Moreover, the State had the same not seasonally adjusted unemployment rate as Broward County.In January 2024, Florida’s not seasonally adjusted unemployment rate was 3.1%, a decrease of 0.3% compared to January 2023.Broward County’s not seasonally adjusted unemployment rate in January 2024 was also 3.1%; however, it was an increase of 0.3% from January 2023. According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, Weston’s preliminary not seasonally adjusted unemployment rate in January 2024 was 2.9%, an increase of 0.
	Housing. Broward County’s recent home sales prices grew faster than the State. median sales price in February 2024 was $407,500, an increase of 4.4% from the previous February. According to the Broward County Property Appraiser, Broward County’s median sales price in June 2023 was $454,850, an increase of 22.2% from June 2022.Broward County’s February 2024 yearoveryear median sales price remains higher than the State of Florida’s median sales price. According to , Weston’s average market value in February 2
	According to Redfin.com, the statewide 
	Realtor.com

	Inflation.The February 2024 yearoveryear change in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the MiamiFort LauderdaleWest Palm Beach Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) was 4.89%, down from 9.16% in the previous year. The August 2022 yearover year change of 10.75% was the highest level observed for the MiamiFort LauderdaleWest Palm Beach MSA by the Federal Bureau of Labor Statistics since a change of 10.7% for the twelve months ending in March 1982.Most of the City’s contractual obligations contain provisions whic
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	Figure
	Legislative.In Fiscal Year 2023, the State Legislature passed several bills negatively impacting local government home rule authority. However, none of those bills are expected to cause a signicant impact on the City’s nances. For example, the HB 7063 Tax Package which passed freezes local communications services tax rates at their current level until January 1, 2026.The City’s current local communications services tax rate is set at the statutory cap, leaving no room to increase the current rate.Another bi
	Some bills that failed which would have had a signicant impact on the City’s nances: 
	CB 682 and CS/HN 671 Residential Building Permits would have required local governments to reduce permit fees by 75% if an owner uses at private provider for plan review or inspection services. 
	HB 765 Building Permit Applications to Local Government would have imposed a permit fee reduction of 25% for each business day that a local government fails to notify a property owner of their permit expiration at least 60 days prior to the set expiration date. 
	SJR 122 and HJR 469 Constitutional Amendment: Revised Limitation on Increases of Homestead Property Tax Assessments would have provided for an amendment to the Florida Constitution by approval of the Florida voters.The bill, if approved by at least 60% of the voters, would have reduced the cap on the annual increases in assessed value of homestead properties from 3% to 2%. 
	CS/HB 401 and SB 604 Sovereign Immunity would have increased the statutory limits on liability for tort claims against local government from $200,000 per person and $300,000 per incident. CS/HB 401 would have increased the statutory caps to $2,500,000 per person and $5,000,000 per incident.SB 604 would have increased the statutory caps to $400,000 per person and $600,000 per incident. 
	Longterm Financial Planning.In Fiscal Year 2018, the City completed its Fiscal Year 2028 Strategic Value and Business Plan to provide a longterm strategic policy document, an operating and financial guide, and a financial modeling mechanism for the City of Weston. The plan included updated financial revenue, expense, and fund balance projections for all the City’s funds, affirmed existing financial policies and added new financial policies to support the City in the future.The major result from this documen
	During Fiscal Year 2023, the City began working on its next 10year Strategic Value and Business Plan to update the previous Plan with recent historical activity and expected shortterm events of significant impact.The updated Plan is completed and expected to be adopted in Fiscal Year 2024. 
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	Figure
	Significant Financial Policies.The 2028 Strategic Value and Business Plan affirmed the existing financial policies and some new financial policies were added.Of these financial policies, several were of note in the City’s financial operations during the fiscal year. 
	Strategic Policy #3 maintains a Disaster Management Reserve adjusted annually for the change in CPIand a Credit Reserve to maintain a AAA and Aaa credit rating with Standard and Poor’s and Moody’s respectively.This policy helps the City segregate which funds would be available for response to a disaster, which funds would be available to preserve the City’s credit ratings by creating a shock absorber against unforeseen financial events, and which funds would be available for stabilization of the ad valorem 
	Strategic Policy #8 develops an Infrastructure Reserve for annual contributions to be set aside each year for ongoing capital maintenance and equipment.This policy helps the City accrue small pro rata amounts to fund future maintenance and equipment expenses instead of funding the entire amount in that fiscal year.By spreading the financial responsibility equally across multiple fiscal years, no one fiscal year or set of taxpayers will be overburdened. 
	Strategic Policy #9 establishes guidelines and specific rules necessary in carrying out the City’s use of debt.Whenever practical and possible the City will attempt to match the length of financing with the useful life of the asset being financed.The City also will utilize borrowing to finance capital improvements or projects instead of the City’s Excess Revenue Capture Balances and whenever possible, use special assessment debt instead of general obligation debt. 
	Strategic Policy #10 provides framework for the investment activities of the City of Weston and establishes an operational guideline for its investment staff to follow.This applies to the City’s shortterm and longterm funds but does notincludebond proceeds which may be subject to restrictive covenants. 
	In Fiscal Year 2024, the City focused on executing its “Weston Forward” theme.The theme is related to the vision for tomorrow's Weston that takes shape as the City formalizes the 2034 Strategic Value and Business Plan.The theme was utilized in the City’s budgetsand in the City’scontinuous communications outreach.Furthermore, the City strove to meet the expectations of our residents, businesses, and stakeholders that our elected officials and staff would maintain the foundations upon which the City was built

	Awards and Acknowledgement 
	Awards and Acknowledgement 
	The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (“GFOA”) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Weston, Florida for its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022.This was the twentyfifth consecutive year that the City of Weston received this award.To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized Annual Comprehensive Financ
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	CITY-WIDE ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 
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	Government Finance Officers Association 


	Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 
	Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 
	Presented to 
	The City of Weston Florida 
	The City of Weston Florida 
	For its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report For the Fiscal Year Ended 
	September 30, 2022 
	Figure
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	INDEPENDENTAUDITOR’SREPORT 
	TotheHonorableMayor, CityCommissionersandCityManager CityofWeston,Florida 
	ReportontheAuditoftheFinancialStatements 
	Opinions 
	Wehaveauditedtheaccompanyingfinancialstatementsofthegovernmentalactivities,thebusiness typeactivities,eachmajorfund,andtheaggregateremainingfundinformationoftheCityofWeston, Florida (the “City”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financialstatements,whichcollectivelycomprisetheCity’sbasicfinancialstatementsaslistedinthe tableofcontents. 
	Inouropinion,thefinancialstatementsreferredtoabovepresentfairly,inallmaterialrespects,the respectivefinancialpositionofthegovernmentalactivities,thebusinesstypeactivities,eachmajorfund, andtheaggregateremainingfundinformationoftheCityasofSeptember30,2023,andtherespective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then ended in accordancewithaccountingprinciplesgenerallyacceptedintheUnitedStatesofAmerica. 
	BasisforOpinions 
	WeconductedourauditinaccordancewithauditingstandardsgenerallyacceptedintheUnitedStates ofAmericaandthestandardsapplicabletofinancialauditscontainedinGovernmentAuditingStandards, issuedbytheComptrollerGeneraloftheUnitedStates.Ourresponsibilitiesunderthosestandardsare furtherdescribedintheAuditor’sResponsibilitiesfortheAuditoftheFinancialStatementssectionof ourreport.WearerequiredtobeindependentoftheCity,andtomeetourotherethicalresponsibilities, inaccordancewiththerelevantethicalrequirementsrelatingtoouraudit
	ResponsibilitiesofManagementfortheFinancialStatements 
	Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordancewithaccountingprinciplesgenerallyacceptedintheUnitedStatesofAmerica,andforthe design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentationoffinancialstatementsthatarefreefrommaterialmisstatement,whetherduetofraudor error. 
	Inpreparingthefinancialstatements,managementisrequiredtoevaluatewhetherthereareconditions orevents,consideredintheaggregate,thatraisesubstantialdoubtabouttheCity’sabilitytocontinue 
	KMCcpa.com  | 6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308  Phone: 954.771.0896 Fax: 954.938.9353 Top 25 Accounting Firms | South Florida Business Journal Top 400 Accounting Firms in the U.S. | INSIDE Public Accounting 1 as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently knowninformationthatmayraisesubstantialdoubtshortlythereafter. 
	CityofWeston,Florida 
	  
	Auditor’sResponsibilitiesfortheAuditoftheFinancialStatements 
	Auditor’sResponsibilitiesfortheAuditoftheFinancialStatements 
	 Ourobjectivesaretoobtainreasonableassuranceaboutwhetherthefinancialstatementsasawhole arefreefrommaterialmisstatement,whetherduetofraudorerror,andtoissueanauditor’sreportthat includesouropinions.Reasonableassuranceisahighlevelofassurancebutisnotabsoluteassurance andthereforeisnotaguaranteethatanauditconductedinaccordancewithgenerallyacceptedauditing standardsandGovernmentAuditingStandardswillalwaysdetectamaterialmisstatementwhenitexists. Theriskofnotdetectingamaterialmisstatementresultingfromfraudishighert
	 
	 
	 

	TR
	 
	Exerciseprofessionaljudgmentandmaintainprofessionalskepticismthroughouttheaudit.  

	TR
	 
	Identifyandassesstherisksofmaterialmisstatementofthefinancialstatements,whether duetofraudorerror,anddesignandperformauditproceduresresponsivetothoserisks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosuresinthefinancialstatements. 

	TR
	 

	TR
	 
	Obtainanunderstandingofinternalcontrolrelevanttotheauditinordertodesignaudit proceduresthatareappropriateinthecircumstances,butnotforthepurposeofexpressing anopinionontheeffectivenessoftheCity’sinternalcontrol.Accordingly,nosuchopinionis expressed.  

	TR
	 
	Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentationofthefinancialstatements.  

	TR
	 
	Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,thatraisesubstantialdoubtabouttheCity’sabilitytocontinueasagoingconcern forareasonableperiodoftime.  


	Wearerequiredtocommunicatewiththosechargedwithgovernanceregarding,amongothermatters, theplannedscopeandtimingoftheaudit,significantauditfindings,andcertaininternalcontrolrelated mattersthatweidentifiedduringtheaudit.  

	RequiredSupplementaryInformation 
	RequiredSupplementaryInformation 
	 
	AccountingprinciplesgenerallyacceptedintheUnitedStatesofAmericarequirethatthemanagement’s discussionandanalysisonpages4through18and;thebudgetarycomparisonschedules,scheduleof theCity’sproportionateshareofthenetpensionliability,andscheduleofcontributionsonpages6268, be presented tosupplement the basic financialstatements.Such informationisthe responsibilityof managementand,althoughnotapartofthebasicfinancialstatements,isrequiredbytheGovernmental AccountingStandardsBoard,whoconsidersittobeanessentialpartoffin
	CityofWeston,Florida   

	SupplementaryInformation 
	SupplementaryInformation 
	 
	Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectivelycomprisetheCity’sbasicfinancialstatements.Theaccompanyingcombiningandindividual nonmajor fund financial statements and budgetary comparison schedules as listed in the table of contentsarepresentedforpurposesofadditionalanalysisandarenotarequiredpartofthebasic financialstatements.Suchinformationistheresponsibilityofmanagementandwasderivedfromand relates directly to the underlying accounting and other reco
	OtherInformation 
	 Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other informationcomprisestheintroductoryandstatisticalsectionsbutdoesnotincludethebasicfinancial statementsandourauditor’sreportthereon.Ouropinionsonthebasicfinancialstatementsdonot covertheotherinformation,andwedonotexpressanopinionoranyformofassurancethereon.  Inconnectionwithourauditofthebasicfinancialstatements,ourresponsibilityistoreadtheother informationandconsiderwhetheramaterialinconsistencyexistsbetweentheother
	 

	OtherReportingRequiredbyGovernmentAuditingStandards 
	OtherReportingRequiredbyGovernmentAuditingStandards 
	 InaccordancewithGovernmentAuditingStandards,wehavealsoissuedourreportdatedMarch28, 2024,onourconsiderationoftheCity’sinternalcontroloverfinancialreportingandonourtestsofits compliancewithcertainprovisionsoflaws,regulations,contracts,andgrantagreementsandother matters.Thepurposeofthatreportissolelytodescribethescopeofourtestingofinternalcontrolover financialreportingandcomplianceandtheresultsofthattesting,andnottoprovideanopiniononthe effectivenessoftheCity’sinternalcontroloverfinancialreportingoroncomplian
	   
	KEEFEMcCULLOUGH   FortLauderdale,Florida March28,2024  
	CityofWeston,Florida Management’sDiscussionandAnalysis September30,2023 
	  AsmanagementoftheCityofWeston,weofferreadersoftheCity’sfinancialstatementsthisnarrative overviewandanalysisofthefinancialactivitiesoftheCityfortheFiscalYearendedSeptember30,2023. We encourage the readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional informationthatwehavefurnishedinourletteroftransmittal,whichcanbefoundonpagesiviiofthis report. 
	 This report consists of governmentwide statements, fund financial statements, notes to the financial statements, combining schedules of nonmajor funds and supplementary information. The first several statementsarehighlycondensedandpresentagovernmentwideviewoftheCity’sfinances.Withinthis view,allCityoperationsarecategorizedandreportedaseithergovernmentalorbusinesstypeactivities. Governmentalactivitiesincludebasicservicessuchasmanagementandadministration,legal,police,fire and emergency medical services, comm
	 
	FiscalYear2023FinancialHighlights 
	 
	 
	 

	TR
	 
	TheCityofWeston’snetpositionatthecloseoftheFiscalYearis$376.59million.Of this amount, $135.30 million is unrestricted net position to be used to meet the government’songoingobligationstocitizensandcreditors.  

	TR
	 
	DuringtheFiscalYear,revenuesexceededexpensesby$14.61millionwhichisthe amountofincreaseintheCity’snetposition.  

	TR
	 
	AsofthecloseoftheFiscalYear,theCityofWeston’sgovernmentalfundsreporteda combined ending fund balance of $162.45 million. Approximately 24.3% of that amount, or $39.46 million, is unassigned and available for spending at the City’s discretion. 

	TR
	 

	TR
	 
	AttheendoftheFiscalYear,thefundbalanceintheGeneralFundwas$102.37million or203.4%oftotalGeneralFundexpenditures.Thisamountincludes$45.89million committedtoDisasterResponse.  

	TR
	 
	TheCityofWeston’stotaloutstandinglongtermliabilitiesdecreasedby$4.17million or16.1%fromprioryearduetoprincipalredemptionsandtheearlyredemptionof certainliabilitiespaidwithavailablefundbalance.  


	OverviewoftheFinancialStatements  
	ThisdiscussionandanalysisisintendedtoserveasanintroductiontotheCityofWeston’sbasicfinancial statements.ThefinancialsectionisonecomponentoftheAnnualComprehensiveFinancialReport.This report also includes the introductory section containing the letter of transmittal, GFOA certificate of achievement, City organizational chart, listing of City elected and appointed officials; and the statistical sectionwhichincludesfinancialandnonfinancialinformationusefulinassessingtheCity. 
	CityofWeston,Florida Management’sDiscussionandAnalysis September30,2023 
	  Thefinancialsectionconsistsof:management’sdiscussionandanalysis,basicfinancialstatements,required supplementaryinformationandanadditionalsectionthatpresentscombiningstatementsfornonmajor governmental funds and budgetary comparison schedules. The basic financial statements include componentsthatpresentdifferentviewsontheCity: 
	 
	 
	 

	TR
	 
	Thefirsttwostatementsaregovernmentwidefinancialstatementsthatprovideboth longtermandshortterminformationabouttheCity’soverallfinancialstatus.  

	TR
	 
	Theremainingstatementsarefundfinancialstatementsthatfocusonindividualparts oftheCitygovernmentbyreportingtheCity’soperationsinmoredetail.  

	TR
	The governmental funds statements illustrate how general governmental functionsandservicesarefinancedintheshorttermandwhatremainsforfuture 
	ExtraCharSpan


	TR
	spending.  

	TR
	The proprietary funds statements offer shortterm and longterm financial informationaboutactivitiesthatthegovernmentoperateslikeabusiness,suchas thewaterandsewersystem.  
	ExtraCharSpan


	TR
	 
	In addition to the governmentwide and fund financial statements, basic financial statementsalsoincludenotestothefinancialstatementsthatexplainthenumerical informationinmoredetail. 

	 
	 


	Thestatementsarefollowedbyasectionofrequiredsupplementaryinformationthatfurtherexplainsand supportstheinformationinthefinancialstatements.Lastly,thisreportalsoprovidesasectionofother financialinformationincludingcombiningstatementsthatdetailtheCity’snonmajorgovernmentalfunds.  Governmentwide financial statements.  The governmentwide financial statements are designed to providereaderswithabroadoverviewoftheCity’sfinancesinamannersimilartothatofaprivatebusiness. Thestatementofnetpositionpresentsinformationona
	 
	Both of the governmentwide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Weston that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functionsthatmerelyprovidecostrecoverythroughusagefeesandcharges(businesstypeactivities).The governmentalactivitiesoftheCityofWestonincludegeneralgovernment,publicsafety,publicworks,parks andrecreationandcommunitydevelopment.ThebusinesstypeactivitiesoftheCityofWestonincludethe waterandseweroperations.  Thegover
	CityofWeston,Florida Management’sDiscussionandAnalysis September30,2023 
	  Fundfinancialstatements.Afundisagroupingofrelatedaccountsthatisusedtomaintaincontrolover resourcesthathavebeensegregatedforspecificactivities.TheCityofWeston,likeotherstateandlocal governments,usesfundaccountingtoprovidecompliancewiththelawsoftheStateofFlorida.Allofthe fundsoftheCityofWestoncanbedividedintotwocategories:governmentalorproprietary.  Governmentalfunds.Governmentalfundsareusedtoaccountforfunctionssimilartothosereportedas governmentalactivitiesinthegovernmentwidefinancialstatements.However,unl
	 Proprietaryfundsprovidethesametypeofinformationasthegovernmentwidefinancialstatements,but inmoredetail.TheCityofWeston’sIndianTraceDevelopmentDistrictWaterandSewerProprietaryFund isconsideredamajorfundandthebasicfinancialstatementsforthefundareprovidedonpages27through 30ofthisreport. 
	CityofWeston,Florida Management’sDiscussionandAnalysis September30,2023   
	Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understandingofthedataprovidedinthegovernmentwideandfundfinancialstatements.Thenotesto thefinancialstatementscanbefoundonpages31through61ofthisreport.  Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presentscertainrequiredsupplementaryinformationconcerningtheCityofWeston’sadopted,amended andactualbudgetarydatafortheGeneralFundandmajorspecialrevenuefun
	 Asnotedearlier,netpositionmayserveovertimeasausefulindicatorofagovernment’sfinancialposition. TherearesixbasictransactionsthataffectthecomparabilityoftheStatementofNetPositionsummary presentationasreflectedbelow: 
	 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Netresultsofactivitieswillincreaseordecreasecurrentassetsandtotalnetposition.  

	2. 
	2. 
	Borrowingforcapitalwillincreasecurrentassetsandlongtermdebt.  

	3. 
	3. 
	Spendingborrowedproceedsonnewcapitalwillreducecurrentassetsandincreasecapital assets.Concurrently,anincreaseininvestmentincapitalassetsandanincreaseinnetrelated debtwillnotchangethenetinvestmentincapitalassetsoftheCity.  

	4. 
	4. 
	Spending of nonborrowed current assets on new capital will reduce current assets and increase capital assets. This will also reduce unrestricted net position and increase net investmentincapitalassets. 


	 
	5. 
	5. 
	5. 
	Principalpaymentondebtwillreducecurrentassetsandreducelongtermdebtandalso reduceunrestrictednetpositionandincreasenetinvestmentincapitalassets.  

	6. 
	6. 
	Reduction of capital assets through depreciation will reduce capital assets and net investmentincapitalassets. 
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	TABLE1 CITYOFWESTONNETPOSITION (inthousandsofdollars) 
	AsillustratedinTable1,atthecloseoftheFiscalYear,assetsanddeferredoutflowsofresourcesoftheCity 
	Governmental Activities FY23 FY22 
	Governmental Activities FY23 FY22 
	Governmental Activities FY23 FY22 
	BusinessType Activities FY23 FY22 
	FY23 
	Total 
	FY22 

	Assets: Currentandotherassets Capitalassets 
	Assets: Currentandotherassets Capitalassets 
	$ 
	190,369 158,041 
	$ 
	183,793 152,093 
	$ 
	15,215 44,072 
	$ 
	15,812 45,888 
	$ 
	205,584 202,113 
	$ 
	199,605 197,981 

	Totalassets 
	Totalassets 
	348,410 
	335,886 
	59,287 
	61,700 
	407,697 
	397,586 

	Totaldeferredoutflows ofresources 
	Totaldeferredoutflows ofresources 
	71 
	63 
	 
	 
	71 
	63 

	Liabilities: Otherliabilities Longtermliabilities outstanding 
	Liabilities: Otherliabilities Longtermliabilities outstanding 
	6,989 21,604 
	6,808 25,830 
	2,486 58 
	2,980  
	9,475 21,662 
	9,788 25,830 

	Totalliabilities 
	Totalliabilities 
	28,593 
	32,638 
	2,544 
	2,980 
	31,137 
	35,618 

	Totaldeferredinflows ofresources 
	Totaldeferredinflows ofresources 
	39 
	54 
	 
	 
	39 
	54 

	Netposition: Netinvestmentin capitalassets Restricted Unrestricted 
	Netposition: Netinvestmentin capitalassets Restricted Unrestricted 
	136,210 66,100 117,539 
	126,581 76,297 100,379 
	44,013  12,730 
	45,888  12,832 
	180,223 66,100 130,269 
	172,469 76,297 113,211 

	 
	 
	 
	Totalnetposition 
	$ 
	319,849 
	$ 
	303,257 
	$ 
	56,743 
	$ 
	58,720 
	$ 
	376,592 
	$ 
	361,977 
	 


	ofWestonexceededitsliabilitiesanddeferredinflowsofresourcesby$376.59million.Thelargestportion oftheCityofWeston’snetposition,$175.19millionor46.5%,isinvestedincapitalassets(land,buildings, etc.); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. Although the City of Weston’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselvescannot
	 Theunrestrictednetpositioninanamountof$135.30millionor35.93%oftotalnetpositionrepresentsthe resourcesthatareavailabletoprovideservicesand/oradditionalcapitalassetsfortheCityandalsotomeet theCity’sobligationstoitscreditors.TheCityalsohasapproximately$66.1millionor17.6%oftotalnet positioninrestrictednetposition;resourcesthathaveexternallyenforcedlimitationsonuse.  AttheendoftheFiscalYear,theCityofWestonisabletoreportpositivebalancesinallthreecategoriesof netposition,bothforthegovernmentasawhole,aswellasforit
	CityofWeston,Florida Management’sDiscussionandAnalysis September30,2023 
	  Businesstype activities have positive balances in net investment in capital assets and unrestricted net position,withzerobalanceinrestrictednetposition.  Thegovernment’snetpositionincreasedbyapproximately$14.61millionduringtheFiscalYear.  Generally, the following impacts can significantly affect annual revenues and by extension change net position:  
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Economicconditionscanreflectagrowing,stableordecliningoveralleconomicenvironment andthoseconditionscanhaveasignificantimpactontheunderlyingdriversofadvalorem taxes,nonadvaloremassessments,salesandusetaxes,feesandotherrevenuesderived fromthecommunity,aswellasthosereceivedfromothergovernments.  

	2. 
	2. 
	Changesintax,assessmentandfeeratesbytheelectedofficialsdirectlyaffectthemost 


	fundamentalrevenuestreamsandhavethemostimmediateimpactofallchanges.  
	3. Changing patterns in grant and state revenue sharing calculations may cause significant deviations to City intergovernmental revenues and put added pressure on Citygenerated revenues.  
	4. Marketimpactoninvestmentincomemightcauseinvestmentrevenuestofluctuatewidely fromyeartoyear.  
	Someotherbasicimpactsareresponsibleforpotentialchangesinannualexpenses:  
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Introduction of new programs can have substantial impact on department/program expensesbyrequiringnewpersonnel,capitalandoperatingfunds.  

	2. 
	2. 
	Changesinservicelevelsimpactsexpensesbychangingthelevelsofalreadyappropriated 


	expenses.  
	3. Salary/contract pricing increases can contribute to increased expenses. Most contracts entered into by the City of Weston have provisions for increases, either automatic or negotiatedeachyear. 
	 
	4. Inflation impacts the prices the City pays for commodities, supplies, fuels, parts and miscellaneousservicesitrequiresthroughtheyear. 
	 Governmentalactivities.AsillustratedbyTable2,theCity’srevenuesfromgovernmentalactivitiesduring FiscalYear2023were$119.44millionandexceededexpensesby$16.59million.  Revenuesfromgovernmentalactivitiestotaled$119.44million,anincreaseof$20.23millionfromprior year.Thisincreaseisprimarilyduetothechangeinunrealizedinvestmentgainastreasuryyieldsstabilized aftermultipleyearsofrisingyieldswhichnegativelyimpactedtheCity’sinvestmentportfolio.  Expensesfromgovernmentalactivitiestotaled$102.848million,anincreaseof$6.62m
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	TABLE2 
	TABLE2 

	CITYOFWESTONNETPOSITION 
	CITYOFWESTONNETPOSITION 

	(inthousandsofdollars) 
	(inthousandsofdollars) 

	Governmental 
	Governmental 
	BusinessType 

	Activities 
	Activities 
	Activities 
	Total 

	FY23 
	FY23 
	FY22 
	FY23 
	FY22 
	FY23 
	FY22 

	Revenues: 
	Revenues: 

	ProgramRevenues: 
	ProgramRevenues: 

	Chargesforservices 
	Chargesforservices 
	$ 50,822 
	$ 49,326 
	$ 36,249 
	$ 34,621 
	$ 87,071 
	$ 83,947 

	Capitalgrantsand 
	Capitalgrantsand 

	contributions 
	contributions 
	 
	86 
	 
	 
	 
	86 

	Operatinggrants 
	Operatinggrants 

	andcontributions 
	andcontributions 
	607 
	10,147 
	 
	 
	607 
	10,147 

	GeneralRevenues: 
	GeneralRevenues: 

	Propertytaxes 
	Propertytaxes 
	33,806 
	30,577 
	 
	 
	33,806 
	30,577 

	Franchisetaxesandutility 
	Franchisetaxesandutility 

	taxes 
	taxes 
	16,817 
	15,096 
	 
	 
	16,817 
	15,096 

	Intergovernmental 
	Intergovernmental 
	12,369 
	7,921 
	 
	 
	12,369 
	7,921 

	Investmentincome(loss) Otherrevenues 
	Investmentincome(loss) Otherrevenues 
	3,819 1,200 
	(15,538) 1,594 
	247  
	(1,002)  
	4,066 1,200 
	(16,540) 1,594 

	Totalrevenues 
	Totalrevenues 
	119,440 
	99,209 
	36,496 
	33,619 
	155,936 
	132,828 

	Expenses: 
	Expenses: 

	Generalgovernment 
	Generalgovernment 
	8,216 
	8,085 
	 
	 
	8,216 
	8,085 

	Publicsafety 
	Publicsafety 
	52,094 
	50,365 
	 
	 
	52,094 
	50,365 

	Publicworks 
	Publicworks 
	24,575 
	22,015 
	 
	 
	24,575 
	22,015 

	Parksandrecreation 
	Parksandrecreation 
	11,712 
	10,481 
	 
	 
	11,712 
	10,481 

	Communitydevelopment 
	Communitydevelopment 
	5,759 
	4,630 
	 
	 
	5,759 
	4,630 

	Interestonlongtermdebt 
	Interestonlongtermdebt 
	492 
	655 
	 
	 
	492 
	655 

	Waterandseweroperations 
	Waterandseweroperations 
	 
	 
	38,473 
	38,160 
	38,473 
	38,160 

	Totalexpenses 
	Totalexpenses 
	102,848 
	96,231 
	38,473 
	38,160 
	141,321 
	134,391 

	Changeinnetposition 
	Changeinnetposition 
	16,592 
	2,978 
	(1,977) 
	(4,541) 
	14,615 
	(1,563) 

	NetPosition,BeginningofYear 
	NetPosition,BeginningofYear 
	303,257 
	300,279 
	58,720 
	63,261 
	361,977 
	363,540 

	TR
	NetPosition,EndofYear 
	$ 319,849 
	$ 303,257 
	$ 56,743 
	$ 58,720 
	$ 376,592 
	$ 361,977 

	 
	 
	 
	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	TD
	Figure

	 

	 
	 


	0.0% Propertytaxes 29.2% Franchise feesand utilitytaxes 14.5% Operatinggrants &contributions Chargesfor services 44.0% Intergovernmental 10.7% 
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	FIGUREA REVENUESBYSOURCEGOVERNMENTALACTIVITIES 
	 
	Capitalgrants& contributions 
	Other 
	Other 
	0.5% 

	revenues 1.0% 
	 

	 *Thetableabovedoesnotincludeinvestmentincome(loss)  
	FIGUREB EXPENSESBYFUNCTIONGOVERNMENTALACTIVITIES  
	Interestonlongterm Generalgovernment debtandfiscalcharges 8.0% 0.5% 
	Parksandrecreation 11.4% 
	Publicworks 23.9% 
	Figure

	Publicsafety 50.7% 
	Community development 5.6% 
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	 Businesstypeactivities.BusinesstypeactivitiesdecreasedtheCity’snetpositionby$1.98millionfromthe priorperiod.AttheendofFiscalYear2023,netpositionfrombusinesstypeactivitiescomposed15.1%of total governmentwide net position. For the Fiscal Year, revenues totaled $36.49 million and included operating revenues and nonoperating revenues in the form of water and sewer fees, meter use fees, connectionfees,investmentincome,andmiscellaneousrevenue.TheCityoperatesthewaterandsewer utilitysystemina“chargeforservices”man
	 
	FIGUREC BUSINESSBYSOURCEBUSINESSTYPEACTIVITIES  
	Chargesforservices 100.0% 
	P
	*Thetableabovedoesnotincludeinvestmentincome(loss) 
	 FinancialAnalysisoftheGovernment’sFunds  Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Weston’s governmental funds statements is to provide informationonnearterminflows,outflowsandbalancesofexpendableresources. Suchinformationis usefulinassessingtheCity’sfinancingrequirements.Inparticular,unassignedfundbalancemayserveasa usefulmeasureofagovernment’snetresourcesavailableforspendingattheendofafiscalyear.  AsoftheendoftheFiscalYear,theCityofWeston’sgovernmentalfundsreportedacombinedendingfund balanceof$162.45m
	CityofWeston,Florida Management’sDiscussionandAnalysis September30,2023 
	  
	TheGeneralFundisthechiefoperatingfundoftheCityofWeston.AttheendofFiscalYear2023,totalfund balance was $102.37 million, with $857,712 of that nonspendable, $75,150 restricted for telecommunicationsmaintenance,gaslinemaintenanceandOpioidfunding,$61.39millioncommittedfor specificpurposessuchasdisasterresponseandinfrastructure,and$449,040assignedforotherpurposes.  ThefundbalanceoftheCityofWeston’sGeneralFundincreasedby$9.73millionduringtheFiscalYear whiletotalrevenuesincreasedby$8.92millionfromprioryearto$65.99
	 ThemajorchangesintheGeneralFundrevenueandexpenditurelevelsbetweenFiscalYears2022and2023 
	were: 
	were: 
	were: 

	 
	 

	Revenues: 
	Revenues: 

	 
	 

	  
	  
	Investmentincomerevenueshaveincreasedby$11.25millionor121.3%fromprioryear. Thisincreaseisprimaryduetotheunrealizedinvestmentgainastreasuryyieldsstabilized aftermultipleyearsofrisingyieldswhichnegativelyimpactedtheCity’sinvestmentportfolio. 

	  
	  
	Intergovernmentalrevenueshavedecreasedby$7.62millionor46.9%fromprioryeardue totheonetimeAmericanRescuePlanActof2021(ARPA)revenuesrecognizedinFY2022. TheCitydidnotreceiveanylargefederalfundsinFY2023. 

	 
	 
	Taxesandassessmentsrevenueshaveincreasedby$5.00millionor11.0%fromprioryearto $50.59millionduetotheincreaseinpropertyvaluesalongwiththeelectricutilitytaxesand franchisefeesfromelectricityusage.Thedemandforpeopletoworkfromhomecontinued. Thisresultedinanincreaseinelectricityusagefromsuburbanresidentialcommunitiessuch asWeston. 

	 
	 


	Expenditures:  
	 Capitaloutlayexpenditureshaveincreasedby$1.49millionor408.2%fromprioryearto $1.85 million primarily due to the implementation and reporting of GASB 96 for subscriptionbasedassets. 
	 
	 CommunityDevelopmentexpenditureshaveincreasedby$560,360or52.7%fromprior year to $1.62 million due to residents and business owners applying for development permits to improve existing homes and business facilities. This demand increased the City’sexpendituresforcivilenvironmentalengineer,codeenforcementservices,planning services,trafficengineering,andzoningservices. 
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	TABLE3 COMPARISONOFGENERALFUNDREVENUES&EXPENDITURES (inthousandsofdollars) 
	Table3 ComparisonofGeneralFundRevenues&Expenditures 
	YearEndedSeptember30, Increase(Decrease) 2023 2022 
	Dollars Percentage 

	Revenues: Taxesandassessments $ 50,593 $ 45,597 $ 4,996 11.0% Businesstaxreceipts 940 967 (27) 2.8% Permitsandfees 227 424 (197) 46.5% Intergovernmental 8,629 16,245 (7,616) 46.9% Chargesforservices 2,331 1,938 393 20.3% Finesandforfeitures 405 464 (59) 12.7% Investmentincome 1,977 (9,269) 11,246 121.3% Otherrevenues 702 26.6% 
	889 
	187 

	Totalrevenues 65,991 57,068 15.6% 
	Totalrevenues 65,991 57,068 15.6% 
	8,923 

	Expenditures: Current: Generalgovernment 6,425 6,834 (409) 6.0% Publicsafety 30,347 29,737 610 2.1% Parksandrecreation 9,805 8,934 871 9.7% Communitydevelopment 1,622 1,062 560 52.7% Capitaloutlay 1,850 364 1,486 408.2% Debtservice 100.0% 
	286  286 


	Totalexpenditures 50,335 46,931 $ 7.3% 
	Totalexpenditures 50,335 46,931 $ 7.3% 
	3,404 

	Excessofrevenues overexpenditures 15,656 10,137 
	Otherfinancingsources(uses): Subscriptionbasedproceeds 517  Transfersout (15,178) 
	(6,440) 

	Totalotherfinancing sources(uses) (5,923) (15,178) 

	Netchangeinfundbalance $ 9,733 $ (5,041) 
	Netchangeinfundbalance $ 9,733 $ (5,041) 
	 TheIndianTraceDevelopmentDistrictSpecialRevenueFunddecreaseditsfundbalanceby$2.35million,or approximately9.0%offundbalanceatbeginningoftheyear,toatotalof$23.73millionwithallofthefund balancerestricted.Thefundaccountsforrestrictedresourcesusedtoprovidestormwatermanagement andrightofwayservicesotherthanroadstotheDistrict.Thisdecreaseinfundbalanceisduetofunds transferredouttopayforcapitaloutlayprojectsrelatedtotheFDEP’sResilientFloridaProgramsuchasthe stormwaterenhancementproject.  TheBonaventureDevelopmentDi
	CityofWeston,Florida Management’sDiscussionandAnalysis September30,2023 
	  TheFireDistrictSpecialRevenueFunddecreaseditsfundbalanceby$1.68million,orapproximately102.3% offundbalanceatbeginningoftheyear,toatotalof$37,189.Aportionofthefundbalance,$87,107isin nonspendable form and$124,296 is unassigned at the end of the fiscal year. The fund accounts for restrictedresourcesusedtoprovidefireprotectionandpreventionservices.Thisdecreaseinfundbalance isduetofundstransferredouttopayforthefireenginesintheCommunityFacilitiesConstructionCapital ProjectsFund. 
	 
	TheIndianTraceDevelopmentDistrictDebtServiceFundsincreasedtheirfundbalancesby$172,415,or 4.5%offundbalancesatbeginningoftheyear,toatotalof$4.03millionwiththecumulativefundbalances restricted.Thefundsaccountforfinancialresourcesthatarerestrictedforprincipalandinterest.Thefund balancedecreasedduetoscheduledquarterlydebtpaymentsmadeduringtheyear.  TheDebtServiceFunddecreaseditsfundbalanceby$363,155or100.0%offundbalanceatbeginningof theyear,toatotalof$0.Thefundaccountsforfinancialresourcesthatarerestrictedforpr
	TheCommunityFacilitiesConstructionCapitalProjectsFundaccountsforCitywidecapitalprojectneeds, suchasforpublicsafetyorparksandrecreation.TheFundexperiencedanincreaseinfundbalanceof$6.97 million, or 99.6% of fund balance at beginning of the year, to a total of $13.97 million. Fund balance increasedbecauseoftransfersinfromotherfundstofinancecertaincapitaloutlayprojectsthathadyetto startinFiscalYear2023.  TheCityalsomaintainsseveralnonmajorfundswhicharespecialrevenuefundsthatareusedtoaccount forstreetandrightofw
	 
	Proprietaryfunds.TheCityofWestonmaintainsonlyasingleproprietaryfundthatisusedtoaccountfor the operations of the Indian Trace Development District water and sewer system. The statements of proprietaryfundsprovidethesametypeofinformationfoundinthegovernmentwidefinancialstatements, butinmoredetail.  NetpositionoftheIndianTraceDevelopmentDistrictWaterandSewerProprietaryFunddecreasedby$1.98 million,or3.4%,toatotalof$56.74million.Otherfactorsconcerningthefinancesofthisfundhavealready beenaddressedinthediscussiono
	GeneralFundBudgetaryHighlights 
	 AsrequiredbySection4.04oftheCityCharterandFloridaStatutesSection166.241,theCityCommission adoptstheannualbudgetandanyamendments.  TheAnnualComprehensiveFinancialReportstatesfundscommittedfordisasterresponseintheGeneral Fund;however,theadopted,amendedandfinalbudgetsreportfundscommittedfordisasterresponseina separatefund.Therefore,whencomparingtheGeneralFundresultstothebudget,itisbesttousethe combinedbudgetcomparisonschedulelocatedonpage63intheAnnualComprehensiveFinancialReport. 
	   
	CityofWeston,Florida Management’sDiscussionandAnalysis September30,2023 
	 
	 TheoriginalandfinaladoptedGeneralFundbudgetanticipatedauseoffundbalanceof$377,600and $98,500respectively.  Actual revenues exceeded final budget revenues by $6.82 million and the main differences can be summarizedasfollows: 
	 
	 
	Intergovernmental revenue exceeded the original and final budget by $1.82 million as a primaryresultofincreasedsalestaxesrevenueduetoinflationarypricesforgoodsin2023.  
	 Franchisefeeandutilitytaxesexceededtheoriginalandfinalbudgetby$2.76millionbecause ofelectricutilitytaxesandfranchisefeesfromelectricityusage.Thedemandforpeopleto work from home continued. This resulted in an increase in utility usage from suburban residentialcommunitiessuchasWeston. 
	 Actualexpenditureswerelowerthanthefinalbudgetprojectionsby$3.47million.Thebudgettoactual variationswereduetoseveralfactors. 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	 
	Publicsafetyexpenditureswerelowerthanthefinalbudgetby$1.75millionduetovacancy creditsforpoliceandfireandreimbursementsforSchoolResourceOfficersfromtheSchool BoardofBrowardCounty. 

	TR
	 
	 
	Financeandadministrationexpenditureswerelowerthanthefinalbudgetby$1.23million asaresultofreducedspendingforadministrativeservices. 


	CapitalAssetandDebtAdministration 
	 Capitalassets.TheCityofWeston’snetinvestmentincapitalassetsforitsgovernmentalandbusinesstype activitiestotals$175.19millionor46.5%oftotalnetposition.Thisinvestmentincapitalassetsincludes land,infrastructure,buildings,landimprovements,machineryandequipment,subscriptionbasedassets andconstructioninprogress.Table4presentsthegovernmentalandbusinesstypecapitalassets,netof accumulateddepreciation,bycategoryforFiscalYears2022and2023.  DuringFiscalYear2023,theCityconstructedoracquiredseveralcapitalassets.Majorcapi
	 
	 Completion of the WiFi Upgrade, Racquet Club Construction, Pump Station SCADA Replacement,LakesideSidewalkImprovement,BattingCageReplacement,TrafficSignage Rehabilitation,SteetLightPoleUpgrades,andLiftStationRehabilitation. 
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	TABLE4 CAPITALASSETS (inthousandsofdollars) 
	Governmental BusinessType Activities Activities Total 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 
	Land $ 73,588 $ 73,588 $  $  $ 73,588 $ 73,588 Constructioninprogress 6,568 3,013 5  6,573 3,013 Infrastructure,net 24,804 26,574 43,205 45,573 68,009 72,147 Buildingsand improvements,net 34,224 35,446 268 177 34,492 35,623 Landimprovements,net 10,773 10,031   10,773 10,031 Machineryand equipment,net 3,441 594 138 
	8,084 
	8,678 3,579 

	Totalcapitalassets $ $ $ 44,072 $ 45,888 $ $ 
	Totalcapitalassets $ $ $ 44,072 $ 45,888 $ $ 
	158,041 
	152,093 
	202,113 
	197,981 

	 
	AdditionalinformationontheCity’scapitalassetscanbefoundinNote6ofthisreport.  Longtermdebt.AttheendoftheFiscalYear,theCityofWeston’stotaloutstandingdebtwas$20.89 millioninnotespayableandsubscriptionbasedagreementspayableandsecuredbynonadvalorem revenues.TheCityactsasanagentinthecollectionofassessmentsandremittanceofdebtservice paymentsfornoobligationspecialassessmentnotesheldbytheIndianTraceDevelopmentDistrict. Asofthefiscalyearend,notespayabletotaled$20.49millionandpayablesfromsubscriptionbased agreementsto
	TABLE5 NOTESPAYABLE&REVENUEBONDS (inthousandsofdollars) 
	Governmental Activities 2023 2022 
	Governmental Activities 2023 2022 
	Governmental Activities 2023 2022 
	BusinessType Activities 2023 2022 
	2023 
	T
	otal 
	2022 

	Notespayable Loanspayable 
	Notespayable Loanspayable 
	$ 
	20,485  
	$ 
	25,300  
	$ 
	  
	$ 
	  
	$ 
	20,485 $  
	25,300  

	Totals 
	Totals 
	$ 
	20,485 
	$ 
	25,300 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	20,485 
	$ 
	25,300 
	 


	MoredetailedinformationabouttheCity’slongtermliabilitiesispresentedinNote7ofthisreport.  Impactofeconomicfactorsonthisyear’sandnextyear’sbudgets  DuringFiscalYear2023,propertyvaluescontinuedtorisewhichprovidedtheconfidencetoagainpropose nomillagerateincreaseforthefifthconsecutiveyearwhilecontinuingtobringinmoreadvaloremtax dollars.Statesharedrevenuesandhalfcentsalestaxeswereagainstrongerthanprojectedforthethird consecutiveyear.ThesesourceshelpedtosupportGeneralFundexpenses,predominantlyrelatedtopublic safet
	CityofWeston,Florida Management’sDiscussionandAnalysis September30,2023 
	itsParksandRecreationMasterPlananditsStrategicValueandBusinessPlaninFiscalYear2024andthe CityisintheearlystagesofdevelopingaStormwaterMasterPlanandaWaterandWastewaterMaster Plan.TheseplanswillhelptheCitynavigatethecurrentandfutureeconomicenvironmentswhileproviding infrastructuremaintenanceandenhancementsinanefficientandeffectivemethod. 
	Inflationhassubsidedsignificantlysincelastyear,whichhashelpedrelievepressureonthecostofgoods andservices;however,theCitycontinuestooperateunderthepressureofmeetingtheexpectationsofits stakeholdersinanenvironmentofhigherpricesforgoodsandservices.Elevatedlevelsofinterestrateswill alsoplacepressureontheCity’sfinancesasinfrastructuremaintenanceandenhancementsbecomemore necessaryoverthecomingyears.Westonwillcontinuetorelyheavilyonitsfinancialdisciplineandlean operatingstructuretonavigatethecurrenteconomicchallen
	InFiscalYear2023,theCity’sAdoptedBudgetthemewas"Plan–PrepareProceed"whichwasmeantto provideanopportunitytolaythegroundworkforthenextquartercentury.Thebudgetalsocontinuesthe commitmenttosustainingastableandsoundfinancialenvironmentthatwillenabletheCitytomaintain andenhancethephysicalandoperatinginfrastructures. 
	The City’s Fiscal Year 2024 budget theme is "Weston Forward." This theme is meant to provide an opportunityfortomorrow'sWestontotakeshapeastheCitypreparestoformalizethe2034StrategicValue and Business Plan. The Fiscal Year 2024 budget maintains services at their current levels or increases services,providesforcontinuingimprovementsintheCity’sinfrastructures,andmaintainstheCity’sAaa creditratingfromMoody’sandAAAratingfromStandardandPoor’sthatarevaluableinobtainingthemost favorableborrowingratesandtermsforprop
	TheFiscalYear2024budgetmaintainedtheadvaloremmillagerateat3.3464mils.TheCity’sgrosstaxable valueincreasedby8.03%abovetheFiscalYear2023grosstaxablevalueto$11,386,666,958inclusiveofany newconstructionandimprovementstoexistingpropertiesappearingonthetaxrollforthefirsttime. 
	TheFiscalYear2024budgetrevenuesare$177,600,500andbudgetexpendituresare$177,587,000witha projectednetincreaseinfundbalanceat$292,600.TheGeneralFundbudgetrevenuesare$64,369,500 and budget expenditures are $56,253,500 with a projected increase in revenue of $1,120,100 and an additional$279,100transferredinfromtheFireFundand$7,275,000transferredouttoCapitalProjects Fundtofinancecertainprojects. 
	RequestsforInformation 
	ThisfinancialreportisdesignedtoprovideageneraloverviewoftheCityofWeston’sfinancesforallthose withaninterestinthisgovernment’sfinances.Questionsconcerninganyoftheinformationprovidedinthis reportorrequestsforadditionalinformationshouldbeaddressedtotheCityofWeston,17200RoyalPalm Boulevard,Weston,Florida33326. 
	BASICFINANCIALSTATEMENTS 
	CityofWeston,Florida StatementofNetPosition September30,2023 
	Governmental Activities 
	Governmental Activities 
	Governmental Activities 
	PrimaryGovernment Businesstype Activities 
	Total 

	Assets: 
	Assets: 

	Currentassets: 
	Currentassets: 

	Cashandcashequivalents Investments Restrictedassets: 
	Cashandcashequivalents Investments Restrictedassets: 
	$ 
	7,826,697 155,608,454 
	$ 
	589,824 7,716,144 
	$ 
	8,416,521 163,324,598 

	Restrictedinvestments Assessmentsreceivable,current Receivables: 
	Restrictedinvestments Assessmentsreceivable,current Receivables: 
	 4,885,252 
	2,204,585  
	2,204,585 4,885,252 

	Accountsreceivable,net Interestreceivable Prepaidcosts Inventories 
	Accountsreceivable,net Interestreceivable Prepaidcosts Inventories 
	4,009,416 957,722 1,481,124  
	4,331,492 84,230 241,220 47,365 
	8,340,908 1,041,952 1,722,344 47,365 

	Totalcurrentassets 
	Totalcurrentassets 
	174,768,665 
	15,214,860 
	189,983,525 

	Noncurrentassets: 
	Noncurrentassets: 

	Assessmentsreceivable,restricted Nondepreciablecapitalassets Depreciablecapitalassets,net 
	Assessmentsreceivable,restricted Nondepreciablecapitalassets Depreciablecapitalassets,net 
	15,599,681 80,156,287 77,885,048 
	 5,424 44,066,347 
	15,599,681 80,161,711 121,951,395 

	Totalnoncurrentassets 
	Totalnoncurrentassets 
	173,641,016 
	44,071,771 
	217,712,787 

	Totalassets 
	Totalassets 
	348,409,681 
	59,286,631 
	407,696,312 

	DeferredOutflowsofResources: 
	DeferredOutflowsofResources: 

	FRSPension 
	FRSPension 
	70,947 
	 
	70,947 

	Totaldeferredoutflowsofresources 
	Totaldeferredoutflowsofresources 
	70,947 
	 
	70,947 

	Liabilities: 
	Liabilities: 

	Currentliabilities: 
	Currentliabilities: 

	Accountspayableandaccruedliabilities Unearnedrevenues Contractsandretainagepayable Deposits Customerdeposits,payablefromrestrictedassets Accruedinterestpayable,payablefromrestrictedassets Noncurrentliabilitiesduewithinoneyear 
	Accountspayableandaccruedliabilities Unearnedrevenues Contractsandretainagepayable Deposits Customerdeposits,payablefromrestrictedassets Accruedinterestpayable,payablefromrestrictedassets Noncurrentliabilitiesduewithinoneyear 
	5,009,335 204,873 940,834 758,760  74,497 5,375,307 
	280,629    2,204,585  59,153 
	5,289,964 204,873 940,834 758,760 2,204,585 74,497 5,434,460 

	Totalcurrentliabilities 
	Totalcurrentliabilities 
	12,363,606 
	2,544,367 
	14,907,973 

	Noncurrentliabilities: 
	Noncurrentliabilities: 

	Netpensionliability Dueinmorethanoneyear 
	Netpensionliability Dueinmorethanoneyear 
	264,514 15,964,072 
	  
	264,514 15,964,072 

	Totalnoncurrentliabilities 
	Totalnoncurrentliabilities 
	16,228,586 
	 
	16,228,586 

	Totalliabilities 
	Totalliabilities 
	28,592,192 
	2,544,367 
	31,136,559 

	DeferredInflowsofResources: 
	DeferredInflowsofResources: 

	FRSpension 
	FRSpension 
	39,146 
	 
	39,146 

	Totaldeferredinflowsofresources 
	Totaldeferredinflowsofresources 
	39,146 
	 
	39,146 

	NetPosition: 
	NetPosition: 

	Netinvestmentincapitalassets Restrictedfor: 
	Netinvestmentincapitalassets Restrictedfor: 
	136,210,162 
	44,012,618 
	 
	180,222,780 

	Operationsandmaintenance Publictransportationandroadimprovements Lawenforcement Buildingcodeenforcementandservicescontract Telecommunicationsmaintenance Gaslinemaintenance FloridaPlanOpioidsettlementfunds Debtservice Unrestricted 
	Operationsandmaintenance Publictransportationandroadimprovements Lawenforcement Buildingcodeenforcementandservicescontract Telecommunicationsmaintenance Gaslinemaintenance FloridaPlanOpioidsettlementfunds Debtservice Unrestricted 
	29,385,898 9,127,169 678,853 2,391,723 25,000 25,000 25,150 24,440,899 117,539,436 
	        12,729,646 
	29,385,898 9,127,169 678,853 2,391,723 25,000 25,000 25,150 24,440,899 130,269,082 

	Totalnetposition 
	Totalnetposition 
	$ 
	319,849,290 
	$ 56,742,264 
	$ 
	376,591,554 


	Theaccompanyingnotestothefinancialstatementsareanintegralpartofthesestatements.  19 
	CityofWeston,Florida StatementofActivities FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	NetRevenueand(Expense) 
	NetRevenueand(Expense) 
	NetRevenueand(Expense) 

	ProgramRevenues 
	ProgramRevenues 
	ChangesinNetPosition 

	PrimaryGovernment 
	PrimaryGovernment 

	TR
	Operating 
	Capital 
	Business 

	TR
	Chargesfor 
	Grantsand 
	Grantsand 
	Governmental 
	type 

	Functions/Programs 
	Functions/Programs 
	Expenses 
	Services 
	Contributions 
	Contributions 
	Activities 
	Activities 
	Total 

	Primarygovernment: 
	Primarygovernment: 

	Governmentalactivities: 
	Governmentalactivities: 

	Generalgovernment 
	Generalgovernment 
	$ 8,216,022 
	$ 1,888,144 
	$  
	$  
	$ 
	(6,327,878) $  
	$ 
	(6,327,878) 

	Publicsafety 
	Publicsafety 
	52,093,991 
	17,729,405 
	396,164 
	 
	(33,968,422) 
	 
	(33,968,422) 

	Publicworks 
	Publicworks 
	24,574,931 
	25,246,586 
	 
	 
	671,655 
	 
	671,655 

	Parksandrecreation 
	Parksandrecreation 
	11,712,386 
	730,863 
	210,919 
	 
	(10,770,604) 
	 
	(10,770,604) 

	Communitydevelopment 
	Communitydevelopment 
	5,757,810 
	4,661,951 
	 
	 
	(1,095,859) 
	 
	(1,095,859) 

	Interestonlongtermdebtand 
	Interestonlongtermdebtand 

	fiscalcharges 
	fiscalcharges 
	491,964 
	565,109 
	 
	 
	73,145 
	 
	73,145 

	Totalgovernmental 
	Totalgovernmental 

	activities 
	activities 
	102,847,104 
	50,822,058 
	607,083 
	 
	(51,417,963) 
	 
	(51,417,963) 

	Businesstypeactivities: 
	Businesstypeactivities: 

	Waterandsewer 
	Waterandsewer 
	38,473,493 
	36,248,651 
	 
	 
	 
	(2,224,842) 
	(2,224,842) 

	Totalbusinesstype 
	Totalbusinesstype 

	activities 
	activities 
	38,473,493 
	36,248,651 
	 
	 
	 
	(2,224,842) 
	(2,224,842) 

	Totalprimary 
	Totalprimary 

	government 
	government 
	$ 141,320,597 
	$ 87,070,709 
	$ 607,083 
	$  
	(51,417,963) 
	(2,224,842) 
	(53,642,805) 

	TR
	Generalrevenues: 

	TR
	Taxes: 

	TR
	Propertytaxes 
	33,805,455 
	 
	33,805,455 

	TR
	Franchisefeesandutilitytaxes 
	16,817,158 
	 
	16,817,158 

	TR
	Intergovernmental 
	12,368,709 
	 
	12,368,709 

	TR
	Investmentincome(loss) 
	3,818,583 
	246,890 
	4,065,473 

	TR
	 Otherrevenues 
	1,199,629 
	 
	1,199,629 

	TR
	Totalgeneralrevenues 
	68,009,534 
	246,890 
	68,256,424 

	TR
	Changeinnetposition 
	16,591,571 
	(1,977,952) 
	14,613,619 

	TR
	Netposition,beginningofyear 
	303,257,719 
	 58,720,216 
	361,977,935 

	TR
	Netposition,endofyear 
	$ 319,849,290 
	$ 56,742,264 
	$ 376,591,554 

	TR
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	CityofWeston,Florida BalanceSheetGovernmentalFunds September30,2023 
	MajorFunds 
	MajorFunds 
	MajorFunds 

	SpecialRevenueFunds 
	SpecialRevenueFunds 

	General Fund 
	General Fund 
	IndianTrace Development DistrictFund 
	Bonaventure Development DistrictFund 
	FireServices Fund 

	Assets: 
	Assets: 

	Cashandcashequivalents Investments Receivables: 
	Cashandcashequivalents Investments Receivables: 
	$ 
	5,625,322 95,150,883 
	$ 
	822,182 23,704,839 
	$ 
	259,283 5,580,552 
	$ 
	  

	Assessmentsreceivable 
	Assessmentsreceivable 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Accountsreceivable,net Interestreceivable Prepaidcosts Duefromotherfunds 
	Accountsreceivable,net Interestreceivable Prepaidcosts Duefromotherfunds 
	3,651,793 539,298 857,712 121,583 
	116,869 188,546 410,822  
	24,505 38,456 68,993  
	4,793 65,226 87,107  

	Totalassets 
	Totalassets 
	$ 
	105,946,591 
	$ 
	25,243,258 
	$ 5,971,789 
	$ 
	157,126 

	Liabilities: Accountspayableandaccruedliabilities Unearnedrevenues Contractsandretainagepayable Duetootherfunds Deposits 
	Liabilities: Accountspayableandaccruedliabilities Unearnedrevenues Contractsandretainagepayable Duetootherfunds Deposits 
	$ 
	2,035,003 204,873 57,676  758,760 
	$ 
	1,513,610     
	$ 240,169     
	$ 
	15,056  57,676 121,583  

	Totalliabilities 
	Totalliabilities 
	3,056,312 
	1,513,610 
	240,169 
	194,315 

	DeferredInflowsofResources: 
	DeferredInflowsofResources: 

	Unavailablerevenues 
	Unavailablerevenues 
	524,030 
	 
	 
	 

	Totaldeferredinflowsofresources 
	Totaldeferredinflowsofresources 
	524,030 
	 
	 
	 

	FundBalances: 
	FundBalances: 

	Nonspendableforprepaidcosts Restrictedfor: Districtoperationsandmaintenance Streetmaintenance Masstransit Lawenforcement Treepreservation Solidwasteservices Buildingcodeenforcement Buildingcodeservicescontract Telecommunicationsmaintenance Gaslinemaintenance FloridaPlanOpioidsettlementfunds Debtservice Committedto: Disastermanagement Creditreserve Infrastructure Assignedto: Compensatedabsences Unassigned 
	Nonspendableforprepaidcosts Restrictedfor: Districtoperationsandmaintenance Streetmaintenance Masstransit Lawenforcement Treepreservation Solidwasteservices Buildingcodeenforcement Buildingcodeservicescontract Telecommunicationsmaintenance Gaslinemaintenance FloridaPlanOpioidsettlementfunds Debtservice Committedto: Disastermanagement Creditreserve Infrastructure Assignedto: Compensatedabsences Unassigned 
	857,712         25,000 25,000 25,150  45,895,688 10,951,100 4,548,682 449,040 39,588,877 
	410,822 23,318,826                 
	68,993 5,662,627                 
	87,107                 (124,296) 

	Totalfundbalances 
	Totalfundbalances 
	102,366,249 
	23,729,648 
	5,731,620 
	(37,189) 

	Totalliabilities,deferred inflowsofresources 
	Totalliabilities,deferred inflowsofresources 

	 
	 
	andfundbalances 
	$ 
	105,946,591 
	$ 
	25,243,258 
	$ 
	5,971,789 
	$ 
	157,126  
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	DebtServiceFunds IndianTrace Development DistrictDebt Debt ServiceFund ServiceFund 
	DebtServiceFunds IndianTrace Development DistrictDebt Debt ServiceFund ServiceFund 
	DebtServiceFunds IndianTrace Development DistrictDebt Debt ServiceFund ServiceFund 
	Capital Projects Fund 
	Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
	Total Governmental Funds 

	$ 
	$ 
	221,672 3,787,126 
	$ 
	 576 
	$ 
	201,193 14,475,438 
	$ 
	697,045 12,909,040 
	$ 
	7,826,697 155,608,454 

	TR
	20,484,933  21,665   
	     
	 83,760 31,201   
	 127,696 73,330 56,490  
	20,484,933 4,009,416 957,722 1,481,124 121,583 

	$ 
	$ 
	24,515,396 
	$ 576 
	$ 
	14,791,592 
	$ 
	13,863,601 
	$ 
	190,489,929 

	$ 
	$ 
	     
	$ 
	576     
	$ 
	  825,482   
	$ 
	1,204,921     
	$ 
	5,009,335 204,873 940,834 121,583 758,760 

	TR
	 
	576 
	825,482 
	1,204,921 
	7,035,385 

	TR
	20,484,933 
	 
	 
	 
	21,008,963 

	TR
	20,484,933 
	 
	 
	 
	21,008,963 

	TR
	 
	 
	 
	56,490 
	1,481,124 

	TR
	           4,030,463 
	            
	            
	 8,686,848 440,321 678,853 52,202 352,243 498,533 1,893,190     
	28,981,453 8,686,848 440,321 678,853 52,202 352,243 498,533 1,893,190 25,000 25,000 25,150 4,030,463 

	TR
	   
	   
	  13,966,110 
	   
	45,895,688 10,951,100 18,514,792 

	TR
	  
	  
	  
	  
	449,040 39,464,581 

	TR
	4,030,463 
	 
	13,966,110 
	12,658,680 
	162,445,581 

	$ 
	$ 
	24,515,396 
	$ 
	576 
	$ 
	14,791,592 
	$ 
	13,863,601 
	$ 
	190,489,929 
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	CityofWeston,Florida ReconciliationoftheBalanceSheetGovernmentalFunds totheStatementofNetPosition September30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida ReconciliationoftheBalanceSheetGovernmentalFunds totheStatementofNetPosition September30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida ReconciliationoftheBalanceSheetGovernmentalFunds totheStatementofNetPosition September30,2023 

	FundBalanceTotalGovernmentalFunds 
	FundBalanceTotalGovernmentalFunds 
	$ 
	162,445,581 

	Amountsreportedforgovernmentalactivitiesinthestatement ofnetpositionaredifferentbecause: 
	Amountsreportedforgovernmentalactivitiesinthestatement ofnetpositionaredifferentbecause: 

	Capitalassetsusedingovernmentalactivitiesarenotfinancial resourcesand,therefore,arenotreportedinthefunds.The statementofnetpositionincludesthosecapitalassets,netof anyaccumulateddepreciation,inthenetpositionofthe governmentasawhole. 
	Capitalassetsusedingovernmentalactivitiesarenotfinancial resourcesand,therefore,arenotreportedinthefunds.The statementofnetpositionincludesthosecapitalassets,netof anyaccumulateddepreciation,inthenetpositionofthe governmentasawhole. 

	Costofcapitalassets Accumulateddepreciation 
	Costofcapitalassets Accumulateddepreciation 
	$ 295,569,966 (137,528,631) 
	158,041,335 

	Assetsthatarenotavailabletopayforcurrentperiod expendituresareunavailableinthegovernmentalfund financialstatements. 
	Assetsthatarenotavailabletopayforcurrentperiod expendituresareunavailableinthegovernmentalfund financialstatements. 
	20,484,933 

	Certainrevenuesareconsidereddeferredinflowsofresources inthefundfinancialstatementsduetoavailabilityoffunds; underfullaccrualaccountingtheyareconsideredrevenues. 
	Certainrevenuesareconsidereddeferredinflowsofresources inthefundfinancialstatementsduetoavailabilityoffunds; underfullaccrualaccountingtheyareconsideredrevenues. 
	524,030 

	Thenetpensionliabilityisnotreportedasaliabilityinthe fundfinancialstatements,butisreportedasaliabilityinthe governmentwidefinancialstatements. 
	Thenetpensionliabilityisnotreportedasaliabilityinthe fundfinancialstatements,butisreportedasaliabilityinthe governmentwidefinancialstatements. 
	(264,514) 

	Deferredoutflowsofresourcesrelatedtothenetpension liabilityarerecordedinthestatementofnetposition. 
	Deferredoutflowsofresourcesrelatedtothenetpension liabilityarerecordedinthestatementofnetposition. 
	70,947 

	Deferredinflowsofresourcesrelatedtothenetpension liabilityarerecordedinthestatementofnetposition. 
	Deferredinflowsofresourcesrelatedtothenetpension liabilityarerecordedinthestatementofnetposition. 
	(39,146) 

	Liabilitiesnotdueandpayablefromcurrentavailable resourcesarenotreportedasliabilitiesinthegovernmental fundstatements.Allliabilities,bothcurrentandlongterm arereportedinthegovernmentwidefinancialstatements. 
	Liabilitiesnotdueandpayablefromcurrentavailable resourcesarenotreportedasliabilitiesinthegovernmental fundstatements.Allliabilities,bothcurrentandlongterm arereportedinthegovernmentwidefinancialstatements. 

	TR
	Notesandloanspayable Accruedinterestpayable Compensatedabsences 
	(20,890,339) (74,497) (449,040) 

	TR
	NetPositionofGovernmentalActivities 
	$ 
	319,849,290 
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	CityofWeston,Florida StatementofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalancesGovernmentalFunds FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	MajorFunds 
	SpecialRevenueFunds 
	IndianTrace 
	IndianTrace 
	IndianTrace 
	Bonaventure 

	General Fund 
	General Fund 
	Development DistrictFund 
	Development DistrictFund 
	FireServices Fund 

	Revenues: 
	Revenues: 

	Propertytaxes Franchisefeesandutilitytaxes Businesstaxreceipts Permitsandfees Intergovernmental Chargesforservices Finesandforfeitures Investmentincome(loss) Specialassessments Otherrevenues 
	Propertytaxes Franchisefeesandutilitytaxes Businesstaxreceipts Permitsandfees Intergovernmental Chargesforservices Finesandforfeitures Investmentincome(loss) Specialassessments Otherrevenues 
	$ 33,805,455 16,787,739 940,476 227,214 8,628,915 2,331,038 405,386 1,977,292  889,437 
	$ 
	    365,700   693,589 17,293,097 214,663 
	$ 
	       146,723 3,035,389 34,776 
	$ 
	       230,064 17,729,405 19,110 

	Totalrevenues 
	Totalrevenues 
	65,992,952 
	18,567,049 
	3,216,888 
	17,978,579 

	Expenditures: Current: 
	Expenditures: Current: 

	Generalgovernment Publicsafety Publicworks Parksandrecreation Communitydevelopment Capitaloutlay Debtservice: 
	Generalgovernment Publicsafety Publicworks Parksandrecreation Communitydevelopment Capitaloutlay Debtservice: 
	6,424,550 30,347,436  9,805,326 1,622,116 1,849,891 
	 2,777,647 14,431,858   856,534 
	 818,544 2,119,445   78,314 
	 17,385,339    289,044 

	 
	 
	Principal Interest 
	276,318 9,977 
	129,097 4,411 
	20,636 704 
	14,024 479 

	Totalexpenditures 
	Totalexpenditures 
	50,335,614 
	18,199,547 
	3,037,643 
	17,688,886 

	Excess(deficiency)of 
	Excess(deficiency)of 

	revenuesover 
	revenuesover 

	expenditures 
	expenditures 
	15,657,338 
	367,502 
	179,245 
	289,693 

	OtherFinancingSources(Uses): Subscriptionbasedproceeds Transfersin 
	OtherFinancingSources(Uses): Subscriptionbasedproceeds Transfersin 
	516,618  
	240,544  
	38,451  
	26,131  

	Transfersout 
	Transfersout 
	(6,440,000) 
	(2,955,000) 
	(445,000) 
	(2,000,000) 

	Totalotherfinancing 
	Totalotherfinancing 

	sources(uses) 
	sources(uses) 
	(5,923,382) 
	(2,714,456) 
	(406,549) 
	(1,973,869) 

	Netchangesin 
	Netchangesin 

	fundbalances 
	fundbalances 
	9,733,956 
	(2,346,954) 
	(227,304) 
	(1,684,176) 

	FundBalances,(Deficit) BeginningofYear 
	FundBalances,(Deficit) BeginningofYear 
	92,632,293 
	26,076,602 
	5,958,924 
	1,646,987 

	FundBalances,EndofYear 
	FundBalances,EndofYear 
	$ 102,366,249 
	$ 23,729,648 
	$ 5,731,620 
	$ 
	(37,189) 
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	DebtServiceFunds IndianTrace Development DistrictDebt Debt ServiceFund ServiceFund 
	DebtServiceFunds IndianTrace Development DistrictDebt Debt ServiceFund ServiceFund 
	DebtServiceFunds IndianTrace Development DistrictDebt Debt ServiceFund ServiceFund 
	Capital Projects Fund 
	Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
	Total Governmental Funds 

	$ 
	$ 
	       93,406 5,352,901  5,446,307 
	$ 
	       13,112   13,112 
	$ 
	    1,941,857   389,472   2,331,329 
	$ 
	   3,375,820 2,142,871  1,024 274,924 4,918,100 40,385 10,753,124 
	$ 
	33,805,455 16,787,739 940,476 3,603,034 13,079,343 2,331,038 406,410 3,818,582 48,328,892 1,198,371 124,299,340 

	TR
	      
	      
	     9,538,174 
	 27,181 5,488,072  4,135,694 175,431 
	6,424,550 51,356,147 22,039,375 9,805,326 5,757,810 12,787,388 

	TR
	4,787,792 486,100 
	  
	  
	28,955 988 
	5,256,822 502,659 

	TR
	5,273,892 
	 
	9,538,174 
	9,856,321 
	113,930,077 

	TR
	172,415 
	13,112 
	(7,206,845) 
	896,803 
	10,369,263 

	TR
	   
	 279,100 (655,367) 
	 14,176,267  
	53,951  (1,960,000) 
	875,695 14,455,367 (14,455,367) 

	TR
	 
	(376,267) 
	14,176,267 
	(1,906,049) 
	875,695 

	TR
	172,415 
	(363,155) 
	6,969,422 
	(1,009,246) 
	11,244,958 

	TR
	3,858,048 
	363,155 
	6,996,688 
	13,667,926 
	151,200,623 

	$ 
	$ 
	4,030,463 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	13,966,110 
	$ 
	12,658,680 
	$ 
	162,445,581 
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	CityofWeston,Florida ReconciliationoftheStatementofRevenues,Expenditures andChangesinFundBalancesGovernmentalFunds totheStatementofActivities FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida ReconciliationoftheStatementofRevenues,Expenditures andChangesinFundBalancesGovernmentalFunds totheStatementofActivities FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida ReconciliationoftheStatementofRevenues,Expenditures andChangesinFundBalancesGovernmentalFunds totheStatementofActivities FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 

	NetChangesinFundBalancesTotalGovernmentalFunds Amountsreportedforgovernmentalactivitiesinthestatement ofactivitiesaredifferentbecause: 
	NetChangesinFundBalancesTotalGovernmentalFunds Amountsreportedforgovernmentalactivitiesinthestatement ofactivitiesaredifferentbecause: 
	$ 
	11,244,958 

	Capitalassetsarereportedinthegovernmentalfundsasexpenditures. However,inthestatementofactivities,thecostoftheseassetsare eliminatedandcapitalizedascapitalassets. Revenuespreviouslyrecordedinthestatementofactivitiesthatwere unavailableinthepriorfiscalyearbecameavailableinthecurrentfiscal yearandwererecordedasrevenuesinthefundfinancialstatements. Revenuesthatareearnedbutnotreceivedwithintheavailability periodarerecognizedinthestatementofactivitieswhenearned andsubsequentlyrecognizedinthegovernmentalfundfinanc
	Capitalassetsarereportedinthegovernmentalfundsasexpenditures. However,inthestatementofactivities,thecostoftheseassetsare eliminatedandcapitalizedascapitalassets. Revenuespreviouslyrecordedinthestatementofactivitiesthatwere unavailableinthepriorfiscalyearbecameavailableinthecurrentfiscal yearandwererecordedasrevenuesinthefundfinancialstatements. Revenuesthatareearnedbutnotreceivedwithintheavailability periodarerecognizedinthestatementofactivitieswhenearned andsubsequentlyrecognizedinthegovernmentalfundfinanc
	12,337,173 (4,787,792) (74,132) 

	Issuanceofsubscriptionbasedinformation technologyarrangements Principalpaidonnotesandloans Thechangeinaccruedinterestonlongtermliabilitiesbetweenthecurrent andpriorfiscalyearisrecordedinthestatementofactivitiesbutnotinthe governmentalfundfinancialstatements. Certainchangesrelatedtopensionassetsandliabilitiesarenotreported inthenetchangeinthegovernmentalfunds: ChangeindeferredoutflowsrelatingtoFRSpension ChangeindeferredinflowsrelatingtoFRSpension Expensesreportedinthestatementofactivitiesthatdonotrequirethe
	Issuanceofsubscriptionbasedinformation technologyarrangements Principalpaidonnotesandloans Thechangeinaccruedinterestonlongtermliabilitiesbetweenthecurrent andpriorfiscalyearisrecordedinthestatementofactivitiesbutnotinthe governmentalfundfinancialstatements. Certainchangesrelatedtopensionassetsandliabilitiesarenotreported inthenetchangeinthegovernmentalfunds: ChangeindeferredoutflowsrelatingtoFRSpension ChangeindeferredinflowsrelatingtoFRSpension Expensesreportedinthestatementofactivitiesthatdonotrequirethe
	(875,695) 5,256,822 10,695 8,311 14,812 

	Depreciationofcapitalassets Changeincompensatedabsences Changeinnetpensionliability ChangeinNetPositionofGovernmentalActivities 
	Depreciationofcapitalassets Changeincompensatedabsences Changeinnetpensionliability ChangeinNetPositionofGovernmentalActivities 
	$ 
	(6,387,795) (114,937) (40,849) 16,591,571  
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	CityofWeston,Florida StatementofNetPosition ProprietaryFund September30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida StatementofNetPosition ProprietaryFund September30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida StatementofNetPosition ProprietaryFund September30,2023 

	Assets: Currentassets: CashandcashequivalentsInvestments Restrictedinvestments Receivables: Accountsreceivable,net Interestreceivable Prepaidcosts Inventories 
	Assets: Currentassets: CashandcashequivalentsInvestments Restrictedinvestments Receivables: Accountsreceivable,net Interestreceivable Prepaidcosts Inventories 
	$ 
	Waterand SewerFund 589,824 7,716,144 2,204,585 4,331,492 84,230 241,220 47,365 

	Totalcurrentassets 
	Totalcurrentassets 
	15,214,860 

	Noncurrentassets: Nondepreciablecapitalassets Depreciablecapitalassets,net 
	Noncurrentassets: Nondepreciablecapitalassets Depreciablecapitalassets,net 
	5,424 44,066,347 

	Totalnoncurrentassets 
	Totalnoncurrentassets 
	44,071,771 

	Totalassets 
	Totalassets 
	59,286,631 

	Liabilities: Currentliabilities: Accountspayableandaccruedliabilities Customerdeposits,payablefromrestrictedassets Noncurrentliabilitiesduewithinoneyear 
	Liabilities: Currentliabilities: Accountspayableandaccruedliabilities Customerdeposits,payablefromrestrictedassets Noncurrentliabilitiesduewithinoneyear 
	280,629 2,204,585 59,153 

	TR
	Totalliabilities 
	2,544,367 

	TR
	NetPosition: Investmentincapitalassets Unrestricted 
	44,012,618 12,729,646 

	TR
	Totalnetposition 
	$ 
	56,742,264 
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	CityofWeston,Florida StatementofRevenues,ExpensesandChangesinNetPosition ProprietaryFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida StatementofRevenues,ExpensesandChangesinNetPosition ProprietaryFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida StatementofRevenues,ExpensesandChangesinNetPosition ProprietaryFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 

	Waterand SewerFund 
	Waterand SewerFund 

	OperatingRevenues: Waterandsewerfees Miscellaneousrevenue Otheroperatingrevenues 
	OperatingRevenues: Waterandsewerfees Miscellaneousrevenue Otheroperatingrevenues 
	$ 
	35,624,211 621,028 3,412 

	Totaloperatingrevenues 
	Totaloperatingrevenues 
	36,248,651 

	OperatingExpenses: Personnel Otheroperatingexpenses Generalandadministrative Depreciationandamortization 
	OperatingExpenses: Personnel Otheroperatingexpenses Generalandadministrative Depreciationandamortization 
	286,469 32,509,193 3,020,968 2,654,523 

	Totaloperatingexpenses 
	Totaloperatingexpenses 
	38,471,153 

	Operatingincome(loss) 
	Operatingincome(loss) 
	(2,222,502) 

	NonoperatingRevenues(Expenses): Investmentincome(loss) Interestexpense 
	NonoperatingRevenues(Expenses): Investmentincome(loss) Interestexpense 
	246,890 (2,340) 

	Totalnonoperatingrevenue 
	Totalnonoperatingrevenue 
	244,550 

	Changeinnetposition 
	Changeinnetposition 
	(1,977,952) 

	NetPosition,BeginningofYear 
	NetPosition,BeginningofYear 
	58,720,216 

	NetPosition,EndofYear  
	NetPosition,EndofYear  
	$ 
	56,742,264  
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	CityofWeston,Florida StatementofCashFlows ProprietaryFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida StatementofCashFlows ProprietaryFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida StatementofCashFlows ProprietaryFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 

	Waterand 
	Waterand 

	SewerFund 
	SewerFund 

	CashFlowsfromOperatingActivities: Receiptsfromcustomersandusers Cashpaidtootherfunds Paymentstosuppliers Paymentstoemployees 
	CashFlowsfromOperatingActivities: Receiptsfromcustomersandusers Cashpaidtootherfunds Paymentstosuppliers Paymentstoemployees 
	$ 
	35,702,967 (777,265) (36,091,794) (286,469) 

	Netcashprovidedby(usedin)operatingactivities 
	Netcashprovidedby(usedin)operatingactivities 
	(1,452,561) 

	CashFlowsfromCapitalandRelatedFinancingActivities: Purchasesofcapitalassets Proceedsfromissuanceoflongtermdebt Principalpaidonlongtermdebt 
	CashFlowsfromCapitalandRelatedFinancingActivities: Purchasesofcapitalassets Proceedsfromissuanceoflongtermdebt Principalpaidonlongtermdebt 
	(838,534) 128,933 (69,780) 

	Netcashprovidedby(usedin)capital andrelatedfinancingactivities 
	Netcashprovidedby(usedin)capital andrelatedfinancingactivities 
	(779,381) 

	CashFlowsfromInvestingActivities: Salesofinvestments,net Interestreceived 
	CashFlowsfromInvestingActivities: Salesofinvestments,net Interestreceived 
	1,439,363 231,241 

	Netcashprovidedby(usedin)investingactivities 
	Netcashprovidedby(usedin)investingactivities 
	1,670,604 

	Netincrease(decrease)incashandcashequivalents 
	Netincrease(decrease)incashandcashequivalents 
	(561,338) 

	CashandCashEquivalents,BeginningofYear 
	CashandCashEquivalents,BeginningofYear 
	1,151,162 

	CashandCashEquivalents,EndofYear 
	CashandCashEquivalents,EndofYear 
	$ 
	589,824 
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	CityofWeston,Florida StatementofCashFlows ProprietaryFund (continued)FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida StatementofCashFlows ProprietaryFund (continued)FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida StatementofCashFlows ProprietaryFund (continued)FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 

	Waterand SewerFund 
	Waterand SewerFund 

	ReconciliationofOperatingIncome(Loss)toNetCash Providedby(Usedin)OperatingActivities: Operatingincome(loss) 
	ReconciliationofOperatingIncome(Loss)toNetCash Providedby(Usedin)OperatingActivities: Operatingincome(loss) 
	$ 
	(2,222,502) 

	AdjustmentstoReconcileOperatingIncome(Loss)toNet CashProvidedby(Usedin)OperatingActivities: Depreciationandamortization Changesinassetsandliabilities: (Increase)decreaseinaccountsreceivables (Increase)decreaseinprepaidcosts (Increase)decreaseininventories Increase(decrease)inaccountspayableandaccruedliabilities Increase(decrease)induetootherfunds Increase(decrease)incustomerdeposits,payablefromrestrictedassets 
	AdjustmentstoReconcileOperatingIncome(Loss)toNet CashProvidedby(Usedin)OperatingActivities: Depreciationandamortization Changesinassetsandliabilities: (Increase)decreaseinaccountsreceivables (Increase)decreaseinprepaidcosts (Increase)decreaseininventories Increase(decrease)inaccountspayableandaccruedliabilities Increase(decrease)induetootherfunds Increase(decrease)incustomerdeposits,payablefromrestrictedassets 
	2,654,523 (568,210) (193,466) 148,696 (516,863) (777,265) 22,526 

	Totaladjustments 
	Totaladjustments 
	769,941 

	Netcashprovidedby(usedin)operatingactivities 
	Netcashprovidedby(usedin)operatingactivities 
	$ 
	(1,452,561) 
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	CityofWeston,Florida NotestoFinancialStatements September30,2023 
	  Note1OrganizationandOperations 
	 TheCityofWeston,Florida(the“City”)isamunicipalcorporationgovernedbyanelectedMayorand a fourmember commission providing the following services: general government; public safety; communitydevelopment;publicworks;andparksandrecreation.Additionalservicesprovidedby the City are subcontracted such as: water and sewer services; emergency medical services; fire protection and prevention services; police services; engineering services; building code services; codeenforcement;andplanreviewandinspectionservices.TheC
	Note2SummaryofSignificantAccountingPolicies 
	 
	A.   Thefinancialstatementswerepreparedinconformitywithaccountingprinciplesgenerallyaccepted intheUnitedStatesofAmerica(“GAAP”)andinaccordancewithGovernmentAccountingStandards, which establishes standards for defining and reporting on the financial reporting entity. The definition of the financial reporting entity is based upon the concept that elected officials are accountabletotheirconstituentsfortheiractions.Oneoftheobjectivesoffinancialreportingisto provide users of financial statements with a basis for
	ReportingEntity

	BlendedComponentUnits 
	 Blendedcomponentunitsareseparatelegalentitiesthatmeetthecomponentunitcriteriadescribed aboveandwhosegoverningbodyisthesameas,substantiallythesameas,orappointedbytheCity Commission.TheseunitsareinsubstancepartoftheCity’soperations,andso,datafromtheseunits iscombinedwithdataoftheprimarygovernment.  IndianTraceDevelopmentDistrict(“ITDD”)isablendedcomponentunit.ITDDwasformedin1975 byaBrowardCountyOrdinanceandin1981wasreestablishedpursuanttoChapter190oftheFlorida Statutesasanindependent,specialtaxingdistrictinB
	CityofWeston,Florida 
	NotestoFinancialStatements 
	September30,2023   Note2SummaryofSignificantAccountingPolicies(continued)  
	B.   Thebasicfinancialstatementsincludebothgovernmentwide(basedontheCityasawhole)and fundfinancialstatements.  Thegovernmentwidefinancialstatements(i.e.,thestatementofnetpositionandthestatementof activities)reportinformationonallnonfiduciaryactivitiesoftheCity.Asageneralrule,theeffectof interfundservicesprovidedandusedhasbeeneliminatedfromthesestatements.Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmentalrevenues,arereported separatelyfrombusinesstypeactivities,whichrelytoas
	GovernmentWideandFundFinancialStatements

	 Thegovernmentwidestatementofactivitiesdemonstratesthedegreetowhichthedirectexpenses of a given functionorsegmentisoffsetbyprogramrevenues.Directexpensesarethosethatare clearlyidentifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,use or directlybenefit from goods,services or privileges providedbyagivenfunctionorsegmentand2)grantsandcontributionsthatarerestrictedtomeeting theoperationorcapitalrequirementsofaparticularfunctionorsegment.T
	 Thenetcost(byfunction)isnormallycoveredbygeneralrevenues(i.e.,propertytaxes,franchise taxes,unrestrictedintergovernmentalrevenues,investmentincome,etc.).  Separatefundfinancialstatementsareprovidedforgovernmentalfundsandproprietaryfunds.The focusoffundfinancialstatementsisonmajorfunds.Majorindividualgovernmentalfundsandthe majorindividualenterprisefundarereportedasseparatecolumnsinthefundfinancialstatements. GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of assets/deferred outflows, liabilit
	 
	C.  
	MeasurementFocus,BasisofAccountingandFinancialStatementPresentation

	 Thegovernmentwidefinancialstatementsarereportedusingtheeconomicresourcesmeasurement focusandtheaccrualbasisofaccounting,asaretheproprietaryfundfinancialstatements.Revenues arerecordedwhenearnedandexpensesarerecordedwhenaliabilityisincurred,regardlessofthe timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year when an enforceablelienexistsandwhenleviedfor.Grantsandsimilaritemsarerecognizedasrevenuesas soonasalleligibilityrequirementsimposedbytheproviderhavebeenmet.  Governmental
	CityofWeston,Florida NotestoFinancialStatements September30,2023 
	  
	Note2SummaryofSignificantAccountingPolicies(continued)  Propertytaxes,franchisefees,utilitytaxes,permitsandfees,otherintergovernmentalrevenues,and investmentincomeassociatedwiththecurrentfiscalperiodareallconsideredtobemeasurableand havebeenrecognizedasrevenuesofthecurrentfiscalperiod,ifavailable.Onlytheportionofspecial assessmentsreceivableduewithinthecurrentfiscalperiodisconsideredtobesusceptibletoaccrualas revenueofthecurrentperiod.Allotherrevenueitemsareconsideredtobemeasurableandavailable whencashisrec
	 GeneralFundisthegovernment’sprimaryoperatingfund.Itaccountsforallfinancialresources ofthegeneralgovernment,exceptthoserequiredtobeaccountedforinanotherfund. 
	 The Special Revenue Funds (Indian Trace Development District, Bonaventure Development District, and Fire Services) account for special assessments that are legally restricted to expenditure for operations and maintenance. Indian Trace Development District and BonaventureDevelopmentDistrictaccountforthemaintenanceofthestormwatermanagement infrastructureandthenonroadwayportionsofthepublicrightofwaywithintheboundariesof theDistricts.TheFireServicesaccountsforrevenuesgeneratedbyspecialassessmentslegally restri
	 TheCityreportsthefollowingmajorproprietaryfund:  
	TheEnterpriseFundisusedtoaccountforthewaterandseweroperationsthatarefinancedand operatedinamannersimilartoaprivatebusinessenterprise.Thecostsofprovidingservicesare generallyrecoveredthroughusercharges. 
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	D.   
	Assets,Liabilities,DeferredOutflows/InflowsofResources,andNetPosition/FundBalance

	1.  
	DepositsandInvestments

	 Cash,cashequivalents,andequityinpooledcasharedefinedasdemanddeposits,moneymarket accounts,andshortterminvestmentswithoriginalmaturitiesofthreemonthsorlessfromthe dateofacquisition.  Ingeneral,theCitymaintainspooledcashandinvestmentaccountsforallfunds.Thisenablesthe City to invest large amounts of idle cash for short periods of time and to optimize earnings potential.CashandcashequivalentsandinvestmentsrepresenttheamountownedbyeachCity fund.Earningsonpooledcashandinvestmentsareallocatedbasedonbalancesofther
	 The City’s investments are measured at amortized cost or recorded at estimated fair value. Unrealizedgainsandlossesinfairvaluearerecognized. 
	 
	2. 
	2. 
	2. 
	  Receivablesincludeamountsduefromothergovernmentsandothersforservicesprovidedby the City. In addition, amounts owed from residents for the payment of District Bonds are reported as receivables special assessments. Receivables are recorded and revenues are recognizedasearnedorasspecificprogramexpenditures/expensesareincurredbasedonthe accountingbasisrequiredforthatfund.Allowancesforuncollectiblereceivablesarebasedupon historicaltrendsandtheperiodicagingofreceivables.  Propertytaxesareleviedandarerecognizeda
	Receivables


	3. 
	3. 
	 
	InterfundReceivablesandPayables



	 Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstandingattheendofthefiscalyeararereferredtoaseither“dueto/fromotherfunds”(the currentportionofinterfundloans)or“advancesto/fromotherfunds”(thenoncurrentportions ofinterfundloans).Anyresidualbalancesoutstandingbetweenthegovernmentalactivitiesand business activities are reported in the governmentwide financial statements as “internal balances.” 
	 
	4. 
	4. 
	4. 
	  Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recordedasprepaiditemsinboththegovernmentwideandfundfinancialstatements.Thecost of prepaid items is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.  
	PrepaidCosts


	5. 
	5. 
	Inventories 


	 Inventoriesofsuppliesarereportedatcostusingtheweightedaveragemethod.Inventoriesare maintainedonaconsumptionbasisofaccountingwhereitemsarepurchasedforinventoryand chargedasanexpenditure/expenseasitemsareconsumedratherthanwhenpurchased. 
	Figure
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	6. 
	6. 
	6. 
	  CertainproceedsoftheCity’sbondsandotherlongtermliabilities,aswellascertainresources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets only when the funds are segregated and their use is limited by applicable debt covenants. In addition, assessments receivable related to future payment of debt service are considered restricted. Customer depositsareclassifiedasrestrictedassetsbecausetheyareheldonbehalfofthecustomer.  
	RestrictedAssets


	7. 
	7. 
	  Capital assets which include land, construction in progress, infrastructure, buildings, land improvementsandmachineryandequipmentarereportedintheapplicablegovernmentalor business type activities columns in the governmentwide financial statements. Capital assets purchasedoracquiredwithanoriginalindividualcostof$5,000ormore,andanestimateduseful lifeinexcessofoneyear,arereportedathistoricalcostorestimatedhistoricalcost.Donated capitalassets,donatedworksofartandsimilaritems,andcapitalassetsreceivedinaservice 
	CapitalAssets



	 Infrastructure 1050years  Buildingsandimprovements 1050years  Landimprovements 1530years  Machineryandequipment 515years 
	 Inthegovernmentalfundfinancialstatements,amountsincurredfortheacquisitionofcapital assets are reported as fund expenditures. Depreciation expense is not reported in the governmentalfundfinancialstatements. 
	 
	Previously,theCityimplementedGASBStatementNo.87,Leases.Managementhasevaluated theCity’scurrentleasesandasconcludedthattheydonotmeetthecriteriatobecapitalizedin theCity’sfinancialstatement.  
	8.  
	SubscriptionBasedInformationTechnologyArrangements(SBITA)

	 TheCityhasnoncancellablesubscriptionbasedinformationtechnologyarrangements.TheCity recognizes a subscription liability and an intangible righttouse subscription asset in the governmentwide and proprietary fund financial statements.TheCityrecognizes subscription liabilitieswithaninitial,individualvalueof$5,000ormore. 
	 Atthecommencementofasubscription,theCityinitiallymeasuresthesubscriptionliabilityat thepresentvalueofpaymentsexpectedtobemadeduringtheSBITAterm.Subsequently,the subscription liability is reduced by the principal portion of subscription payments made. The subscriptionassetisinitiallymeasuredastheinitialamountofthesubscriptionliability,adjusted forsubscriptionpaymentsmadeatorbeforethesubscriptioncommencementdate,pluscertain initialdirectcosts.Subsequently,thesubscriptionassetisamortizedonastraightlinebasisov
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	KeyestimatesandjudgmentsrelatedtosubscriptionsincludehowtheCitydetermines(1)the discountrateitusestodiscounttheexpectedSBITApaymentstopresentvalue,(2)subscription term,and(3)subscriptionpayments.TheCityusestheinterestratechargedbytheSBITAvendor asthediscountrate.WhentheinterestratechargedbytheSBITAvendorisnotprovided,the CitygenerallyusesitsestimatedincrementalborrowingrateasthediscountrateforSBITAs.The subscriptiontermincludesthenoncancellableperiodofthesubscription.Subscriptionpayments includedinthemeasur
	9. 
	9. 
	9. 
	9. 
	 
	CompensatedAbsences


	 It is the City’s policy to permit its employees to accumulate amounts of earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. Accumulated compensated absences are recorded in the governmentwidefinancialstatementswhenearned.Expendituresforcompensatedabsences havebeenrecordedinthegovernmentalfundsonlyiftheyhavematured,(e.g.,resultingfrom employeeresignationsandretirements).PaymentsaregenerallymadefromtheGeneralFund.  As of September 30, 2023, the City reports accrued compensated absences amounting to $449,040in

	10. 
	10. 
	10. 
	 
	UnearnedRevenues


	Governmental funds report unearned revenues in connection with resources that have been received,butnotyetearned.  

	11. 
	11. 
	  In the governmentwide financial statements and proprietary fund statements in the fund financialstatements,longtermdebtandotherlongtermobligationsarereportedasliabilitiesin the applicable governmental activities, business type activities, or proprietary fund type statementofnetposition.Premiumsanddiscountsaredeferredandamortizedoverthelifeof thebonds usingthestraightlinemethod, whichapproximates the effective interest method. Issue costs are expensed at issuance. Debt is reported net of the applicable pre
	LongTermObligations


	12. 
	12. 
	  Inadditiontoassets,thestatementoffinancialpositionwillsometimesreportaseparatesection fordeferredoutflowsofresources.Thisseparatefinancialstatementelement,deferredoutflows ofresources,representsaconsumptionofnetassetsthatappliestoafutureperiod(s)andsowill notberecognizedasanoutflowofresources(expense/expenditure)untilthen. 
	DeferredOutflows/InflowsofResources
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	In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate sectionfordeferredinflowsofresources.Thisseparatefinancialstatementelement,deferred inflowsofresources,representsanacquisitionofnetassetsthatappliestoafutureperiod(s)and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Furthermore, unavailablerevenue,isreportedonlyinthegovernmentalfundsbalancesheet;theseamounts aredeferredandrecognizedasaninflowofresourcesintheperiodthattheamountbec
	13.  
	NetPosition

	 Netpositioninthegovernmentwideandproprietaryfundsiscategorizedasnetinvestmentin capital assets; restricted or unrestricted. Net investment in capital assets is the difference betweenthecostofcapitalassets,netaccumulateddepreciation,reducedbytheoutstanding balancesofanyborrowingsusedfortheacquisition,constructionorimprovementofthoseassets plusunspentdebtproceeds.Deferredoutflowsofresourcesanddeferredinflowsofresources thatareattributabletotheacquisition,construction,orimprovementofthoseassetsorrelated debta
	14. FundBalance 
	 
	TheCityfollowsGASBStatementNo.54,FundBalanceReportingandGovernmentalFundType 
	Definitionswhichrequiresthatgovernmentalfundfinancialstatementspresentfundbalances 
	basedonclassificationsthatcompriseahierarchythatisbasedprimarilyontheextenttowhich 
	the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the 
	respectivegovernmentalfundscanbespent.Theclassificationsusedinthegovernmentalfund 
	financialstatementsareasfollows: 
	 :Thisclassificationincludesamountsthatcannotbespentbecausetheyare either(a)notinspendableformor(b)arelegallyorcontractuallyrequiredtobemaintained intact.“Notinspendableform”includesitemsthatarenotexpectedtobeconvertedtocash (suchasinventoriesandprepaidamounts)anditemssuchaslongtermamountofloansand notes receivable, as well as property acquired for resale. The principal or capital of a permanentfundisanexampleofanamountthatislegallyorcontractuallyrequiredtobe maintainedintact. 
	Nonspendable
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	Note2–SummaryofSignificantAccountingPolicies(continued)  :Thisclassificationincludesamountsforwhichconstraintshavebeenplacedonthe use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposedbylawthroughconstitutionalprovisionsorenablinglegislation.  :Thisclassificationincludesamountsthatcanbeusedonlyforspecificpurposes pursuanttoconstraintsimposedbyresolutionoftheCityCommission.Theseamou
	Restricted
	Committed
	Assigned
	Unassigned

	15. Encumbrances 
	 Encumbranceaccounting,underwhichpurchaseorders,contractsandothercommitmentsfor the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation,isemployedasanextensionofformalbudgetaryintegration. 
	 Encumbrancesarerecordedatthetimeapurchaseorderorothercommitmentisenteredinto. Encumbrancesoutstandingatyearendrepresenttheestimatedamountofexpenditureswhich would result if unperformed purchase orders and other commitments at yearend are completed. Encumbrances lapse at yearend; however, the City generally intends to honor purchaseordersandothercommitmentsinprocess.Asaresult,encumbrancesoutstandingat yearendarereappropriatedinthenextfiscalyear.  
	16.  
	UseofEstimates

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptionsthat affectcertainreportedamounts and disclosures.Accordingly, actualresults coulddifferfromthoseestimates. 
	CityofWeston,Florida 
	NotestoFinancialStatements 
	September30,2023   Note2–SummaryofSignificantAccountingPolicies(continued)  
	17.  
	SubsequentEvents

	 SubsequenteventsareevaluatedbymanagementthroughMarch28,2024,thedatethefinancial statementswereavailableforissuance. 
	 
	 
	Note3DepositsandInvestments 
	 
	A.   TheCity’scashbalances,exceptforthebalancesinthedebtservicefunds,wereentirelycoveredby federaldepositoryinsuranceorbyacollateralpoolpledgedtotheStateTreasurer.FloridaStatutes Chapter280,"FloridaSecurityforPublicDepositsAct",requiresallqualifieddepositoriestodeposit withtheTreasureroranotherbankinginstitutioneligiblecollateralequaltovariouspercentagesof theaveragedailybalanceforeachmonthofallpublicdepositsinexcessofanyapplicabledeposit insurance held. The percentage of eligible collateral (generally, U.S
	Deposits

	B.  
	Investments

	 Chapter33oftheCity'sCodeofOrdinancesgovernstheCity'ssuitableandauthorizedinvestmentof publicfunds.TheCityishighlyriskaverseinitsinvestmentstrategyandassuchwillnotpurchase anyindividualsecurityratedlowerthanthethirdhighesttier(e.g.,Arated)byatleastonenationally recognizedratingagencyintheUnitedStates(e.g.,Moody's,S&P,Fitch's).U.STreasuryobligations which carry the full faith and credit of the United States Government, U.S. Government agency obligations,U.S.Governmentinstrumentalityobligations,oranyotherdebt
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	  Note3DepositsandInvestments(continued) 
	 Section33.01(C)oftheCity'sCodeofOrdinancesprohibitsinvestmentoftheCity'sfundsinderivative contractsasdefinedbytheGovernmentalAccountingStandardsBoard(GASB),whichdeferstothe Federal Accounting Standards Board (FASB) on its definition of a derivative security. The FASB definitionofaderivativesecurity,asprovidedinStatement133,Paragraph67,isprovidedinthe AppendixprecedingtheInvestmentPolicyglossary.Thissectionalsodoesnotprovideauthorization forthepurchaseofprivateplacementor144AsecuritiesasdefinedbytheSecuriti
	InvestmentType 
	InvestmentType 
	InvestmentType 
	FairValue 

	U.S.Agencysecurities Municipalbonds Corporatebonds 
	U.S.Agencysecurities Municipalbonds Corporatebonds 
	$ 92,112,698 43,286,498 22,689,536 

	Totalinvestments,measured 
	Totalinvestments,measured 

	atfairvalue 
	atfairvalue 
	158,088,732 

	Moneymarketfunds,measuredat amortizedcost* 
	Moneymarketfunds,measuredat amortizedcost* 
	7,313,706 

	TR
	Total 
	$ 165,402,438 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	* 
	Amountsareincludedincashandcashequivalents. 
	 


	1.  
	CreditRisk

	 TheCity’sinvestmentpolicywasestablishedtolimitcreditrisk,theriskoflossduetodefaultbythe issuer,securitiesbroker/dealerorfinancialinstitution,by: 
	  Limiting investments to investment grade securities as rated by any nationally 
	recognizedagencyintheUnitedStates. 
	 
	 Prequalifyingthefinancialinstitutions,brokers/dealers,intermediaries,andadvisors 
	withwhichtheCitywilldobusiness. 
	 
	 Diversifyingtheinvestmentportfoliotoreducetheimpactofpotentiallossesfrom 
	anyonetypeofsecurity,oranyindividualissuerorbacker.  TheCity’sinvestmentshavebeenratedbyStandardandPoor’sorMoody’sasfollows: 
	RATINGS 
	AAA 
	AAA 
	AAA 
	AA+ 
	AA 
	AA 

	Governmentandgovernment sponsoredbonds Governmentmortgagebacked securities Corporatebonds Municipalbonds Totalinvestments 
	Governmentandgovernment sponsoredbonds Governmentmortgagebacked securities Corporatebonds Municipalbonds Totalinvestments 
	$ $ 
	  8,929,107 29,783,865 38,712,972 
	$ $ 
	87,558,290 4,554,408 4,267,526 12,308,913 108,689,137 
	$ $ 
	  6,652,578 1,193,720 7,846,298 
	$ $ 
	  2,840,325  2,840,325 
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	Note3DepositsandInvestments(continued) 
	 
	2. InterestRateRisk 
	 TheCity’sinvestmentpolicywasestablishedtominimizetheriskthatthevalueofsecuritiesinthe investmentportfoliowillfallduetochangesininterestrates,by: 
	 
	 
	Structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirementsforongoingoperations,therebyavoidingtheneedtosellsecuritiesto theopenmarketpriortomaturity. 
	 
	 Investingoperatingfundsprimarilyinshorttermsecurities,moneymarketmutual funds,orsimilarinvestmentpoolsandlimitingtheweightedaveragematurityofthe portfolio. 
	  Limitingthepricesensitivity(modifiedoreffectiveduration)oftheinvestmentsinthe portfolio. 
	 TheCityhasaninvestmentpolicythat,unlessmatchedtoaspecificcashflow,limitsthepurchaseof securitiestomaturitiesofnomorethantenyearsfromthedateofpurchaseandadditionallylimits thepurchaseofanysecuritiesnotratedinthehighesttiertomaturitiesoflessthanfiveyearsfrom thedateofpurchase.  Atfiscalyearend,theweightedaveragelifeofthematuritiesisasfollows: 
	AverageMaturity(Years) 
	Governmentandgovernmentsponsoredbonds 4.61 Governmentmortgagebackedsecurities 5.84 Corporatebonds 2.99 Municipalbonds 4.45 
	  
	3. 
	3. 
	3. 
	3. 
	ConcentrationCreditRisk 

	 TheCity’sinvestmentpolicylimitsitsinvestmentstonomorethan5%oftotalassetsvaluedatcost inanyonesecurityissueandnomorethan60%ofitstotalassetsvaluedatcostinanyonesecurity type,withcertainexceptions.Federalgovernmentandagencydebtobligationsareexemptfrom both restrictions and cash equivalent investments are exempt from the issuer restriction. GASB StatementNo.40,DepositandInvestmentRiskDisclosures,requiresdisclosurewhenthepercentage is5%ormoreinanyoneissuer.InvestmentsissuedorexplicitlyguaranteedbytheU.S.governm

	4. 
	4. 
	CustodialCreditRisk  


	Custodialcreditriskistheriskthat,intheeventofthefailureofthecounterparty,theCitywouldnot recoverthevalueofitsinvestmentorcollateralsecuritiesthatareinthepossessionofanoutside party.TheinvestmentpolicyoftheCityminimizesthisriskbyestablishingminimumstandardsfor institutions and dealers used by the City. Consistent with the City’s investment policy, the investmentsareheldbycustodialbanks/institutionsintheCity’sname,orinstreetname. 
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	5. FairValueMeasurements  
	TheCitycategorizesitsfairvaluemeasurementswithinthefairvaluehierarchyasestablishedin accordancewithapplicableGASBStatements.Thehierarchyisbasedonthevaluationinputsusedto measurethefairvalueoftheasset.Level1inputsarequotedpricesinactivemarketsforidentical assets;Level2inputsaresignificantotherobservable(directandindirect)inputs;andLevel3inputs aresignificantunobservableinputs. 
	 
	Thefollowingisageneraldescriptionofthevaluationmethodologiesusedforassetsmeasuredat fairvalue.  InvestmentsclassifiedasLevel2,inthetablebelow,arevaluedbasedonsignificantotherobservable inputs,whichmayinclude,butarenotlimitedto,quotedpricesforsimilarassetsorliabilitiesin marketsthatareactive,quotedpricesforidenticalorsimilarassetsorliabilitiesinmarketsthatare notactive,inputsotherthanquotedpricesthatareobservablefortheassetsorliabilities(suchas interestrates,yieldcurves,cashflows,maturity,andcreditratings),o
	InvestmentType 
	InvestmentType 
	InvestmentType 
	FairValue 
	Level 

	U.S.Agencysecurities Municipalbonds Corporatebonds 
	U.S.Agencysecurities Municipalbonds Corporatebonds 
	$ 92,112,698 43,286,498 22,689,536 
	2 2 2 

	TR
	$ 158,088,732 

	 
	 
	 
	TD
	Figure

	 


	Valuationtechniquesusedinthefairvaluemeasurementslistedaboveareasfollows: 
	 U.S.Agencysecurities:IncludeMortgageBackedSecurities,CollateralizedMortgageObligations, U.S.TreasurySecuritiesandotherAgencySecurities.Techniquesandevaluationsonthesesecurities arebasedonmarketdrivenobservationsandsecuritiescharacteristicsincludingratings,coupons andredemptions.TheprimarypricingmethodsfortheseinvestmentsareFTIDMBSPricingandFTID InstitutionalBondQuotes. 
	 
	Bonds:IncludingMunicipalandCorporatearevaluedbyapricingservicethatusesmatrixpricing. 
	Thislevel2inputwouldbeapriceoryieldofasimilarbond.  
	SovereignSecurities:Techniquesandevaluationsonthesesecuritiesarebasedonmarketdriven observationsandsecuritiescharacteristicsincludingratings,couponsandredemptions.Theprimary pricingmethodfortheseinvestmentsisEXTELInternationalBondEvaluation. 
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	Note4ReceivablesandUnavailableRevenues  ReceivablebalancesasofSeptember30,2023wereasfollows: 
	Enterprise GovernmentalFunds Fund 
	IndianTrace 
	IndianTrace 
	IndianTrace 

	IndianTrace 
	IndianTrace 
	Bonaventure 
	Development 
	Capital 
	Nonmajor 

	General 
	General 
	Development 
	Development 
	FireServices 
	DistrictDebt 
	Projects 
	Governmental 
	Waterand 

	Receivables 
	Receivables 
	Fund 
	DistrictFund 
	DistrictFund 
	Fund 
	ServiceFund 
	Fund 
	Funds 
	SewerFund 

	Accountsreceivable Interestreceivable Franchisefeesand 
	Accountsreceivable Interestreceivable Franchisefeesand 
	$ 694,467 539,298 
	$ 116,869 188,546 
	$ 
	24,505 38,456 
	$ 
	4,793 65,226 
	$ 
	 21,665 
	$ 
	83,760 31,201 
	$ 
	29,139 73,330 
	$ 4,098,488 84,230 

	utilitytaxes Intergovernmental 
	utilitytaxes Intergovernmental 
	1,824,123 1,133,203 
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	 98,557 
	 233,004 

	Grossreceivables 
	Grossreceivables 
	4,191,091 
	305,415 
	62,961 
	70,019 
	21,665 
	114,961 
	201,026 
	4,415,722 

	Lessallowancefor 
	Lessallowancefor 

	uncollectibles 
	uncollectibles 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Netreceivables 
	Netreceivables 
	$ 4,191,091 
	$ 
	305,415 
	$ 
	62,961 
	$ 
	70,019 
	$ 
	21,665 
	$ 
	114,961 
	$ 
	201,026 
	$ 4,415,722 

	TR
	TD


	As of September 30, 2023, unavailable revenues (governmental funds) are comprised of the 
	followingitems: Unavailablerevenues: Franchisefeesandutilitytaxes $ 524,030 Specialassessments* 
	20,484,933 

	$ 21,008,963 
	 
	*IndianTraceDevelopmentDistrictDebtServiceFundreportsspecialassessmentsreceivablesfor amountsowedfrompropertyownersformakingdebtservicepaymentsontheoutstandingdebt.   
	Note5InterfundTransactions 
	 Theoutstandingbalancesbetweenfundsresultprimarilyfromthetimelagbetweenthedatesthat transactionsarerecordedintheaccountingsystemandpaymentsbetweenfundsaremade.  Receivableandpayablebalancesatyearendareasfollows: 
	DueTo 
	DueFrom 

	GeneralFund $  $ 121,583 FireServicesFund 
	121,583  

	$ 121,583 $ 121,583 
	 
	 InterfundtransfersfortheyearendedSeptember30,2023areasfollows: Transfers Transfers In Out 
	GeneralFund $  $ 6,440,000 IndianTraceDevelopmentDistrictFund  2,955,000 BonaventureDevelopmentDistrictFund  445,000 FireServicesFund  2,000,000 DebtServiceFund 279,100 655,367 CapitalProjectsFund 14,176,267  Nonmajorgovernmentalfunds: StreetMaintenanceFund 
	 1,960,000 

	$ $ 
	14,455,367 
	14,455,367

	 
	43 
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	Note5InterfundTransactions(continued) 
	 Transfers are generally used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires collecting them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them. Transfers from the generalfund,IndianTraceDevelopmentDistrictspecialrevenuefund,BonaventureDevelopment District special revenue fund, debt service fund and the street maintenance fund to the capital projectsfundaretoprovideforresourcestofundcapitalexpenditures.Transfersfromthegeneral fund, street maintenance fund, and fire services fund to t
	Note6CapitalAssets 
	 A summary of changes in the governmental activities capital assets for the fiscal year ended September30,2023ispresentedasfollows: 
	Balanceat October1, 2022 
	Balanceat October1, 2022 
	Balanceat October1, 2022 
	Additions 
	Transfers andOther Adjustments 
	Retirements 
	Balanceat September30, 2023 

	GovernmentalActivities: Capitalassets,notbeing depreciated/amortized: Land Constructioninprogress 
	GovernmentalActivities: Capitalassets,notbeing depreciated/amortized: Land Constructioninprogress 
	$ 73,587,610 3,013,452 
	$ 
	 6,285,865 
	$ 
	 (2,730,640) 
	$ 
	  
	$ 
	73,587,610 6,568,677 

	Totalcapitalassets,not beingdepreciated/amortized 
	Totalcapitalassets,not beingdepreciated/amortized 
	76,601,062 
	6,285,865 
	(2,730,640) 
	 
	80,156,287 

	Capitalassets,beingdepreciated/ amortized: Infrastructure Buildingsandimprovements Landimprovements Machineryandequipment Intangibleassets RTU,SBITA 
	Capitalassets,beingdepreciated/ amortized: Infrastructure Buildingsandimprovements Landimprovements Machineryandequipment Intangibleassets RTU,SBITA 
	116,645,503 51,330,687 18,042,469 20,614,331  
	590,059 195,658 1,653,293 4,887,516 1,507,679 
	     
	   (53,516)  
	117,235,562 51,526,345 19,695,762 25,448,331 1,507,679 

	Totalcapitalassets,being depreciated/amortized 
	Totalcapitalassets,being depreciated/amortized 
	206,632,990 
	8,834,205 
	 
	(53,516) 
	215,413,679 

	Lessaccumulateddepreciation/ amortizationfor: Infrastructure Buildingsandimprovements Landimprovements Machineryandequipment Intangibleassets RTU,SBITA 
	Lessaccumulateddepreciation/ amortizationfor: Infrastructure Buildingsandimprovements Landimprovements Machineryandequipment Intangibleassets RTU,SBITA 
	(90,071,243) (15,884,288) (8,011,760) (17,173,545)  
	(2,360,375) (1,418,148) (911,394) (1,094,773) (603,105) 
	     
	     
	(92,431,618) (17,302,436) (8,923,154) (18,268,318) (603,105) 

	Totalaccumulateddepreciation/ amortization 
	Totalaccumulateddepreciation/ amortization 
	(131,140,836) 
	(6,387,795) 
	 
	 
	(137,528,631) 

	Totalcapitalassets,being depreciated/amortized,net 
	Totalcapitalassets,being depreciated/amortized,net 
	75,492,154 
	2,446,410 
	 
	(53,516) 
	77,885,048 

	Governmentalactivities capitalassets,net 
	Governmentalactivities capitalassets,net 
	$ 152,093,216 
	$ 
	8,732,275 
	$ 
	(2,730,640) 
	$ 
	(53,516) 
	$ 
	158,041,335 
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	  Note6CapitalAssets(continued) 
	 A summary of changes in the businesstype activities capital assets for the fiscal year ended September30,2023ispresentedasfollows: 
	Depreciationexpensewaschargedtothefollowingfunctions/programsasfollows: 
	Balance October1, 2022 
	Balance October1, 2022 
	Balance October1, 2022 
	Additions 
	Transfers andOther Adjustments 
	Retirements 
	Balance September30, 2023 

	BusinessTypeActivities: Capitalassets,notbeing depreciated/amortized: Constructioninprogress 
	BusinessTypeActivities: Capitalassets,notbeing depreciated/amortized: Constructioninprogress 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	5,424 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	5,424 

	Totalcapitalassets,not beingdepreciated/amortized 
	Totalcapitalassets,not beingdepreciated/amortized 
	 
	5,424 
	 
	 
	5,424 

	Capitalassets,beingdepreciated/ amortized: Infrastructure Buildingsandimprovements Machineryandequipment Intangibleassets RTU,SBITA 
	Capitalassets,beingdepreciated/ amortized: Infrastructure Buildingsandimprovements Machineryandequipment Intangibleassets RTU,SBITA 
	114,851,601 301,964 892,068  
	30,823 122,702 458,542 221,043 
	    
	    
	114,882,424 424,666 1,350,610 221,043 

	Totalcapitalassets,being depreciated/amortized 
	Totalcapitalassets,being depreciated/amortized 
	116,045,633 
	833,110 
	 
	 
	116,878,743 

	Lessaccumulateddepreciation/ amortizationfor: Infrastructure Buildingsandimprovements Machineryandequipment Intangibleassets RTU,SBITA 
	Lessaccumulateddepreciation/ amortizationfor: Infrastructure Buildingsandimprovements Machineryandequipment Intangibleassets RTU,SBITA 
	(69,278,576) (124,861) (754,436)  
	(2,398,896) (32,515) (134,767) (88,345) 
	    
	    
	(71,677,472) (157,376) (889,203) (88,345) 

	Totalaccumulateddepreciation/ amortization 
	Totalaccumulateddepreciation/ amortization 
	(70,157,873) 
	(2,654,523) 
	 
	 
	(72,812,396) 

	Totalcapitalassets,being depreciated/amortized,net 
	Totalcapitalassets,being depreciated/amortized,net 
	45,887,760 
	(1,821,413) 
	 
	 
	44,066,347 

	Businesstypeactivities capitalassets,net 
	Businesstypeactivities capitalassets,net 
	$ 
	45,887,760 
	$ 
	(1,815,989) 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	44,071,771 

	 
	 
	 


	Governmentalactivities: Generalgovernment $ 1,576,733 Publicsafety 737,844 Publicworks 2,458,913 Parksandrecreation 
	1,614,305 

	Totaldepreciation/amortization expensegovernmentalactivities $ 6,387,795 
	Businesstypeactivities: Waterandsewer $ 2,654,523 
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	  Note6CapitalAssets(continued) 
	 ConstructionCommitments  TheCityhasseveralactiveconstructionprojectsasofSeptember30,2023.Theremainingamounts committedfortheseprojectsareasfollows: 
	Remaining 
	In addition to the commitments above, the City has additional construction commitments of 
	Project 
	Project 
	Project 
	SpentToDate 
	Commitment 

	FireStationVehicle 
	FireStationVehicle 
	$ 
	 
	$ 2,902,495 

	FireStations,Improvements IndianTraceRoadwayImprovements IntersectionImprovements ITImprovementsLakesideSidewalkImprovement ParkImprovements ParkLightingImprovements PoliceServiceCenterImprovementsPumpStationReplacements RacquetClubRenovations RegionalParkPavilionRehabilitation RoadImprovementsforBikesandPedestrians RoadwayImprovements TequestaTraceParkImprovementsVistaParkImprovementsWestonCommunityCenter 
	FireStations,Improvements IndianTraceRoadwayImprovements IntersectionImprovements ITImprovementsLakesideSidewalkImprovement ParkImprovements ParkLightingImprovements PoliceServiceCenterImprovementsPumpStationReplacements RacquetClubRenovations RegionalParkPavilionRehabilitation RoadImprovementsforBikesandPedestrians RoadwayImprovements TequestaTraceParkImprovementsVistaParkImprovementsWestonCommunityCenter 
	443,884 216,675 1,459,298 517,441 298,204 166,791 1,198,042 265,330 612,202 1,164,234 569,909 705,126 492,202  72,199 579,549 
	135,225 141,606 823,411 66,451  661,915 168,293 764,995 445,933 264,433 38,751 564,530 491,942 296,000 27,250 105,648 

	Total 
	Total 
	$ 8,761,086 
	$ 4,996,383 

	 
	 
	 
	 


	approximately$1,200,000forvariousfutureprojectsthatareexpectedtobeginduringthenextfiscal year. 
	  Note7LongTermLiabilities 
	   AtSeptember30,2023,theCityhadnotespayableasfollows:  Previously, the City issued Series 1997 ITDD Bond of $41,635,000 and Series 2005 ITDD Bond of $46,380,000,withinterestratesrangingfrom2.50%to5.00%.Thesebondswereissuedtofinance theacquisitionandconstructionofcertaininfrastructurefacilitiesandimprovementsforthebenefit oftheIndianTraceDevelopmentDistrict.The2005BondswereissuedbyIndianTraceDevelopment DistrictforthepurposeofcurrentlyrefundingthethenSeries1995A1Bondsandadvancerefunding anddefeasingaportion
	NotesPayable
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	Note7LongTermLiabilities(continued) 
	 
	Previously,theCityissuedSeries2003IslesatWestonBondof$9,330,000,withainterestrateof 5.50%.Thisbondwasissuedtofinancetheacquisitionandconstructionofcertaininfrastructure facilitiesandimprovementsforthebenefitoftheIndianTraceDevelopmentDistrict.Duringtheyear endedSeptember30,2021,theCityissueda$5,510,000Series2021promissorynoteforthepurpose offullredemptionofthethenoutstandingSeries2003IslesofWestonBondsandpayingcostsof issuanceofthisnote.TheSeries2021IslesatWestonpromissorynotebearsfixedinterestatarate of2.3
	LongTermLiabilitiesActivity

	Balanceat October1, 2022 
	Balanceat October1, 2022 
	Balanceat October1, 2022 
	Additions 
	Reductions 
	Balanceat September30, 2023 
	Due WithinOne Year 

	Governmentalactivities: 
	Governmentalactivities: 

	2021ITDD,BasinI 2021IslesatWeston Weston SBITAagreements 
	2021ITDD,BasinI 2021IslesatWeston Weston SBITAagreements 
	$ 
	20,377,209 4,895,516  
	$ 
	  874,436 
	$ 
	(4,372,506) (415,286) (469,030) 
	$ 16,004,703 4,480,230 405,406 
	$ 
	4,459,966 425,286 405,406 

	Other: Compensated absences 
	Other: Compensated absences 
	334,103 
	285,590 
	(170,653) 
	449,040 
	84,649 

	TR
	$ 
	25,606,828 
	$ 
	1,160,026 
	$ 
	(5,427,475) 
	$ 21,339,379 
	$ 
	5,375,307 

	Businesstypeactivities: 
	Businesstypeactivities: 

	SBITAagreements 
	SBITAagreements 
	 
	128,310 
	(69,157) 
	59,153 
	59,153 

	TR
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	128,310 
	$ 
	(69,157) 
	$ 59,153 
	$ 
	59,153 
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	Note7LongTermLiabilities(continued) 
	 Theaggregateannualdebtservicerequirementsestimatedtomaturityisasfollows: 
	YearEndingTotal 
	September30, Principal Interest 

	2024 $ 4,885,252 $ 388,641 $ 5,273,893 2025 4,984,926 288,967 5,273,893 2026 5,086,640 187,253 5,273,893 2027 2,811,873 89,360 2,901,233 2028 467,817 60,755 528,572 20292033 
	2,248,425 129,800 2,378,225 

	$ 20,484,933 $ 1,144,776 $ 21,629,709 
	  
	 
	Note8–SubscriptionsPayable 
	 For the year ended September 30, 2023, the financial statements include the adoption of GASB StatementNo.96,SubscriptionBasedInformationTechnologyArrangements(SBITAs).Theprimary objective of this statement is to enhance the relevance and consistency of information about governments' subscription activities. This statement establishes a single model for subscription accountingbasedontheprinciplethatsubscriptionsarefinancingsoftherighttouseanunderlying asset.UnderthisStatement,anorganizationisrequiredtorecog
	    
	Note9RiskManagement  
	TheCityisexposedtorisksoflossrelatedtotorts;theftof,damageto,anddestructionofassets; errorsandomissions;illnessofandinjuriestoemployees;andnaturaldisasters.  TheCitypurchasedaninsurancepolicythatprovidedcoverageofupto$1,000,000maximumfor each general liability occurrence for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023. Other insurance policiescarriedbyCityduringthefiscalyearincluded:automobile,crime,environmentalliability, inland marine, property (building and contents), public officials liability/employment p
	 
	CityofWeston,Florida NotestoFinancialStatements September30,2023 
	  
	Note10CommitmentsandContingencies 
	   AnagreementbetweentheCityofSunriseandITDDwasexecutedonJune30,1993,foratermof30 yearswithanoptiontorenewforanadditional30years.TheCityofSunriseagreestosupplywater andsewerservicetoITDDandprovidetherelatedbillingandcollectionservicestoITDD’scustomers basedontheCityofSunrise’sratestructure.ThecustomersremainwithITDD,butITDDisperforming onlycertainservicesundertheagreement.DuringtheyearendedSeptember30,2023,theCity exercisedtheoptiontorenewtheagreementforanother30years.  Grants  Amounts received or receivabl
	CityofSunriseWaterandSewerServicesAgreement
	BrowardSheriff’sOfficeEmergencyMedical,FireProtectionandPreventionServicesAgreement
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	Note10CommitmentsandContingencies(continued)    On July 1, 2019, the City Commission approved an agreement with the Broward Sheriff’s Office (“BSO”)forpoliceservices.TheagreementtermisfromOctober1,2019throughSeptember30,2024 andisrenewableforonefiveyeartermupontheCityandBSOagreeingtoarenewalandtheterms andconditionsrelatedthereto.Theagreementmaybeterminatedbyeitherpartybygivingnofewer than90dayswrittennoticetotheotherpartyinaccordancewithcertainprovisionscontainedwithin the contract. Under this agreement, B
	BrowardSheriff’sOfficePoliceServicesAgreement
	CalvinGiordanoandAssociatesProfessionalServicesAgreement
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	Note10CommitmentsandContingencies(continued) 
	 OnSeptember21,2009,theCityCommissionapprovedanamendmenttotheagreementtoinclude theprovisionthecodeenforcementservicesatafixedmonthlycostof$13,917.  OnAugust17,2015,theCityCommissionapprovedanamendmenttotheagreementtoupdatethe scopeofservices,feesandtoincludeprovisionsrelatingtotheleaseofCityvehicles.Thecontractor wascompensatedunderthiscontractbasedonamonthlystandardfeeandanhourlyfeeschedule structure,basedonseveralservicecategories,forwhichbothweresubjecttoamaximumannual increase based on the twelvemonth 
	 OnAugust15,2016,theCityCommissionapprovedanamendmenttotheagreementtoremove sectionsdealingwithengineering,surveyandwetlandsmanagementservicesastheCityprocured thoseservicesfromotherengineeringfirmsviaarequestforqualifications.  On March20,2017, the CityCommissionapprovedan amendmentto theagreementto remove sections dealing with fixed fees and modify other sections of the agreement including and establishing a new and annually adjusted multiplier for designated employees performing supplementalservices.Thef
	CAPGovernmentBuildingCodeServicesAgreement
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	Note10CommitmentsandContingencies(continued) 
	   TheCitypreviouslyenteredintoanagreementwithacontractortoprovidefortechnologyservices as follows: desktop, server, application, telecom, infrastructure, document and records management,businessprocess,procurementandadditionalCityprojects.Thisagreementhadno expirationdate;however,theCitycouldterminatethiscontractwithorwithoutcauseimmediately uponwrittennoticewhilethecontractorcouldterminatethiscontractwithin180daysuponwritten noticepriortotermination.  OnAugust20,2007,theCityCommissionapprovedanamendmentto
	MunicipalTechnologiesAdministrativeandTechnologyServicesAgreement
	RepublicServicesofFloridaSolidWasteServicesAgreement
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	 Note10CommitmentsandContingencies(continued) 
	 OnMarch5,2024,theCityCommissionapprovedanagreementtoextendtheservicestoMarch31, 2029,withone(1)optionalfive(5)yearrenewalbymutualconsent.    Variousclaimsandlawsuits,whichariseinthenormalcourseofoperations,arependingagainstthe City.Itismanagement'sopinion,basedontheadviceoftheCityAttorney,thattheoutcomeofthese actions, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements of the City. Management also believesthatany possibleadverse effect of litigation against the City will be covered
	Legal

	GeneralFund 
	GeneralFund 
	GeneralFund 
	$ 993,190 

	IndianTraceDevelopmentDistrictFund BonaventureDevelopmentDistrictFund FireServicesFund 
	IndianTraceDevelopmentDistrictFund BonaventureDevelopmentDistrictFund FireServicesFund 
	337,296 22,556 298,250 

	CapitalProjectsFund WaterandSewerFund 
	CapitalProjectsFund WaterandSewerFund 
	7,136,776 171,642 

	StreetMaintenanceFundnonmajorfund BuildingFeeFundnonmajorfund 
	StreetMaintenanceFundnonmajorfund BuildingFeeFundnonmajorfund 
	39,293 3,884 

	TR
	$ 9,002,887 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 


	Note11EmployeeRetirementPlans 
	   :AsprovidedbyChapters121and112,FloridaStatutes,theFloridaRetirement System(“FRS”)providestwocostsharing,multipleemployerdefinedbenefitplansadministeredby theFloridaDepartmentofManagementServices,DivisionofRetirement,includingtheFRSPension Plan(“PensionPlan”)andtheRetireeHealthInsuranceSubsidy(“HISPlan”).MembershipintheFRS fortheCityincludesonlycertainelectedmembersoftheCityCommissionasofSeptember30,2023. TheFRSprovidesretirementanddisabilitybenefits,annualcostoflivingadjustments,anddeath benefits to plan
	FloridaRetirementSystem
	GeneralInformation
	theWebsite:www.dms.myflorida.com/workforce_operations/retirement/publications. 

	PensionPlan 
	 :ThePensionPlanisacostsharingmultipleemployerdefinedbenefitpensionplan, withaDeferredRetirementOptionProgram(“DROP”)foreligibleemployees. 
	PlanDescription
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	 Note11–EmployeeRetirementPlans(continued) 
	 :BenefitsunderthePensionPlanarecomputedonthebasisofage,averagefinal compensation,andservicecredit.ElectedOfficers’classmemberswhoretireatorafterage62with at least six years of creditable service or 30 years of service regardless of age are entitled to a retirementbenefitpayablemonthlyforlife,equalto3.0%timestheyearsofservicetimestheirfinal averagecompensationbasedonthefivehighestyearsofsalaryforeachyearofcreditableservice.  ForPlanmembersenrolledonorafterJuly1,2011,thevestingrequirementisextendedtoeight ye
	BenefitsProvided
	Contributions

	 
	HISPlan

	 : TheHIS Plan is a costsharing multipleemployer defined benefit pension plan establishedunderSection112.363,FloridaStatutes,andmaybeamendedbytheFloridaLegislature atanytime.ThebenefitisamonthlypaymenttoassistretireesofStateadministeredretirement systemsinpayingtheirhealthinsurancecostsandisadministeredbytheFloridaDepartmentof ManagementServices,DivisionofRetirement.  :ForthefiscalyearendedSeptember30,2023,eligibleretireesandbeneficiaries receivedamonthlyHISpaymentof$5foreachyearofcreditableservicecompleted
	Plan Description
	BenefitsProvided
	Contributions
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	  Note11–EmployeeRetirementPlans(continued) 
	 
	 :AtSeptember30,2023,theCityreportedaliabilityof$241,177for itsproportionateshareofthePensionPlan’snetpensionliabilityand$23,337fortheHISPlan’snet pensionliabilityforatotalpensionliabilityof$264,514.Thenetpensionliabilitywasmeasuredasof June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determinedbyanactuarialvaluationasofJuly1,2023.AtJune30,2023,theCity’sproportionate sharewas.000605259percentforthePensionPlanand.000146947percentfortheHISPlan,which wasadecreaseof
	PensionLiabilities,PensionExpense,andDeferredOutflowsofResourcesandDeferredInflowsof
	ResourcesRelatedtoPensions

	 
	AtSeptember30,2023,theCityreporteddeferredoutflowsofresourcesanddeferredinflowsof resourcesrelatedtopensionsfromthefollowingsources: DeferredOutflowsofResources Pension HIS Description Plan Plan Total 
	Differencesbetweenexpected andactualexperience $ 22,644 $ 342 $ 22,986 
	Changesofassumptions 15,722 614 16,336 
	Netdifferencebetweenprojected andactualearningsonpension planinvestments 10,072 12 10,084 
	Changesinproportionanddifferences betweenCitycontributions andproportionateshareof contributions 13,011 605 13,616 
	Citycontributionssubsequent tothemeasurementdate 
	7,623 302 7,925 

	Total $ 69,072 $ 1,875 $ 70,947  
	DeferredInflowsofResources Pension HIS Description Plan Plan Total 
	Differencesbetweenexpectedand actualexperience $  $ (55) $ (55) 
	Changesofassumptions  (2,022) (2,022) 
	Changesinproportionanddifferences betweenCitycontributionsand proportionateshareofcontributions 
	(35,238) (1,831) (37,069) 

	Total $ (35,238) $ (3,908) $ (39,146) 
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	 Note11–EmployeeRetirementPlans(continued) 
	 Deferred outflows of resources related to employer contributions paid subsequent to the measurementdateandpriortotheemployer’sfiscalyearendwillberecognizedasareductionof thenetpensionliabilityinthesubsequentreportingperiodendingSeptember30,2024.Theamounts reportedasdeferredoutflowsofresourcesanddeferredinflowsofresourcesrelatedtotheFRSPlan 
	Actuarial Assumptions: The Florida Retirement System Actuarial Assumption Conference is 
	willberecognizedinpensionexpenseasfollows: 
	willberecognizedinpensionexpenseasfollows: 
	willberecognizedinpensionexpenseasfollows: 

	TR
	YearEndingSeptember30, 
	PensionPlan 
	HISPlan 
	Total 

	TR
	2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Thereafter 
	$ (2,610) $ (12,413) $ 34,925 $ 4,478 $ 1,831 $  
	$ $ $ $ $ $ 
	(459)(367)(538)(613)(325)(33) 
	$ $ $ $ $ $ 
	(3,069) (12,780)34,387 3,865 1,506 (33) 

	 
	 
	 
	 


	responsible for setting the assumptions used in the funding valuations of both pension plans pursuant to section 216.136 (10), Florida Statutes. The Pension Plan’s valuation is performed annually.TheHISPlanhasavaluationperformedbienniallythatisupdatedforGASBreportinginthe year a valuation is not performed. The most recent experience study for the Pension Plan was completedin2019fortheperiodJuly1,2013,throughJune30,2018.BecausetheHISPlanisfunded onapayasyougobasis,noexperiencestudyhasbeencompletedforthatprog
	PensionPlan HISPlan 
	Inflation 
	Inflation 
	Inflation 
	2.40% 
	2.40% 

	Salaryincreases Investmentrate ofreturn Actuarialcostmethod Mortalitytable 
	Salaryincreases Investmentrate ofreturn Actuarialcostmethod Mortalitytable 
	3.25%,average,includinginflation 6.70%,netofpensionplaninvestment expense,includinginflation Individualentryage PUB2010withProjectionScale MP2018 
	3.25%,average,includinginflation N/A Individualentryage PUB2010withProjectionScale MP2018 
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	  Note11–EmployeeRetirementPlans(continued) 
	 : The longterm expected rate of return on Pension Plan investmentswasnotbasedonhistoricalreturns,butinsteadisbasedonaforwardlookingcapital marketeconomicmodel.Theallocationpolicy’sdescriptionofeachassetclasswasusedtomapthe target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistentsetofunderlyingassumptionsandincludesanadjustmentfortheinflationassumption. Thetargetallocationandbestestimatesofarithmeticandgeometricrealratesofreturnforeach majorassetclassaresummar
	Longterm Expected Rate of Return

	Compound 
	Target 
	Target 
	Target 
	Annual 
	Annual 

	Allocation 
	Allocation 
	Arithmetic 
	(Geometric) 
	Standard 

	AssetClass 
	AssetClass 
	(1) 
	Return 
	Return 
	Deviation 

	Cash 
	Cash 
	1.0% 
	2.9% 
	2.9% 
	1.1% 

	Fixedincome 
	Fixedincome 
	19.8% 
	4.5% 
	4.4% 
	3.4% 

	Globalequity 
	Globalequity 
	54.0% 
	8.7% 
	7.1% 
	18.1% 

	Realestate 
	Realestate 
	10.3% 
	7.6% 
	6.6% 
	14.8% 

	Privateequity 
	Privateequity 
	11.1% 
	11.9% 
	8.8% 
	26.3% 

	Strategicinvestments 
	Strategicinvestments 
	3.8% 
	6.3% 
	6.1% 
	7.7% 

	Total 
	Total 
	100.0% 

	Assumedinflationmean 
	Assumedinflationmean 
	2.4% 
	1.4% 


	(1) AsoutlinedinthePlan'sinvestmentpolicy  
	: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.70% for the PensionPlan.ThePensionPlan’sfiduciarynetpositionwasprojectedtobeavailabletomakeall projectedfuturebenefitpaymentsofcurrentactiveandinactiveemployees.Therefore,thediscount rateforcalculatingofthetotalpensionliabilityisequaltothelongtermexpectedrateofreturn.  Thediscountrateusedtomeasurethetotalpensionliabilitywas3.65%fortheHISPlan.Ingeneral, the discount rate for calculating the HIS Plan’s total pension liability is equal to th
	Discount Rate

	  :ThefollowingtablepresentsthesensitivityoftheCity’sproportionateshareofthenetpension liabilitytochangesinthediscountrate.Thesensitivityanalysis,below,showstheimpacttotheCity’s proportionateshareofthenetpensionliabilityifthediscountratewas1.00%loweror1.00%higher thanthecurrentdiscountrate: 
	SensitivityoftheCity’sProportionateShareoftheNetPositionLiabilitytoChangesintheDiscount
	Rate

	Current 1% DiscountRate 1% Decrease Assumption Increase 
	(5.70%) (6.70%) (7.70%) 

	City'sproportionateshareof 
	thenetpensionliabilityfor 
	PensionPlan $ 411,979 $ 241,177 $ 98,280 
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	  Note11–EmployeeRetirementPlans(continued) 
	Current 
	1% 
	1% 
	1% 
	DiscountRate 
	1% 

	Decrease (2.65%) 
	Decrease (2.65%) 
	Assumption(3.65%) 
	Increase (4.65%) 

	City'sproportionateshareof thenetpensionliabilityfor HISPlan 
	City'sproportionateshareof thenetpensionliabilityfor HISPlan 
	$ 26,624 
	$ 23,337 
	$ 20,613 

	InvestmentPlan: 
	InvestmentPlan: 
	 

	 
	 


	TheSBA(StateBoardofAdministration)administeredthedefinedcontributionplanofficiallytitled theFRSInvestmentPlan.TheInvestmentPlanisreportedintheSBA’sannualfinancialstatements andintheStateofFloridaAnnualComprehensiveFinancialReport.  AsprovidedinSection121.4501,FloridaStatutes,eligibleFRSmembersmayelecttoparticipatein theInvestmentPlaninlieuoftheFRSDefinedBenefitPlan.CityemployeesparticipatinginDROP are not eligible to participate in the Investment Plan. Employer and employee contributions, including amounts 
	Class AllocationRate 
	ElectedOfficials 16.34%  
	Fortheelectedofficialsclass,membersareimmediatelyvestedintheirowncontributionsandare vested after required service years for employer contributions and investment earnings. If an accumulatedbenefitobligationforservicecreditoriginallyearnedunderthePensionPlanvesting istransferredto theInvestmentPlan,the membermust havetheyearsof servicerequired for PensionPlanvesting(includingtheservicecreditrepresentedbythetransferredfunds)tobevested forthesefundsandtheearningsonthesefunds.Nonvestedemployercontributionsarep
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	Note11–EmployeeRetirementPlans(continued) 
	After termination and applying to receive benefits, the member may rollover vested funds to anotherqualifiedplan,structureaperiodicpaymentundertheInvestmentPlan,receivealump sum distribution, leave the funds invested for future distribution, or any combination of these options.Disabilitycoverageisprovided;themembermayeithertransfertheaccountbalanceto thePensionPlanwhenapprovedfordisabilityretirementtoreceiveguaranteedlifetimemonthly benefits under the Pension Plan, or remain in the Investment Plan and rely 
	The City’s contributions to for the Investment Plan totaled $14,691 for the fiscal year ended September30,2023. 
	 
	DeferredCompensationPlans

	A defined contribution pension plan provides pension benefits in return for services rendered, provides an individual account for each participant, and specifies how contributions to the individual’saccountaretobedeterminedinsteadofspecifyingtheamountofbenefitstheindividual is to receive. Under a defined contribution pension plan, the benefits a participant will receive depend solely on the amount contributed to the participant’s account, the returns earned on investments of those contributions, and forfeit
	Pursuanttoresolutionnumber9720,theCityadoptedapensionplanandtrustforthesolebenefit oftheemployeesoftheCity.TheCitycontributestoaMoneyPurchasePlan(“MPP”),whichisa definedcontributionpensionplan.TheCity’scontributionsandrelatedearningsare100%vested immediatelyafteracceptanceofemployment.MPPparticipantsarenotrequiredtocontributeasa conditionofparticipationinMPP. 
	TheemployercontributionratesfromOctober1,2022throughJune30,2023andfromJuly1,2023 throughSeptember30,2023,respectivelywere31.57%and34.52%.Thecontributionrequirement andactualcontributionsmadeforthefiscalyearendedSeptember30,2023wasapproximately $675,700.UnderMPP,allassetsandincomeofMPPareheldintrustfortheexclusivebenefitofthe participants.TheCitydoesnotexerciseanycontrolorfiduciaryresponsibilityovertheMPPassets. Accordingly,theassetsandliabilitiesofMPParenotincludedintheCity’sfinancialstatements. 
	Inaddition,andpursuanttoresolution9721,theCityoffersitsemployeesanoptionaldeferred compensation plan. The City has adopted the provisions of IRS Code Section 457(g) and GASB Statement No. 32, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for IRS Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans” and GASB Statement 84, “Fiduciary Activities.” Under these provisions, all assetsandincomeoftheplanareheldintrustfortheexclusivebenefitofparticipants.TheCitydoes notexerciseanycontrolorfiduciaryresponsibilityoverthe457(g)assets.Ac
	BothdeferredcompensationplansareadministeredbytheICMARetirementCorporation. 
	Note12OtherPostEmploymentBenefits(OPEB) 
	TheCitydoesnotprovideanypostretirementbenefitstoemployees.Inaddition,theCityassigns both eligible active employees and eligible retirees equal, age adjusted premiums and makes available to both groups the same plan options. Since both groups are assigned the same age adjusted premiums, there is no implicit City subsidy, and there is no remaining City liability to recognizeunderGASBStatementNo.75,“AccountingandFinancialReportingbyEmployersforPost EmploymentBenefitsOtherThanPensions.” 
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	Note13PronouncementsIssued,ButNotYetAdopted 
	TheGASBhasissuedseveralStatementsnotyetimplementedbytheCity.TheStatementswhich mightimpacttheCityareasfollows: 
	Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022, was issued in April 2022. This Statement will enhance comparability in accounting andfinancialreporting and improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees.SomeprovisionsofthisStatementareeffectiveimmediately,andotherswilltakeeffect forfiscalyearsendingSeptember30,2023,and2024. 
	StatementNo.100AccountingChangesandErrorCorrectionsanamendmentofGASBStatement No. 62, wasissuedin June2022. This Statementwill enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing accountability.TheprovisionsofthisStatementareeffectiveforfiscalyearendingSeptember30, 2024. 
	StatementNo. 101 CompensatedAbsences, was issued inJune2022.ThisStatementwillaimto bettermeetthe informationneedsoffinancial statementusers byupdating therecognition and measurement guidance for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognitionandmeasurementguidanceunderaunifiedmodelandbyamendingcertainpreviously requireddisclosures.TheprovisionsofthisStatementareeffectiveforfiscalyearendingSeptember 30,2025. 
	TheCity’smanagementhasnotyetdeterminedtheeffecttheseStatementswillhaveontheCity’s financialstatements. 





	REQUIREDSUPPLEMENTARYINFORMATION 
	REQUIREDSUPPLEMENTARYINFORMATION 
	CityofWeston,Florida RequiredSupplementaryInformation ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualGeneralFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	Variance WithFinal Budget 
	BudgetedAmounts Actual Positive Original Final Amounts Revenues: 
	(Negative) 

	Propertytaxes $ 33,508,500 $ 33,508,500 $ 33,805,455 $ 296,955 Franchisefeesandutilitytaxes 14,031,800 14,031,800 16,787,739 2,755,939 Businesstaxreceipts 1,000,000 1,000,000 940,476 (59,524) Permitsandfees 385,000 385,000 227,214 (157,786) Intergovernmental 6,798,400 6,798,400 8,615,569 1,817,169 Chargesforservices 1,680,000 1,680,000 2,331,038 651,038 Fineandforfeitures 250,000 250,000 405,386 155,386 Investmentincome(loss) 284,600 645,500 1,050,295 404,795 Otherrevenues 450,000 450,000 518,791 68,791 
	Totalrevenues 
	58,388,300 58,749,200 64,681,963 5,932,763 

	Expenditures: 
	Expenditures: 
	Expenditures: 

	Generalgovernment: Citycommission 297,600 297,600 276,979 20,621 Executive 2,138,100 2,138,100 1,195,388 942,712 Financeandadministration 5,441,400 5,441,400 4,210,644 1,230,756 Legalcounsel 
	746,500 746,500 741,539 4,961 

	Totalgeneralgovernment 
	8,623,600 8,623,600 6,424,550 2,199,050 

	Publicsafety: Lawenforcement 17,803,000 17,803,000 16,137,628 1,665,372 Ambulanceandrescueservice 13,611,800 13,611,800 13,551,330 60,470 Other 
	681,300 681,300 658,478 22,822 

	Totalpublicsafety 
	32,096,100 32,096,100 30,347,436 1,748,664 

	Parksandrecreation: Personalservices 449,400 449,400 494,480 (45,080) Operatingexpenditures 
	8,916,200 9,277,100 9,310,846 (33,746) 

	Totalparksandrecreation 
	9,365,600 9,726,500 9,805,326 (78,826) 

	CommunityDevelopment: Operatingexpenditures 
	2,063,000 2,063,000 1,622,116 440,884 

	Totalcommunitydevelopment 
	2,063,000 2,063,000 1,622,116 440,884 

	Capitaloutlay 
	127,600 127,600 1,849,891 (1,722,291) 

	Totalcapitaloutlay 
	127,600 127,600 1,849,891 (1,722,291) 

	Debtservice Principal   276,318 (276,318) Interest  
	 
	9,977 (9,977) 

	Totaldebtservice  
	 
	286,295 (286,295) 

	Totalexpenditures 
	52,275,900 52,636,800 50,335,614 2,301,186 

	Excess(deficiency)ofrevenuesoverexpenditures 
	6,112,400 6,112,400 14,346,349 8,233,949 


	OtherFinancingSources(Uses): 
	OtherFinancingSources(Uses): 
	OtherFinancingSources(Uses): 

	 
	 
	 
	Subscriptionbasedproceeds Transfersin Transfersout Useoffundbalance 
	  (6,490,000) 377,600 
	 279,100 (6,490,000) 98,500 
	887,264 329,100 (6,769,100)  
	887,264 50,000 (279,100) (98,500) 

	TR
	Totalotherfinancingsources(uses) 
	(6,112,400) 
	(6,112,400) 
	(5,552,736) 
	559,664 

	TR
	Netchangeinfundbalance 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	8,793,613 
	$ 
	8,793,613 

	TR
	 


	*ThenetchangesinfundbalanceoftheCity’sGeneralFundisreportedintheGeneralFundforbudgetarypurposesbutiscombinedwiththeCity’sDisaster ManagementFundforthepurposeoftheStatementofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalances–GovernmentalFunds. 
	CityofWeston,Florida RequiredSupplementaryInformation ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualIndianTraceDevelopmentDistrictFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	Revenues: Intergovernmental Investmentincome(loss) Specialassessments Otherrevenues 
	Revenues: Intergovernmental Investmentincome(loss) Specialassessments Otherrevenues 
	Revenues: Intergovernmental Investmentincome(loss) Specialassessments Otherrevenues 
	$ 
	BudgetedAmounts Original Final 1,527,500 $ 1,527,500 165,100 165,100 17,038,200 17,038,200   
	$ 
	Actual Amounts 365,700 693,589 17,293,097 214,663 
	$ 
	Variance WithFinal Budget Positive (Negative) (1,161,800) 528,489 254,897 214,663 

	Totalrevenues 
	Totalrevenues 
	18,730,800 
	18,730,800 
	18,567,049 
	(163,751) 

	Expenditures:Current: Publicsafety Publicworks Capitaloutlay Debtservice Principal Interest 
	Expenditures:Current: Publicsafety Publicworks Capitaloutlay Debtservice Principal Interest 
	2,861,600 14,953,200 356,300   
	2,861,600 14,953,200 356,300   
	2,777,647 14,447,123 841,269 129,097 4,411 
	83,953 506,077 (484,969) (129,097) (4,411) 

	TR
	Totalexpenditures 
	18,171,100 
	18,171,100 
	18,199,547 
	(28,447) 

	TR
	Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditures 
	559,700 
	559,700 
	367,502 
	(192,198) 

	TR
	OtherFinancingSources(Uses):Subscriptionbasedproceeds Transfersout Useoffundbalance 
	 (2,955,000) 23,900 
	 (2,955,000) 23,900 
	240,544 (2,955,000)  
	240,544  (23,900) 

	TR
	Totalotherfinancing sources(uses) 
	(2,931,100) 
	(2,931,100) 
	(2,714,456) 
	216,644 

	TR
	Netchangein fundbalance 
	$ 
	(2,371,400) 
	$ 
	(2,371,400) 
	$ 
	(2,346,954) 
	$ 
	24,446 

	 
	 
	 


	  
	  
	  
	CityofWeston,Florida RequiredSupplementaryInformation ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualBonaventureDevelopmentDistrictFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 BudgetedAmounts Original Final Revenues: Intergovernmental $ 222,500 $ 222,500 Investmentincome(loss) 36,300 36,300 Specialassessments 3,028,200 3,028,200 Otherrevenues   Totalrevenues 3,287,000 3,287,000 Expenditures:Current Publicsafety 842,400 842,400 Publicworks 2,209,600 2,313,200 Capitaloutlay 26,100 26,100 Debtse
	$ $ 
	Actual Amounts  146,723 3,035,389 34,776 3,216,888 818,544 2,119,445 78,314 20,636 704 3,037,643 179,245 38,451 (445,000)  (406,549) (227,304) 
	$ $ 
	Variance WithFinal BudgetPositive (Negative) (222,500) 110,423 7,189 34,776 (70,112) 23,856 193,755 (52,214) (20,636) (704) 144,057 73,945 38,451  339,700 378,151 452,096 
	 


	CityofWeston,Florida RequiredSupplementaryInformation ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualFireServicesFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 Budgeted Original Final Revenues: Investmentincome(loss) $ 14,500 $ 14,500 Specialassessments 17,476,200 17,476,200 Otherrevenues   Totalrevenues 17,490,700 17,490,700 Expenditures:Current Publicsafety 17,490,000 17,490,000 Capitaloutlay 700 700 Debtservice Principal   Interest   Totalexpenditures 17,490,700 17,490,700 Excess(deficiency)
	CityofWeston,Florida RequiredSupplementaryInformation ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualFireServicesFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 Budgeted Original Final Revenues: Investmentincome(loss) $ 14,500 $ 14,500 Specialassessments 17,476,200 17,476,200 Otherrevenues   Totalrevenues 17,490,700 17,490,700 Expenditures:Current Publicsafety 17,490,000 17,490,000 Capitaloutlay 700 700 Debtservice Principal   Interest   Totalexpenditures 17,490,700 17,490,700 Excess(deficiency)
	CityofWeston,Florida RequiredSupplementaryInformation ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualFireServicesFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 Budgeted Original Final Revenues: Investmentincome(loss) $ 14,500 $ 14,500 Specialassessments 17,476,200 17,476,200 Otherrevenues   Totalrevenues 17,490,700 17,490,700 Expenditures:Current Publicsafety 17,490,000 17,490,000 Capitaloutlay 700 700 Debtservice Principal   Interest   Totalexpenditures 17,490,700 17,490,700 Excess(deficiency)
	Variance WithFinal BudgetActual Positive Amounts (Negative) $ 230,066 $ 215,566 17,729,405 253,205 19,108 19,108 17,978,579 487,879 17,385,339 104,661 289,044 (288,344) 14,024 (14,024) 479 (479) 17,688,886 (198,186) 289,693 289,693 26,131 26,131 (2,000,000) (2,000,000) (1,973,869) (1,973,869) $ (1,684,176) $ (1,684,176)  


	CityofWeston,Florida RequiredSupplementaryInformation NotestoBudgetaryComparisonSchedules September30,2023 
	BudgetsandBudgetaryAccounting: 
	The following procedures are used to establish the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 
	FloridaStatutesrequirethatallCitygovernmentsprepare,approve,adoptandexecuteanannual budget for such funds as may be required by law or by sound financial practices and generally acceptedaccountingprinciples.Accordingly,theCityhasestablishedbudgetingprocedures. 
	PriortoAugust15,managementsubmitstotheCityCommissionproposedoperatingbudgetsforthe fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The operating budgets include proposed expendituresandthemeansoffinancingthem.DuringSeptember,publichearingsareconductedto obtain citizen comments on the tentative budgets and proposed millage. The final budgets are preparedandlegallyadoptedthroughpassageofaresolutionpriortoSeptember30. 
	Annualappropriatedbudgetsareadoptedforallfunds.Budgetsarepreparedonabasisconsistent withaccountingprinciplesgenerallyacceptedintheUnitedStatesofAmerica(GAAP).Allannual appropriationslapseatfiscalyearend. 
	Transfersofappropriationswithinafundoradepartmentcanbeperformedbymanagement.Only supplementalappropriationsrequiretheapprovaloftheCityCommission.Thelegallevelofcontrol isthefundlevel,exceptfortheGeneralFundwhoselegallevelofcontrolisthedepartmentlevel. 
	CityofWeston,Florida RequiredSupplementaryInformation ScheduleofProportionateShareofNetPensionLiability Last10FiscalYears (Unaudited) 
	ScheduleoftheCity'sProportionateShareoftheNetPensionLiability FloridaRetirementSystemPensionPlan Last10Years(1) 
	2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 
	2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

	City'sproportionoftheFRSnetpensionliability 0.000605% 0.000558% 0.000630% 0.000724% 0.000831% 0.000785% 0.000769% 0.000848% 0.000878% 0.000707% City'sproportionateshareoftheFRSnet pensionliability $ 241,177 $ 207,753 $ 47,621 $ 313,934 $ 286,173 $ 236,461 $ 227,456 $ 214,036 $ 113,341 $ 43,115 City'scoveredpayroll $ 58,217 $ 54,749 $ 56,381 $ 53,283 $ 46,342 $ 43,000 $ 46,333 $ 53,000 $ 53,000 $ 53,000 City'sproportionoftheFRSnetpensionliability asapercentageofitscoveredpayroll 414% 379% 84% 589% 618% 550% 
	ScheduleoftheCity'sProportionateShareoftheNetPensionLiability HealthInsuranceSubsidyPensionPlan Last10Years(1) 
	2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 
	2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 

	City'sproportionoftheHISnetpensionliability 0.000147% 0.000150% 0.000159% 0.000154% 0.000170% 0.000162% 0.000161% 0.000172% 0.000175% 0.000178% City'sproportionateshareoftheHISnetpension liability $ 23,337 $ 15,912 $ 19,538 $ 18,748 $ 19,020 $ 17,171 $ 17,216 $ 20,004 $ 17,816 $ 16,679 City'scoveredpayrollliability $ 58,217 $ 54,749 $ 56,381 $ 53,283 $ 46,342 $ 43,000 $ 46,333 $ 53,000 $ 53,000 $ 53,000 City'sproportionoftheHISnetpensionliability asapercentageofitscoveredpayroll 40.09% 29.06% 34.65% 35.19% 
	(1) Theamountspresentedforeachyearweredeterminedasofthemeasurementdate,June30. 
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	CityofWeston,Florida RequiredSupplementaryInformation ScheduleofCityContributions Last10FiscalYears* (Unaudited) 
	ScheduleoftheCityContributions FloridaRetirementSystemPensionPlan Last10FiscalYears 
	2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 
	2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

	ContractuallyrequiredFRS contribution $ 29,854 $ 24,832 $ 23,800 $ 24,189 $ 21,529 $ 19,080 $ 18,880 $ 23,154 $ 22,822 FRScontributionsinrelation tothecontractuallyrequired contribution FRScontributiondeficiency (excess) $  $  $  $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	(29,854) (24,832) (23,800) (24,189) (21,529) (19,080) (18,880) (23,154) (22,822) 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	City'scoveredpayroll $ 59,568 $ 54,939 $ 56,568 $ 53,447 $ 45,742 $ 43,000 $ 46,333 $ 53,000 $ 53,000 FRScontributionsasa percentageofcoveredpayroll 50.12% 45.20% 42.07% 45.26% 47.07% 44.37% 40.75% 43.69% 43.06% 
	City'scoveredpayroll $ 59,568 $ 54,939 $ 56,568 $ 53,447 $ 45,742 $ 43,000 $ 46,333 $ 53,000 $ 53,000 FRScontributionsasa percentageofcoveredpayroll 50.12% 45.20% 42.07% 45.26% 47.07% 44.37% 40.75% 43.69% 43.06% 

	ScheduleoftheCityContributions HealthInsuranceSubsidyPensionPlan Last10FiscalYears 
	2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 
	2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 

	ContractuallyrequiredHIS contribution $ 1,040 $ 913 939 $ 887 $ 759 $ 714 $ 769 $ 880 $ 774 HIScontributionsinrelation tothecontractuallyrequired contribution (913) (939) (887) (759) (714) (769) (880) (774) HIScontributiondeficiency (excess) $  $   $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	(1,040) 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	City'scoveredpayroll $ 59,568 $ 54,939 56,568 $ 53,447 $ 45,742 $ 43,000 $ 46,333 $ 53,000 $ 53,000 HIScontributionsasa percentageofcoveredpayroll 1.75% 1.66% 1.66% 1.66% 1.66% 1.66% 1.66% 1.66% 1.46% 
	*Thisscheduleisintendedtopresentinformationfortenyears.However,untiltenyeartrendiscompiled,thepensionplanwill presentinformationforthoseyearsforwhichinformationisavailable. 
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	COMBININGANDINDIVIDUALFUND FINANCIALSTATEMENTSANDSCHEDULES 
	COMBININGANDINDIVIDUALFUND FINANCIALSTATEMENTSANDSCHEDULES 
	NONMAJORGOVERNMENTALFUNDS 
	NONMAJORGOVERNMENTALFUNDS 
	NONMAJORGOVERNMENTALFUNDS 

	 
	 

	 
	 
	SpecialRevenueFunds 

	 
	 

	Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restrictedforexpendituresofparticularpurposes,activitiesorprojects.  
	Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restrictedforexpendituresofparticularpurposes,activitiesorprojects.  

	 
	 
	StreetMaintenanceFundThisfundaccountsforresources(staterevenuesharingand certainlocaloptiongastaxes)whoseexpendituresarelimitedbylawtotransportation relatedoperating,maintenanceorcapitalcosts. 

	TR
	TransportationFundThisfundisusedtoaccountforresources(certainlocaloption gas taxes), whose expenditures are limited by law to public transportation mass transit. 

	 
	 

	 
	 
	BuildingFeeFundThisfundaccountsforrevenuesgeneratedfromfeeschargedfor the review of building plans, issuance of permits and inspections, and expenditures associated with those services to administer the City’s zoning code and the Florida BuildingCode. 

	 
	 
	LawEnforcementTrustFundThisfundaccountsforrevenuesgeneratedfromassets seizedinthecourseofcriminalactivitiesoccurringintheCity.Expendituresfromthis fundarerestrictedtononrecurringlawenforcementrelatedgoodsorservices. 

	TR
	SolidWasteFund–Thisfundaccountsforrevenuesgeneratedbyspecialassessments legallyrestricted to fund single family residential solid waste and recycling curbside collection,hauling,anddisposal.  

	TR
	TreeTrustFundThisfundaccountsforrevenuesgeneratedfromtreeremovalfees, replacementpayments,contributionsandpenaltymoniesfromviolationsoftheCity’s TreePreservationCode. 

	TR
	 

	 
	 

	 
	 


	CityofWeston,Florida CombiningBalanceSheetNonmajorGovernmentalFunds September30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida CombiningBalanceSheetNonmajorGovernmentalFunds September30,2023 

	SpecialRevenueFunds Total Street Law Nonmajor Maintenance Transportation BuildingFee Enforcement Solid Tree Governmental Fund Fund Fund Funds Assets: 
	TrustFund WasteFund TrustFund 

	Cashandcashequivalents $ 559,735 $ 19,747 $ 65,729 $ 48,592 $  $ 3,242 $ 697,045 Investments 8,154,758 421,045 2,580,219 609,686 1,094,895 48,437 12,909,040 Receivables: Accountsreceivable,net 92,055 6,502 10,739 18,400   127,696 Interestreceivable 40,582 1,615 15,163 2,175 13,272 523 73,330 Prepaidcosts 
	Cashandcashequivalents $ 559,735 $ 19,747 $ 65,729 $ 48,592 $  $ 3,242 $ 697,045 Investments 8,154,758 421,045 2,580,219 609,686 1,094,895 48,437 12,909,040 Receivables: Accountsreceivable,net 92,055 6,502 10,739 18,400   127,696 Interestreceivable 40,582 1,615 15,163 2,175 13,272 523 73,330 Prepaidcosts 
	4,087 19,779 32,624    56,490 

	Totalassets $ $ $ $ $ $ 52,202 $ 
	8,851,217 
	468,688 
	2,704,474 
	678,853 
	1,108,167 
	13,863,601 

	Liabilities: 

	Accountspayableandaccruedliabilities $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	160,282 
	8,588 
	280,127 
	 
	755,924 
	 
	1,204,921 

	Totalliabilities 
	160,282 8,588 280,127  755,924  1,204,921 

	FundBalances: 
	Nonspendableforprepaidcosts 4,087 19,779 32,624    56,490 Restrictedfor: Streetmaintenance 8,686,848      8,686,848 Masstransit  440,321     440,321 Lawenforcement    678,853   678,853 Treepreservation      52,202 52,202 Solidwasteservices     352,243  352,243 Buildingcodeenforcement   498,533    498,533 Buildingcodeservicescontract 
	  1,893,190    1,893,190 

	Totalfundbalances 
	8,690,935 460,100 2,424,347 678,853 352,243 52,202 12,658,680 

	Totalliabilitiesandfund balances $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	Totalliabilitiesandfund balances $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	8,851,217 
	468,688 
	2,704,474 
	678,853 
	1,108,167 
	52,202 
	13,863,601 
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	CityofWeston,Florida CombiningStatementofRevenues,Expenditures andChangesinFundBalancesNonmajorGovernmentalFunds FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida CombiningStatementofRevenues,Expenditures andChangesinFundBalancesNonmajorGovernmentalFunds FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 

	SpecialRevenueFunds Total Street Law Nonmajor Maintenance Transportation BuildingFee Enforcement Solid Tree Governmental Fund Fund Fund TrustFund WasteFund TrustFund Funds Revenues: 
	Permitsandfees $  $  $ 3,375,820 $  $  $  $ 3,375,820 Intergovernmental 1,667,387 79,320  396,164   2,142,871 Finesandforfeitures      1,024 1,024 Investmentincome(loss) 127,214 7,399 75,148 5,347 58,113 1,703 274,924 Specialassessments     4,918,100  4,918,100 Otherrevenues 5  40,380    40,385 
	Permitsandfees $  $  $ 3,375,820 $  $  $  $ 3,375,820 Intergovernmental 1,667,387 79,320  396,164   2,142,871 Finesandforfeitures      1,024 1,024 Investmentincome(loss) 127,214 7,399 75,148 5,347 58,113 1,703 274,924 Specialassessments     4,918,100  4,918,100 Otherrevenues 5  40,380    40,385 
	Totalrevenues 
	1,794,606 86,719 3,491,348 401,511 4,976,213 2,727 10,753,124 

	Expenditures: 

	Current: Publicsafety    27,181   27,181 Publicworks 637,778 36,989   4,813,305  5,488,072 Communitydevelopment   4,135,694    4,135,694 Capitaloutlay 80,996  94,435    175,431 Debtservice Principal   28,955    28,955 Interest   988   988 
	 

	Totalexpenditures  
	718,774 36,989 4,260,072 27,181 4,813,305 
	9,856,321 

	Excess(deficiency)of revenuesoverexpenditures 
	1,075,832 49,730 (768,724) 374,330 162,908 2,727 896,803 

	OtherFinancingSources(Uses): 
	Subscriptionbasedproceeds   53,951    53,951 Transfersout      
	(1,960,000) 
	(1,960,000) 

	Totalotherfinancing sources(uses)     
	(1,960,000) 
	53,951 
	(1,906,049) 

	Netchangesinfund balances (884,168) 49,730 (714,773) 374,330 162,908 2,727 (1,009,246) 
	Netchangesinfund balances (884,168) 49,730 (714,773) 374,330 162,908 2,727 (1,009,246) 
	FundBalances,BeginningofYear 9,575,103 410,370 304,523 49,475 13,667,926 
	3,139,120 
	189,335 


	FundBalances,EndofYear $ 8,690,935 $ 460,100 $ 2,424,347 $ 678,853 $ 352,243 $ 52,202 $ 12,658,680 
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	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualStreetMaintenanceFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualStreetMaintenanceFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualStreetMaintenanceFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 

	BudgetedAmounts Original Final 
	BudgetedAmounts Original Final 
	Actual Amounts 
	Variance WithFinal Budget Positive (Negative) 

	Revenues: Intergovernmental Investmentincome(loss) Otherrevenues 
	Revenues: Intergovernmental Investmentincome(loss) Otherrevenues 
	$ 
	1,576,400 48,800  
	$ 
	1,576,400 48,800  
	$ 
	1,667,387 127,214 5 
	$ 
	90,987 78,414 5 

	Totalrevenues 
	Totalrevenues 
	1,625,200 
	1,625,200 
	1,794,606 
	169,406 

	Expenditures:Current: Publicworks Capitaloutlay 
	Expenditures:Current: Publicworks Capitaloutlay 
	859,900  
	859,900  
	637,778 80,996 
	222,122 (80,996) 

	TR
	Totalexpenditures 
	859,900 
	859,900 
	718,774 
	141,126 

	TR
	Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditures 
	765,300 
	765,300 
	1,075,832 
	310,532 

	TR
	OtherFinancingSources(Uses):Transfersout Useoffundbalance 
	(1,960,000) 1,194,700 
	(1,960,000) 1,194,700 
	(1,960,000)  
	 (1,194,700) 

	TR
	Totalotherfinancing sources(uses) 
	(765,300) 
	(765,300) 
	(1,960,000) 
	(1,194,700) 

	TR
	Netchangein fundbalance 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	(884,168) 
	$ 
	(884,168) 

	 
	 
	 


	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualTransportationFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualTransportationFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualTransportationFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 

	BudgetedAmounts Original Final 
	BudgetedAmounts Original Final 
	Actual Amounts 
	Variance WithFinal Budget Positive (Negative) 

	Revenues: Intergovernmental Investmentincome(loss) 
	Revenues: Intergovernmental Investmentincome(loss) 
	$ 
	77,800 2,400 
	$ 
	77,800 2,400 
	$ 
	79,320 7,399 
	$ 
	1,520 4,999 

	Totalrevenues 
	Totalrevenues 
	80,200 
	80,200 
	86,719 
	6,519 

	Expenditures:Current: Publicworks 
	Expenditures:Current: Publicworks 
	133,000 
	133,000 
	36,989 
	96,011 

	Totalexpenditures 
	Totalexpenditures 
	133,000 
	133,000 
	36,989 
	96,011 

	Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditures 
	Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditures 
	(52,800) 
	(52,800) 
	49,730 
	102,530 

	OtherFinancingSources(Uses):Useoffundbalance 
	OtherFinancingSources(Uses):Useoffundbalance 
	52,800 
	52,800 
	 
	(52,800) 

	Totalotherfinancing sources(uses) 
	Totalotherfinancing sources(uses) 
	52,800 
	52,800 
	 
	(52,800) 

	Netchangein fundbalance 
	Netchangein fundbalance 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	49,730 
	$ 
	49,730 


	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualBuildingFeeFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 BudgetedAmounts Original Final Revenues: Permitsandfees $ 3,784,100 $ 4,284,100 Investmentincome(loss) 22,400 22,400 Otherrevenues   Totalrevenues 3,806,500 4,306,500 Expenditures:Current: Communitydevelopment 3,703,500 4,203,500 Capitaloutlay 1,400 1,400 Debtservice Principal   Interest   Totalexpenditures 3,704,900 4,204,900 Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditur
	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualBuildingFeeFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 BudgetedAmounts Original Final Revenues: Permitsandfees $ 3,784,100 $ 4,284,100 Investmentincome(loss) 22,400 22,400 Otherrevenues   Totalrevenues 3,806,500 4,306,500 Expenditures:Current: Communitydevelopment 3,703,500 4,203,500 Capitaloutlay 1,400 1,400 Debtservice Principal   Interest   Totalexpenditures 3,704,900 4,204,900 Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditur
	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualBuildingFeeFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 BudgetedAmounts Original Final Revenues: Permitsandfees $ 3,784,100 $ 4,284,100 Investmentincome(loss) 22,400 22,400 Otherrevenues   Totalrevenues 3,806,500 4,306,500 Expenditures:Current: Communitydevelopment 3,703,500 4,203,500 Capitaloutlay 1,400 1,400 Debtservice Principal   Interest   Totalexpenditures 3,704,900 4,204,900 Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditur
	$ $ 
	Actual Amounts 3,375,820 75,148 40,380 3,491,348 4,135,694 94,435 28,955 988 4,260,072 (768,724) 53,951  53,951 (714,773) 
	$ $ 
	Variance WithFinal Budget Positive (Negative) (908,280) 52,748 40,380 (815,152) 67,806 (93,035) (28,955) (988) (55,172) (870,324) 53,951  53,951 (816,373) 


	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualLawEnforcementTrustFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualLawEnforcementTrustFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualLawEnforcementTrustFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualSolidWasteFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualTreeTrustFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 

	BudgetedAmounts Original Final 
	BudgetedAmounts Original Final 
	Actual Amounts 
	Variance WithFinal Budget Positive (Negative) 
	BudgetedAmounts Original Final 
	Actual Amounts 
	Variance WithFinal Budget Positive (Negative) 
	BudgetedAmounts Original Final 
	Actual Amounts 
	Variance WithFinal Budget Positive (Negative) 

	Revenues: Intergovernmentalrevenues Investmentincome(loss) 
	Revenues: Intergovernmentalrevenues Investmentincome(loss) 
	$ 
	20,000 1,600 
	20,000 1,600 
	$ 
	396,164 5,347 
	$ 
	376,164 3,747 
	Revenues: Investmentincome(loss) Specialassessments 
	$ 
	5,100 4,772,000 
	$ 
	54,900 4,772,000 
	$ 
	58,113 4,918,100 
	$ 
	3,213 146,100 
	Revenues: Finesandforfeitures Investmentincome(loss) 
	$ 
	1,000 200 
	$ 
	1,000 200 
	$ 
	1,024 1,703 
	$ 
	24 1,503 

	Totalrevenues 
	Totalrevenues 
	21,600 
	21,600 
	401,511 
	379,911 
	Totalrevenues 
	4,777,100 
	4,826,900 
	4,976,213 
	149,313 
	Totalrevenues 
	1,200 
	1,200 
	2,727 
	1,527 

	Expenditures:Current: Publicsafety 
	Expenditures:Current: Publicsafety 
	20,100 
	691,842 
	27,181 
	664,661 
	Expenditures:Current: Publicworks 
	4,772,000 
	4,821,800 
	4,813,305 
	8,495 
	Expenditures: Current: Publicworks 
	1,000 
	1,000 
	 
	1,000 

	Totalexpenditures 
	Totalexpenditures 
	20,100 
	691,842 
	27,181 
	664,661 
	Totalexpenditures 
	4,772,000 
	4,821,800 
	4,813,305 
	8,495 
	Totalexpenditures 
	1,000 
	1,000 
	 
	1,000 

	Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditures 
	Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditures 
	1,500 
	(670,242) 
	374,330 
	1,044,572 
	Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditures 
	5,100 
	5,100 
	162,908 
	157,808 
	Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditures 
	200 
	200 
	2,727 
	2,527 

	OtherFinancingSources(Uses):Useoffundbalance 
	OtherFinancingSources(Uses):Useoffundbalance 
	 
	 
	 
	OtherFinancingSources(Uses):Useoffundbalance 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	OtherFinancingSources(Uses):Useoffundbalance 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	TR
	Totalotherfinancing sources(uses) 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Totalotherfinancing sources(uses) 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Totalotherfinancing sources(uses) 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	 
	Netchangein fundbalance 
	$ 
	1,500 
	$ 
	(670,242) 
	$ 
	374,330 
	$ 
	1,044,572  
	Netchangein fundbalance 
	$ 
	5,100 
	$ 
	5,100 
	$ 
	162,908 
	$ 
	157,808  
	Netchangein fundbalance 
	$ 
	200 
	$ 
	200 
	$ 
	2,727 
	$ 
	2,527 


	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualIndianTraceDevelopmentDistrictDebtServiceFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 BudgetedAmounts Actual Original Final Amounts Revenues: Investmentincome(loss) $  $  $ 93,406 Specialassessments 5,274,000 5,274,000 5,352,901 Totalrevenues 5,274,000 5,274,000 5,446,307 Expenditures: Debtservice: Principal 4,691,900 4,691,900 4,787,792 Interest 582,100 582,100 486,100 Totalexpenditures 5,274,000 5,274,000 5,273,892 Excess(d
	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualIndianTraceDevelopmentDistrictDebtServiceFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 BudgetedAmounts Actual Original Final Amounts Revenues: Investmentincome(loss) $  $  $ 93,406 Specialassessments 5,274,000 5,274,000 5,352,901 Totalrevenues 5,274,000 5,274,000 5,446,307 Expenditures: Debtservice: Principal 4,691,900 4,691,900 4,787,792 Interest 582,100 582,100 486,100 Totalexpenditures 5,274,000 5,274,000 5,273,892 Excess(d
	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualIndianTraceDevelopmentDistrictDebtServiceFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 BudgetedAmounts Actual Original Final Amounts Revenues: Investmentincome(loss) $  $  $ 93,406 Specialassessments 5,274,000 5,274,000 5,352,901 Totalrevenues 5,274,000 5,274,000 5,446,307 Expenditures: Debtservice: Principal 4,691,900 4,691,900 4,787,792 Interest 582,100 582,100 486,100 Totalexpenditures 5,274,000 5,274,000 5,273,892 Excess(d
	Variance WithFinal BudgetPositive (Negative) $ 93,406 78,901 172,307 (95,892) 96,000 108 172,415  $ 172,415  


	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualDebtServiceFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualDebtServiceFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualDebtServiceFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 

	BudgetedAmounts Original Final 
	BudgetedAmounts Original Final 
	Actual Amounts 
	Variance WithFinal Budget Positive (Negative) 

	Revenues: Investmentincome(loss) 
	Revenues: Investmentincome(loss) 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	13,112 
	$ 
	13,112 

	Totalrevenues 
	Totalrevenues 
	 
	 
	13,112 
	13,112 

	Expenditures:Debtservice: Principal Interest 
	Expenditures:Debtservice: Principal Interest 
	  
	  
	  
	  

	Totalexpenditures 
	Totalexpenditures 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditures 
	Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditures 
	 
	 
	13,112 
	13,112 

	OtherFinancingSources(Uses): Transfersin Useoffundbalance 
	OtherFinancingSources(Uses): Transfersin Useoffundbalance 
	  
	(279,100) 279,100 
	(376,267)  
	(97,167) (279,100) 

	TR
	Totalotherfinancing sources(uses) 
	 
	 
	(376,267) 
	(376,267) 

	 
	 
	Netchangein fundbalance 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	(363,155) 
	$ 
	(363,155)  


	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualCapitalProjectsFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualCapitalProjectsFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualCapitalProjectsFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 

	BudgetedAmounts Original Final 
	BudgetedAmounts Original Final 
	Actual Amounts 
	Variance WithFinal Budget Positive (Negative) 

	Revenues: Intergovernmental Investmentincome(loss) 
	Revenues: Intergovernmental Investmentincome(loss) 
	$ 
	400,000 28,100 
	$ 
	400,000 28,100 
	$ 
	1,941,857 389,472 
	$ 
	1,541,857 361,372 

	Totalrevenues 
	Totalrevenues 
	428,100 
	428,100 
	2,331,329 
	1,903,229 

	Expenditures:Capitaloutlay 
	Expenditures:Capitaloutlay 
	12,250,000 
	12,250,000 
	9,538,174 
	2,711,826 

	Totalexpenditures 
	Totalexpenditures 
	12,250,000 
	12,250,000 
	9,538,174 
	2,711,826 

	Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditures 
	Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditures 
	(11,821,900) 
	(11,821,900) 
	(7,206,845) 
	4,615,055 

	OtherFinancingSources(Uses):Transfersin Useoffundbalance 
	OtherFinancingSources(Uses):Transfersin Useoffundbalance 
	11,850,000  
	11,800,000  
	14,176,267  
	2,376,267  

	TR
	Totalotherfinancing sources(uses) 
	11,850,000 
	11,800,000 
	14,176,267 
	2,376,267 

	 
	 
	Netchangein fundbalance 
	$ 
	28,100 
	$ 
	(21,900) 
	$ 
	6,969,422 
	$ 
	6,991,322  


	CityofWeston,Florida ScheduleofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesinFundBalance BudgetandActualDisasterManagementFund FortheYearEndedSeptember30,2023 
	Revenues: Intergovernmental Investmentincome(loss) 
	Revenues: Intergovernmental Investmentincome(loss) 
	Revenues: Intergovernmental Investmentincome(loss) 
	$ 
	BudgetedAmounts Original Final  $  260,400 260,400 
	$ 
	Actual Amounts 13,346 926,997 
	$ 
	Variance WithFinal Budget Positive (Negative) 13,346 666,597 

	Totalrevenues 
	Totalrevenues 
	260,400 
	260,400 
	940,343 
	679,943 

	Expenditures:Current: Generalgovernment 
	Expenditures:Current: Generalgovernment 
	1,000,000 
	1,000,000 
	 
	1,000,000 

	Totalexpenditures 
	Totalexpenditures 
	1,000,000 
	1,000,000 
	 
	1,000,000 

	Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditures 
	Excess(deficiency)of revenuesover expenditures 
	(739,600) 
	(739,600) 
	940,343 
	1,679,943 

	OtherFinancingSources(Uses):Useoffundbalance 
	OtherFinancingSources(Uses):Useoffundbalance 
	739,600 
	739,600 
	 
	(739,600) 

	Totalotherfinancing sources(uses) 
	Totalotherfinancing sources(uses) 
	739,600 
	739,600 
	 
	(739,600) 

	Netchangesin fundbalance 
	Netchangesin fundbalance 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	 
	$ 
	940,343 
	$ 
	940,343 


	*ThenetchangesinfundbalanceoftheCity’sDisasterManagementFundisreportedintheDisasterManagementFundforbudgetary purposesbutiscombinedwiththeCity’sGeneralFundforthepurposeoftheStatementofRevenues,ExpendituresandChangesin FundBalances–GovernmentalFunds. 
	STATISTICALSECTION 
	STATISTICALSECTION 
	 
	 

	FORTHEFISCALYEARENDEDSEPTEMBER30,2023 
	 ThispartoftheCityofWeston’sannualcomprehensivefinancialreportpresentsdetailedinformationasa contextforunderstandingwhattheinformationinthefinancialstatements,notedisclosures,andrequired supplementaryinformationsaysabouttheCity’soverallfinancialhealth.  
	 
	 

	FinancialTrends 8084 TheseschedulescontaintrendinformationtohelpthereaderunderstandhowtheCity’s 
	Contents Page 

	financialperformanceandwellbeinghavechangedovertime. RevenueCapacity 8588 TheseschedulescontaininformationtohelpthereaderassesstheCity’smostsignificant 
	localrevenuesource,thepropertytax. DebtCapacity 8993 TheseschedulespresentinformationtohelpthereaderassesstheaffordabilityoftheCity’s 
	currentlevelsofoutstandingdebtandtheCity’sabilitytoissueadditionaldebtinthefuture. DemographicandEconomicInformation 9495 Theseschedulesofferdemographicandeconomicindicatorstohelpthereaderunderstand 
	theenvironmentwithinwhichtheCity’sfinancialactivitiestakeplace. OperatingandOtherInformation 9698 Theseschedulescontainserviceandinfrastructuredatatohelpthereaderunderstand 
	howtheinformationintheCity’sfinancialreportrelatestotheservicestheCityprovides andtheactivitiesitperforms.  
	Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual comprehensivefinancialreportsfortherelevantfiscalyear.  
	   
	   
	CityofWeston,Florida Table1 NetPositionbyComponent LastTenFiscalYears (AccrualBasisofAccounting) 

	FiscalYear 
	2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 GovernmentalActivities: 
	Netinvestmentincapital assets $ 149,179,975 $ 93,465,505 $ 88,508,796 $ 93,013,715 $ 98,379,808 $ 106,331,589 $ 109,947,396 $ 115,417,931 $ 126,581,488 $ 136,210,162 Restricted 39,440,053 41,627,220 46,625,978 49,224,659 52,493,341 54,550,348 90,859,903 84,654,980 76,297,038 66,099,692 Unrestricted 
	64,959,030 126,340,256 130,074,839 124,333,660 116,728,675 120,179,223 90,906,810 100,206,458 100,379,193 117,539,436 

	Totalgovernmental activities,net position $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	Totalgovernmental activities,net position $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	253,579,058 
	261,432,981 
	265,209,613 
	266,572,034 
	267,601,824 
	281,061,160 
	291,714,109 
	300,279,369 
	303,257,719 
	319,849,290 

	BusinesstypeActivities: 
	Netinvestmentincapital assets $ 64,427,618 $ 61,474,906 $ 59,411,246 $ 57,521,522 $ 55,400,598 $ 53,107,030 $ 50,590,221 $ 48,250,820 $ 45,887,760 $ 44,012,618 Unrestricted 12,832,456 
	19,012,722 17,920,122 17,793,805 16,977,088 16,219,525 15,188,795 15,472,115 15,009,781 
	12,729,646 


	Totalbusinesstype activities,net position $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	83,440,340 
	79,395,028 
	77,205,051 
	74,498,610 
	71,620,123 
	68,295,825 
	66,062,336 
	63,260,601 
	58,720,216 
	56,742,264 

	PrimaryGovernment: 
	Netinvestmentincapital assets $ 213,607,593 $ 154,940,411 $ 147,920,042 $ 150,535,237 $ 153,780,406 $ 159,438,619 $ 160,537,617 $ 163,668,751 $ 172,469,248 $ 180,222,780 Restricted 39,440,053 41,627,220 46,625,978 49,224,659 52,493,341 54,550,348 90,859,903 84,654,980 76,297,038 66,099,692 Unrestricted 
	83,971,752 144,260,378 147,868,644 141,310,748 132,948,200 135,368,018 106,378,925 115,216,239 113,211,649 130,269,082 

	Totalprimary government,net position $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	337,019,398 
	340,828,009 
	342,414,664 
	341,070,644 
	339,221,947 
	349,356,985 
	357,776,445 
	363,539,970 
	361,977,935 
	376,591,554 

	Note:Netpositionwasrestatedin2014and2015toaccountforpriorperiodadjustments. 
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	CityofWeston,Florida Table2 ChangesinNetPosition LastTenFiscalYears (AccrualBasisofAccounting) 
	CityofWeston,Florida Table2 ChangesinNetPosition LastTenFiscalYears (AccrualBasisofAccounting) 

	FiscalYear 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Expenses: 
	Governmentalactivities: Generalgovernment $ 15,453,764 $ 8,705,627 $ 6,515,412 $ 7,797,748 $ 7,939,070 $ 8,642,645 $ 8,084,809 $ 8,112,932 $ 8,085,284 $ 8,216,022 Publicsafety 32,331,049 32,387,901 34,050,728 36,439,774 42,119,082 42,059,911 43,603,858 46,448,901 50,364,754 52,093,991 Communitydevelopment 4,439,038 4,589,251 3,867,527 3,826,619 3,764,668 5,338,763 4,458,851 5,332,012 4,629,682 5,757,810 Publicworks 18,405,486 19,667,919 21,477,701 20,850,757 18,248,879 19,521,053 21,166,270 21,453,091 22,01
	1,386,322 2,831,842 2,947,039 3,013,679 2,576,140 2,537,323 2,314,386 1,664,139 654,801 491,964 

	Totalgovernmental activitiesexpenses 
	Totalgovernmental activitiesexpenses 
	78,858,340 75,304,900 77,601,278 80,433,748 83,568,559 87,996,569 89,428,862 93,201,956 96,231,475 102,847,104 

	Businesstypeactivities: SewerSystem: Waterandsewer 
	31,999,842 33,092,855 34,001,728 36,303,192 36,781,178 38,968,621 37,850,254 37,547,622 38,159,220 38,473,493 

	Totalbusinesstype activitiesexpenses 
	31,999,842 33,092,855 34,001,728 36,303,192 36,781,178 38,968,621 37,850,254 37,547,622 38,159,220 38,473,493 


	Totalprimarygovernment expenses $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	110,858,182 
	108,397,755 
	111,603,006 
	116,736,940 
	120,349,737 
	126,965,190 
	127,279,116 
	130,749,578 
	134,390,695 
	141,320,597 

	Programrevenues: 
	Governmentalactivities: Chargesforservices: Publicsafety $ 15,229,073 $ 11,859,925 $ 12,459,463 $ 13,154,487 $ 13,254,961 $ 13,569,309 $ 14,317,220 $ 16,671,882 $ 17,106,848 $ 17,729,405 Generalgovernment 12,703,086 4,390,510 3,723,104 3,715,763 3,759,075 3,748,117 1,219,786 1,469,432 1,822,633 1,888,144 Publicworks 15,790,123 17,374,843 16,208,344 16,174,154 17,508,127 17,394,360 20,709,503 22,260,451 24,268,660 25,246,586 Parksandrecreations 610,857 676,958 695,733 701,900 706,305 689,089 416,991 557,482 
	140,399 
	757,563 

	Totalgovernmentalactivities programrevenues 
	Totalgovernmentalactivities programrevenues 
	50,479,833 44,649,720 41,563,180 42,783,258 44,602,513 45,367,114 46,186,862 49,547,193 59,559,677 51,429,141 
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	CityofWeston,Florida Table2 ChangesinNetPosition LastTenFiscalYears (AccrualBasisofAccounting) (continued) 
	CityofWeston,Florida Table2 ChangesinNetPosition LastTenFiscalYears (AccrualBasisofAccounting) (continued) 

	FiscalYear 
	2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 
	Businesstypeactivities: Chargesforservices: 28,054,542 30,622,285 31,460,835 33,299,747 33,753,182 34,937,953 35,288,741 34,698,013 34,621,054 36,248,651 Capitalgrantsand contributions     
	11,771 136,574 129,247 245,401 150,546 3,998 

	Totalbusinesstype activitiesprogram revenues 
	Totalbusinesstype activitiesprogram revenues 
	28,066,313 30,758,859 31,590,082 33,545,148 33,903,728 34,941,951 35,288,741 34,698,013 34,621,054 36,248,651 

	Totalprimarygovernment programrevenues $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	78,546,146 
	75,408,579 
	73,153,262 
	76,328,406 
	78,506,241 
	80,309,065 
	81,475,603 
	84,245,206 
	94,180,731 
	87,677,792 

	Net(Expense)/Revenue: 
	Governmentalactivities $ (28,378,507) $ (30,655,180) $ (36,038,098) $ (37,650,490) $ (38,966,046) $ (42,629,455) $ (43,242,000) $ (43,654,763) $ (36,671,798) $ (51,417,963) Businesstypeactivities 
	(3,933,529) (2,333,996) (2,411,646) (2,758,044) (2,877,450) (4,026,670) (2,561,513) (2,849,609) (3,538,166) (2,224,842) 

	Totalprimarygovernment netexpense $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	(32,312,036) 
	(32,989,176) 
	(38,449,744) 
	(40,408,534) 
	(41,843,496) 
	(46,656,125) 
	(45,803,513) 
	(46,504,372) 
	(40,209,964) 
	(53,642,805) 


	GeneralRevenuesandOther ChangesinNetPosition: 
	Governmentalactivities: Propertytaxes $ 12,899,908 $ 16,194,863 $ 17,149,747 $ 18,145,610 $ 19,173,312 $ 27,623,042 $ 28,665,595 $ 29,626,934 $ 30,577,430 $ 33,805,455 Franchisetaxesandutility taxes 13,555,217 13,476,279 13,060,677 13,146,677 13,345,297 13,545,121 14,015,200 14,006,548 15,096,405 16,817,158 Intergovernmental 5,233,462     6,248,570 5,634,176 6,636,983 7,920,765 12,368,709 Investmentincome(loss) 2,660,971 1,900,100 1,760,997 775,425 22,758 7,402,029 4,072,070 433,850 (15,538,396) 3,818,583 C
	654,299 1,396,769 2,067,529 1,043,826 1,289,330 1,270,029 1,507,908 1,515,708 1,593,944 1,199,629 

	Totalgovernmental activities 
	35,003,857 38,568,339 39,814,730 39,012,911 39,995,836 56,088,791 53,894,949 52,220,023 39,650,148 68,009,534 

	Businesstypeactivities: Investmentincome(loss) 423,116 288,684 221,669 51,603 (1,037) 702,372 328,024 47,874 (1,002,219) 246,890 Miscellaneous          
	777,719 

	Totalbusinesstype activities 
	1,200,835 288,684 221,669 51,603 (1,037) 702,372 328,024 47,874 (1,002,219) 246,890 

	Totalprimarygovernment $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	36,204,692 
	38,857,023 
	40,036,399 
	39,064,514 
	39,994,799 
	56,791,163 
	54,222,973 
	52,267,897 
	38,647,929 
	68,256,424 

	ChangesinNetPosition: 
	ChangesinNetPosition: 
	Governmentalactivities $ 6,625,350 $ 7,913,159 $ 3,776,632 $ 1,362,421 $ 1,029,790 $ 13,459,336 $ 10,652,949 $ 8,565,260 $ 2,978,350 $ 16,591,571 Businesstypeactivities 
	(2,732,694) (2,045,312) (2,189,977) (2,706,441) (2,878,487) (3,324,298) (2,233,489) (2,801,735) (4,540,385) (1,977,952) 

	Totalprimarygovernment $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	3,892,656 
	5,867,847 
	1,586,655 
	(1,344,020) 
	(1,848,697) 
	10,135,038 
	8,419,460 
	5,763,525 
	(1,562,035) 
	14,613,619 


	Note:Intergovernmentalrevenueswasreferredtoas"Contributionsnotrestrictedtospecificprograms"in2015to2018.  
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	CityofWeston,Florida Table3 FundBalancesofGovernmentalFunds LastTenFiscalYears (ModifiedAccrualBasisofAccounting) 
	FiscalYear 
	FiscalYear 

	2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 
	2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 
	GeneralFund: 

	Nonspendable $ 185,856 $ 50,649 $ 76,320 $ 35,769 $ 37,488 $ 183,098 $ 895,247 $ 644,410 $ 206,144 $ 857,712 Restricted     25,000 25,000 25,000 50,000 50,000 75,150 Committed 52,030,265 53,823,857 55,131,058 56,663,983 56,657,198 57,192,357 60,318,731 61,357,627 59,312,528 61,395,470 Assigned 1,509,192 3,097,472 6,582,582 8,642,936 3,183,321 2,172,927 613,687 936,383 1,451,303 449,040 Unassigned 
	10,989,092 15,157,834 13,326,272 10,247,471 12,612,198 22,741,849 27,801,103 34,684,427 31,612,318 39,588,877 

	TotalGeneralFund $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	TotalGeneralFund $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	64,714,405 
	72,129,812 
	75,116,232 
	75,590,159 
	72,515,205 
	82,315,231 
	89,653,768 
	97,672,847 
	92,632,293 
	102,366,249 

	AllOtherGovernmental Funds: 

	Nonspendable $ 86,732 $ 18,990 $ 82,918 $ 11,116 $ 2,122,543 $ 327,026 $ 296,147 $ 249,282 $ 148,982 $ 623,412 Restricted 40,574,144 42,029,648 46,615,297 48,393,737 51,368,649 64,867,625 60,348,568 54,809,819 51,422,660 45,614,106 Committed 6,612,443 1,233,025 5,454,666 2,976,209 2,459,959  1,012,420 2,388,659 6,996,688 13,966,110 Assigned  609,400 1,012,500 2,000,000       Unassigned(deficit) 
	     (9,788)  (136,190)  (124,296) 

	Totalallother governmentalfunds $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	47,273,319 
	43,891,063 
	53,165,381 
	53,381,062 
	55,951,151 
	65,184,863 
	61,657,135 
	57,311,570 
	58,568,330 
	60,079,332 

	Note:2014amountshavebeenrestatedforpriorperiodadjustments. 
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	CityofWeston,Florida Table4 ChangesinFundBalancesofGovernmentalFunds LastTenFiscalYears (ModifiedAccrualBasisofAccounting) 
	FiscalYear 
	FiscalYear 
	2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Revenues: 

	Taxes $ 57,403,734 $ 29,671,142 $ 30,210,424 $ 31,292,287 $ 32,518,609 $ 41,168,163 $ 42,289,957 $ 43,605,526 $ 45,598,018 $ 50,593,194 SpecialAssessments 36,713,032 37,256,127 37,934,726 39,383,684 39,630,409 41,161,215 44,636,063 46,752,825 48,328,892 Businesstaxreceipts     1,279,749 1,202,892 1,097,174 966,679 940,476 Permitsandfees4,043,669 4,156,502 3,952,197 4,527,971 5,121,258 3,457,545 3,301,895 4,133,688 4,339,677 3,603,034 Intergovernmental 7,238,930 8,693,210 7,364,745 7,594,303 7,871,051 8,723,
	(1) 
	(2) 
	(2) 
	939,341 2,526,520 2,067,529 1,043,826 1,289,330 1,270,029 1,074,025 927,499 826,245 1,198,371 

	Totalrevenues 
	Totalrevenues 
	85,483,690 86,608,059 84,892,910 85,451,169 88,428,349 105,440,905 103,795,973 106,475,989 103,863,164 124,299,340 

	Expenditures: 

	Current: Generalgovernment 15,458,074 7,016,259 5,603,091 5,496,951 5,936,759 6,859,064 7,615,200 6,592,938 6,834,161 6,424,550 Publicsafety 31,821,657 31,343,493 32,954,393 34,880,602 40,935,612 41,093,229 42,486,645 45,211,378 49,833,545 51,356,147 Communitydevelopment 4,435,038 4,585,918 3,864,028 3,826,619 3,764,668 5,338,763 4,458,851 5,332,012 4,629,682 5,757,810 Publicworks 13,459,368 15,840,604 17,460,093 17,786,604 15,243,083 16,629,116 18,352,856 18,535,953 19,982,320 22,039,375 Parksandrecreation
	     6,500  100,492   

	Totalexpenditures 
	90,463,475 88,959,908 78,857,172 84,350,199 88,933,214 96,407,167 99,985,164 102,802,475 107,646,958 113,930,077 

	Excess(deficiency)of revenuesoverexpenditures 
	(4,979,785) (2,351,849) 6,035,738 1,100,970 (504,865) 9,033,738 3,810,809 3,673,514 (3,783,794) 10,369,263 

	OtherFinancingSources(Uses): 
	Subscriptionbasedproceeds          875,695 Bonds/notesissued 7,450,000 6,385,000 6,225,000     32,325,000   Paymenttorefundedbond escrowagent        (32,325,000)   Transfersin 9,356,330 1,573,000 2,422,600 4,175,600 4,518,800 3,468,800 4,928,739 5,037,497 19,673,800 14,455,367 Transfersout (9,356,330) (1,573,000) (2,422,600) (4,175,600) (4,518,800) (3,468,800) (4,928,739) (5,037,497) (19,673,800) (14,455,367) RepaymentofFederalFunds    (411,362)       Issuanceofdebt  
	     10,000,000    

	Totalotherfinancingsources (uses) 
	Totalotherfinancingsources (uses) 
	7,450,000 6,385,000 6,225,000 (411,362)  10,000,000    875,695 

	Netchangeinfundbalances $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
	2,470,215 
	4,033,151 
	12,260,738 
	689,608 
	(504,865) 
	19,033,738 
	3,810,809 
	3,673,514 
	(3,783,794) 
	11,244,958 


	Debtserviceasapercentageof noncapitalexpenditures 12.47% 11.53% 11.31% 11.75% 10.98% 11.21% 13.14% 10.78% 14.84% 5.13% 
	Note:(1)ItwasrecommendedthatweseparatetheSpecialAssessmentsRevenuefromtheTaxesRevenuein2015andgoingforward. (2)Businesstaxreceiptswereseparatedfrompermitsandfeesin2019andgoingforward. 
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	CityofWeston,Florida Table5 AssessedValueandEstimatedActualValueofTaxablePropertyLastTenFiscalYears 
	TotalAssessed Valueasa%of Fiscal TotalTaxable CityDirect EstimatedActual ActualTaxable Other 
	Year Residential Commercial Industrial 
	Exemptions AssessedValue TaxRate TaxableValue ValueTotal 

	2014 $ 6,396,736,340 $ 605,269,150 $ 258,913,240 $ 561,875,970 $ 1,266,330,560 $ 6,556,464,140 2.0000 $ 6,661,485,397 98.42% 2015 6,734,658,950 621,904,640 277,767,330 561,136,830 1,275,172,520 6,920,295,230 2.3900 7,026,703,993 98.49% 2016 7,103,673,960 638,841,010 273,698,460 591,829,790 1,307,967,130 7,300,076,090 2.3900 7,437,993,866 98.15% 2017 7,430,833,730 719,663,720 285,644,040 602,071,020 1,319,287,010 7,718,925,500 2.3900 7,860,167,040 98.20% 2018 7,783,619,000 814,029,810 303,529,380 608,991,070
	Source:BrowardCountyPropertyAppraiser. 
	Source:BrowardCountyPropertyAppraiser. 

	Note:Otherincludesagricultural,institutional,government,miscellaneousandnonagriculturalacreage.  
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	CityofWeston,Florida Table6 PropertyTaxRates(Per$1,000)DirectandOverlappingGovernments LastTenFiscalYears 
	OverlappingCountyDistrictRates South HospitalDistrict(eitheror) City Florida Florida North South City Debt Total Broward Water Inland Children's Broward Broward TotalDirectand Fiscal Operating Service City Broward School Management Navigation Services Hospital Hospital Overlappingrate 
	Year Millage Millage Millage County District District District Council District District (1) (2) 

	2014 2.0000  2.0000 5.7230 7.4800 0.4110 0.0345 0.4882 1.7554 0.4000 17.8921 16.5367 2015 2.3900  2.3900 5.7230 7.4380 0.3842 0.0345 0.4882 1.5939 0.1863 18.0518 16.6442 2016 2.3900  2.3900 5.7230 7.2740 0.3551 0.0320 0.4882 1.4425 0.1737 17.7048 16.4360 2017 2.3900  2.3900 5.6690 6.9063 0.3307 0.0320 0.4882 1.3462 0.1615 17.1624 15.9777 2018 2.3900  2.3900 5.6690 6.5394 0.3100 0.0320 0.4882 1.2483 0.1496 16.6769 15.5782 2019 3.3464  3.3464 5.6690 6.4029 0.2936 0.0320 0.4882 1.0855 0.1414 17.3176 16.3735 20
	Source:BrowardCountyPropertyAppraiser Note:(1)ExcludingSouthBrowardHospitalDistrict (2)ExcludingNorthBrowardHospitalDistrict 
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	CityofWeston,Florida Table7 PrincipalPropertyTaxpayers CurrentYearandTenYearsAgo 
	CityofWeston,Florida Table7 PrincipalPropertyTaxpayers CurrentYearandTenYearsAgo 
	2023 2014 
	NameofTaxpayer Weston592LLC $ MadisonOFCWestonPointeFL,LLC TreaWestonBusinessCenterLLC HelenHomesofWestonDevelopmentLLC WestonApartmentsCorp. FairlakeatWeston,LP MeridianBusinessCampus TeachersInsuranceandAnnuity WestonTC,LLC TreaWestonLLC CocowalkDevelopmentInc. BerkleyVacationResorts,Inc. CabotIIIFL2M02LLC LittleBriainHoldingsLLc Totals $ 
	NameofTaxpayer Weston592LLC $ MadisonOFCWestonPointeFL,LLC TreaWestonBusinessCenterLLC HelenHomesofWestonDevelopmentLLC WestonApartmentsCorp. FairlakeatWeston,LP MeridianBusinessCampus TeachersInsuranceandAnnuity WestonTC,LLC TreaWestonLLC CocowalkDevelopmentInc. BerkleyVacationResorts,Inc. CabotIIIFL2M02LLC LittleBriainHoldingsLLc Totals $ 
	NameofTaxpayer Weston592LLC $ MadisonOFCWestonPointeFL,LLC TreaWestonBusinessCenterLLC HelenHomesofWestonDevelopmentLLC WestonApartmentsCorp. FairlakeatWeston,LP MeridianBusinessCampus TeachersInsuranceandAnnuity WestonTC,LLC TreaWestonLLC CocowalkDevelopmentInc. BerkleyVacationResorts,Inc. CabotIIIFL2M02LLC LittleBriainHoldingsLLc Totals $ 
	Taxable Assessed Value 181,610,950 110,479,570 97,981,780 88,539,780 68,318,250 68,151,390 60,806,230 54,298,230 53,646,760 53,111,300     836,944,240 
	Rank 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10     
	Percentage  ofTotalCity Taxable  Assessed Value 1.76% 1.07% 0.95% 0.86% 0.66% 0.66% 0.59% 0.53% 0.52% 0.51%     8.11% 
	$ $ 
	Taxable Assessed Value     43,445,060 30,784,220 45,454,060 48,570,700 33,761,990 34,063,760 39,417,440 28,484,420 21,684,840 20,324,790 345,991,280 
	Rank     3 7 2 1 6 5 1 7 8 10 
	Percentage  ofTotalCity Taxable  Assessed Value     0.66% 0.47% 0.69% 0.74% 0.51% 0.52% 0.60% 0.43% 0.33% 0.31% 5.26% 

	Source:BrowardCountyPropertyAppraiser    
	Source:BrowardCountyPropertyAppraiser    
	 


	CityofWeston,Florida Table8 PropertyTaxLeviesandCollections LastTenFiscalYears 
	CollectedWithinthe 
	CollectedWithinthe 
	CollectedWithinthe 

	FiscalYearoftheLevy 
	FiscalYearoftheLevy 
	TotalCollectionstoDate 

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Collections 
	 
	 
	 

	Fiscal Year 
	Fiscal Year 
	Tax Levied 
	Amount 
	Percentage ofLevy 
	inSubsequent Years 
	Amount 
	Percentage ofLevy 

	2014 
	2014 
	$ 51,530,436 
	$ 49,367,106 
	95.80% 
	$ 
	 
	$ 49,367,106 
	95.80% 

	2015 
	2015 
	53,014,999 
	52,864,584 
	99.72% 
	 
	52,864,584 
	99.72% 

	2016 
	2016 
	57,388,512 
	54,364,816 
	94.73% 
	 
	54,364,816 
	94.73% 

	2017 
	2017 
	58,941,657 
	56,043,593 
	95.08% 
	 
	56,043,593 
	95.08% 

	2018 
	2018 
	61,756,974 
	59,285,311 
	96.00% 
	 
	59,285,311 
	96.00% 

	2019 
	2019 
	68,035,917 
	67,225,544 
	98.81% 
	 
	67,225,544 
	98.81% 

	2020 
	2020 
	74,438,948 
	69,826,810 
	93.80% 
	 
	69,826,810 
	93.80% 

	2021 
	2021 
	78,640,549 
	74,262,997 
	94.43% 
	 
	74,262,997 
	94.43% 

	2022 
	2022 
	82,280,676 
	77,330,255 
	93.98% 
	 
	77,330,255 
	93.98% 

	2023 
	2023 
	84,241,873 
	82,134,347 
	97.50% 
	 
	82,134,347 
	97.50% 


	Source:CityofWestonbudgetdocumentsandAnnualComprehensiveFinancialReports 
	Note:Taxesleviedcolumnisexclusiveofdiscounts.Amountcolumnisinclusiveofdiscounts.  
	   
	   

	CityofWeston,Florida RatiosofOutstandingDebtbyType LastTenFiscalYears 
	CityofWeston,Florida RatiosofOutstandingDebtbyType LastTenFiscalYears 
	CityofWeston,Florida RatiosofOutstandingDebtbyType LastTenFiscalYears 
	Table9 

	 Fiscal Year 
	 Fiscal Year 
	Community Facilities Construction Notes 
	Series1997ITDD, Series2003IslesatWeston, Series2005ITDD,& 2021ITDDBasin1,and 2021IslesatWeston 
	Series2002BDD 
	Total Primary Government 
	Percentage ofPersonal Income 
	Debt per Capita 

	2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 
	2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 
	$ 9,467,597 13,804,215 17,913,589 15,132,902 12,505,112 19,178,651 13,525,405 10,262,793   
	$ 50,670,000 47,945,000 45,115,000 42,155,000 39,050,000 35,780,000 32,345,000 29,964,720 25,272,725 20,890,339 
	$ 6,615,000 5,950,000 5,265,000 4,570,000 3,845,000 3,130,000 2,380,000    
	$ 
	66,752,597 67,699,215 68,293,589 61,857,902 55,400,112 58,088,651 48,250,405 40,227,513 25,272,725 20,890,339 
	2.50% 2.55% 2.54% 2.33% 1.96% 2.01% 1.54% 1.11% 0.71% 0.56% 
	$ 1,016 1,030 1,027 929 827 863 715 589 370 306 

	Source: DetailsregardingtheCity'soutstandingdebtcanbefoundinthenotestothefinancialstatements.  SeeTable14forpersonalincomeandpopulationdata. 
	Source: DetailsregardingtheCity'soutstandingdebtcanbefoundinthenotestothefinancialstatements.  SeeTable14forpersonalincomeandpopulationdata. 

	Note: 
	Note: 
	TheCitybegantoreportbondpayableinformationinthefinancialsin2015. 

	  
	  
	 


	CityofWeston,Florida Table10 RatioofGeneralBondedDebtOutstanding LastTenFiscalYears 
	CityofWeston,Florida Table10 RatioofGeneralBondedDebtOutstanding LastTenFiscalYears 
	TheCitycurrentlyhasnogeneralobligationdebt. 
	 
	 
	 

	CityofWeston,Florida Table11 DirectandOverlappingGovernmentalActivityDebt AsofSeptember30,2023 


	 Net Percentage Amount  Debt Applicable Applicable GovernmentUnit  
	 Net Percentage Amount  Debt Applicable Applicable GovernmentUnit  
	Outstanding toWeston
	(1) 
	toWeston 

	BrowardCounty $ 68,790,000 4.29% $ 2,948,590 BrowardCountySchoolBoard 743,850,000 3.94% 
	29,325,114 

	 Subtotal,overlappingdebt 32,273,704 
	TheCityofWeston,directdebt 
	20,890,339 

	Totaldirectandoverlappingdebt$ 53,164,043 
	(2) 

	Source: BrowardCounty2023AnnualComprehensiveFinancialReport,BrowardCountySchoolBoard 2023AnnualComprehensiveFinancialReport,andBrowardCountyPropertyAppraiser. 
	Note:(1) Thepercentageofoverlappingdebtapplicableisestimatedusingtaxableassessedpropertyvalue ApplicablepercentageswereestimatedbydeterminingtheportionofBrowardCounty'staxable assessedvaluethatiswithinCityofWeston'sboundariesanddividingitbytheBrowardCounty's totaltaxableassessedvalue. 
	(2) Includesallgovernmentalactivitiesdebt. 
	CityofWeston,Florida Table12 DebtMarginInformation LastTenFiscalYears(inthousandsofdollars) 
	2023 
	2023 
	2023 
	2022 
	2021 
	2020(1) 

	Debtlimit(basedonpercapitaincome)(2) 
	Debtlimit(basedonpercapitaincome)(2) 
	$ 187,430 
	$ 179,171 
	$ 181,924 
	$ 156,766 

	Totalnetdebtapplicabletolimit 
	Totalnetdebtapplicabletolimit 
	20,890 
	25,273 
	40,228 
	48,250 

	Debtmargin 
	Debtmargin 
	$ 166,540 
	$ 153,898 
	$ 141,696 
	$ 108,516 

	Totalnetdebtapplicabletothelimit asapercentageofdebtlimit 
	Totalnetdebtapplicabletothelimit asapercentageofdebtlimit 
	11.15% 
	14.11% 
	22.11% 
	30.78% 


	Note:(1)TheCity'sdebtmanagementpolicywasadoptedduringfiscalyear2020. 
	(2) TheaboveisacomponentofthedebtlimitwhichissetbytheCity'sdebtmanagementpolicy.TheCityCharterdoesnotsetalegaldebtmargin. 
	Note:Thisscheduleisintendedtopresentinformationfortenyears.However,untilatenyeartrendis compiled,thetablewillpresentinformationforthoseyearsforwhichinformationisavailable. 
	CityofWeston,Florida Table13 PledgedRevenueCoverage LastTenFiscalYears 
	CommunityFacilitiesConstructionNotes DebtService 
	CommunityFacilitiesConstructionNotes DebtService 

	Franchise Simplified 6¢Local Business UtilityTax Street Fiscal Fees Communication Fire Option Tax Fee Maintenance Tax Il 
	Year Electricity 
	Assessments GasTaxes Revenue Electric 
	ntergovernmenta
	Principal Interest Coverage 

	2014 $ 4,006,946 $  $ 11,476,161 $ 658,377 $ 992,395 $  $  $ 9,107,186 $ 248,168 1.83 2015 4,006,341  11,859,925 681,984 1,008,525   2,048,382 232,004 7.70 2016 3,838,753 2,668,130 12,459,463 647,589 1,111,450 5,040,267  2,115,626 267,210 10.81 2017 3,888,555 2,559,040 13,154,487 709,077 1,089,712 5,131,272  2,780,687 377,580 8.40 2018 3,845,196 2,535,774 13,254,961 710,781 1,268,736 5,273,918  2,627,790 310,803 9.15 2019 3,927,150 2,292,031 13,569,309 713,208 1,279,749 5,406,700 922,589 3,326,461 444,999 7
	2014 $ 4,006,946 $  $ 11,476,161 $ 658,377 $ 992,395 $  $  $ 9,107,186 $ 248,168 1.83 2015 4,006,341  11,859,925 681,984 1,008,525   2,048,382 232,004 7.70 2016 3,838,753 2,668,130 12,459,463 647,589 1,111,450 5,040,267  2,115,626 267,210 10.81 2017 3,888,555 2,559,040 13,154,487 709,077 1,089,712 5,131,272  2,780,687 377,580 8.40 2018 3,845,196 2,535,774 13,254,961 710,781 1,268,736 5,273,918  2,627,790 310,803 9.15 2019 3,927,150 2,292,031 13,569,309 713,208 1,279,749 5,406,700 922,589 3,326,461 444,999 7
	(1) 


	BondPayable 
	Series1997ITDD,Series2003 IslesatWeston,Series2005ITDD, Series2002BDD 2021ITDDBasin1,2021Isles DebtService ofWestonDebtService 
	Fiscal Special Special Interest Interest 
	Year Assessments Principal 
	Coverage Assessments Principal 
	Coverage 

	2015 $ 996,772 $ 665,000 $ 314,381 1.02 $ 5,277,505 $ 2,725,000 $ 2,499,775 1.01 2016 983,707 685,000 283,191 1.02 5,273,774 2,830,000 2,396,401 1.01 2017 974,957 695,000 251,120 1.03 5,287,052 2,960,000 2,288,800 1.01 2018 923,343 725,000 215,469 0.98 5,308,953 3,105,000 2,139,563 1.01 2019 920,981 715,000 178,991 1.03 5,289,244 3,270,000 1,982,725 1.01 2020 845,149 750,000 141,450 0.95 5,289,343 3,435,000 1,817,700 1.01 
	(1)
	(1)
	2021 374,106 2,380,000 101,859 0.15 5,329,624 2,380,280 1,786,248 1.28 
	2022   5,377,317 4,691,995 581,898 1.02 
	2023   5,352,901 4,787,792 486,100 1.01 

	Note:TheCitybegantoreportbondpayableinformationonthefinancialsin2015. 
	(1) PaidinfullwithavailableFundBalance. 93 
	CityofWeston,Florida Table14 DemographicandEconomicStatistics LastTenFiscalYears 
	Estimated Personal Income PerCapita Median  High Bachelor's Median  Calendar Estimated (Thousands Personal Household Median School Degree Home Unemployment Year Age Value Rate 
	Population ofDollars) Income Income 
	orHigher orHigher 

	2014 65,672 $ 2,669,829 $ 40,654 $ 93,074 37.9 96.6 58.5 $ 375,100 4.2% 2015 65,734 2,659,072 40,452 91,613 38.8 97.0 57.9 382,900 4.0% 2016 66,526 2,686,919 40,389 93,814 38.8 97.2 59.1 399,000 3.8% 2017 66,603 2,653,730 39,844 93,883 39.3 96.7 58.7 414,000 2.9% 2018 66,972 2,821,396 42,128 96,173 40.2 96.7 60.0 442,600 2.7% 2019 67,314 2,891,271 42,952 100,110 40.2 96.8 61.7 469,000 2.5% 2020 67,438 3,135,327 46,492 107,908 42.3 97.0 63.0 481,800 5.0% 2021 68,305 3,638,471 53,268 125,105 42.3 98.9 61.5 49
	2014 65,672 $ 2,669,829 $ 40,654 $ 93,074 37.9 96.6 58.5 $ 375,100 4.2% 2015 65,734 2,659,072 40,452 91,613 38.8 97.0 57.9 382,900 4.0% 2016 66,526 2,686,919 40,389 93,814 38.8 97.2 59.1 399,000 3.8% 2017 66,603 2,653,730 39,844 93,883 39.3 96.7 58.7 414,000 2.9% 2018 66,972 2,821,396 42,128 96,173 40.2 96.7 60.0 442,600 2.7% 2019 67,314 2,891,271 42,952 100,110 40.2 96.8 61.7 469,000 2.5% 2020 67,438 3,135,327 46,492 107,908 42.3 97.0 63.0 481,800 5.0% 2021 68,305 3,638,471 53,268 125,105 42.3 98.9 61.5 49

	Source: CitypopulationdatafromUniversityofFlorida,BureauofEconomicandBusinessResearch;PercapitaincomedatafromtheU.S.DepartmentofCommerce, BureauofEconomicAnalysisforBrowardCounty;UnemploymentdatafromU.S.DepartmentofLabor,BureauofLaborStatistics. 
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	CityofWeston,Florida Table15 PrincipalEmployers CurrentYearandTenYearsAgo 
	CityofWeston,Florida Table15 PrincipalEmployers CurrentYearandTenYearsAgo 
	TheinformationwasnotavailablefromtheCity'sChamberofCommerceandtheCitydoesnothavea DepartmentofEconomicDevelopment. 
	CityofWeston,Florida Table16 FullTimeEquivalentGovernmentPositionsbyFunction LastTenFiscalYears 
	2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 
	2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 
	2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 


	CityCommission 5555555555 
	CityManagement 9 9 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 12 
	Contractedemployees: Generalgovernment: Administrativeservices10 10 11 11 11 13 12 12 13 16 Financeservices4 4 4 4       Communityservices23 23 27 27 30 27 31 32 32 44 Informationtechnology services 7777477778 Buildingservices    222222 Firerescueand inspection 67 67 67 67 67 67 67 86 79 79 Emergencymedical services 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 54 61 61 Policeprotection 101 101 101 103 112 114 114 114 114 114 
	(1) 
	(1) 
	(2) 
	(3) 

	Total 280 280 286 288 295 299 302 322 323 341 
	Source:CityofWestonFinanceDepartmentandCommunicationsDepartment. 
	Note:(1)FinanceservicesinformationwasincludedwithinAdministrativeservicesbeginning2018. 
	(2) Communityservicesincludedesigntatedemployeesinpublicworks,codeenforcement,planning,zoning,landscaping, andparksandrecreation. (3) Buildingservicesinformationwasincludedbeginning2018. 
	(2) Communityservicesincludedesigntatedemployeesinpublicworks,codeenforcement,planning,zoning,landscaping, andparksandrecreation. (3) Buildingservicesinformationwasincludedbeginning2018. 
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	CityofWeston,Florida Table17 OperatingIndicatorsbyFunction/Program LastTenFiscalYears 
	Function/Program 2022 2023 
	2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

	GeneralGovernment: 
	GeneralGovernment: 
	GeneralGovernment: 

	Buildingpermitsissued 2,378 2,506 2,509 3,138 5,076 4,929 4,136 4,655 5,190 5,094 Buildinginspections conducted 11,943 13,495 12,139 12,897 14,957 16,309 15,343 14,818 16,920 16,505 Businesstaxreceipts 3,153 3,264 3,124 3,262 3,209 3,210 1,142 1,201 1,744 748 

	Fire: 
	Fire: 
	Fire: 

	Emergencyresponses 4,300 4,343 3,882 4,292 4,247 4,081 4,200 4,984 5,211 5,178 Inspections 3,182 2,247 2,246 3,011 2,122 6,832 1,663 1,715 1,712 1,950 

	Police: 
	Police: 
	Police: 

	Physicalarrests 479 410 380 501 604 618 357 325 383 340 Parkingviolations 331 432 487 493 475 155 24 88 56 135 Trafficviolations 6,963 6,148 7,994 10,570 13,071 14,006 5,769 15,569 19,896 19,318 

	RefuseCollection: 
	RefuseCollection: 
	RefuseCollection: 

	Refusecollected (tonsperyear) 36,451 35,427 19,976 20,449 20,143 19,644 21,960 23,548 22,331 20,716 Recyclablescollected (tonsperyear) 4,335 4,641 4,470 4,545 4,560 4,155 4,395 4,275 4,005 3,023 

	ParksandRecreation: 
	ParksandRecreation: 
	ParksandRecreation: 

	Athleticprograms 12 11 14 15 17 22 16 16 16 16 Sportsallianceregistrants 6,428 6,869 7,961 8,817 8,224 8,100 5,192 11,252 8,050 8,347 Communitycenter admissions (programparticipants) 1,063 1,152 1,032 892 785 726 393 300 78 861 

	Water: 
	Water: 
	Water: 

	Newconnections 86353869 6 2 Watermainbreaks     2279 14 9 Averagedailyconsumption (thousandsofgallons) 7,436 7,091 7,412 7,579 7,151 7,593 7,267 10,774 10,980 10,889 Peakmonthlyconsumption (thousandsofgallons)248,579 271,705 257,112 284,167 252,274 281,731 301,671 273,209 206,299 208,858 
	(1) 


	Wastewater: 
	Wastewater: 
	Wastewater: 

	Averagedailysewage treatment(thousands ofgallons)6,277 6,476 6,220 6,308 6,044 6,290 6,055 6,234 6,119 6,167 
	(2) 

	Source:CityofWestonPublicWorks,RecreationalDepartment,InformationTechnologiesDepartment,andtheCityofSunrise 
	Note:(1)BasedonbilledconsumptiongeneratedthroughtheCity'sutilitybillingsystem. (2)Basedonmeteredwaterservicealongwiththeresidentialconsumptioncapsthatareinplace. 
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	CityofWeston,Florida Table18 CapitalAssetsbyFunction LastTenFiscalYears 
	Function/Program 
	Function/Program 
	Function/Program 
	2014 
	2015 
	2016 
	2017 
	2018 
	2019 
	2020 
	2021 
	2022 
	2023 

	Fire: 
	Fire: 

	Stations 
	Stations 
	3 
	3 
	3 
	3 
	3 
	3 
	3 
	4 
	4 
	4 

	Rescuesunits 
	Rescuesunits 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	7 
	4 
	4 

	Rescue/suppressionunits 
	Rescue/suppressionunits 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	6 
	5 
	5 

	Firerescuepersonnel(full 
	Firerescuepersonnel(full 

	timeequivalent) 
	timeequivalent) 
	121 
	121 
	121 
	121 
	121 
	121 
	121 
	140 
	140 
	140 

	Police: 
	Police: 

	Stations 
	Stations 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 

	Patrolunits 
	Patrolunits 
	74 
	74 
	76 
	76 
	85 
	85 
	75 
	80 
	80 
	80 

	Swornpersonnel 
	Swornpersonnel 
	78 
	78 
	80 
	81 
	93 
	93 
	93 
	93 
	93 
	93 

	RefuseCollection: 
	RefuseCollection: 

	Collectiontrucks 
	Collectiontrucks 
	7 
	7 
	10 
	10 
	15 
	10 
	18 
	18 
	18 
	18 

	OtherPublicWorks: 
	OtherPublicWorks: 

	Streets(miles) 
	Streets(miles) 
	53 
	53 
	51 
	51 
	51 
	51 
	51 
	51 
	51 
	51 

	Bikelanes(miles) 
	Bikelanes(miles) 
	45 
	45 
	46 
	46 
	46 
	46 
	51 
	51 
	51 
	51 

	Highways(miles) Streetlights1 
	Highways(miles) Streetlights1 
	34 1,390 
	34 1,390 
	32 1,379 
	32 1,384 
	32 1,389 
	32 1,395 
	32 1,408 
	32 1,638 
	32 1,641 
	32 1,648 

	Trafficsignals 
	Trafficsignals 
	156 
	156 
	156 
	156 
	156 
	169 
	164 
	167 
	167 
	167 

	ParksandRecreation: 
	ParksandRecreation: 

	Acreage 
	Acreage 
	245 
	245 
	245 
	245 
	245 
	245 
	245 
	246 
	239 
	239 

	Playgrounds 
	Playgrounds 
	11 
	11 
	11 
	11 
	11 
	12 
	12 
	12 
	12 
	12 

	Baseball/softballdiamonds 
	Baseball/softballdiamonds 
	21 
	21 
	21 
	21 
	20 
	21 
	21 
	19 
	21 
	21 

	Soccer/footballfields 
	Soccer/footballfields 
	18 
	18 
	18 
	18 
	19 
	18 
	18 
	14 
	11 
	11 

	Basketballcourts 
	Basketballcourts 
	9 
	9 
	9 
	9 
	9 
	10 
	11 
	12 
	13 
	13 

	Rollerhockeyrinks 
	Rollerhockeyrinks 
	8 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	3 
	2 
	2 
	2 

	Turfsoccerrinks 
	Turfsoccerrinks 
	 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	4 
	4 

	Tenniscourts 
	Tenniscourts 
	18 
	18 
	18 
	18 
	18 
	18 
	18 
	16 
	17 
	17 

	Skateparks 
	Skateparks 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 

	Amphitheatre 
	Amphitheatre 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 

	Outdoorconcertstage 
	Outdoorconcertstage 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 

	Communitycenters 
	Communitycenters 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 
	1 

	Water: 
	Water: 

	Watermains(miles)(1) 
	Watermains(miles)(1) 
	212 
	212 
	214 
	214 
	214 
	214 
	214 
	214 
	214 
	214 

	Firehydrants(2) 
	Firehydrants(2) 
	1,789 
	1,789 
	1,791 
	1,791 
	1,791 
	1,722 
	1,738 
	1,738 
	1,737 
	1,725 

	Storagecapacity(mgd) 
	Storagecapacity(mgd) 
	23.8 
	23.8 
	23.8 
	23.8 
	23.8 
	23.8 
	23.8 
	23.8 
	23.8 
	23.8 

	Lakesandcanals(acres) 
	Lakesandcanals(acres) 
	2,140 
	2,140 
	2,152 
	2,152 
	2,177 
	2,181 
	2,214 
	2,214 
	2,214 
	2,214 

	Wastewater: 
	Wastewater: 

	Sanitarysewers(miles) 
	Sanitarysewers(miles) 
	196 
	196 
	198 
	198 
	198 
	198 
	198 
	198 
	198 
	198 

	Stormsewers(miles) 
	Stormsewers(miles) 
	30 
	30 
	31 
	31 
	31 
	31 
	35 
	35 
	35 
	35 

	Treatmentcapacity(million 
	Treatmentcapacity(million 

	gallonsperday) 
	gallonsperday) 
	30.45 
	30.99 
	30.99 
	30.99 
	30.99 
	30.99 
	30.99 
	30.99 
	30.99 
	30.99 


	Source:CityofWestonPublicWorks,RecreationalDepartment,InformationTechnologiesDepartment,andtheCityofSunrise. 
	Note:(1)OwnedandmaintainedbyIndianTraceDevelopmentDistrict. Note:(2)FirehydrantsandwatermainsonlyaccountforITDDinfrastructure. 



	COMPLIANCESECTION 
	COMPLIANCESECTION 
	Figure
	INDEPENDENTAUDITOR’SREPORTONINTERNALCONTROLOVER FINANCIALREPORTINGANDONCOMPLIANCEANDOTHERMATTERS BASEDONANAUDITOFFINANCIALSTATEMENTSPERFORMED INACCORDANCEWITHGOVERNMENTAUDITINGSTANDARDS 
	TotheHonorableMayor, CityCommissionersandCityManager CityofWeston,Florida 
	Wehaveaudited,inaccordancewiththeauditingstandardsgenerallyacceptedintheUnitedStatesof AmericaandthestandardsapplicabletofinancialauditscontainedinGovernmentAuditingStandards, issuedbytheComptrollerGeneraloftheUnitedStates,thefinancialstatementsofthegovernmental activities,thebusinesstypeactivities,eachmajorfund,andtheaggregateremainingfundinformation oftheCityofWeston,Florida(the“City”)asofandfortheyearendedSeptember30,2023,andthe relatednotestothefinancialstatementswhichcollectivelycomprisetheCity’sbasicf
	ReportonInternalControloverFinancialReporting 
	In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriateinthecircumstancesforthepurposeofexpressingouropinionsonthefinancialstatements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly,wedonotexpressanopinionontheeffectivenessoftheCity’sinternalcontrol. 
	A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow managementoremployees,inthenormalcourseofperformingtheirassignedfunctions,toprevent,or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combinationofdeficiencies,ininternalcontrol,suchthatthereisareasonablepossibilitythatamaterial misstatementoftheentity’sfinancialstatementswillnotbeprevented,ordetectedandcorrected,ona timelybasis.Asignificantdeficiencyisadeficiency,
	Ourconsiderationofinternalcontrolwasforthelimitedpurposedescribedinthefirstparagraphofthis section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknessesorsignificantdeficiencies.Giventheselimitations,duringourauditwedidnotidentifyany deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknessesorsignificantdeficienciesmayexistthatwerenotidentified. 
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	CityofWeston,Florida   
	ReportonComplianceandOtherMatters 
	 AspartofobtainingreasonableassuranceaboutwhethertheCity’sfinancialstatementsarefreefrom materialmisstatement,weperformedtestsofitscompliancewithcertainprovisionsoflaws,regulations, contracts,andgrantagreements,noncompliancewithwhichcouldhaveadirectandmaterialeffecton thefinancialstatements.However,providinganopiniononcompliancewiththoseprovisionswasnot anobjectiveofouraudit,andaccordingly,wedonotexpresssuchanopinion.Theresultsofourtests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are requ
	PurposeofthisReport 
	 Thepurposeofthisreportissolelytodescribethescopeofourtestingofinternalcontrolandcompliance andtheresultsofthattesting,andnottoprovideanopinionontheeffectivenessoftheentity’sinternal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with GovernmentAuditingStandardsinconsideringtheentity’sinternalcontrolandcompliance.Accordingly, thiscommunicationisnotsuitableforanyotherpurpose.  
	   
	KEEFEMcCULLOUGH   FortLauderdale,Florida March28,2024  
	Figure
	MANAGEMENTLETTERINACCORDANCEWITHTHE RULESOFTHEAUDITORGENERALOFTHESTATEOFFLORIDA 
	TotheHonorableMayor, CityCommissionersandCityManager CityofWeston,Florida 
	ReportontheFinancialStatements 
	WehaveauditedthefinancialstatementsoftheCityofWeston,Florida(the“City)asofandforthefiscal yearendedSeptember30,2023,andhaveissuedourreportthereondatedMarch28,2024. 
	Auditor’sResponsibility 
	WeconductedourauditinaccordancewithauditingstandardsgenerallyacceptedintheUnitedStatesof America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. 
	OtherReportingRequirements 
	WehaveissuedourIndependentAuditor’sReportonInternalControloverFinancialReportingandon ComplianceandOtherMattersBasedonanAuditoftheFinancialStatementsPerformedinAccordance with Government Auditing Standards; and Independent Accountant’s Report on an examination conductedinaccordancewithAICPAProfessionalStandards,ATCSection315,regardingcompliance requirementsinaccordancewithChapter 10.550,Rules ofthe Auditor General. Disclosures in those reportsandschedule,whicharedatedMarch28,2024,shouldbeconsideredinconjunc
	PriorAuditFindings 
	Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not correctiveactionshavebeentakentoaddressfindingsandrecommendationsmadeinthepreceding financialauditreport.Therewerenofindingsandrecommendationsmadeintheprecedingfinancial auditreport. 
	OfficialTitleandLegalAuthority 
	Section10.554(1)(i)4.,RulesoftheAuditorGeneral,requiresthatthenameorofficialtitleandlegal authorityfortheprimarygovernmentandeachcomponentunitofthereportingentitybedisclosedin thismanagementletter,unlessdisclosedinthenotestothefinancialstatements.CityofWeston,Florida wasestablishedpursuanttoChapter96472,LawsofFlorida.IndianTraceCommunityDevelopment District,ablendedcomponentunitofCityofWeston,Florida,wasestablishedbyChapter80407,Laws ofFlorida.BonaventureDevelopmentDistrict,ablendedcomponentunitofCityofWest
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	CityofWeston,Florida   
	FinancialConditionandManagement 
	 Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate proceduresandcommunicatetheresultsofourdeterminationastowhetherornottheCitymetoneor more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the City did not meet any of the conditionsdescribedinSection218.503(1),FloridaStatutes.  Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of th
	SpecialDistrictComponentUnits  
	Section10.554(1)(i)5.c.,RulesoftheAuditorGeneral,requires,ifappropriate,thatwecommunicatethe failureofaspecialdistrictthatisacomponentunitofacounty,municipality,orspecialdistricttoprovide thefinancialinformationnecessaryforproperreportingofthecomponentunitwithintheauditedfinancial statementsofthecounty,municipality,orspecialdistrictinaccordancewithSection218.39(3)(b),Florida Statutes.Inconnectionwithouraudit,wedidnotnoteanyspecialdistrictcomponentunitsthatfailedto provide the necessary informationfor proper
	 AdditionalMatters 
	 Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with provisionsofcontractsorgrantagreements,orabuse,thathaveoccurred,orarelikelytohaveoccurred, thathaveaneffectonthefinancialstatementsthatislessthanmaterialbutwarrantstheattentionofthose chargedwithgovernance.Inconnectionwithouraudit,wedidnotnoteanysuchfindings.  
	PurposeofthisLetter 
	 OurmanagementletterisintendedsolelyfortheinformationanduseoftheLegislativeAuditingCommittee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, Federalandothergrantingagencies,theMembersoftheCityCommission,andapplicablemanagement, andisnotintendedtobeandshouldnotbeusedbyanyoneotherthanthesespecifiedparties.  
	   
	KEEFEMcCULLOUGH   FortLauderdale,Florida March28,2024 
	CityofWeston,Florida Exhibit1 DataElementsRequiredBySection218.39(3)(c),FloridaStatutesand Section10.554(1)(i)6,RulesoftheAuditorGeneral (Unaudited) 
	CityofWeston,Florida Exhibit1 DataElementsRequiredBySection218.39(3)(c),FloridaStatutesand Section10.554(1)(i)6,RulesoftheAuditorGeneral (Unaudited) 
	CityofWeston,Florida Exhibit1 DataElementsRequiredBySection218.39(3)(c),FloridaStatutesand Section10.554(1)(i)6,RulesoftheAuditorGeneral (Unaudited) 

	IndianTrace BonaventureDevelopment DataElement DevelopmentDistrict DevelopmentDistrict Numberofdistrictemployeescompensatedat9/30/2023 None None NumberofindependentcontractorscompensatedinSeptember2023 127 95 EmployeecompensationforFYE9/30/2023(paid/accrued) None None IndependentcontractorcompensationforFYE9/30/2023(paid/accrued) $ 17,774,801 $ 2,864,069 EachconstructionprojecttobeginonorafterOctober12022;(>$65K): None None Budgetvariancereport Page63 Page64 
	IndianTrace BonaventureDevelopment DataElement DevelopmentDistrict DevelopmentDistrict Numberofdistrictemployeescompensatedat9/30/2023 None None NumberofindependentcontractorscompensatedinSeptember2023 127 95 EmployeecompensationforFYE9/30/2023(paid/accrued) None None IndependentcontractorcompensationforFYE9/30/2023(paid/accrued) $ 17,774,801 $ 2,864,069 EachconstructionprojecttobeginonorafterOctober12022;(>$65K): None None Budgetvariancereport Page63 Page64 


	Figure
	INDEPENDENTACCOUNTANT’SREPORTONCOMPLIANCEWITH SECTION218.415,FLORIDASTATUTES 
	TotheHonorableMayor, CityCommissionersandCityManager CityofWeston,Florida 
	WehaveexaminedtheCityofWeston,Florida’s(the“City”)compliancewiththerequirementsofSection 218.415FloridaStatutes,LocalGovernmentInvestmentPolicies,duringtheyearendedSeptember30,2023. ManagementisresponsiblefortheCity'scompliancewiththespecifiedrequirements.Ourresponsibilityis toexpressanopinionontheCity'scompliancewiththespecifiedrequirementsbasedonourexamination. 
	Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American InstituteofCertifiedPublicAccountants.Thosestandardsrequirethatweplanandperformtheexamination toobtainreasonableassuranceaboutwhethertheCitycomplied,inallmaterialrespects,withthespecified requirementsreferencedabove.Anexaminationinvolvesperformingprocedurestoobtainevidenceabout whethertheCitycompliedwiththespecifiedrequirements.Thenature,timing,andextentoftheprocedures selecteddependonourjudgment,includinganas
	Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with specified requirements. 
	Inouropinion,theCitycomplied,inallmaterialrespects,withtheaforementionedrequirementsforthe yearendedSeptember30,2023. 
	Thisreportisintendedsolelyfortheinformationanduseofmanagement,MembersoftheCityCommission, management,andtheStateofFloridaAuditorGeneralandisnotintendedtobeandshouldnotbeusedby anyoneotherthanthesespecifiedparties. 
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